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To My
a Fellow
)“ Investors

When [ was drafting the Chairman’s Letter for last
year’s 2003 Annual Report, I thought, “This is
about as good as it gets.” We had begun a strategic
transformation of the company, completing the
acquisition of Sprint Publishing that was successfully
integrated well ahead of schedule. We began
constructing a “Best in Class” sales organization
and were on our way to improving sales results.
We had significantly decreased costs and rewarded
shareholders with an outstanding 36% increase in
share price. But as I look back on 2004 in writing
this letter, it is clear that 2003 was just the start
of something very special, and the momentum
continued, making 2004 truly a remarkable year of
progress and accomplishment.

It is with great pride that I present to you the
impressive achievements of the fine group of men
and women who are R.H. Donnelley:

s Grew sales 2.7%/ in our Sprint markets - the best
growth there in years. We believe this represents
the best sales growth among major incumbent
Yellow Pages publishers. We also believe we can
do even better.

= Continued our strategic transformation to owner/
operator by acquiring SBC’s Yellow Pages business
in Illinois and Northwest Indiana for $1.4 billion
in cash. We now own all 389 of our Yellow Pages
directories and have control over our operations
and cash flow.

» Made significant inroads on our digital strategy
initiatives, launching over 100 online city guides
and search sites, which include digital, searchable
versions of our yellow and white pages products,
In our most important markets.

» Successfully moved our corporate headquarters
from Purchase, New York to Cary, North Carolina
- giving the company a new address to go with its
new attitude.

» Generated adjusted pro forma revenue of over
$1 billion’, up from $75 million two years ago.

s Generated normalized adjusted pro forma
EBITDA of $600 million’. Generated $388
million’ of free cash flow and significantly
reduced debt.

» Increased share price an impressive 48% on top
of a 36% increase in 2003.

Going into 2005, I see even greater opportunities
ahead, as we remain focused on three strategic
priorities:

We will continue to establish the RHD Business
Processin our Sprint markets, where implementation
is driving results.

Changing culture and behavior takes time. Our
focus over the last two years has been on our larger
markets, so opportunity exists to make further
progress as we implement in the smaller markets we
have yet to address.

We will work to improve results in Illinots.

When we bought this business, we knew it was a
“fixer upper” - not unlike Sprint Publishing when
we bought it 19 months earlier. Illinois will be
under construction in 2005. It starts with some
demolition followed by reconstruction as we begin
implementing our RHD Business Process. As we’ve
said all along, this work takes time - so don’t expect
to see more than marginal improvement there this
year.

We will rapidly expand Internet initiatives in the
markets we serve.

We believe that winning in local search requires the
right combination of trusted relationships with local
businesses, accurate and robust content to deliver
relevant search results and healthy consumer usage
share. We will build upon the foundation established
last year, providing users in all of our markets with
digital toolsto search our database, and providing our
advertisers additional exposure for their messages.

! All non-GAAP amounts are veconciled to the most comparable GAAP amounts in the schedule following the attached Form 10-K.
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Mostimportantly, we will launch strategies to achieve
meaningful progress toward a goal that the executive
team and I are determined to achieve — to be the
#1 local commercial search player in our markets.

The past two years have been an incredibly
rewarding experience for all of us, as very few
companies can boast the sort of transformation
we are experiencing, while creating so much
shareholder value along the way. I'm very proud
of our accomplishments and would like to thank all
our talented employees and valued partners for their
contributions. I also want to recognize the many
fine people who started the year with us, but were
unable to make the move from New York or Kansas
to our new headquarters in North Carolina, Their
unselfish dedication and professionalism throughout
our transition was inspiring and I wish them well in
their new endeavors.

2 R.H. Donnelley 2004 Annual Report

Before closing, I’d like to extend my appreciation to
our Board of Directors, which has been instrumental
to our success, including Robert Kamerschen,
who was appointed Presiding Director effective
November 1, 2004. I would also like to acknowledge
our newest member, Edwina D. Woodbury, our first
North Carolina resident to join the Board. Finally,
I’d like to extend special thanks to Carol J. Parry,
who retired after serving the company since 1998
and was instrumental in helping us become a leader
in corporate governance practices.

Please enjoy the Short Read format of this year’s
2004 Annual Report. It will give you a good idea
of who we are, what we believe and how we do
business.

Thank you for your interest in R.H. Donnelley.

SO orn }&M




R.H. Donnelley
is a leading Yellow Pages and
Directional Media company.

Operating from 38 locations, our 2,000 employees
serve more than 260,000 local and national
advertisers in 19 states.

During 2004, consumers used RHD
products to search for our advertisers more than
one billion times.!

At RHD, our mission
is to satisfy the needs
of our four major constituents.

Consumers

To provide comprehensive and accurate search
resources and tools for consumers seeking who
sells the products and services they need in the
markets we serve.

Advertisers

To provide a stream of high quality prospects to
businesses, at a fair price.

Employees

To provide a challenging, yet fun, work
environment where employees have the
opportunity to achieve their career goals.

Investors

To provide an attractive return on investment.

! Estimate based on total U.S. references to print Yellow Pages of 14.8 billion times RHD pro forma adjusted revenue of $1.0 billion divided by $14.3 billion toral

U.S. Yellow Pages revenue. Source: The Kelsey Group, 2005.
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Stmtegic transformation, Cash Flow; Leverage and Shareholder Value’

. . Free cash flow of $388 million includes $71 million
improving sales results of tax refunds. We repaid $297 million of debt,

and strong cash ﬂow and used $95 million of cash generated
led to exceptional returns pre-acquisition to reduce the amount we would
otherwise have borrowed to finance the SBC -
for sharebolders. transaction.
Our net debt of $3.1 billion at year-end
Publication Sales’ represented 5.2 times normalized EBITDA. In
Publication sales in our Sprint markets grew 2.7% January 2005, we issued $300 million of 8-year
in 2004, with improving year-over-year growth in 6.875% unsecured notes to repurchase half our
each quarter. Pub sales in our recently acquired convertible preferred stock for $277 million.
SBC Illinois markets declined 2.1%, reflecting This reduced our diluted shares outstanding
economic conditions in the Midwest and issues by 4.9 million, while taking advantage of low
associated with our previous partnership structure. interest rates to reduce our weighted average cost
Recall that Sprint pub sales declined 3.0% in the of capital. Net debt of $3.4 billion following the
vear before we acquired that business. repurchase was approximately 75% fixed rate
and represented 5.7 times leverage.
Adjusted Pro Forma Results’ We also enhanced our valuable tax benefits
Revenue was essentially unchanged at $1,034 witb the SBC acqgisition, addipg $1.1 billion of tax
million in 2004 vs. $1,033 million in 2003, with basis step-up. This should facilitate annual
growth in Sprint markets offset by declines in deductions of $74 million through 2019, in

linois. addition to $122 million of annual deductions

EBITDA of $617 million includes SBC carve through 2018 from the earlier Sprint transaction.
out financial results from January 1st without ‘Our stock price increased 48% du“(?g 2004,
adjustment. Normalized EBITDA of $600 million which 18 partl.cularly gratifying after 36% ,
reflects the underlying economics of the acquired appreciation in 2003. Nevertheless, we continue

SBC operations, assumes we had adopted SFAS to believe that our stock represents extraordinary
123 for 2004 a}nong other adjustments, and value — trading about 7 times 2005 estimated free
represents 58’% margin. ’ cash flow compared to other media stocks priced

at over 15 times.?

Free Cash Flow and Stock Price Growth

$350 —— e
$300 :
$250 : S
$200 ————
$150 —— -
$100 —— —
$50 —— $293T

$0

2002 i 2003 | 2004

{J share Price at Year-End Free Cash Flow (s mirions) '

CRGALZY CAGR 162%

! All non-GAAP amounts are reconciled to the most comparable GAAP amounts in the schedule following the attached Form 10-K.
2 Source: Credit Suisse First Boston Equity Research, 2004
3 Excludes $71 mullion of income tax refunds in FY2004.
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Objectives: Deliver and De-lever Another year of expected strong cash flow

Our recently acquired SBC Illinois business will should afford us the opportunity to de-lever our

be under construction in 2005 as we implement balance sheet and once again transfer significant

the RHD Business Process there. Meanwhile, Valu(? from lenders to shareholders‘. We

our Sprint business should continue to improve cogtmuously evaluate ways to optimize our

through fundamental execution. weighted average cost of capital and responsibly
Our focus will remain on delivering strong deploy financial leverage to enhance equity returns.

value to both consumers and advertisers. Our We firmly b.eh‘eve our compelling Investment

target EBITDA’ margin in the mid $0’s reflects our dynamics remain in place depenFlable recurring

plan to invest in growth and to accelerate our local revenue, strong cash flow conversion and levered

commercial search strategy. equity returns — all at an attractive valuation.

Financial Overview @

$ millions

2003 2004 % Change
Total Pub Sales - Sprint $553 $567 2.7%
Total Pub Sales - SBCIL $473 $463 -2.1%
Total Pub Sales - Total $1,026 $1,030 0.5%
Adjusted Revenue $572@ $1,034 @
Adjusted EBITDA $411@ $600 @@
Free Cash Flow $236 $317 ® 34.3%
Free Cash Flow Multiple © 6.8x 7.8x
Free Cash Flow Yield 14.7% 12.8%
Equity Market Capitalization at year-end © $1,724 $2,604 51.1%
Enterprise Value at year-end $3,808 $5,721 50.2%
Adjusted EBITDA Multiple at year-end 9.3x 9.5x
Year-end Leverage 5.1x 5.2x

(1) All non-GAAP amounts are reconciled to the most comparable GAAP amounts in the schedule following the attached Form 10-K.

(2) Assumes Sprint transaction closed on January 1, 2003 and excludes the impact of purchase accounting. Adjusted EBiTDA includes $114 million of DonTech
partnership income.

(3) Assumes SBC transaction closed on January 1, 2004 and excludes the impact of purchase accounting.

(4) Adjusted EBITDA for 2004 has been normalized to remove the impact of certain items. See the schedule following the attached Form 10-K for a

reconciliation between adjusted EBITDA and normalized adjusted EBITDA, as well as a reconciliation to the most comparable GAAP measure.

) Excludes $71 million of income tax refunds.

(6) Based on share prices as of December 31, 2003 and December 31, 2004 as well as weighted average diluted shares outstanding for each period presented.

) Reciprocal of free cash flow multiple.

(8) Share price at December 31 multiplied by fully diluted shares outstanding as of December 31, 2004,

R.H. Donnelley 2004 Annual Report
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R.H. Donnelley’s future

looks brighter than ever.

Our optimism about the future

is fueled by the products,

content and customer relationships
that we now own and control,

as well as the following trends:

Print Yellow Pages usage remains strong.

Yellow Pages are always relevant to consumers,
driven by continual needs for products and services
in addition to what researchers call “life events”

— things like getting married, buying a new home,
handling emergencies, and other impactful
situations. These needs are the demand engine of
our business, and the following Yellow Pages usage
trends tell an impressive story.

» Usage of print Yellow Pages has remained
incredibly stable in spite of increased Internet
search activity. References to print Yellow Pages
in 2004 remained strong at 14.8 billion versus
14.9 billion in 2000.!

» An estimated 75% of adults in the U.S. use print
Yellow Pages each month, with 86% of those users
intending to make a purchase.’

» The 18-24 age group references Yellow Pages
37% more than average, with even higher usage
among those who are married.? The linkage
between life events and strong Yellow Pages
usage is evident even among the younger online
generation.

! KN/SRI Industry Usage Study, 2004
2 Simmons, Fall, 2004 National Consumer Survey
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Internet and wireless search provide new and
exciting growth opportunities to extend the reach
of our advertisers’ messages to more consumers
than ever before.

The Internet and other digital forms of distribution
are creating an explosion in the total number of
searches that consumers are performing to find
who sells the products and services they need.

The Kelsey Group, a leading research company,
projects that the number of online searches for
local commercial services will grow from

5.5 billion in 2004 to approximately 26 billion

in 2009. That’s why we define our business as
directional media, and not just Yellow Pages.

We remain committed to providing comprehensive
and relevant information to consumers whenever,
wherever and however they may search.

The rapidly changing telephony environment
presents potential opportunities for us to further
consolidate telephone company yellow pages
operations.

Over the last two years, we acquired Yellow

Pages properties from two incumbent telephone
companies, demonstrating our ability to integrate
businesses into our Company. This track record
and our trusted stewardship of the Sprint and SBC
brands positions us for potential acquisitions or
partnerships that would create shareholder value.




Integrity in every

aspect of the way we conduct
our business is a key element
of our corporate culture.

We place a high value

on honesty, fair dealing,
legal compliance and

ethical business practices.

This statement in our Policy on Business Conduct
is the cornerstone of our Company, from the
Boardroom to the stock room, and a key
contributor to our past, present and future success.

Our senior management team, under the
oversight of our independent Board of Directors,
provides the Company with the leadership and
experience necessary to make successful business
decisions.

Our Company has been committed to
developing and maintaining solid corporate
governance policies and practices since becoming
an independent public company in 1998, at the
time of our spin-off from The Dun & Bradstreet
Corporation. For example, since 1999, we’ve had
in place the following governance practices, which
since that time have come to be regarded by the
business community as “Best Practices.”

= A Board comprised of a majority of independent
directors.

s A set of Corporate Governance Principles,
including comprehensive director nomination
standards.

» Standing audit, compensation and nominating/
governance committees comprised solely of
independent directors and governed under
separate written charters.

a Executive sessions with little or no inside
director participation.

= Audit Committee members meeting the financial
literacy requirements of the recent NYSE rules.

» A code of conduct regarding the principles set
forth in the opening paragraph above.

= Comprehensive CEO and Board evaluation
processes.

In 2003, a full year ahead of the deadline set by
the New York Stock Exchange, RHD moved to
incorporate new NYSE corporate governance
rules. We completed a comprehensive update of
our relevant policies and practices to assure full
compliance with the final NYSE rules in 2004.
During 2004, we also filed with the New York
Stock Exchange the CEO Certification required
by their Rule 303A. 12(a), and filed with the
Securities and Exchange Commission the CEO
and CFO certifications required by Section 302
of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act as exhibits to our
Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended
December 31, 2004.

The strength of our corporate governance
approach is being publicly recognized by highly
respected organizations. Institutional Shareholder
Services ranks our corporate governance among
the top 10 percent in our public media peer group.
Similarly, Moody’s Investors Service found that
RHD “has strong governance practices in place
even relative to much larger companies” and
lauded our early adoption of best practices as
“an indication of a genuine commitment to good
governance and a manifestation of the company’s
identity and culture.”

In furthering our commitment to these
guiding principles, we invite you to review our
detailed corporate governance materials on our
Corporate Governance page at www.rhd.com/
Investor Info, or contact us at 800-497-6329.

R.H. Donnelley 2004 Annual Report 7



Board of Direcltors

David C. Swanson
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer
R.H. Donnelley Corporation

Kenneth G. Campbell?3
Director and Advisor
EBoomerang, Inc.

Nancy E. Cooper*”
Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer
IMS Health Incorporated

Robert R. Gheewalla
Managing Director, Goldman Sachs & Co.

Robert Kamerschen? %3
Retired, Chairman and Chief Executive Officer
ADVO, Inc.

Terence M. O’Toole

Retired, Managing Director, Goldman Sachs & Co.

David M. Veit>*

Retired, Executive Director, Pearson plc.

Barry Lawson Williams? 4~
President, Williams Pacific Ventures, Inc.

Edwina D. Woodbury*"
CEO and President, The Chapel Hill Press, Inc.

Membership on Committees of the Board
of Directors:

! Presiding Independent Director

2 Compensation and Benefits

% Corporate Governance

* Audit and Finance

* Audit Committee Financial Expert
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Corporate Officers

David C. Swanson
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Peter J. McDonald
President and Chief Operating Officer

Steven M. Blondy
Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer

George F. Bednarz
Vice President, Corporate Planning and IT

Michael R. Boyce
Vice President and Chief Marketing Officer

Robert J. Bush
Vice President, General Counsel and
Corporate Secretary

William M. Hammack
Vice President, Strategy and Business Development

Debra M. Ryan

Vice President, Human Resources

Jenny L. Apker
Vice President and Treasurer

Robert A. Gross
Vice President and Controller

John L. Mieske
Vice President, Finance, Publishing and Operations

James M. Gruskin
Assistant Vice President, Finance and
Investor Relations
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of shares of the Registrant’s common stock (based upon the closing price per share of $43.74 of such stock on
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PART I

ITEM 1. BUSINESS

Except where otherwise indicated, the terms “Company,” “Donnelley,” “RHD,” “we,” “us” and “our”
refer to R.H. Donnelley Corporation and its direct and indirect wholly owned subsidiaries. R.H. Donnelley
Inc. is our wholly owned direct subsidiary. Qur executive offices are located at 1001 Winstead Drive, Cary,
North Carolina 27513 and our telephone number is (919) 297-1600. Our Internet Website address is
www.rhd.com. We make available free of charge on our Web site our annual, quarterly and current reports,
including amendments to such reports, as soon as practicable after we electronically file such material with, or
furnish such material to, the United States Securities and Exchange Commission (“SEC”). Qur filings can also
be obtained from the SEC Web site at www.sec.gov. However, the information found on our Web site or the
SEC Web site is not part of this annual report.

Corporate Overview

We are a leading yellow pages publisher and directional media company. Directional media is where
consumers search to find who sells the goods and services they are ready to purchase. We publish Sprint®-
branded yellow pages directories in 18 states, with major markets including Las Vegas, Nevada and Orlando
and Lee County, Florida, with a total distribution of approximately 18 million serving approximately 160,600
local and national advertisers. We also publish SBC®-branded yellow pages directories in Illinois and
Northwest Indiana, with a total distribution of approximately 10 million serving approximately 100,000 local
and national advertisers. We also offer online city guides and search Web sites in our major Sprint markets
under the Best Red Yellow Pages® brand at www.bestredyp.com and in the Chicagoland area at
www.chicagolandyp.com. We also sell local advertising in lllinois and Northwest Indiana onto
www.SMARTpages.com, SBC’s Internet yellow pages platform.

On September 1, 2004, we completed the acquisition of the directory publishing business (“SBC Directory
Business”) of SBC Communications, Inc. (“SBC™) in Illinois and Northwest Indiana, including SBC’s interests
in The DonTech II Partnership (“DonTech”), a 50/50 general partnership between us and SBC (collectively, the
“SBC Directory Acquisition”). See “Acquisitions — SBC Directory Acquisition” below for a further description
of the acquisition.

On January 3, 2003, we completed the acquisition of the directory publishing business (the “SPA
Directory Business”) of Sprint Corporation (“Sprint”} by acquiring all of the outstanding common stock of the
various entities comprising Sprint Publishing & Advertising (*SPA”} (collectively, the “SPA Acquisition™). See
“Acquisitions — SPA Acquisition” below for a further description of the acquisition.

These acquisitions transformed Donnelley into a leading publisher of yellow pages directories. Prior to the
SPA Acquisition, we were one of the largest independent sales agents and pre-press vendors for yellow pages
advertising in the United States. At the time, our 2002 revenue reflected sales commissions and pre-press fees
from, or other transactions with, our business partners, including Sprint and SBC. Commencing in 2003
following the SPA Acquisition, our operating and financial results reflect our yellow pages publishing business,
rather than our former business as a sales agent and pre-press vendor for yellow pages advertising on behalf of
other publishers. As a publisher, we report the full value of advertising sales and certain direct costs under the
deferral and amortization method. DonTech’s business remained unchanged following the SPA Acquisition, but
our investment in DonTech was eliminated in connection with the SBC Directory Acquisition on September 1,
2004. During 2003 and in 2004 until the SBC Directory Acquisition, we continued to earn revenue from pre-
press publishing and other ancillary services related to the SBC Directory Business and we continued to report
partnership income from our investment in DonTech.

During the third quarter of 2004 following the SBC Directory Acquisition, we revised our historical
segment reporting to reflect the change in our business and to reflect the way management now reviews and
analyzes the business. Our business of publishing yellow pages directories is now conducted in one reportable
operating segment. All pre-press publishing services and other ancillary services previously performed on behalf

1




of other publishers are now performed entirely on behalf of the directories we publish. As a result of the SBC
Directory Acquisition, SBC ceased paying us revenue participation income, we consolidate all net profits from
DonTech and our DonTech partnership investment was eliminated. Consequently, partnership income was no
longer reported commencing September 1, 2004 and, accordingly, the previously reported DonTech operating
segment is no longer applicable. See Note 13 to the Company’s audited consolidated financial statements
included in Item 8 of this annual report and “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition
and Results of Operations” in Item 7 of this annual report for more information regarding the Company’s

segments.

Acquisitions
SBC Directory Acquisition

On September 1, 2004, we completed the SBC Directory Acquisition for $1.41 billion in cash, after
working capital adjustments and the settlement of a $30 million liquidation preference owed to us related to
DonTech. This transaction was consummated pursuant to a purchase agreement dated as of July 28, 2004 by
and among RHD, Ameritech Corporation (“Ameritech”), a direct wholly owned subsidiary of SBC, and
Ameritech Publishing, Inc. (“API”"), a direct wholly owned subsidiary of Ameritech. The acquired SBC
Directory Business now operates as R.H. Donnelley Publishing & Advertising of Illinois Partnership, one of

our indirect wholly owned subsidiaries.

In connection with the SBC Directory Acquisition, we entered into a directory services license agreement, a
non-competition agreement, a SMARTpages® reseller agreement and a directory publishing listing agreement
(collectively, “SBC Directory Services Agreements’’) with certain affiliates of SBC. The directory services license
agreement designates us as the official and exclusive provider of yellow pages directory services for SBC (and
its successors) in Illinois and Northwest Indiana (the “Territory”}, grants us the exclusive license (and
obligation as specified in the agreement) to produce, publish and distribute white pages directories in the
Territory as SBC’s agent and grants us the exclusive license (and obligation as specified in the agreement) to
use the SBC brand and logo on print directories in the Territory. The non-competition agreement prohibits
SBC (and its affiliates and successors), with certain limited exceptions, from (1) producing, publishing and
distributing yellow and white pages print directories in the Territory, (2) soliciting or selling local or national
yellow or white pages advertising for inclusion in such directories, and (3} soliciting or selling local Internet
yellow pages advertising for certain Internet yellow pages directories in the Territory or licensing SBC marks to
any third party for that purpose. The SMARTpages reseller agreement gives us the exclusive right to sell local
Internet yellow pages advertising and the non-exclusive right to sell Internet yellow pages advertising with
respect to geographies outside the Territory to any advertiser (excluding national advertisers) located inside the
Territory onto SBC’s SMARTpages.com platform (and any successor products as specified in the agreement).
The directory publishing listing license agreement gives us the right to purchase and use basic SBC subscriber
listing information and updates for the purpose of publishing directories. The SBC Directory Services
Agreements are all interrelated and each (other than the SMARTpages reseller agreement) has an initial term of
50 years, subject to automatic renewal and early termination under specified circumstances. The SMARTpages

reseller agreement has a term of 5 years,

SPA Acquisition

On January 3, 2003, we completed the acquisition of SPA by purchasing all the stock of two subsidiaries
of Sprint, DirectoriesAmerica, Inc. and Centel Directory Company (“Centel”), for $2.23 billion in cash. This
transaction was consummated pursuant to a purchase agreement dated as of September 21, 2002 by and
among RHD, Sprint and Centel Directories LLC. The acquired SPA Directory Business now operates as R.H.
Donnelley Publishing & Advertising, Inc., one of our indirect wholly owned subsidiaries.

In connection with the SPA Acquisition, we entered into a directory services license agreement, a
trademark license agreement and a non-competition agreement (collectively, ““SPA Directory Services
Agreements”) with Sprint. The directory services license agreement grants us the exclusive license (and
obligation as specified in the agreement) to produce, publish and distribute yellow and white pages directories
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for Sprint (and its successors) in the markets in 18 states where Sprint provided local telephone service at the
time of the transaction. The trademark license agreement grants us the exclusive license (and obligation as
specified in the agreement) to use certain Sprint trademarks, including the Sprint diamond logo, in those
markets. The non-competition agreement prohibits Sprint (and its affiliates and successors) in those markets
from selling local directory advertising or producing, publishing and distributing print directories, with certain
limited exceptions. The SPA Directory Services Agreements are all interrelated and each has an initial term of
50 years, subject to automatic renewal and early termination under specified circumstances.

Both acquisitions were accounted for as purchase business combinations. The purchase price for each
acquisition was allocated to the tangible and identifiable intangible assets acquired and liabilities assumed
based on their respective fair values on each acquisition date. The results of the SBC Directory Business have
been included in our consolidated results from and after September 1, 2004 and the results of the SPA
Directory Business have been included in our consolidated results from and after January 3, 2003. See
“Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations” in Item 7 of this
annual report for more information regarding the financing and the accounting for, and financial implications
of, these acquisitions.

Historical Overview of Donnelley

Following the SPA Acquisition, we published Sprint-branded yellow pages directories in 18 states and had
a total circulation of approximately 18 million, serving approximately 160,000 local and national advertisers.
Through DonTech, we sold advertising for SBC-branded directories in Hlinois and Northwest Indiana with a
circulation of approximately 10 million, serving approximately 100,000 local advertisers. DonTech was our
50/50 partnership with an affiliate of SBC. DonTech provided local advertising sales services for those SBC-
branded directories and earned a commission from SBC. Under our former agreements with SBC, we had a
50% interest in the net profits of DonTech and also received revenue participation income directly from SBC.
The amount of revenue participation income we earned was based on a percentage of DonTech advertising
sales. Revenue participation income comprised approximately 80% to 85% of our total income related to
DonTech and was paid directly to us by an affiliate of SBC. We accounted for our investment in DonTech
under the equity method and recorded all our income from DonTech and revenue participation income as
partnership income. We also provided certain pre-press publishing services, billing and information technology
support services with respect to those SBC-branded directories. See our annual report on Form 10-K for the
year ended December 31, 2003 for further details regarding our historical relationship with SBC, DonTech’s
operations prior to the SBC Directory Acquisition and our prior segment reporting.

Prior to the SPA Acquisition, we were one of the largest independent sales agents and pre-press vendors
for yellow pages advertising in the United States. In that capacity, we sold advertising for more than 170
yellow pages directories with a total circulation of over 15 million. We sold yellow pages advertising either
directly through our own sales force on behalf of SPA, or indirectly through DonTech. We also provided pre-
press publishing services for approximately 227 yellow pages directories, including all of the directories for
which we and DonTech sold advertising, as well as for an independent publisher for whom we ceased
providing services in the first quarter of 2003. See our annual report on Form 10-K for the year ended
December 31, 2002 for further details regarding our historical relationship with Sprint, SPA’s operations prior
to the SPA Acquisition and our prior segment reporting.

Products and Services

We publish directories in two media: print and online. While print and online media themselves are
substantially different in form, we view the two as vitally linked in continuing to provide the consumers in our
markets a reliable, valuable source of rich, locally relevant directional information, and our advertisers with a
highly desirable advertising platform to reach those consumers. Directional information directs consumers to
who sells the goods and services they are seeking. We believe that leveraging the value of the locally relevant
content that we capture for print directory advertisements is critical to effectively connecting advertisers in our
markets with those consumers who are using the Internet to meet some or all of their directional information
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needs. We believe that businesses in our markets advertise in our products because of the large volume of
qualified leads we deliver.

In 2004, we expanded the distribution of our print directory advertisers’ directional information through
deployment of our online products in key SPA and lllinois and Northwest Indiana markets. By the end of
2004, we had expanded our bestredyp.com city guide and Internet Yellow pages (“IYP”) platform to include
over 50 of the largest SPA markets and over 80 SBC Directory Business markets.

We believe that increased usage of online directories will expand overall usage in the United States
directory advertising industry, We intend to continue to explore new means to deliver our advertisers’
directional information to consumers.

Print Directory Products

We have two principal print directory types: a core directory and a community directory. Core directories
generally cover large population areas, whereas community directories typically cover a sub-section of the areas
addressed by a core directory. For example, in Lee County, Florida, we publish one core directory and four
community directories, Sanibel-Captiva Island, South Fort Myers, Cape Coral/North Fort Myers and Lehigh
Acres. These four communities together cover the majority of the core Lee County directory, but not the entire
market. Most core directories contain yellow pages, white pages and specialty sections, such as area
information, guides and government pages. Community directories also consist of yellow pages, white pages
and specialty sections.

The table below details our principal revenue-generating print directory product offerings.

Principal Print Products
Type Description

Stylized listings for white and yellow pages ..... Listings appearing in-column consist of name,
address and telephone number and are available
in a variety of type styles and limited color

Trade items . ... ...ovvitiii i Advertising space, designed to promote brand
name of product or service, placed alphabetically
within the column listings of the yellow pages

SPace Items . ..ottt Advertising space sold in Y2 inch increments
appearing alphabetically within the column
listings of the vellow pages

Displayads ........ ... ... L Advertising placed within a heading by size and
then by seniority — our ad sizes range from a
quarter column to a double full page

Color .o Various levels of color sophistication including
spot-four color, enhanced color, process photo
and hi-impact are available for display products

White pages logos ......... ... ..., Listings allowing space for illustrative art work




In addition to these principal products, we offer a broad range of specialty print directory products that
advertisers use as high-profile local branding and awareness vehicles. The table below presents an overview of
the main revenue-generating specialty products that we offer.

Specialty Print Products

Type Description

Cover products . .. ...t Adpvertising sold on the bottom of the front
cover, the inside front cover, the inside back
cover, the outside back cover and spine

Tabs ..o Full page advertising bound into the directory,
offering front and back space printed on card
stock with a tab protrusion or die-cut indented
tab

Ride-alongs ......... ... ... i Advertising pieces placed outside the directory,
either in the delivery bag during initial
distribution of a new directory publication or
shrink-wrapped to the directory when sending a
book to a new resident

Blow-incards .......... ... ... ..l Loose postcard-like products inserted into
directories
Guides (Golf, Menu, Local Attractions, Maps,
BEC.) Sections in the directories on a specific interest
area with feature information and banner
advertising

Online products

We offer an Internet-based directory, bestredyp.com, to our advertisers in many SPA markets and plan to
continue to expand this offering to all SPA markets during 2005. Bestredyp.com provides a city portal with
information about the targeted market, along with electronic versions of the white and yellow pages
directories. We provide users a dual-purpose interface that allows them to view the directory information in
either a typical Internet search engine view or a “look and feel” view that emulates the appearance of our
print directories.

In connection with the SBC Directory Acquisition, we recently began offering a similar Internet-based
directory in the Chicagoland area, chicagolandyp.com. We also entered into a reseller agreement with SBC
which grants us the exclusive right to sell local Internet yellow pages advertising and the non-exclusive right to
sell Internet yellow pages advertising with respect to geographies outside Illinois and Northwest Indiana to any
advertiser (excluding national advertisers) located in the Territory onto SBC’s SMARTpages.com platform (and
any successor products as specified in the agreement) for a period of five years.

We currently view our online products as a complement to our print directory products rather than as a
stand-alone business. Our online products focus on a “local experience” by offering rich local content to
consumers, which requires little incremental effort by our sales force to obtain. We also utilize a low cost
production platform.

Business Cycle Overview

Our directories generally have a 12-month directory cycle, except Las Vegas, which has two six-month
directory cycles. A publication cycle generally spans 15 to 20 months from the beginning of the sales cycle to
the end of a directory’s life and is comprised of several stages. The marketing stage is generally completed
before the end of the first month (other than in-market advertising). The sales stage picks up at the completion
of the marketing stage and generally runs through the following five months. Pre-press publishing and printing
follows the sales stage, usually lasting an additional two months. Finally, distribution generally occurs over the
month prior to and/or during the month of directory publication. Customer service and billing and collections
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stages are provided after distribution of a directory and throughout the directory cycle. While the business
cycle is similar for all directories, the publishing dates are staggered throughout the year to efficiently utilize
our systems and resources, particularly in the sales and publishing areas.

Marketing

Our marketing process includes the functions of market management, product development and
management, marketing research, pricing, advertising and public relations. The market management function is
decentralized and coordinates with local sales management to develop market plans and products that address
the needs of individual local markets. The other marketing functions are centralized and provide support to all
markets as warranted. Advertising programs are targeted to advertisers and consumers and are determined by
specific market and include television, radio, newspaper and outdoor ad placements.

Sales

Sales are conducted on the local level through premise representatives, telephone representatives and letter
renewals, and, on the national level, through national account managers who sell primarily to Certified
Marketing Representatives (“CMRs”) serving national advertisers. We distinguish between national advertisers,
which advertise in 20 or more directories and span three or more states with at least two different publishers,
and local advertisers, which are primarily small-and medium-sized businesses located within our markets. In
general, advertising from local advertisers continues to represent the majority of our revenue, accounting for
approximately 85% of directory advertising revenue, while approximately 15% is derived from national
advertisers.

Local Sales Organization

Our local sales channel is segmented into three sales sub-channels: premise sales, telephone sales and letter
renewal. Premise sales representatives conduct sales calls at customers’ business locations and typically handle
higher dollar and more complex accounts. Telephone sales representatives handle lower dollar value accounts
and conduct their sales over the phone. Letter renewal is used to contact very low dollar value customers that
have renewed their account for the same product for several years.

National Sales Organization

Our national sales channel is managed through our national sales department. CMRs have historically
been the national media buyers of yellow pages advertising for national advertisers. CMRs are independent
third parties that act as agents for national companies and design their advertisements, arrange for the
placement of those advertisements in directories and provide billing services. During 2003, we began acting as
a CMR ourselves directly placing certain national advertising. Our national account managers are the primary
point of contact for all communication and business dealings between RHD and CMRs. National account
managers and national sales representatives are accountable for overall national revenue objectives.

Pre-Press Publishing

Pre-press publishing activities include sales canvass preparation, sales order processing, graphics and
advertisement creation and white and yellow pages processing. Sales canvass preparation precedes the sales
stage. During the sales stage, sales order processing and graphics and ad creation are ongoing. Once an
individual sales campaign is complete and final advertisements have been produced, white and yellow pages are
paginated, proofed and prepared for printing. We accomplish most of these functions through an Amdocs®
publishing system, which we believe to be the industry standard.

Printing and Distribution

All directories are currently printed through our long-standing relationship with printing vendor R.R.
Donnelley & Sons Company (“R.R. Donnelley”). We currently have two contracts for the printing of our
directories with R.R. Donnelley that expire in December 2005 and December 2007. Alchough we share a

6




common heritage, no other common ownership or business relationship exists between R.R. Donnelley and us.
Printing is one of our largest cost items accounting for approximately 10% of our total operating and general
and administrative expenses.

The delivery of directories is facilitated through several outsourcing relationships. Methods utilized to
distribute directories to consumers are selected based on factors such as cost, quality, geography and market
need. Predominant delivery methods include United States Postal Service and hand delivery. Occasionally we
use United Parcel Service or other types of expedited delivery methods. Frequently a combination of these
methods is required to meet the needs of the marketplace.

Billing, Credit and Collection

The majority of our billing, credit and collection functions are handled internally. Local advertisers are
generally extended credit and billed monthly over the life of a directory, which is normally 12 months. CMRs
(on behalf of each national advertiser) are billed annually in the month of directory publication. Our credit
policies are market specific and balance collection risk with sales growth. Generally, new customers are subject
to a credit evaluation, as are current customers desiring to expand their advertising program. The billing and
collection functions are primarily focused on timely and accurate delivery of invoices and collection and
recording of customer payments. A lockbox system is used for customer payments. The collection process is
structured to identify delinquent customers in a timely manner and commence collection efforts through
various means such as bill messaging, collection letters and calls and/or site visits. Delinquent customers over a
specified time period are generally denied advertising rights in subsequent publications.

Customer Service

Our customer service process is designed to resolve customer questions and complaints promptly. Staffing,
processes and technology are structured to attempt to personally answer all calls and resolve most questions,
complaints and general inquiries on the initial call, which often lowers customer adjustments and increases
customer satisfaction. Information received through our customer service process is routinely analyzed to
improve the quality and customer focus of our other operating functions, as well as the customer service
function itself.

Competition
Print Yellow Pages Advertising Sales

The United States print directory advertising industry is highly competitive. Approximately 80% of total
United States directory advertising sales are attributable to Regional Bell Operating Company {“RBOC”) and
other incumbent directory publishers (collectively, with RBOC publishers, “incumbent publishers”) that
typically publish directories where they (or their licensors or affiliates) offer local phone service. More than
240 independent yellow pages directory publishers operating in the United States compete with those
incumbent publishers and represent the remaining market share.

In nearly all markets, we compete with one or more yellow pages directory publishers, which are
predominantly independent publishers, such as the U.S. business of Yell Group Ltd, TransWestern Publishing
Company LLC and White Publishing Company. We believe that acting as the exclusive, official incumbent
publisher of directories for the incumbent local telephone company (SBC and Sprint) in our markets provides
us with a competitive advantage over independent publisher competitors due to better recognition of our
brands, higher usage of our directories by consumers and our longer relationships with advertisers in our
markets. As an incumbent publisher, we also believe that we can deliver a better value proposition to our
advertisers than our independent competitors, largely due to user perception of up-to-date accuracy and
completeness that comes with our affiliation with the local telecom service provider. As an incumbent publisher
having operated in our markets for many more years than our independent publisher competitors, we believe
that we also benefit from established consumer usage patterns and loyal advertiser bases. We also believe that
our established operational infrastructure is a competitive advantage over our independent competitors. Our
printing, publishing and distribution functions all benefit from longer-term relationships with our key vendors.
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We believe that these factors motivate independent publishers to compete with us based on price while
they attempt to build their advertiser bases, which results in advertising rates significantly lower than our
prices for the same size advertisement. In some markets, we also compete with other incumbent directory
publishers in overlapping and adjacent markets. We compete with all these publishers based on value,
accessible price point, local relevance, quality, features and distribution.

Competition with Other Traditional Media

We also compete for advertising sales with other traditional media, including newspapers, magazines,
radio, direct mail, telemarketing, billboards, and television.

We believe we sustain a competitive advantage over many other media because directory advertising is the
preferred form of advertising for many small and medium-sized businesses, often their principal or only form
of advertising. We believe that preference for directory advertising is due to its relatively low cost, broad
demographic and geographic distribution, enduring presence, directional and permission-based (non-invasive)
nature and high consumer usage rates. We believe that directory advertising is attractive to our advertisers
because consumers view directories as a free, comprehensive, non-intrusive single source of locally relevant
directional information. While overall advertising tends to track a local economy’s business cycle, directory
advertising tends to be more stable and does not fluctuate as widely with economic cycles due to this
preference by small to medium-sized businesses. Print directory advertising also tends to be more stable because
failure to advertise in a given print directory cannot be remedied until the replacement print directory is
published, which is usually one year later. Moreover, we give priority placement within a directory
classification and by size of advertisement to our longest-tenured advertisers. As a result, our print advertisers
have a strong incentive to renew their directory advertising with us from year to year, so as not to lose their
priority placement within our print directories. We compete with these other media based on value, accessible

price point, local relevance, quality, features and distribution.

The Internet

The Internet has emerged as a new medium for advertisers. Advances in technology have brought and will
likely continue to bring new participants, new products and new channels to the advertising industry, including
increasing use of online and wireless delivery of traditional directory information and electronic search
engines/services. Although advertising on the Internet still represents only a small part of the total advertising
market, as the Internet grows, it likely will become increasingly important as an advertising medium. From
1997 to 2000, overall references to print yellow pages directories in the United States declined; however,
overall references to print yellow pages directories have remained relatively stable from 2000 through 2004.
We believe the past decline was primarily a result of demographic shifts among consumers, particularly the
increase of households in which English was not the primary language spoken. We also believe thar the past
decline was attributable to increased usage of Internet-based directory products, particularly in business-to-
business and retail categories, as well as the proliferation of very large retail stores for which consumers and
businesses may not reference the yellow pages. We believe that over the next several years, references to print
yellow pages directories may gradually decline as users may increasingly turn to digital and interactive media
delivery devices for local commercial search information. We expect overall directory usage to grow, largely

due to steady growth of Internet directory usage.

Directory publishers, including us, have increasingly bundled online advertising with their traditional print
offerings in order to enhance total usage and advertiser value. We compete directly through our online city
guides, “look and feel” electronic directories and search Web sites at bestredyp.com and chicagolandyp.com
with the IYP directories of the independent publishers and the other incumbent publishers. In addition, we are
the exclusive reseller of SBC’s SMARTpages.com IYP platform to local advertisers in our SBC markets.

Through our online city guides, “look and feel” electronic directories and search Web sites, we also
compete with other Internet sites, including those available through wireless applications, that provide classified
directory information, such as Switchboard.com, Citysearch.com and Zagat.com, and with search engines and
portals, such as Yahoo!®, Google®, MSN® and others, some of which have entered into affiliate agreements
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with other major directory publishers. We compete with all of these online competitors based on value, local
relevance and features.

The yellow pages directory advertising business is subject to changes arising from developments in
technology, including information distribution methods and users’ preferences. The use of the Internet and
wireless devices by consumers as a means to transact commerce may result in new technologies being
developed and services being provided that could compete with our traditional products and services. National
search companies such as Google and Yahoo are focusing and placing large priorities on local commercial
search initiatives. Our growth and future financial performance may depend on our ability to develop and
market new products and services and create new distribution channels, while enhancing existing products,
services and distribution channels, to incorporate the latest technological advances and accommodate changing
user preferences, including the use of the Internet and wireless devices.

Raw Materials

Our principal raw material is paper. It is one of our largest cost items accounting for approximately 5%
to 7% of our total operating and general and administrative expenses. We currently purchase our paper from
four vendors under agreements that expire at various times from December 31, 2005 through December 31,
2006. Pursuant to the contract under which we obtain the great majority of our paper and which extends
through December 31, 2006, the price of the paper was set at inception of the contract and increases at
various dates during the term of the agreement. Should the market price of the paper drop below the set prices
under that contract, both parties are obligated to negotiate in good faith a lower paper price. Also, we are
subject to delays in receiving this principal raw material. Further, changes in the supply of, or demand for,
paper could affect delivery times and market prices.

Intellectual Property

We own and control confidential information as well as a number of trade secrets, trademarks, service
marks, trade names, copyrights and other intellectual property rights that, in the aggregate, are of material
importance to our business. We believe that the “Donnelley” name and related names, marks and logos are, in
the aggregate, material to our business. We are licensed to use certain technology and other intellectual
property rights owned and controlled by others, and, similarly, other companies are licensed to use certain
technology and other intellectual property rights owned and controlled by us.

We have the exclusive license to produce, publish and distribute directories for Sprint (and its successors)
in the markets where Sprint provided local telephone service at the time of the SPA Acquisition as well as the
exclusive license to use Sprint’s brand, including Sprint’s diamond logo, on directories in those markets, and
we acquired the “Best Red Yellow Pages®” tagline and the “look and feel” trademarks previously used by SPA.
In addition, we have the exclusive license to provide yellow pages directory services for SBC (and its
successors) and to produce, publish and distribute white pages directories on behalf of SBC in Illinois and
Northwest Indiana, as well as the exclusive right to use the SBC brand and logo on print directories in that
territory.

Although we do not consider any individual trademark or other intellectual property to be material to our
operations, we believe that, taken as a whole, the licenses and trademarks we acquired in conjunction with the i
SPA Acquisition and SBC Directory Acquisition are material to our business. We consider our trademarks, |
service marks, databases, software and other intellectual property to be proprietary, and we rely on a
combination of copyright, trademark, trade secret, non-disclosure and contract safeguards for protection. We
also benefit from the use of the phrase “yellow pages” and the walking fingers logo, both of which we believe
to be in the public domain in the United States.

Employees

As of December 31, 2004, we had approximately 2,000 full-time employees. None of our employees are
subject to collective bargaining agreements, and we consider relations with our employees to be good.
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Executive Officers of the Registrant

The following table sets forth information concerning the individuals who serve as executive officers of the
Company as of March 4, 2005.

Name Age Position(s)

David C. Swanson ................. 50 Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer

Peter J. McDonald . ................ 54  President and Chief Operating Officer

Steven M. Blondy ................. 45 Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer

George F. Bednarz................. 51  Vice President — Corporate Planning and Information
Technology

Robert J.Bush .................... 39  Vice President, General Counsel and Corpcrate
Secretary

William M. Hammack ............. 56  Vice President — Strategy and Business Development

Debra M. Ryan ................... 53 Vice President — Human Resources

Michael R. Boyee.................. 44 Vice President — Chief Marketing Officer

Jenny L. Apker................ ... 47  Vice President and Treasurer

Robert A. Gross . .................. 45 Vice President and Controller

John L. Mieske.................... 49 Vice President — Finance, Publishing and Operations

The executive officers serve at the pleasure of the Board of Directors. We have been advised that there are
no family relationships among any of the officers listed, and there is no arrangement or understanding among
any of them and any other persons pursuant to which they were elected as an officer.

David C. Swanson has been Chief Executive Officer since May 2002 and Chairman of the Board since
December 2002. He was first elected to the Board in December 2001. He served as President and Chief
Operating Officer from December 2000 until May 2002. Prior to that, Mr. Swanson served as President of
Donnelley Directory Services from March 1999. Mr. Swanson joined Donnelley as an Account Executive in
1985 and has held increasingly senior management positions over the next 20 years. In 1995, he became
Executive Vice President of Sales and in 1997 was named Executive Vice President and General Manager of
Proprietary Operations. In 1998, he was named Executive Vice President of Corporate Strategy in conjunction
with our spin-off from The Dun & Bradstreet Corporation (“D&B”).

Peter J. McDonald has served as President and Chief Operating Officer since October 2004. Prior to that,
Mr. McDonald served as Senior Vice President and President of Donnelley Media from September 2002.
Mr. McDonald was a director of RHD between May 2001 and September 2002. Previously, Mr. McDonald
served as President and Chief Executive Officer of SBC Directory Operations, a publisher of yellow pages
directories, from October 1999 to April 2000. He was President and Chief Executive Officer of Ameritech
Publishing’s yellow pages business from 1994 to 1999, when Ameritech was acquired by SBC. Mr. McDonald
was President and Chief Executive Officer of DonTech from 1993 to 1994, Prior to that time, he served in a
variety of sales positions at Donnelley, after beginning his career at National Telephone Directory Corporation.
He is also a past vice chairman of the Yellow Pages Association.

Steven M. Blondy has served as Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer since March 2002. Prior
to joining Donnelley, Mr. Blondy served as Senior Vice President — Corporate Development for Young &
Rubicam, Inc., a global marketing and communications company, from 1998 to 2000. Mr. Blondy served as
Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer for Poppe Tyson, a leading Internet and integrated
marketing communications agency, from 1996 to 1997. Mr. Blondy served as Chief Financial Officer for
Grundy Worldwide, an independent producer of television programs in Europe and Australia, from 1994 to
1995. Prior to that, he spent 12 years in the investment banking industry with Chase Manhattan Bank and
Merrill Lynch.

George F. Bednarz has served as Vice President — Corporate Planning and Information Technology since
October 2004. Prior to that, Mr. Bednarz served as Vice President, Publishing, Information Technology and
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Corporate Planning, from January 2003 and Vice President, Publishing and Information Technology, from
April 2001. Previously, he served as Vice President and General Manager — Publishing from 1999.

Mr. Bednarz joined us in November 1995 to lead the start-up implementation of our Morrisville, North
Carolina Publishing and Information Center. Prior to joining us, Mr. Bednarz spent 19 years at D&B, where
he held executive positions of increasing responsibility in various functions.

Michael R. Boyce has served as Vice President and Chief Marketing Officer since October 2004. Prior to
that, he served as Vice President — Marketing and Business Development from July 1999. Mr. Boyce
previously served as Vice President and General Manager of Sprint Operations for RHD from May 1997 until
July 1999, From 1995 to 1997, Mr. Boyce held the position of Vice President and General Manager of our
Cincinnati operations. Mr. Boyce joined the Company in 1983 as a sales representative at DonTech and has
held various management positions in sales, training and marketing within the organization.

Robert J. Bush has served as General Counsel since January 2001. Since 2000, Mr. Bush served as Vice
President and Corporate Secretary, having joined Donnelley in October 1999 as Assistant Vice President and
Assistant General Counsel. Prior to joining us, Mr. Bush was Assistant General Counse! and Assistant
Secretary at MIM Corporation, a pharmacy benefit management company, from 1998 to 1999, and an
Associate at the New York offices of the law firm of Jones, Day, Reavis & Pogue (now known as Jones Day)
from August 1993 to May 1998.

William M. Hammack has served as Vice President — Strategy and Business Development since February
2004. Previously, Mr. Hammack was CEO of YPsolutions, an Internet software company he founded, from
2001. Prior to that, Mr. Hammack spent two decades as an independent directory publisher. He is a past
Chairman of the Association of Directory Publishers, the independent directory industry’s largest trade
association.

Debra M. Ryan has served as Vice President — Human Resources since January 2002. Prior to that,
Ms. Ryan served as Vice President — Human Resources for R.H. Donnelley Inc. from 1994. Ms. Ryan joined
Donnelley in 1973 as a sales representative and has held several management positions with increasing
responsibility in the sales organization.

Jenny L. Apker has served as Vice President and Treasurer since May 2003. Prior to that, she was
Assistant Treasurer at Allied Waste Industries, a waste services company, from 1998. Before joining Allied
Waste Industries, Ms. Apker was Vice President at First Interstate Bank of Arizona, a banking institution that
was subsequently acquired by Wells Fargo. Prior to joining First Interstate Bank of Arizona, Ms. Apker spent
11 years at Greyhound Financial Corporation, a financial services company.

Robert A. Gross has served as Vice President and Controller since January 20035 and Vice President —
Finance since September 2004. Prior to that, Mr. Gross served as Vice President and Chief Financial Officer of
DonTech from December 1997. Mr. Gross joined DonTech in October 1992 as Manager of Budgets and
Strategic Planning and was appointed Controller of DonTech in March 1993. Prior to joining DonTech,

Mr. Gross held various roles of increasing responsibility at G.R.I. Corporation, a direct marketing company,
and Continental Bank, a banking institution. Prior to that, Mr. Gross worked for Ernst & Whinney (now
Ernst & Young), a public accounting firm.

John L. Mieske has served as Vice President of Finance, Publishing and Operations since October 2004,
Prior to that, Mr. Mieske served as Vice President of Finance and Operations for Donnelley Media from
January 2003. Before joining Donnelley, Mr. Mieske was Vice President of Finance and Administration for
Sprint Publishing & Advertising, the yellow pages division of Sprint, from February 1998. Prior to that, he was
the Assistant Vice President of Finance & Administration for SPA from September 1992 and previously served
in a variety of senior financial positions with Sprint from 1983.
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ITEM 2. PROPERTIES

The following table details the location and general character of the properties currently used by R.H.
Donnelley to conduct its business:

Approximate Square

Property Location Footage Purpose Lease Expiration
Cary, NC 77,000 Corporate Headquarters 2015
Chicago, IL 100,000 Sales and Administration 2012
Morrisville, NC 55,000 Pre-Press Publishing 2006
Overland Park, KS 49,000 Operations and Sales 2009
Blountville, TN * 42,000 Former Graphics Operations 2012
Purchase, NY * 35,000 Former Headquarters 2006
Bristol, TN 25,000 Graphics Operations Owned
Dunmore, PA 20,000 Graphics Operations 2009
Lombard, IL 20,000 Sales and Administration 2012

* Presently vacant
We also lease space for our other sales offices.

We believe that our facilities are adequate for their current use and our present operations.

ITEM 3. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

We are involved in various legal proceedings arising in the ordinary course of our business, as well as
certain litigation and tax matters described below. We periodically assess our liabilities and contingencies in
connection with these matters based upon the latest information available to us. For those matters where it is
probable that we have incurred a loss and the loss or range of loss can be reasonably estimated, we record
reserves in our consolidated financial statements. In other instances, we are unable to make a reasonable
estimate of any liability because of the uncertainties related to both the probable outcome and amount or
range of loss. As additional information becomes available, we adjust our assessment and estimates of such
liabilities accordingly.

Based on our review of the latest information available, we believe our ultimate liability in connection
with pending legal proceedings, including the litigation and tax matters described below, will not have a
material adverse effect on our results of operations, cash flows or financial position, as described below. No
material amounts have been accrued in our financial statements with respect to any of these matters.

In order to understand our potential exposure under the litigation and tax matters described below under
the captions “Information Resources, Inc.” and “Tax Matters,” you need to understand the relationship
between us and D&B, and certain of our predecessors and affiliates that, through various corporate
reorganizations and contractual commitments, have assumed varying degrees of responsibility with respect to
such matters.

In November 1996, the company then known as The Dun & Bradstreet Corporation separated through a
spin-off (“1996 Distribution’) into three separate public companies: The Dun and Bradstreet Corporation,
ACNielsen Corporation (“ACNielsen”), and Cognizant Corporation (“Cognizant”). In June 1998, The Dun &
Bradstreet Corporation separated through a spin-off (“1998 Distribution™) into two separate public companies:
R.H. Donnelley Corporation (formerly The Dun & Bradstreet Corporation) and a new company that changed
its name to The Dun & Bradstreet Corporation. Later in 1998, Cognizant separated through a spin-off
(“Cognizant Distribution™) into two separate public companies: IMS Health Incorporated (“IMS”), and
Nielsen Media Research, Inc. (“NMR?”}. In September 2000, The Dun & Bradstreet Corporation separated
into two separate public companies: Moody’s Corporation, {(“Moody’s”) (formerly The Dun & Bradstreet
Corporation), and a new company that changed its name to The Dun & Bradstreet Corporation. As a result of
the form of R.H. Donnelley Corporation’s separation from The Dun & Bradstreet Corporation in 1998, we

12




are the corporate successor of and technically the defendant and taxpayer referred to below as D&B with
respect to any matter accruing prior to june 30, 1998.

Information Resources, Inc.

The following is a description of an antitrust lawsuit filed in 1996 by Information Resources, Inc. (“IRI”).
VNU N.V,, a publicly traded Dutch company (““VNU"), and its U.S. subsidiaries VNU, Inc., AC Nielsen, AC
Nielsen (US), Inc. {“ACN (US)”), and NMR (collectively, the “VNU Parties”), have assumed exclusive joint
and several liability for any judgment or settlement of this antitrust lawsuit {collectively, the “IRI Liabilities™).
As a result of the indemnity obligation, we do not have any exposure to a judgment or settlement of this
lawsuit unless the VINU Parties default on their obligations. In the event of such default, we have contingent
liability for this matter as a result of our succeeding to D&B’s liabilities and obligations as part of the 1998
Distribution. In such event, however, under the contractual commitments described below, any such amounts
that we might need to pay would be shared equally (50% each) by D&B and Moody’s, on a joint and several
basis. Only if D&B and Moody’s were unable to bear all or a part of the IRI Liabilities, would we be lable,
and then only to the extent that either of them could not satisfy their joint and several indemnity obligations
to us.

On February 1, 20035, the U.S. District Court for the Southern District of New York entered a final
judgment against IRI dismissing IRT’s claims with prejudice and on the merits. IRI has filed a notice of appeal
to the Second Circuit Court of Appeals. Due to the dismissal of this matter and several layers of indemnity
described above, our disclosure regarding this matter will be relatively brief. For a more detailed discussion
regarding the background and past procedural history regarding this matter, please see our prior periodic
reports.

In July 1996, IRI filed a complaint, subsequently amended in 1997, in the United States District Court for
the Southern District of New York, naming as defendants D&B (now, the Company, as successor of D&B},
A.C. Nielsen Company (a subsidiary of ACNielsen) and IMS (then known as Cognizant), at the time of the
filing, all wholly owned subsidiaries of D&B.

The amended complaint alleged, among other claims, various violations of U.S. antitrust laws under
Sections 1 and 2 of the Sherman Antitrust Act. IRI sought damages in excess of $650.0 million, which IRI
sought to treble under the antitrust laws. IRI also sought punitive damages of an unspecified amount, which
we believe are precluded as a result of the prior dismissal of one of IRI’s claims.

In December 2004, the Court entered an order that barred IRI from arguing that defendant’s pricing
practices or discounts were illegal or anti-competitive unless it could satisfy a specified burden of proof. In
response to this ruling, in a press release, IRI stated, in relevant part, “without this evidence, IRI believes that
litele would be left of IRI’s case to take to trial.” As a result, IRI asked the Court to enter a final judgment
against it so that it could take an immediate appeal to the Second Circuit. Defendants did not object to this
request. As noted above, the case was dismissed by the District Court and IRI has filed an appeal. The Court
of Appeals for the Second Circuit has ordered that the appeal be argued no earlier than the week of June 13,
2005.

In connection with the 1996 Distribution, Cognizant {now NMR), ACNielsen and D&B (now the
Company) entered into an Indemnity and Joint Defense Agreement. On July 30, 2004, the VNU Parties, the
Company, D&B, Moody’s and IMS entered into an Amended and Restated Indemnity and Joint Defense
Agreement (the “Amended JDA™).

Pursuant to the Amended JDA, any and all IRI Liabilities incurred by us, D&B, Moody’s or IMS relating
to a judgment (even if not final} or any settlement being entered into in the IRI action will be jointly and
severally assumed and fully discharged exclusively by the VNU Parties. Under the Amended JDA, the VNU
Parties have agreed to, jointly and severally, indemnify us, D&B, Moody’s and IMS from and against all IRI
Liabilities to which we become subject.

Under the agreements relating to the 1998 Distribution, D&B assumed the defense and agreed to
indemnify us against any payments that we may be required to make with respect to the IRI Liabilities and

13



related legal fees. As required by those agreements, Moody’s, which subsequently separated from D&B in the
2000 Distribution, has agreed to be jointly and severally liable with D&B for the indemnity obligation to us.
We understand that D&B and Moody’s have agreed amongst themselves to share equally (50% each) these
indemnity obligations to us. Only if D&B and Moody’s were unable to bear all or a part of their aggregate
50% share of the liability would we be liable, and then only to the extent that either of them could not satisfy
their joint and several indemnity obligations to us.

Because liability for violations of the antitrust laws is joint and several and because the rights and
obligations relating to the Amended JDA are based on contractual relationships, the failure of the VINU Parties
to fulfill their obligations under the Amended JDA could result in the other parties bearing all or a share of the
IRI Liabilities. Joint and several liability for the IRI Liabilities means that even where more than one defendant
is determined to have been responsible for an alleged wrongdoing, the plaintiff can collect all or part of the
judgment from just one of the defendants. This is true regardless of whatever contractual allocation of
responsibility the defendants and any other indemnifying parties may have made, including the allocations
described above between the VNU Parties, the Company, D&B, Moody’s and IMS.

Accordingly, and as a result of the allocations of liability described above, in the event the VNU Parties
default on their obligations under the Amended JDA, each of D&B and Moody’s will be jointly and severally
responsible for the payment of any portion of any judgment or settlement ultimately payable by the Company
(which is the defendant in the IRI action), which could be as high as all of the IRI Liabilities.

While, as described above, the IRI lawsuit has been dismissed with prejudice on the merits, IRI has filed
an appeal. Accordingly, we are unable to predict the outcome of the IRI litigation or the financial condition of
any of the VNU Parties or the other defendants at the time of any such outcome (and hence we cannot
estimate their ability to pay the IRI Liabilities pursuant to the Amended JDA or the judgment or settlement in
the IRI action). Nonetheless, while we cannot assure you as to the outcome of this matter, management
presently believes that the VNU Parties have sufficient financial resources and borrowing capacity to satisfy
their obligations under the Amended JDA and, if they default, D&B and Moody’s have sufficient financial
resources and borrowing capacity to reimburse us for any payments we may be required to make and related
costs we may incur in connection with this matter. Therefore, management presently believes that the ultimate
resolution of this matter would not have a material adverse effect on the Company’s results of operations, cash
flows or financial condition. Accordingly, no amount in respect of this matter has been accrued in our
consolidated financial statements.

Tax Matters

D&B entered into global tax-planning initiatives in the normal course of its business, primarily through
tax-free restructurings of both its foreign and domestic operations (collectively, “Legacy Tax Matters™). The
IRS is currently disputing certain tax positions taken with respect to the Legacy Tax Matters. The status of
these Legacy Tax Matters is summarized below, including the settlement of the matter below under
“Utilization of Capital Losses — 1989 — 1990 (“Capital Losses Matter”) during the fourth quarter of 2004.
Pursuant to a series of tax sharing and other agreements (collectively, ““Tax Sharing Agreements”) relating to
the spin-offs and separations referred to above, IMS and NMR are jointly and severally liable for, and must
pay one-half of, and D&B and Moody’s are jointly and severally liable for, and must pay the other half of,
any payments over $137.0 million for taxes, accrued interest and other amounts resulting from the Legacy Tax
Matters summarized below (other than the matter summarized below under “— Amortization and Royalty
Expense Deductions/Royalty Income — 1997 — 2004,” for which D&B and Moody’s, jointly and severally, are
solely responsible). D&B, on our behalf, was contractually obligated to pay, and did pay, the first
$137.0 million of tax liability in connection with the Capital Losses Matter.

Under the terms of the 1998 Distribution, D&B agreed to assume the defense and to indemnify us against
any tax liability that may be assessed against us and any related costs and expenses that we may incur in
connection with any of these Legacy Tax Matters. Also, as required by those agreements, Moody’s has agreed
to be jointly and severally liable with D&B for the indemnity obligation to us. Under the terms of certain of
the other spin-offs and separations, D&B and Moody’s have, between each other, agreed to be financially
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responsible for 50% of any potential liabilities that may arise to the extent such potential liabilities are not
directly attributable to each party’s respective business operations. Only if D&B and Moody’s were unable to
bear all or a part of these liabilities, would we be liable, and then only to the extent that both of them could
not satisfy their joint and several indemnity obligations to us.

While we cannot assure you as to the outcome of these Legacy Tax Matters (other than the settled Capital
Losses Matter), management presently believes that D&B and Moody’s have sufficient financial resources,
borrowing capacity and, where applicable, indemnity rights against IMS and NMR (who succeeded to
Cognizant’s indemnity obligations under the Cognizant Distribution) and IMS and NMR in turn have sufficient
financial resources and borrowing capacity to satisfy their respective indemnity obligations to D&B and
Moody’s, so as to reimburse us for any payments we may be required to make and related costs we may incur
in connection with these Legacy Tax Matters. Therefore, management presently believes that the ultimate
resolution of these Legacy Tax Matters would not have a material adverse effect on the Company’s results of
operations, cash flows or financial condition.

Utilization of Capital Losses — 1989 — 1990

In 2000, D&B filed an amended tax return with respect to the utilization of capital losses in 1989 and
1990 in response to a formal IRS notice of adjustment. The amended tax return reflected an additional
$561.6 million of tax and interest due. In 2000, D&B paid the IRS approximately $349.3 million and IMS (on
behalf of itself and NMR) paid the IRS approximately $212.3 million. We understand that these payments
were made under dispute in order to stop additional interest from accruing.

During the fourth quarter of 2004, we (as the taxpayer of record) entered into a settlement agreement
with the IRS resolving this Capital Losses Matter. As described above, we are fully indemnified against any
payments required to be made to the IRS resulting from this settlement. We expect that the aggregate tax
liability (including penalties) arising from this settlement will be approximately $48 million payable to the IRS
following receipt of various bills from the IRS related to the settlement. In February 20035, the IRS issued the
first bill for tax year 1990 in the amount of $11.6 million, which was paid in full by our indemnitors on
February 24, 2005. In March 2005, we (as the taxpayer of record) received a second bill from the IRS in the
amount of $63.2 million. The IRS has indicated in writing that the amount of this bill was inaccurate and
should have been only $35.8 million. Based on that written confirmation, our indemnitors paid their respective
shares (including D&B and Moody’s paying any shortfall from IMS and NMR as described in the following
paragraph) of the $38.5 million liability by the March 14, 2005 deadline. We understand that D&B expects
the IRS to issue bills for the remaining balance of the settlement payment during the first half of 2005.

As noted above, the Tax Sharing Agreements provide that IMS and NMR are jointly and severally liable
for, and must pay one half of, the tax liabilities relating to the Capital Expense Matter. We understand that
IMS and NMR have advised D&B that they do not believe they are responsible for certain portions of the
remaining balance of the settlement payment. Nevertheless, under our indemnity arrangements with D&B and
Moody’s, they would be jointly and severally liable for any portion of the settlement not paid by IMS or
NMR, and each of them have acknowledged to us their responsibility for any shortfall from IMS or NMR. We
understand that based upon their discussions with IMS and NMR, D&B estimates that it and Moody’s will be
required to pay approximately $4.5 million (tax and interest, net of tax benefits) in excess of their allocable
share of the settlement under the terms of the Tax Sharing Agreements. We understand that D&B and
Moody’s believe that the position of IMS and NMR is contrary to the provisions of the Tax Sharing
Agreements and that they have commenced discussions with respect to this dispute under the negotiation
process contemplated by the Tax Sharing Agreements. We understand that if such negotiations are not
successful, D&B intends to commence arbitration proceedings against IMS and NMR to enforce the relevant
provisions of the Tax Sharing Agreements. As the taxpayer of record, we would likely need to commence such
an arbitration proceeding ourselves on behalf of D&B and Moody’s. While we understand that D&B believes
that it would prevail in any such arbitration, we cannot assure you with respect to the ultimate outcome of
such proceeding or the timing of its resolution.
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Royalty Expense Deductions — 1993 — 1997

In the second quarter of 2003, D&B received (on our behalf) a proposed notice of deficiency from the IRS
with respect to a partnership transaction entered into in 1993. Specifically, the IRS proposed to disallow
certain royalty expense deductions claimed by D&B on its 1993 through 1996 tax returns. We understand that
D&B estimates that the disallowance of the 1993 and 1994 royalty expense deductions would result in a loss
to it of approximately $5.0 million in pending tax refunds and that the additional tax liability to it with
respect to the disallowance of the 1995 and 1996 royalty expense deductions could be up to approximately
$46.2 million (tax, interest and penalties, net of tax benefits).

In addition, and also in the second quarter of 2003, D&B received from the IRS on behalf of the
partnership associated with the above transaction a notice of proposed partnership adjustment challenging the
tax treatment of certain royalty payments received by the partnership in which D&B was a partner. In that
notice, the IRS is seeking to reallocate certain partnership income to D&B. In January and April 2004, D&B
received additional IRS notices (similar to those received in the second quarter of 2003) associated with D&B’s
remaining interest in the partnership transaction (as described above) for the three months in 1997 for which
the entities were partners. The additional tax liability with respect to D&B’s share of this income for the
notices received in the second quarter of 2003 and January and April 2004 could be up to $22.8 million (tax,
interest and penalties, net of tax benefits). We understand that D&B believes that these positions regarding the
partnership are inconsistent with the IRS” position with respect to the same royalty expense deductions
described above. This $22.8 million additional liability would be in addition to the $46.2 million of additional
liability related to royalty expense deductions discussed in the previous paragraph. These matters are
collectively referred to herein as the Royalty Expense Matter.

We previously reported in our Form 10-Q for the quarters ended June 30, 2004 and September 30, 2004
that we understood that D&B had reached a tentative settlement (“Proposed Settlement™) with the IRS
regarding the disallowance of the 1995 and 1996 royalty expense deductions portion of the Royalty Expense
Matter. We also previously reported that we understood that during the third quarter of 2004, the IRS
tendered to D&B {on our behalf) a final settlement agreement with respect to the Royalty Expense Matter for
tax years 1995 and 1996, reflecting the financial terms set forth in the related Proposed Settlement. According
to the terms of the Proposed Settlement, the taxpayer would retain approximately 15% of the rax benefit
associated with the Royalty Expense Matter for 1995 and 1996 and pay a penalty of approximately 7% with
respect to the Royalty Expense Matter for 1995 and 1996.

In accordance with the Tax Sharing Agreements, we and D&B sought consent to execute the final
settlement agreement for the Royalty Expense Matter for tax years 1995 and 1996 from the relevant parties
having financial responsibilities for that matter under the Tax Sharing Agreements (i.e., Moody’s, IMS, NMR
and D&B). All such parties consented to the final settlement agreement tendered by the IRS, with the
exception of NMR and IMS.

As a result of NMR’s and IMS’s decision not to consent to the Royalty Expense Matter final settlement
agreement, on November 1, 2004, D&B informed the IRS that we could not execute the final settlement
agreement. On November 3, 2004, the IRS informed D&B that it was withdrawing the final settlement
agreement with respect to the Royalty Expense Matter. As a result, we cannot predict at this time whether or
not, or when, the parties will be able to conclude negotiations with the IRS with respect to a final settlement
agreement regarding the Royalty Expense Matters for tax years 1995 and 1996 on the financial terms and/or
other terms set forth in the Proposed Settlement, if at all.

The Tax Sharing Agreements, which govern each of the parties’ rights and obligations under these
circumstances, provide (the “Royalty Expense Indemnity & Defense Provisions”) that a party withholding
consent to a proposed settlement shall “continue or initiate further proceedings” with the IRS “at its own
expense, and the liability of [the parties previously in control of such proceedings] shall be limited to the
liability that would have resulted from the proposed settlement agreement [that was not consented to]
(including interest, additions to [tlax and penalties which have accrued at that time.)” We believe, therefore, as
a result of the failure of NMR and IMS to provide their consent, our contingent (assuming each of D&B and
Moody’s fail to satisfy their indemnity obligations to us) liability for this Royalty Expense Matter with respect
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to tax years 1995 and 1996 has been effectively capped at the amounts provided in the final settlement
agreement tendered by the IRS. We also believe that in accordance with the Royalty Expense Indemnity &
Defense Provisions, NMR and IMS would be jointly and severally liable for any excess amounts above those
reflected in the final settlement agreement tendered by the IRS that may ultimately be owing under this Royalty
Expense Matter with respect to tax years 1995 and 1996. We understand that D&B estimates that the ultimate
resolution of this portion of the Royalty Expense Matter would have a projected net impact to its cash flow of
$37.7 million (tax, interest and penalties, net of tax benefits) based upon the financial terms of the final
settlement agreement tendered by the IRS.

IMS has alleged various breaches of our and D&B’s obligations under the Tax Sharing Agreements related
to D&B’s management and attempted settlement of this matter with the IRS. In addition to “reserving its
rights” against us and D&B, IMS has urged NMR {which is in direct contractual privity with us) to:

¢ challenge our application of the Royalty Expense Indemnity & Defense Provisions of the Tax Sharing
Agreements — specifically that NMR should reject our position that NMR must now lead the defense
and that NMR and IMS jointly and severally indemnify us for any financial outcome that is less
advantageous to us than the final settlement agreement); and

* assert breaches of contract and to terminate the obligations of IMS and NMR the Tax Sharing
Agreements generally.

We and our legal counsel, and we understand D&B and their legal counsel, believe that neither NMR nor
IMS have any right or the legal basis to terminate their indemnity obligations under the Tax Sharing
Agreements, and that any attempt by them to do so will be found to be without merit, although we cannot
assure you with respect to the ultimate outcome of that issue or with respect to the timing of its resolution.

We anticipate commencing arbitration proceedings along with D&B to enforce our respective rights under
the Royalty Expense Indemnity & Defense Provisions and other provisions of the Tax Sharing Agreements
should the negotiation process required by the Tax Sharing Agreements fail to resolve the parties’ dispute.
While we believe that we should prevail in such arbitration, and thereby effectively cap our exposure with
respect to the Royalty Expense Matter for tax years 1995 and 1996 at the levels described above, we cannot
assure you as to the ultimate outcome of this matter or with respect to the timing of its resolution.

As noted above, the IRS has withdrawn the Proposed Settlement with respect to tax years 1995 and 1996
and accordingly may issue notices preliminary to making assessments at any time. If D&B were to challenge
any such assessment for tax years other than 1993 and 1994 in U.S. District Court or the U.S. Court of
Federal Claims, rather than in U.S. Tax Court, the disputed amounts for each applicable year would need to be
paid in advance for the Court to have jurisdiction over the case. It is possible that the IRS may seek to issue
notices with respect to each of the positions noted above that D&B believes are inconsistent.

The 1993, 1994, and 1997 royalty expense deduction portions of the Royalty Expense Matter remain
pending before the IRS.

Amortization and Royalty Expense Deductions/Royalty income — 1997 — 2004

In the fourth quarter of 2003, D&B received (on our behalf) IRS notices of proposed adjustment with
respect to a partnership transaction entered into in 1997. In addition, D&B received, on behalf of the
partnership, various IRS materials further explaining the examining agent’s position with respect to the
activities of the partnership in 1997 and 1998.

In April 2004, D&B received (on our behalf) proposed notices of deficiency from the IRS, proposing
adjustments with respect to the same partnership transaction entered into in 1997 described above. The
adjustments proposed in the April notices reflect the notices of proposed adjustment and other IRS materials
referred to above.

Specifically, the IRS asserted that certain amortization expense deductions claimed by D&B on its 1997
and 1998 tax returns should be disallowed. We understand that D&B estimates that the additional tax liability
to it as a result of the disallowance of the 1997 and 1998 amortization deductions and the disallowance of
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such deductions claimed from 1999 to date could be up to $59.9 million (tax, interest and penalties, net of tax
benefits). This transaction is scheduled to expire in 2012 and, unless earlier terminated, based on current
interest rates and tax rates, additional tax exposure would increase at a rate of approximately $2.1 million per
quarter (including potential penalties) as future amortization expenses are deducted.

In addition, the IRS has asserted that royalty expense deductions, claimed by D&B on its tax returns for
1997 and 1998 for royalties paid to the partnership should be disallowed. The IRS also has asserted that the
receipt of these same royalties by the partnership should be reallocated to and reported as royalty income by
D&B, including the portions of the rovyalties that were allocated to third party partners in the partnership, and,
thus, included in their taxable income. We understand that D&B believes that the IRS’ stated positions with
respect to the treatment of the royalty expense and royalty income are mutually inconsistent, making it
unlikely that the IRS will prevail on both of the positions. As a result, we understand that D&B estimates that
after taking into account certain other tax benefits resulting from the IRS” position on the partnership it is
unlikely that there will be any additional cash tax payments due in addition to the amounts noted above
related to the amortization expense deduction.

In the event the IRS were to prevail on both positions with respect to the royalty expense/income, which
D& B believes unlikely, D&B estimates that the additional tax liability to it as a result of the disallowance of
the 1997 and 1998 royalty expense deductions, the disallowance of such deductions claimed from 1999 to date
and the inclusion of the reallocated royalty income for all relevant years could be up to $140.7 million (tax,
interest and penalties, net of tax benefits), which would be in addition to the $59.9 million noted above related
to the amortization expense deduction.

We understand that D&B has filed protests relating to these matters with the IRS Office of Appeals. We
understand that during the third quarter of 2004, D&B was informed by the IRS Office of Appeals that this
matter was being returned to the Examination Division of the IRS for further development of the issues. We
understand that D&B is attempting to resolve these matters with the IRS before proceeding to litigation, if
necessary. If D&B were to challenge, at any time, any of these IRS positions for years 1997 and 1998 in
U.S. District Court or the U.S. Court of Federal Claims, rather than in U.S. Tax Court, the disputed amounts
for each applicable year would need to be paid in advance for the Court to have jurisdiction over the case. It is
possible that the IRS may seek to issue notices with respect to each of the positions noted above that D&B
believes are inconsistent.

Conclusion

As a result of our assessment of our exposure in these matters relating to our prior relationship with D&B
and its former affiliates, especially in light of our indemnity arrangements with D&B and Moody’s (and the
VNU Parties with respect to the IRI matter), and their respective financial resources, borrowing capacity and,
in the case of certain Legacy Tax Matters, indemnity rights against IMS and NMR, and in turn IMS and
NMR’s respective financial resources and borrowing capacity to satisfy their respective indemnity obligations
to D&B and Moody’s, no material amounts have been accrued in our consolidated financial statements for any
of these D&B-related litigation and tax matters.

Other Matters

We are also involved in other legal proceedings, claims and litigation arising in the ordinary conduct of
our business. Although we cannot assure you of any outcome, management presently believes that the outcome
of such legal proceedings will not have a material adverse effect on our results of operations or financial -
condition and no material amounts have been accrued in our consolidated financial statements with respect to
these matters.

iTEM 4. SUBMISSION OF MATTERS TO A YVOTE OF SECURITY HOLDERS

No matters were submitted to a vote of security holders, through the solicitation of proxies or otherwise,
during the quarter ended December 31, 2004.
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PART IT

ITEM 5. MARKET FOR REGISTRANT’S COMMON EQUITY, RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS
AND ISSUER PURCHASES OF EQUITY SECURITIES

The Company’s common stock trades on the New York Stock Exchange under the symbol “RHD”. The
table below indicates the high and low sales price of the Company’s common stock for each quarter of the last
two years.

2004 2003
High Low High Low
ISt QUArTEr . oot e e $47.00 $39.40 $32.22 $28.72
20d QUALTEL. . .ottt et e e $48.75 $40.66 $38.60 $28.86
3rd Quarter . ... $50.11  $40.38 $41.40 $35.60
4th Quarter .. ... e $59.35 $48.66 $43.20 $37.56

On March 4, 2005, there were approximately 3,000 holders of record of the Company’s common stock.
On March 4, 2008, the closing market price of the common stock was $61.45. We have not paid any common
dividends during the last two years and do not expect to pay common dividends in the foreseeable future. Our
redeemable convertible cumulative preferred stock (“Preferred Stock™) earns a cumulative dividend of 8%,
compounded quarterly. Without the consent of the holders of the Preferred Stock, we cannot pay Preferred
Stock dividends in cash until October 2005; therefore, the dividend will accrete through September 2005.
Beginning in October 2005, we may pay the Preferred Stock dividend in cash, subject to financial covenants
under our Credit Facility, or, at our option, we may allow it to accrete. The stock purchase agreement with
respect to the Preferred Stock and our various debt instruments contain various financial restrictions that place
limitations on our ability to pay dividends in the future {see Iltem 7, “Management’s Discussion and Analysis
of Financial Condition and Results of Operations — Liquidity and Capital Resources™ for additional
information regarding these instruments and agreements and relevant limitations thereunder). On January 14,
20035, the Company repurchased approximately 50% of our outstanding Preferred Stock for $277.2 million
pursuant to a Stock Purchase Agreement with certain investment partnerships affiliated with The Goldman
Sachs Group, Inc. (the “GS Funds”). The GS Funds initially had purchased the Preferred Stock in connection
with the SPA Acquisition. The remaining Preferred Stock that was not repurchased was convertible into
approximately 5 million shares of our common stock as of March 4, 2005, and continues to be held by the GS
Funds along with warrants to purchase an additional 1.65 million shares of our common stock. The GS Funds
continue to have the right to elect two directors to the Company’s board and have the other rights afforded to
them under the terms of the Preferred Stock. See the Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the SEC on
January 11, 2005 for further information regarding this repurchase.
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The following table sets forth securities outstanding under existing equity compensation plans, as well as
securities remaining available for future issuance under those plans, in each case as of December 31, 2004.

Equity Compensation Plan Information
(c)

c
Number of Securities

a
Number of Remaining Available
Securities to be (b) for Future Issuance
Issued Upon ‘Weighted-Average Under Equity
Exercise of Exercise Price of Compensation Plans
Outstanding Outstanding (Excluding Securities
Options, Warrants Options, Warrants Reflected in
Plan Category and Rights and Rights Column (a))

Equity compensation plans approved by security
holders™ . ... o 3,236,656 $32.51 453,825

Equity compensation plans not approved by
security holders:

1991 Key Employees® Stock Option Plan® .. .. ... 731,263 17.12 0
1998 Key Employees’ Performance Unit Plan®. . .. 8,795 39.46 0
1998 Directors’ Stock Plan'® ... ... ... ... . ..., 19,650 17.32 0
1998 Partner Share Plan®® . ... ... ... ... .. ... ... 13,225 15.31 0
2001 Partner Share Plan'® . ... ... ............. 25,296 26.45 0

Total oo 4,034,885 $29.57 453,825

U This reflects securities covered by our 2001 Stock Award and Incentive Plan (“2001 Plan”), which was
adopted and approved by our shareholders at our 2001 Annual Meeting of Stockholders.

@) This reflects options still outstanding under our 1991 Key Employees’ Stock Option Plan (<1991 Plan”).
This plan was originally a D&B plan that was carried over at the time of the spin-off from D&B. The 2001
Plan replaced the 1991 Plan and all shares available for grant under the 1991 Plan became available for
grant under the 2001 Plan upon its approval by stockholders; provided, however, all options then
outstanding remained subject to the terms and conditions of the 1991 Plan.

) This reflects the performance shares (“PERS”) still outstanding under our 1998 Key Employees’
Performance Unit Plan (“PUP Plan™). Upon completion of the respective performance period, a dollar
amount of the award was determined for each recipient based on the Company’s actual financial
performance against economic profit and earnings per share goals. The dollar amount was then converted
into a number of PERS by dividing the dollar amount of the award by the Company’s stock price
(calculated as the average of the high and low prices of the Company’s common stock on the ten trading
days subsequent to delivery of the Company’s respective audited consolidated financial statements to the
Compensation and Benefits Committee of the Company’s Board of Directors) at that time. The 2001 Plan
replaced the PUP Plan and all shares available for grant under the PUP Plan became available for grant
under the 2001 Plan upon its approval by stockholders; provided, however, all awards then outstanding
remained subject to the terms and conditions of the PUP Plan.

This reflects shares and options still outstanding under our 1998 Directors’ Stock Plan (<1998 Director
Plan”). The 2001 Plan replaced the 1998 Director Plan and all shares available for grant under the

1998 Director Plan became available for grant under the 2001 Director Plan upon its approval by
stockholders; provided, however, all shares and options then outstanding remained subject to the terms and
conditions of the 1998 Director Plan.

) This reflects options still outstanding under our 1998 Partner Share Plan (1998 PS Plan”), which was a

broad-based plan covering lower level employees not eligible for grants under the 1991 Plan. The Plan
authorized 262,000 shares for grant at its inception and only 13,225 shares remain outstanding. The 2001
Plan replaced the 1998 PS Plan and all shares available for grant under the 1998 PS Plan became available
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for grant under the 2001 Plan upon its approval by stockholders; provided, however, all shares and options
then outstanding remained subject to the terms and conditions of the 1998 PS Plan.

This reflects options still outstanding under our 2001 Partner Share Plan (2001 PS Plan”), which was a
broad-based plan covering lower level employees whose grants were made prior to shareholder approval of
the 2001 Plan. The Plan authorized 124,750 shares for grant at its inception and only 25,296 remain
outstanding. The 2001 Plan replaced this Plan and all shares available for grant under the 2001 PS Plan
became available for grant under the 2001 Plan upon its approval by stockholders; provided, however, all
shares and options then outstanding remained subject to the terms and conditions of the 2001 PS Plan.

ITEM 6. SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA

The following selected financial data are derived from our audited consolidated financial statements. The
information set forth below should be read in conjunction with the audited consolidated financial statements
and related notes in Item 8 and with “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and
Results of Operations” in Item 7.

Years Ended December 31,
(in thousands, except per share data) 20041 2003% 2002 2001 2000

Statement of Operations Data

Netrevenue................... $ 603,116 § 256,445 § 75406 $ 80,253 $141,287
Partnership income ............ 77,967 114,052 136,873 139,964 147,693
Operating income.............. 291,748 92,526 145,982 111,472 147,375
Net income (loss) .............. 70,312 (49,953) 67,177 49,815 124,758
Preferred dividend ............. 21,791 58,397 24,702 — —
Income (loss) available to

common shareholders ........ 48,521 (108,350) 42,475 49,815 124,758
Earnings (Loss) Per Share 4
Basic............ . ... ..l $ 1.19 § (3.53) % 142 $§ 165 § 391
Diluted....................... $ 1.15 § (3.53) $ 140 $ 161 § 3.83

Shares Used in Computing
Earnings (Loss) Per Share

Basic............ ... oL 31,268 30,683 29,643 30,207 31,947
Diluted ................... ..., 32,616 30,683 30,298 30,976 32,594
Balance Sheet Data®
Total assets ................... $3,978,922  $2,538,734  $2,223,375  $295,981 $365,284
Long-term debt, including

current maturities. ........... 3,127,342 2,092,133 2,075,470 283,904 347,526
Redeemable convertible preferred

stock. ... 216,111 198,223 63,459 — —
Shareholders’ equity (deficit) .. .. 17,985 (56,245) (30,600) (111,313) (108,510)

@ Financial data for the year ended December 31, 2004 include the results of the SBC Directory Business from
and after September 1, 2004. Net revenue, net income and income available to common shareholders reflect
purchase accounting adjustments that precluded the recognition of revenue and certain expenses associated
with directories published by the acquired SBC Directory Business prior to the acquisition, including all
September 2004 published directories. See Irem 7 “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial
Condition and Results of Operations” for further discussion of these items.

Financial data for the years ended December 31, 2004 and 2003 include the results of the SPA Directory
Business from and after January 3, 2003, Net revenue, net income (loss) and income (loss) available to
common shareholders reflect purchase accounting adjustments that precluded the recognition of revenue and

21




certain expenses associated with directories published by SPA prior to the acquisition, including all January
2003 published directories. See Item 7 “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and

Results of Operations” for further discussion of these items.

®) In connection with the SBC Directory Acquisition on September 1, 2004 and the SPA Acquisition on

January 3, 2003, we incurred a significant amount of debt. We issued Preferred Stock in November 2002
and borrowed funds under certain debt instruments in December 2002. Therefore, our cash and debt
balances during these periods were higher than in prior periods.

These EPS amounts and the EPS for the three months ended December 31, 2004 differ from those reported

in our Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the SEC on February 25, 2005 resulting from an update to
the two-class method used to compute earnings per share.

(4

ITEM 7. MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND
RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

This Item should be read in conjunction with the audited consolidated financial statements and notes
thereto that are included in Item 8. Unless otherwise indicated, the terms “Company,” “Donnelley,” “RHD,”
“we,” “us” and “our” refer to R.H. Donnelley Corporation and its direct and indirect wholly owned
subsidiaries.

Corporate Overview

We are a leading yellow pages publisher and directional media company. Directional media is where
consumers search to find who sells the goods and services they are ready to purchase. We publish Sprint®-
branded yellow pages directories in 18 states, with major markets including Las Vegas, Nevada and Orlando
and Lee County, Florida, with a total distribution of approximately 18 million serving approximately 160,000
local and national advertisers. We also publish SBC®-branded yellow pages directories in Illinois and
Northwest Indiana, with a total distribution of approximately 10 million serving approximately 100,000 local
and national advertisers. We also offer online city guides and search Web sites in our major Sprint markets
under the Best Red Yellow Pages® brand at www.bestredyp.com and in the Chicagoland area at
www.chicagolandyp.com. We also sell local advertising in Illinois and Northwest Indiana onto
www.SMARTpages.com, SBC’s Internet yellow pages platform,

On September 1, 2004, we completed the acquisition of the directory publishing business (“SBC Directory
Business”) of SBC Communications, Inc. (“SBC”) in Illinois and Northwest Indiana, including SBC’s interests
in The DonTech II Partnership (“DonTech”), a 50/50 general partnership between us and SBC (collectively, the
“SBC Directory Acquisition”). See “Acquisitions — SBC Directory Acquisition” below for a further description
of the acquisition.

On January 3, 2003, we completed the acquisition of the directory publishing business (the “SPA
Directory Business”) of Sprint Corporation (“Sprint””) by acquiring all of the outstanding common stock of the
various entities comprising Sprint Publishing & Advertising (“SPA”") (collectively, the “SPA Acquisition™). See
“Acquisitions — SPA Acquisition” below for a further description of the acquisition.

These acquisitions transformed Donnelley into a leading publisher of yellow pages directories. Prior to the
SPA Acquisition, we were one of the largest independent sales agents and pre-press vendors for yellow pages
advertising in the United States. At the time, our 2002 revenue reflected sales commissions and pre-press fees
from, or other transactions with, our business partners, including Sprint and SBC. Commencing in 2003
following the SPA Acquisition, our operating and financial results reflect our yellow pages publishing business,
rather than our former business as a sales agent and pre-press vendor for yellow pages advertising on behalf of
other publishers. As a publisher, we report the full value of advertising sales and certain direct costs under the
deferral and amortization method. DonTech remained unchanged following the SPA Acquisition, but our
investment in DonTech was eliminated in connection with the SBC Directory Acquisition on September 1,
2004. During 2003 and in 2004 until the SBC Directory Acquisition, we continued to earn revenue from
providing pre-press publishing and other ancillary services relating to the SBC Directory Business and we
continued to report partnership income from our investment in DonTech.
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During the third quarter of 2004 following the SBC Directory Acquisition, we revised our historical
segment reporting to reflect the change in our business and to reflect the way management now reviews and
analyzes the business. Our business of publishing yellow pages directories is now conducted in one reportable
operating segment. All pre-press publishing services and other ancillary services previously performed on behalf
of other publishers are now performed entirely on behalf of the directories we now publish. As a result of the
SBC Directory Acquisition, SBC ceased paying us revenue participation income, we consolidate all profits from
DonTech and our DonTech partnership investment was eliminated. Consequently, partnership income was no
longer reported commencing September 1, 2004 and accordingly, the previously reported DonTech operating
segment is no longer applicable. See Note 13 to the Company’s audited consolidated financial statements
included in Item 8 of this annual report and “— Segment Reporting™ below for more information regarding
the Company’s segments.

Forward-Looking Information

Certain statements contained in this Annual Report on Form 10-K regarding Donnelley’s future operating
results, performance, business plans or prospects and any other statements not constituting historical fact are
“forward-looking statements™ subject to the safe harbor created by the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act
of 1995. Where possible, words such as “believe,” “expect,” “anticipate,” “should,” “will,” “would,”
“planned,” “estimates,” “potential,” “goal,” “outlook,” “may,” “predicts,” “could,” or the negative of those
words and other comparable expressions, are used to identify such forward-looking statements. Actual events
or results may differ materially. In evaluating those statements, you should specifically consider various factors,
including the risks and uncertainties discussed below. Those factors may cause our actual results to differ
materially from any of RHD’s forward-looking statements. All forward-looking statements attributable to us or
a person on our behalf are expressly qualified in their entirety by this cautionary statement. All forward-
looking statements reflect only our current beliefs and assumptions with respect to our future results, business
plans, and prospects, and are based solely on information currently available to us. Although we believe that
the expectations reflected in the forward-looking statements are reasonable, we cannot guarantee future results,
levels of activity or performance. These forward-looking statements are made as of the date of this annual
report and, except as required under the federal securities laws and the rules and regulations of the SEC, we
assume no obligation to update or revise them or to provide reasons why actual results may differ.

2«

Such risks, uncertainties and contingencies include, without limitation, the following:

(1} Our ability to meet substantial debt service obligations

We have a substantial amount of debt and significant debt service obligations due in large part to the
financings related to the SBC Directory Acquisition and the SPA Acquisition. As of December 31, 2004, we
had total outstanding debt of $3,127.3 million and had $133.8 million available under the revolver portion of
our Senior Secured Credit Facility (as amended to date, the “Credit Facility”). On January 14, 2005, we issued
$300 million of 6.875% Senior Notes due 2013 (the “Holdco Notes”) to finance the repurchase of
approximately 50% of our Preferred Stock from certain investment partnerships affiliated with The Goldman
Sachs Group, Inc. (the “GS Funds™). As a result of our significant amount of debt and debt service obligations,
we face increased risks regarding, among other things, the following:

* our ability to obtain additional financing in excess of the borrowing capacity under our $175 million
revolving credit facility and/or under the $400 million of incremental borrowings potentially available
under our term loans on satisfactory terms to fund working capital requirements, capital expenditures,
acquisitions, investments, debt service requirements and other general corporate requirements is limited;

* we are more vulnerable to general economic downturns, competition and industry conditions, which
could place us at a competitive disadvantage compared to our competitors that may be less leveraged;

* we face increased exposure to rising interest rates as a portion of our debt is at variable interest rates;
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* we have reduced availability of cash flow to fund working capital requirements, capital expenditures,
acquisitions or other strategic initiatives, investments and other general corporate requirements because
a substantial portion of our cash flow is needed to service our debt obligations;

* we have limited flexibility in planning for, or reacting to, changes in our business and the industry in
which we operate;

* the agreements governing our debt substantially limit our ability to access the cash flow and value of
our subsidiaries and, therefore, to make payments on our debt; and

e there could be a material adverse effect on our business and financial condition if we were unable to
service our debt or obtain additional financing, as needed.

Our ability to pay principal and interest on our debt obligations will depend upon our future operating
performance and our ability to refinance debt. If we are unable to service our debt and fund our business, we
may be forced to reduce or delay capital expenditures, defer or refuse to pursue certain strategic initiatives,
seek additional debt financing or equity capital, restructure or refinance our debt or sell assets. We may not be
able to obtain additional financing, refinance existing debt or sell assets on satisfactory terms or at all.

(2) Restrictive covenants under our debt and Preferred Stock agreements

The indentures governing our $325 million of 8.875% Senior Notes {the “Senior Notes”} due 2010,
$600 million of 10.875% Senior Subordinated Notes (the “Subordinated Notes”) due 2012, and the Holdco
Notes (together with the Senior Notes and Subordinated Notes, collectively, the “Notes™), and our Credit
Facility, include a number of significant restrictive covenants. These covenants could adversely affect us by
limiting our ability to obtain funds from our subsidiaries, or to plan for or react to market conditions or to
meet our capital needs. These covenants, among other things, restrict our ability and the ability of our
subsidiaries to:

* incur additional debt;

* pay dividends on our equity interests or repurchase equity interests;
* make certain investments;

* enter into certain types of transactions with affiliates;

* expand into unrelated businesses;

* use assets as security in other transactions; and

* sell certain assets or merge with or into other companies.

In addition, the Credit Facility includes other and more restrictive covenants and prohibits us from
prepaying the Notes while borrowings under the Credit Facility are outstanding. The Credit Facility also
requires us to maintain certain financial ratios and meet other financial tests. Our failure to comply with these
covenants could result in an event of default, which, if not cured or waived, could require us to repay these
borrowings before their scheduled due date. If we were unable to make this repayment or otherwise refinance
these borrowings, the lenders under the Credit Facility and the holders of Senior Notes, which became secured
in connection with the amendment and restatement of the Credit Facility for the SBC Directory Acquisition,
could foreclose on substantially all of our assets. In addition, these lenders could elect to declare all amounts
borrowed under the Credit Facility, together with accrued interest, to be due and payable, which, in some
instances, would be an event of default under the indentures governing the Notes. If we were unable to
refinance these borrowings on favorable terms, our results of operations and financial condition could be
adversely impacted by increased costs and less favorable terms, including higher interest rates and more
restrictive covenants. Any future refinancing of the Credit Facility is likely to contain similar restrictive
covenants.
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Furthermore, the terms of the purchase agreement with respect to our Preferred Stock restrict our ability
and the ability of our subsidiaries to, among other things:

* incur additional debt;

* enter Into mMajor corporate transactions;

* pay dividends on shares of our common stock or repurchase shares of our common stock;
* enter into certain types of transactions with affiliates; and

* sell or acquire certain assets.

Our failure to comply with these terms would result in a breach of this agreement, which could have a
material adverse effect on our business.

{3) Competition

The United States directory advertising industry is highly competitive. Approximately 80% of total United
States directory advertising sales are attributable to Regional Bell Operating Company (“RBOC”} and other
incumbent directory publishers (collectively, with RBOC directory publishers, incumbent publishers”) that
typically publish directories where they (or their licensors or affiliates) offer local phone service. More than
240 independent yellow pages directory publishers operating in the United States compete with those
incumbent publishers and represent the remaining market share.

In nearly all markets, we compete with one or more yellow pages directory publishers, which are
predominantly independent publishers, such as the U.S. business of Yell Group Ltd., TransWestern Publishing
Company LLC and White Publishing Company. We believe that acting as the exclusive, official incumbent
publisher of directories for the incumbent local telephone company (SBC and Sprint) in our markets provides
us with a competitive advantage over independent publisher competitors. See “Business — Competition” for a
discussion of the reasons we believe we have a competitive advantage over these independent publishers. In
some markets, we also compete with other incumbent publishers in overlapping and adjacent markets. Some of
these independent publishers and many of these other incumbent publishers with which we compete are larger
than us and have greater financial resources than we have. We may not be able to compete effectively with
these other publishers for advertising sales or acquisitions in the future.

We also compete for advertising sales with other traditional media, including newspapers, magazines,
radio, direct mail, telemarketing, billboards and television. We believe we also sustain a competitive advantage
over many of these competitors. See “Business — Competition” for a discussion of the reasons we believe we
have a competitive advantage over these other traditional media competitors. Many of these other traditional
media competitors are larger than us and have greater financial resources than we have. We may not be able to
compete effectively with these companies for advertising sales or acquisitions in the future.

The Internet has emerged as a new medium for advertisers. Advances in technology have brought and
likely will continue to bring new participants, new products and new channels to the industry, including
increasing use of electronic delivery of traditional directory information and electronic search engines/services.
The yellow pages directory advertising business is subject to changes arising from developments in technology,
including information distribution methods and users’ preferences. The use of the Internet and wireless devices
by consumers as a means to transact commerce may result in new technologies being developed and services
being provided that could compete with our traditional products and services. National search companies such
as Google and Yahoo are focusing and placing large priorities on local commercial search initiatives. Our
growth and future financial performance may depend on our ability to develop and market new products and
services and create new distribution channels, while enhancing existing products, services and distribution
channels, to incorporate the latest technological advances and accommodate changing user preferences,
including the use of the Internet and wireless devices. We may not be able to respond successfully to any such
developments.
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Through our online city guides, “look and feel” electronic directories and search Web sites, we also
compete with the Internet yellow pages directories of independent and other incumbent directory publishers,
and with other Internet sites, including those available through wireless applications, that provide classified
directory information, such as Switchboard.com, Citysearch.com and Zagat.com, and with search engines and
portals, such as Yahoo!, Google, MSN and others, some of which have entered into affiliate agreements with
other major directory publishers. We may not be able to compete effectively with these other companies, some
of which have greater resources than we do, for advertising sales or acquisitions in the future.

In addition, the market position of telephone utilities, including those with which we have relationships,
may be adversely impacted by the Telecommunications Act of 1996, which effectively opened local telephone
markets to increased competition. In addition, Federal Communication Commission rules regarding local
number portability, advances in communications technology (such as wireless devices and voice over Internet
protocol) and demographic factors (such as potential shifts in younger generations away from wireline
telephone communications towards wireless or other communications technologies) may further erode the
market position of telephone utilities, including Sprint and SBC. As a result, it is possible that Sprint and/or
SBC will not remain the primary local telephone service provider in their local service areas. If either Sprint or
SBC were no longer the primary local telephone service provider in any particular local service area, our
license to be the exclusive publisher in that market and to use the Sprint or SBC brand name, as the case may
be, on our directories in that market may not be as valuable as we presently anticipate, and we may not realize
some of the existing benefits under our commercial arrangements with Sprint or SBC.

Sprint recently announced that it may spin off its local telephone operations if its merger with Nextel
Communications is consummated. While our contractual arrangements with Sprint provide that any successor
to the local telephone business must enter into substantially similar arrangements with us for the remaining
term of our agreement with Sprint, it is possible that the spin-off could have a material adverse effect on our
results of operations or financial condition if the spun-off business does not perform as well as it would have if
it had remained part of a larger company. While SBC’s proposed acquisition of AT&T has not yet raised any
issues regarding the value of our contractual relationship with SBC, we cannot assure you that the form of or
ramifications from any such transaction would not have some material adverse effect on our financial condition

or results of operations.

(4) Usage of printed yellow pages directories and changes in technology.

From 1997 to 2000, overall references to print yellow pages directories in the United States declined;
however, overall references to print yellow pages directories have remained relatively stable from 2000 through
2004. We believe the past decline was primarily a result of demographic shifts among consumers, particularly
the increase of households in which English was not the primary language spoken. We also believe that the
past decline was attributable to increased usage of Internet-based directory products, particularly in
business-to-business and retail categories, as well as the proliferation of very large retail stores for which
consumers and businesses may not reference the yellow pages. We believe that over the next several years,
references to print yellow pages directories may gradually decline as users may increasingly turn to digital and
interactive media delivery devices for local commercial search information.

Any decline in usage could:
* impair our ability to maintain or increase advertising prices;

* cause businesses that purchase advertising in our yellow pages directories to reduce or discontinue those
purchases; and

* discourage businesses that do not purchase advertising in our yellow pages directories from doing so.

Any of the factors that may contribute to a decline in usage of our print directories, or a combination of
them, could impair our revenues and have a material adverse effect on our business.

The yellow pages directory advertising business is subject to changes arising from developments in
technology, including information distribution methods and users’ technological preferences. The use of the
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Internet by consumers as a means to transact commerce may result in new technologies being developed and
services being provided that could compete with our products and services. As a result of these factors, our
growth and future financial performance may depend on our ability to develop and market new products and
services and create new distribution channels, while enhancing existing products, services and distribution
channels, to incorporate the latest technological advances and accommodate changing user preferences,
including the use of the Internet. We may not be able to provide services over the Internet successfully or
compete successfully with other Internet-based directory services. In addition, if we fail to anticipate or respond
adequately to changes in technology and user preferences or are unable to finance the capital expenditures
necessary to respond to such changes, our results of operations or financial condition could be materially
adversely affected.

{5) Integration of the SBC Directory Business into our operations
The integration of the SBC Directory Business into our operations involves a number of risks, including:
¢ difficulty integrating operations;
* diversion of management attention;

*» potential disruption of ongoing business because of the unknown reactions to the combination of the
acquired business and Donnelley by vendors, customers and other key constituencies;

» difficulties in assimilating the employees, technologies, services and products of the acquired business;
¢ inability to retain key personnel;

* inability to successfully incorporate acquired business components with our existing infrastructure; and
* inability to maintain uniform standards, controls, procedures and policies.

We intend to invest significantly in the SBC Directory Business, which could reduce our future earnings
and cash flow. The funds we invest in the SBC Directory Business may not be sufficient to improve the
operating performance of this business from historical levels. Despite the completed transition of the billing
and collection functions, it is possible that advertisers may be confused by the change in billing party and/or
less likely to pay us for their directory advertising than they were to pay the provider of their local phone
service. Accordingly, we cannot provide any assurance that our bad debt levels will not increase as a result of
this billing and collection transition.

If we are unable to effectively integrate operations in a timely and efficient manner, we may not realize the
benefits expected from the SBC Directory Acquisition. Failure to overcome these risks or any other problems
encountered in connection with the SBC Directory Acquisition could slow our growth and/or lower the quality
of our services, which could reduce customer demand.

{(6) Impact of bankruptcy proceedings against Sprint or SBC during the term of the
respective commercial arrangements

Contract rights under the directory services license agreement, trademark license agreement and non-
competition agreement with Sprint and its affiliates and under the directory services license agreement and non-
competition agreement with SBC and its affiliates constitute a substantial portion of our commercial
arrangements with Sprint and SBC, as the case may be. Pursuant to these commercial arrangements, we are the
exclusive directory publisher for Sprint in the markets where Sprint provided telephone service at the time of
the relevant agreements and for SBC in Illinois and Northwest Indiana. If a bankruptcy case were to be
commenced by or against Sprint or SBC, as the case may be, it is possible that all or part of the applicable
agreements could be considered an executory contract and could therefore be subject to rejection by Sprint or
SBC, as the case may be, or by a trustee appointed in a bankruptcy case pursuant to Section 365 or
Section 1123 of the United States Bankruptcy Code.

If one or more of these agreements were rejected, the applicable agreement may not be specifically
enforceable, in which case we would have only an unsecured claim for damages against Sprint or SBC, as the
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case may be, for the breach of contract resulting from the rejection. If the applicable directory services license
agreement were rejected, we would, among other things, no longer be entitled to be Sprint’s or SBC’s, as the
case may be, exclusive publisher of telephone directories in the affected markets. We could also lose our right
to use Sprint’s and/or SBC’s name and logo, as the case may be, and to enforce the provisions of the applicable
agreements under which we have the right to license trademarks of successor local exchange carriers in the
Sprint or SBC markets, as the case may be. If the applicable non-competition agreement were rejected and
specific enforcement were not available, Sprint or SBC, as the case may be, would, among other things, no
longer be precluded from publishing print telephone directories or selling certain advertising in the respective
applicable restricted markets.

In connection with the SPA Acquisition, Sprint created a bankruptcy remote special purpose vehicle in the
form of a limited liability company and contributed and assigned the trademarks being licensed to us under the
trademark license agreement to this limited liability company. The operating agreements of this limited liability
company require, among other things, that the board of managers of this entity include one independent
manager that is unaffiliated with Sprint. The consent of this independent manager is required for the entity to
take certain actions, including, among other things, commencement of a bankruptcy proceeding. Because the
trademarks were contributed to this limited liability company, our rights under the trademark license
agreement are not subject to rejection in the event of a bankruptcy proceeding involving Sprint unless there is
also a bankruptcy proceeding involving this limited liability company. Although we believe that the likelihood
of this entity being the subject of a bankruptcy proceeding is limited by this structure and the governing
provisions of the operating agreement, if the trademark license agreement were rejected in a bankruptcy
proceeding, we would lose the right to use the Sprint brand name for the former SPA directories we now
publish in those markets.

In the SBC Directory Acquisition, no bankruptcy remote special purpose vehicles have been established so
that we are relatively more susceptible to bankruptcy risk with respect to the commercial arrangement with
SBC and its affiliates, although management believes that SBC’s credit rating and financial position are
significantly better than that of Sprint at the time of the SPA Acquisition.

The loss of any rights under any of these arrangements with Sprint and its affiliates or SBC and its
affiliates may have a material adverse effect on our financial condition or results of operations.

{7) Our inability to enforce the non-competition agreements with Sprint or SBC

In connection with the SPA Acquisition and the SBC Directory Acquisition, Sprint and SBC each entered
into a non-competition agreement with us. The Sprint non-competition agreement prohibits Sprint in the
markets where Sprint provided local telephone service at the time of the transaction from selling local directory
advertising or producing, publishing and distributing print directories, with certain limited exceptions. The SBC
non-competition agreement prohibits SBC from producing, publishing and distributing print directories in
[llinois and Northwest Indiana, from selling local or national directory advertising in such directories and from
selling local Internet yellow pages advertising for certain Internet yellow pages directories (or from licensing
certain SBC marks to a third party for that purpose), subject to limited exceptions. However, under state and
federal law, a covenant not to compete is only enforceable:

* to the extent it is necessary to protect a legitimate business interest of the party seeking enforcement;
* if it does not unreasonably restrain the party against whom enforcement is sought; and
e if it is not contrary to the public interest.

Enforceability of a non-competition covenant is determined by a court based on all of the facts and
circumstances of the specific case at the time enforcement is sought. For this reason, it is not possible for us to
predict whether, or to what extent, a court would enforce either Sprint or SBC’s covenants not to compete
against us during the term of the non-competition agreement. If a court were to determine that the non-
competition agreement is unenforceable, Sprint or SBC, as the case may be, could compete directly against us
in the previously restricted markets. Qur inability to enforce the non-competition agreement with Sprint or
SBC could have a material adverse effect on our financial condition or results of operations.
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(8) Early termination of commercial arrangements with Sprint or SBC

Our commercial arrangements with each of Sprint and SBC have an initial term of 30 years, subject to
specified automatic renewal and early termination provisions. These commercial arrangements with Sprint and
SBC may be terminated by them prior to their stated term under certain specified circumstances, some of
which at times may be beyond our reasonable control and/or which may require extraordinary efforts or the
incurrence of material excess costs on our part in order to avoid breach of the applicable agreement. It is
possible that these arrangements will not remain in place for their full stated term or that we may be unable to
avoid all potential breaches of or defaults under these commercial arrangements. Further, any remedy exercised
by Sprint or SBC, as the case may be, under any of these arrangements with Sprint or SBC could have a
material adverse effect on our financial condition or results of operations.

(9) Future changes in directory publishing obligations in Hlinois and Northwest Indiana

Pursuant to the directory services license agreement with SBC, we are required to discharge SBC’s
regulatory obligation to publish white pages directories covering each service territory in the Illinois and
Indiana markets for which we acquired the SBC Directory Business. If the staff of a state public utility
commission in Illinois or Indiana were to impose additional or changed legal requirements in any of these
service territories with respect to this obligation, we would be obligated to comply with these requirements on
behalf of SBC, even if such compliance were to increase our publishing costs. Pursuant to the directory services
agreement, SBC will generally not be obligated to reimburse us for any increase in our costs of publishing
directories that satisfy SBC’s publishing obligations. Our results of operations relative to competing directory
publishers could be adversely affected if we are not able to increase our revenues to cover any such
unreimbursed compliance costs. Our directory services license agreement with Sprint generally provides that
Sprint will reimburse us for material increases in our costs relating to our complying with Sprint’s directory
publishing obligations in our Sprint markets.

(10) Transition services arrangements with SBC

In connection with the SBC Directory Acquisition, we entered into a transition services agreement with
SBC under which affiliates of SBC continue to perform certain functions on behalf of the SBC Directory
Business. The primary transition services provided by SBC and its affiliates under this agreement include certain
information technology support, certain marketing services, certain pre-press publishing and distribution
services, and certain customer service and billing and collection services. Substantially all of these functions will
be assumed by us at various times through the third quarter of 2005. While there are certain performance
standards and estimated costs specified in the transition services agreement and we expect SBC to appropriately
discharge its obligations under the agreement consistent with the specified standards and estimated costs, we do
not control SBC and there can be no assurance that all of these functions will be successfully executed on a
timely basis or that we will not have to expend extraordinary efforts or material costs in excess of those
estimated in the transition services agreement. Further, any interruption in these services or such extraordinary
efforts or costs could have a material adverse effect on our financial condition or results of operations.

One of the most critical functions performed by SBC under the transition services agreement related to
billing and collection. Under that agreement, the local SBC telephone company billed and collected from our
local advertising customers in the Illinois and Northwest Indiana directories and remitted collections (net of a
specified holdback) to us through early 2005. On a monthly basis commencing September 1, 2004, SBC
provided an advance to us related to those receivables, and as such, we recorded an advance from SBC that
was decreased as SBC collected from our advertisers, thus satisfying that liability. In early 2005, we assumed
all responsibility for billing and collections and settled remaining amounts with SBC. Despite the completed
transition of the billing and collection functions, it is possible that advertisers may be confused by the change
in billing party and/or less likely to pay us for their directory advertising than they were to pay the provider of
their local phone service. Accordingly, we cannot provide any assurance that our bad debt levels will not
increase as a result of this billing and collection transition.
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(11} Reliance on, and extension of credit to, small and medium-sized businesses

Approximately 85% of our directory advertising revenue is derived from selling advertising to small- and
medium-sized businesses. In the ordinary course of our yellow pages publishing business, we extend credit to
these advertisers for advertising purchases. Small- and medium-sized businesses, however, tend to have fewer
financial resources and higher failure rates than large businesses. The proliferation of very large retail stores
may continue to harm small- and medium-sized businesses. We believe these limitations are significant
contributing factors to having advertisers in any given year not renew their advertising in the following year. In
addition, full or partial collection of delinquent accounts can take an extended period of time. Consequently,
we could be adversely affected by our dependence on and our extension of credit to small- and medium-sized

businesses.

(12) Dependence on third-party providers of printing, distribution and delivery services

We depend on third parties for the printing and distribution of our directories. We are a party to two
contracts with R.R. Donnelley for the printing of our directories. Printing is one of our largest costs items
accounting for approximately 10% of our total operating and general and administrative expenses. Although
these contracts do not expire until December 2005 and December 2007, because of the large print volume and
specialized binding of directories, there are a limited number of companies capable of servicing our printing
needs. Accordingly, the inability or unwillingness of R.R. Donnelley to provide printing services to us on
acceptable terms or at all could have a material adverse effect on our business. No common ownership or
other business affiliation exists between R.R. Donnelley and us.

We are a party to contracts with three companies for the distribution of our directories. Although these
contracts are scheduled to expire at various times between May 2005 and February 2007, any of these vendors
may terminate its contract with us upon 120 days’ written notice. There are a limited number of companies
capable of servicing our delivery needs. Accordingly, the inability or unwillingness of our current vendors to
provide delivery services to us on acceptable terms or at all could have a material adverse effect on our

business.

(13) Fluctuations in the price and availability of paper

Our principal raw material is paper. We currently contract with four vendors for the purchasing of paper.
These agreements expire at various times from December 31, 2005 through December 31, 2006. Pursuant to
the contract under which we obtain the great majority of our paper and which extends through December 31,
2006, the price of the paper was set at inception and increases at various dates during the term of the
agreement. Should the market price of the paper drop below the set prices under that contract, both parties are
obligated to negotiate in good faith a lower paper price. We are subject to delays in receiving this principal
raw material. Further, changes in the supply of, or demand for, paper could affect market prices or delivery
times. Paper is one of our largest cost items accounting for approximately 5% to 7% of our total operating
and general and administrative expenses. We cannot assure you that we will have available necessary raw
materials at reasonable prices or that any increases in paper costs would not have a material adverse effect on
our business, results of operations or financial condition.

(14) The sale of advertising to national accounts is coordinated by third parties that we do
not control

Approximately 15% of our directory advertising revenues is derived from the sale of advertising to
national or large regional companies, such as rental car companies, automobile repair shops and pizza delivery
businesses, each of which generally purchases advertising in several of our directories. Substantially all of the
revenue derived from national accounts is serviced through Certified Marketing Representatives (“CMRs”)
with whom we contract. CMRs are independent third parties that act as agents for national companies and
design their advertisements, arrange for the placement of those advertisements in directories and provide billing
services. As a result, our relationships with these national advertisers depend significantly on the performance
of these third party CMRs whom we do not control. Although we believe that our relationships with these
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CMRs have been mutually beneficial, if some or all of the CMRs with whom we have established relationships
were unable or unwilling to do business with us on acceptable terms or at all, such inability or unwillingness
could materially adversely affect our business. During 2003, we began acting as a CMR directly placing certain
national advertising. It is possible that such a development could adversely impact our relationships with
CMRs or expose us to possible legal claims from CMRs. We are also subject to credit risk with CMRs with
whom we contract.

(15) General economic factors

Our business results could be adversely affected by a prolonged national or regional economic recession.
We derive substantially all of our net revenue from the sale of advertising in directories. Typically, our
advertising revenues, as well as those of yellow pages publishers in general, do not fluctuate widely with
economic cycles. However, a prolonged national or regional economic recession could have a material adverse
effect on our business, operating results or financial condition. As a result, we may experience lower than
expected revenues for our business in the future.

In addition, any residual economic effects of, and uncertainties regarding:

¢ the general possibility, express threat or future occurrence of terrorist or other related disruptive
events; or

* the United States’ continuing or expanded involvement in war
g p ,

especially with respect to the major markets in which we operate that depend heavily upon travel, tourism or
the military, could adversely affect our business.

Including the operations of our SBC Directory Business, we expect that approximately 45% of our net
revenues will be derived from the sale of SBC-branded directory advertising (and other related products and
services) in Illinois and Northwest Indiana. The Midwest economy, and particularly Chicago, has been
relatively slower to recover from the economic recession than many other parts of the country and many of
our other markets, especially many of our Nevada and Florida markets. While the SBC Directory Acquisition
moderated our dependence on and risk associated with heavily tourist-driven economies, it increased our
exposure to and risk associated with the slower growth Midwest economy. As a result, we may experience
lower than previously expected revenue growth in the future.

{(16) Turnover among our sales force or key management

Our ability to achieve our business plan depends to a significant extent on our ability to identify, hire,
train and retain qualified sales personnel in each of the regions in which we operate. We expend a significant
amount of resources and management time on identifying and training our sales representatives and sales
managers. Our ability to attract and retain qualified sales personnel depends on numerous factors, including
factors outside of our control, such as conditions in the local employment markets in which we operate. A
decrease in the number of sales representatives and sales managers could adversely affect our results of
operations, financial condition and liquidity, as well as our ability to service our debt.

Furthermore, we depend on the continued services of key personnel, including our experienced senior
management team as well as our regional sales management personnel. Although we believe that we could
replace our senior management team and other key employees within a reasonable time period should the need
arise, the loss of these key personnel could have a material adverse effect on our business.

(17) The loss of important intellectual property rights

Some trademarks such as the “Sprint”, “SBC” and “Donnelley” brand names and other intellectual
property rights are important to our business. We rely upon a combination of copyright and trademark laws as
well as contractual arrangements, including licensing agreements, particularly with respect to Sprint and SBC
markets, to establish and protect our intellectual property rights. We are required from time to time to bring
lawsuits against third parties to protect our intellectual property rights. Similarly, from time to time, we are
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party to proceedings whereby third parties challenge our rights. We cannot be sure that any lawsuits or other
actions brought by us will be successful or that we will not be found to infringe the intellectual property rights
of third parties. Although we are not aware of any material infringements of any trademark rights that are
significant to our business, any lawsuits, regardless of their outcome, could result in substantial costs and
diversion of resources and could have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition or results
of operations. In addition, we only have rights to use the Sprint and SBC name and logos in certain markets.
The loss of important intellectual property rights such as trademarks could have a material adverse effect upon

our business, financial condition and results of operations.

(18) Information technology modernization effort

We are in the process of upgrading and modernizing our legacy Amdocs process management
infrastructure to Amdocs’ iGen platform, an integrated, Web-based, fully scalable set of business applications.
While we expect this modernization effort to permit us to advance our digital local commercial search and
integrated media strategy by more effectively and efficiently capturing and organizing our local market content,
the modernization effort is complicated and is expected to take the next 15 to 18 months to fully implement.
During the modernization effort we may experience a disruption to our business. We cannot assure you that
any disruption caused by the modernization effort will not materially adversely affect our business. In addition,
we expect to incur approximately $20 million of capital expenditures and approximately $5 million in
expenses over the next 18 months in connection with this modernization effort, which is higher than our
historical levels of capital expenditures and represents funds that would otherwise have been available to repay

debt or for other strategic or general corporate purposes.

Acquisitions
SBC Directory Acquisition

On September 1, 2004, we completed the SBC Directory Acquisition for $1.41 billion in cash, after
working capital adjustments and a settlement of a $30 million liquidation preference owed to us related to
DonTech. To finance the acquisition, we amended and restated our Credit Facility, which now consists of a
$700 million Term Loan A-2, a $1,650 million Term Loan B-2 and a $175 million Revolving Credit Facility
(“Revolver”) for an aggregate facility of $2,525 million.

In connection with the transaction, we entered into a directory services license agreement, a non-
competition agreement, a SMARTpages reseller agreement and a directory publishing listing agreement
(collectively, “SBC Directory Services Agreements”) with certain affiliates of SBC. The directory services license
agreement designates us as the official and exclusive provider of yellow pages directory services for SBC (and
its successors) in Illinois and Northwest Indiana (the “Territory”), grants us the exclusive license (and
obligation as specified in the agreement) to produce, publish and distribute white pages directories in the
Territory as SBC’s agent and grants us the exclusive license (and obligation as specified in the agreement) to
use the SBC brand and logo on print directories in the Territory. The non-competition agreement prohibits
SBC (and its affiliates and successors), with certain limited exceptions, from (1) producing, publishing and
distributing yellow and white pages print directories in the Territory, (2) soliciting or selling local Internet
yellow pages advertising for inclusion in such directories, and (3) soliciting or selling local Internet yellow
pages advertising for certain Internet yellow pages directories in the Territory or licensing SBC marks to any
third party for that purpose. The SMART pages reseller agreement gives us the exclusive right to sell local
Internet yellow pages advertising and the non-exclusive right to sell Internet yellow pages advertising with
respect to geographies outside the Territory to any advertiser (excluding national advertisers) located inside the
Territory onto SBC’s SMARTpages.com platform (and any successor products as specified in the agreement).
The directory publishing listing license agreement gives us the right to purchase and use basic SBC subscriber
listing information and updates for the purpose of publishing directories. The SBC Directory Services
Agreements are all interrelated and each (other than the SMARTpages reseller agreement) has an initial term of
50 years, subject to automatic renewal and early termination under specified circumstances. The SMARTpages

reseller agreement has a term of 5 years.
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The SBC Directory Acquisition was accounted for as purchase business combination and the purchase
price was allocated to the tangible and identifiable intangible assets acquired and liabilities assumed based on
their respective fair values on the acquisition date. The results of the SBC Business are included in our
consolidated results from and after September 1, 2004.

The allocation of the purchase price to the fair value of assets acquired and liabilities assumed is shown in
the table below. The purchase price allocation below reflects the initial allocation and subsequent purchase
price adjustments made in 2004. While we do not anticipate significant changes to the fair value of the net
assets acquired, additional information could come to our attention that may require us to revise the purchase
price allocation.

(amounts in millions)

Calculation of allocable purchase price:

Cash .o $1,406.1
Liquidation preference ... ... ...t 29.9
Allocable transaction COSES .. ... vttt 12.7
Total allocable purchase price .......... ... o i $1,448.7

Allocation of purchase price:

SBC Directory Services AGrEEMENtS. .. ... ouvternrntee e, $ 952.5
Customer relationships .. ... e 145.0
Net assets acquired .. ...t e 138.2
Fair value adjustments:
Reverse pre-acquisition deferred revenue ............. ... ... ... 41.9
Estimated profit on acquired sales contracts ............................... 49.3
Reverse deferred directory costs associated with directories published pre-

ACQUISIEION © . o oottt ettt e e e e (175.8)
Eliminate historical income taxes ............ .. ... 55.5
Other .. 16.5
Fair value of net assets acquired ....... ... ..o i 125.6
Goodwill ... 212.9
Total cash purchase price e 1,436.0
Allocable transaction costs .. ... . 12.7
Total allocable purchase price ....... ... .. ... . . $1,448.7

SPA Acquisition

On January 3, 2003, we completed the SPA Acquisition for $2.23 billion in cash, including post-
acquisition working capital adjustments. To finance the acquisition, we entered into a new $1,525 million
Credit Facility, consisting of a $500 million Term Loan A, a $900 million Term Loan B and a $125 million
Revolver. We also issued the Senior Notes and the Senior Subordinated Notes. Additionally, we issued
$200 million of Preferred Stock and warrants to purchase 1,650,000 shares of our common stock to the GS
Funds.

To take advantage of favorable market conditions and to ensure the timely consummation of the SPA
Acquisition, we issued the Senior Notes and the Senior Subordinated Notes and borrowed the Term Loan B in
December 2002. The total gross proceeds of $1,825 million were deposited and held in escrow pending the
SPA Acquisition closing. We issued $70 million of Preferred Stock and warrants to purchase 577,500 shares of
our common stock, with an exercise price of $26.28 per share in November 2002 to the GS Funds. At the
closing of the SPA Acquisition, we issued the remaining $130 million of Preferred Stock and warrants to
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purchase 1,072,500 shares of our common stock, with an exercise price of $28.62 per share to the GS Funds.
Additionally, we borrowed the Term Loan A and $10 million under the Revolver on the closing date.

In connection with the SPA Acquisition, we entered into a directory services license agreement, a
trademark license agreement and a non-competition agreement with Sprint (collectively, “SPA Directory
Services Agreements”). The directory services license agreement grants us the exclusive license (and obligation
as specified in the agreement) to produce, publish and distribute directories for Sprint (and its successors) in
the markets where Sprint provided local telephone service. The trademark license agreement grants us the
exclusive license (and obligation as specified in the agreement) to use certain Sprint trademarks, including the
Sprint diamond logo, in those markets. The non-competition agreement prohibits Sprint (and its affiliates and
successors) in those markets from selling local directory advertising or producing, publishing and distributing
print directories, with certain limited exceptions. These SPA Directory Services Agreements are all interrelated
and each has an initial term of 50 years, subject to automatic renewal and early termination under specified
circumstances.

The SPA Acquisition was accounted for as purchase business combination and the purchase price was
allocated to the tangible and identifiable intangible assets acquired and liabilities assumed based on their
respective fair values on the acquisition date. The results of the SPA Business are included in our consolidated
results from and after January 3, 2003.

The allocation of the purchase price to the fair value of assets acquired and liabilities assumed is shown in
the table below. The purchase price allocation below reflects the initial allocation and subsequent purchase
price adjustments made in 2003.

(amounts in millions)
Calculation of allocable purchase price:

Cash .. $2,229.8
Allocable transaction COSES . .. .. vv vt 17.6
Total allocable purchase price ........... .. i i $2,247.4
Allocation of purchase price:

SPA Directory Services AGreements ... ...........uunuuuuiuinnnnnannnannans $1,625.0
Customer relationships .. ... .. i i i i e 260.0
Trade Names . . ... e 30.0
Net assets acquired .. ... ... 81.5
Fair value adjustments:
Reverse pre-acquisition deferred revenue......... ... ... ... .. ... 315.9
Reverse deferred allowance for doubtful accounts and sales claims included in

SPA’s opening deferred revenue....... ... ... ... (22.8)
Reverse deferred directory costs associated with directories published pre-

ACQUISITION . v v v ettt e e (89.5)
Eliminate historical deferred tax and goodwill .............................. (43.3)
Other .. o e (23.8)
Fair value of net assets acquired .. ... it 217.8
Goodwill .. o 97.0
Total cash purchase price . ........ .. ..o 2,229.8
Allocable €ransaction COSES . .. .ottt e 17.6
Tortal allocable purchase price ...... ... . . i $2,247.4

Segment Reporting

We have revised our historical segment reporting to reflect the change in our business that resulted from
the SBC Directory Acquisition and to reflect how management now reviews and analyzes the business. Qur
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business of publishing yellow pages directories is now conducted in one reportable operating segment. All pre-
press publishing services and other ancillary services previously performed on behalf of others are now
performed entirely on behalf of the directories we publish. As a result of the SBC Directory Acquisition, SBC
ceased paying us revenue participation income, we consolidate all net profits from DonTech and our DonTech
partnership investment was eliminated. Consequently, partnership income was no longer reported commencing
on September 1, 2004 and, accordingly, the previously reported DonTech operating segment is no longer
applicable.

During 2003, our reportable segments were Donnelley and DonTech. The Donnelley segment included
revenue from our Sprint-branded yellow pages directories and our pre-press publishing services contract with
SBC, and all operating and administrative expenses. The DonTech segment included revenue participation
income from SBC and our 50% interest in the net profits of DonTech.

Critical Accounting Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles
(“GAAP”) requires management to estimate the effect of various matters that are inherently uncertain as of the
date of the financial statements. Each of these estimates varies in regard to the level of judgment involved and
its potential impact on the Company’s reported financial results. Estimates are deemed critical when a different
estimate could have reasonably been used or when changes in the estimate are reasonably likely to occur from
period to period, and could materially impact the Company’s financial condition, changes in financial condition
or results of operations. The Company’s significant accounting polices are discussed in Note 2 of the
consolidated financial statements included in Item 8 of this annual report. The critical estimates inherent in
these accounting polices are discussed below. Management believes the current assumptions and other
considerations used to estimate these amounts in the Company’s consolidated financial statements are
appropriate.

Allowance for Doubtful Accounts and Sales Claims

We record our revenue net of an allowance for sales claims. In addition, we record a provision for bad
debts. The provision for bad debts and allowance for sales claims are estimated for each directory based on
historical experience. We also evaluate the current condition of our customer balances, bankruptcy filings, any
change in credit policy, historical charge-off patterns, recovery rates and other data when determining our
allowance for doubtful accounts reserve. We review these estimates periodically to assess whether additional
adjustment is needed based on economic events or other circumstances, including actual experience at the end
of the billing and collection cycle with respect to each directory. We believe that the allowance for doubtful
accounts and sales claims is adequate to cover anticipated losses under current conditions; however, significant
deterioration in any of the factors noted above or in the overall economy could materially change these
expectations. The provisions for sales claims and doubtful accounts are estimated based on a percentage of
revenue. Accordingly, an additional 1% change in these allowance percentages would have impacted 2004
GAAP net income by approximately $3.6 million and 2004 adjusted pro forma net income by $6.3 million.
See “Adjusted and Pro Forma Amounts and Other Non-GAAP Measures” below for a description and
reconciliation of adjusted pro forma net income to reported GAAP net income.

Pension Benefits

Our pension plan obligations and related assets of the Company’s defined benefit retirement plans and
those related to the DonTech employees of the SBC Directory Business are presented in Note 10 to our
consolidated financial statements. Plan assets consist primarily of marketable equity and debt instruments and
are valued using market quotations. Plan obligations and annual pension expense are determined by
independent actuaries and through the use of a number of assumptions. Key assumptions in measuring the
plan obligations include the discount rate, the rate of future salary increases and the long-term expected return
on plan assets. In determining the discount rate, we consider yields on high-quality, fixed-income investments
with maturities corresponding to the anticipated timing of the benefit payments. Salary increase assumptions
are based upon historical experience and anticipated future management actions. Asset returns are based upon
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the anticipated average rate of earnings expected on invested funds of the plan over the long-run. At
December 31, 2004, the weighted-average actuarial assumptions were: discount rate of 5.75%; long-term rate
of return on plan assets of 8.25%; and assumed salary increases of 3.66%. Net periodic pension costs
recognized in 2004 were $4.0 million. A 1% change in the discount rate would affect net income by
approximately $0.8 million; a 1% change in the long-term rate of return on plan assets would affect net
income by approximately $0.7 million; and a 1% change in assumed salary increases would affect net income
by approximately $0.4 million.

Intangible Assets and Goodwill Valuation and Amortization

Qur intangible assets consist of Directory Services Agreements between the Company and each of Sprint
and SBC, respectively, established customer relationships and trademarks and trade names, all resulting from
the SPA Acquisition and the SBC Directory Acquisition. The intangible assets are being amortized over the
period the assets are expected to contribute to the cash flow of the Company, which reflect the expected
pattern of benefit. Our recorded goodwill resulted from the SPA Acqulsmon and the SBC Directory Acquisition
and is not subject to amortization.

The intangible assets are subject to an impairment test in accordance with Statement of Financial
Accounting Standards No. 144, Accounting for the Impairment or Disposal of Long-lived Assets
(“SFAS 144”), and the goodwill is subject to an impairment test in accordance with Statement of Financial
Accounting Standards No. 142, Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets (“*SFAS 142”*). The Company reviews
the carrying value of its intangible assets for impairment at least annually or more frequently whenever events
or circumstances indicate that their carrying amount may not be recoverable. The impairment test for the
intangible assets is performed by comparing the carrying amount of the intangible assets to the sum of the
undiscounted expected future cash flows. In accordance with SFAS 144, impairment exists if the sum of the
future undiscounted cash flows is less than the carrying amount of the intangible asset, or to its related group
of assets. Impairment would result in a write-down of the intangible asset to its estimated fair value based on
the discounted future cash flows. Goodwill is tested for impairment by comparing the carrying amount of the
reporting unit to which it was assigned to the estimated fair value of the reporting unit. In accordance with
SFAS 142, impairment exists if the carrying amount of the reporting unit is less than its estimated fair value.
Impairment would result in a write-down equal to the difference between the carrying amount and the
estimated fair value of the reporting unit.

We used certain estimates and assumptions in our impairment evaluation, including, but not limited to,
projected future cash flows, revenue growth, customer attrition levels, and estimated write-offs. As of
December 31, 2004, management believes that there was no impairment to the intangible assets or goodwill.
However, significant deterioration in our business, the assumptions underlying the impairment evaluations, or
in the overall economy, could result in impairment charges in future reporting periods. Had the aggregate net
book value of the intangible assets and goodwill at December 31, 2004 been impaired by 1%, net income on
both a reported GAAP and adjusted pro forma basis in 2004 would have been adversely impacted by
approximately $19.5 million. See “Adjusted and Pro Forma Amounts and Other Non-GAAP Measures” below
for a description and reconciliation of adjusted pro forma net income to reported GAAP net income.

Additionally, management must assess whether the remaining useful lives of the intangible assets represent
the period that the intangible assets are expected to contribute to our cash flow. In our assessment process, we
used certain estimates and assumptions, including projected future cash flows, customer attrition levels and
industry and economic conditions. In accordance with SFAS 142, we evaluate the remaining useful lives
annually to determine whether events or circumstances warrant a revision to the remaining period of
amortization. If the estimated remaining useful lives change, the remaining carrying amount of the intangible
asset would be amortized prospectively over that revised remaining useful life. For the year ended
December 31, 2004, amortization of intangible assets was approximately $57.3 million. Had the remaining
useful lives of the intangible assets been shortened by 10%, net income on a reported GAAP and the adjusted

"pro forma basis in 2004 would have been adversely impacted by approximately $3.0 million and $5.1 million,
respectively. See “Adjusted and Pro Forma Amounts and Other Non-GAAP Measures” below for a description
and reconciliation of adjusted pro forma net income to reported GAAP net income.
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New Accounting Pronouncements

New Accounting Pronouncements. On December 16, 2004, the FASB issued FASB Statement No. 123
{revised 2004), “Share-Based Payment” {“FAS 123(R})”). FAS 123{R) requires companies to calculate the fair
value of stock options granted to employees, and amortize that amount over the vesting period as an expense
through the income statement. The accounting provisions of FAS 123(R) are effective for interim periods
beginning after June 15, 2005, but companies have a choice of transition methods: modified prospective,
modified retrospective, or early adoption. The Company is presently evaluating the transition method and
effective date for transition to FAS 123(R) during 2005 and what impact adoption of FAS 123(R) may have on
the Company. ‘

In May 2004, the Financial Accounting Standards Board issued Financial Staff Position {“FSP”’)
No. FAS 106-2, Accounting and Disclosure Requirements Related to the Medicare Prescription Drug,
Improvement and Modernization Act of 2003, which provides guidance on accounting for the effects of the
Medicare Prescription Drug, Improvement and Modernization Act of 2003 for employers that sponsor
"postretirement healthcare plans that provide drug benefits. The Act introduces prescription drug care benefits
under Medicare and also allows for certain sponsors of postretirement benefit plans with a drug benefit to
receive a non-taxable federal subsidy if certain criteria are met. The FSP requires interim and annual period
financial statements beginning after June 15, 2004 to include the effect of the subsidy on the measurement of
net periodic postretirement benefit costs. We adopted the provisions of the FSP in the fourth quarter of 2004,
which resulted in decrease to our accumulated postretirement benefit obligation of approximately $4.3 million.

RESULTS OF OPERATIONS
Year Ended December 31, 2004 compared to the Year Ended December 31, 2003

Factors Affecting Comparability
Acquisitions

As a result of the SBC Directory Acquisition and the SPA Acquisition, the related financings and
associated purchase accounting, our 2004 reported GAAP results are not comparable to our 2003 reported
GAAP results. Additionally, these considerations with respect to the SBC Directory Acquisition will also affect
the comparability of our 2004 and 2003 reported GAAP results. Under the deferral and amortization method
of revenue recognition, the billable value of directories published is recognized as revenue in subsequent
reporting periods. However, purchase accounting precluded us from recognizing directory revenue and certain
expenses associated with directories that published prior to each acquisition, including all directories published
in the month each acquisition was completed. Thus, our reported 2004 and 2003 GAAP results are not
indicative of our underlying operating and financial performance. Accordingly, management is presenting
adjusted pro forma information that, among other things, eliminates the purchase accounting impact on
revenue and expenses for each acquisition and assumes the SBC Directory Acquisition and related financing
occurred at the beginning of 2003. Management believes that the presentation of this adjusted pro forma
information will help financial statement users better and more easily compare current period underlying
operating results against what the combined company performance would more likely have been in the
comparable prior period. All of the adjusted pro forma amounts disclosed under the caption “Adjusted Pro
Forma Amounts and Other Non-GAAP Measures” or elsewhere are non-GAAP measures, which are reconciled
to the most comparable GAAP measures under that caption below. While we believe the adjusted pro forma
results reasonably represent results as if the businesses had been combined for the full years 2003 and 2004,
because of differences in the application of accounting policies and practices between the Company and the
acquired entities, management does not believe these adjusted pro forma amounts are strictly comparable, nor
are they necessarily indicative of results for future periods.

Before the SBC Directory Acquisition, we reported our 50% share of DonTech net income as partnership
income in our consolidated statement of operations. Partnership income also included revenue participation
income from SBC. Revenue participation income was based on DonTech advertising sales and was recognized
when a sales contract was executed with a customer. Upon the SBC Directory Acquisition, SBC ceased paying
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us revenue participation income, we consolidate all net profits of DonTech and our partnership investment was
eliminated. Consequently, commencing on September 1, 2004, we no longer report partnership income. During
2003 and in 2004 until the SBC Directory Acquisition, we earned revenue from pre-press publishing and other
ancillary services related to the SBC Directory Business and we continued to report partnership income from
our investment in DonTech.

Relocation and Integration Charges

Our 2004 expenses include $7.3 million related to the relocation of our corporate offices to Cary, North
Carolina, $2.5 million related to the acquisition and integration of the SBC Directory Business, and
$1.1 million for sales offices relocation expenses related to the SPA Acquisition.

Our 2003 expenses include severance and move-related charges of $7.3 million relating to the relocation
of our corporate offices to Cary, North Carolina and $7.6 million for the consolidation of our publishing and
technology operations, sales offices and administrative staff in connection with the SPA Acquisition.

GAAP Reported Results
Net Revenue

The components of our net revenue in 2004 and 2003 were as follows:
For the Years Ended December 31,

(amounts in millions) 2004 2003 $ Change
Gross directory advertising revenue .................c.oiiiiiaini..y $589.5 $233.9 $355.6
Sales allowances. ... ... (6.3) {2.3) (4.2)
Net directory advertising revenue ..............ov .. $583.0 $231.6 $351.4
Pre-press publishing and application service fees ..................... 13.0 22.2 (9.2)
Other revenUe. . ..o e e 7.1 2.6 4.5

Total. . $603.1  $256.4  $346.7

Following the SBC Directory Acquisition, substantially all of our revenue is derived from our directory
publishing business. Before the SBC Directory Acquisition, DonTech was accounted for under the equity
method. Our directory advertising revenue is earned primarily from the sale of advertising in the yellow pages
directories we publish, net of sales allowances. Revenue from directory advertising sales is recognized under the
deferral and amortization method, whereby revenue from advertising sales is initially deferred when the
directory is published and recognized ratably over the directory’s life, which is typically 12 months. Before the
SBC Directory Acquisition, we also earned pre-press publishing fees with respect to services we rendered on
behalf of SBC for the SBC-branded directories we now publish. These fees were, and other income is,
recognized when earned.

Total net revenue in 2004 was $603.1 million compared to $256.4 million in 2003. The primary increase
in total net revenue in 2004 is a result of purchase accounting related to the SPA Acquisition that adversely
impacted 2003 results. Due to purchase accounting, directory revenue for the year ended December 31, 2003
excluded the amortization of the publication sales for Sprint-branded directories published before February
2003 under the deferral and amortization method totaling $315.9 million that would have been reported
during 2003 absent purchase accounting. Total revenue in 2004 also includes $29.1 million of net revenue -
from the SBC-branded directories we published following the SBC Directory Acquisition. While purchase
accounting related to the SBC Directory Acquisition also negatively impacted 2004 results, because that
transaction closed on September 1, 2004, its impact was not as material to 2004 results as purchase
accounting related to the SPA Acquisition was to 2003 results. Purchase accounting related to the SBC
Directory Acquisition will continue to adversely impact reported revenue through 2005. Additionally, we
expect net revenue in 2005 to be significantly higher than in 2004 due to a full year of results from the
acquired SBC Directory Business.
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Revenue from pre-press publishing and sales-related computer application services in 2004 was
$13.0 million compared to $22.2 million in 2003. The decrease in pre-press publishing fees is a result of the
Company no longer providing such services to SBC following the SBC Directory Acquisition. We now support
internally the SBC-branded directories we publish. Additionally, pre-press publishing fees in 2003 totaling
$2.5 million reflect fees earned from a third party pre-press publishing contract for which we ceased providing
services in the first half of 2003. There was no comparable revenue earned in 2004.

Other revenue includes late fees paid on outstanding customer balances, commissions earned on sales
contracts with respect to advertising placed into other publishers’ directories, sales of directories and certain
other products and fees from telephone companies for publishing their information pages. The increase in other
revenue is primarily due to the SBC Directory Acquisition.

Expenses

The components of our total expenses for 2004 and 2003 were as follows:
For the Years Ended December 31,

{amounts in millions) 2004 2003 $ Change
OPerating eXpenses . . ..o vvvt ettt $263.2 $159.2  $104.0
G&IA EXPENSES . ..ottt 59.5 53.0 6.5
DA EXPEISE . . 66.6 65.8 0.8

Total. o $389.3 $278.0 §$111.3

Substantially all expenses are derived from our directory publishing business. Before the SBC Directory
Acquisition, DonTech was accounted for under the equity method. We began recognizing expenses related to
the SBC Directory Business on September 1, 2004, Certain costs directly related to the selling and production
of directories are initially deferred and recognized ratably over the life of the directory. These costs include
sales commissions and print, paper and initial distribution costs. All of other expenses are recognized as
incurred.

Operating Expenses

Total operating expenses in 2004 were $263.2 million compared to $159.2 million in 2003. The primary
components of the $104.0 million increase in operating expenses in 2004, compared to 2003, were as follows:

o Change

{amounts in millions)
2003 expenses excluded from GAAP results due to SPA purchase accounting ............. § 745
Increased 2004 sales, manufacturing and other expenses related to the acquired SBC

Directory Business . ... ... e 242
Cost uplift in 2004 from the SBC transaction . ... ...ttt 14.2
Increased 2004 sales expenses due to improved SPA sales performance ................... 5.4
Increased marketing and advertising eXpenses .. ....... ... 3.3
Decreased 2004 publishing and information technology costs due to SPA integration actions

taken in 2003 .. (10.0)
Difference between cost uplift in 2004 compared to 2003 from the SPA transaction ....... (7.6)

Total 2004 increase in operating expenses, compared to 2003 .............. ... ... .. .. $104.0

The increase in operating expenses in 2004 is primarily a result of the same purchase accounting impacts
as in 2003 related to the SPA Acquisition that precluded our reporting revenue related to SPA directories that
published before February 2003. Similar to the deferral and amortization method of revenue recognition,
certain costs directly related to the selling and production of our directories are initially deferred when incurred
and recognized ratably over the life of a directory. Due to the elimination of SPA’s deferred costs for all
directories published pre-acquisition (including January 2003) as required by purchase accounting, our reported
operating expenses in 2003 did not include certain expenses associated with those directories totaling
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approximately $74.5 million for the year ended December 31, 2003. Due to these adjustments, directory
expenses for the year December 31, 2003 include only the amortization of deferred directory costs relating to
directories published beginning in February 2003.

In 2004, operating expenses were also impacted by the SBC transaction. As a result of the SBC Directory
Acquisition completed on September 1, 2004, we incurred incremental selling, manufacturing and indirect
expenses of approximately $24.2 million in the last four months of 2004 to support the operations of the
newly acquired business. While purchase accounting related to the SBC Directory Acquisition also impacted
2004 results, because the transaction closed on September 1, 2004, its impact was not as material to 2004
results as purchase accounting related to the SPA Acquisition was to 2003 results.

As a result of purchase accounting required by GAAP, we recorded the deferred directory costs related to
directories that were scheduled to publish subsequent to the SPA Acquisition and SBC Directory Acquisition, at
their fair value, determined as (a) the estimated billable value of the published directory less (b} the expected
costs to complete the directories, plus (c) a normal profit margin. We refer to this purchase accounting entry as
“cost uplift.” The fair value of these costs in 2004 was determined to be $81.3 million and $14.8 million for
the SBC Directory Acquisition and the SPA Acquisition, respectively. These costs are amortized as operating
expenses over the terms of the applicable directories and such amortization totaled $14.2 million in 2004
related to the SBC Directory Acquisition. For the SPA Acquisition, we amortized $3.6 million of cost uplift in
2004. This compares to $11.2 million in 2003 related to the SPA Acquisition, or a decrease of $7.6 million in
the year ended December 31, 2004.

In 2004, we also incurred approximately $5.4 million in additional selling expenses, compared to 2003,
due to the improved sales results in the SPA markets. The additional expenses primarily included commissions,
sales person costs, and sales management costs. In 2004, we incurred additional marketing and advertising
costs of $3.3 million, compared to 2003, to support both the SPA and SBC businesses. Advertising expense for
the year ended December 31, 2004 includes $1.1 million of advertising costs that pertain to 2003.

Partially offsetting these cost increases, net publishing and information technology costs were lower by
approximately $10.0 million in 2004, primarily due to the elimination of duplicate facility and associated
operational costs resulting from the integration of the SPA Acquisition. The majority of these duplicative costs
were eliminated in the second half of 2003.

Purchase accounting resulting from the SBC Directory Acquisition will continue to impact reported
expenses in 2005. We expect operating expenses in 2005 to be significantly higher than in 2004 due to a full
year of results from the acquired SBC Directory Business.

General and Administrative Expenses

General and administrative (“G&A”) expenses in 2004 were $59.5 million compared to $53.0 million in
2003, or an increase of $6.5 million. The primary components of the $6.5 million increase in G&A expenses
in 2004, compared to 2003, were as follows:

L Change

(amounts in millions)
Increased billing, credit and collection expenses related to the acquired SBC Directory

BUSINESS - . o vttt ettt e e $3.2
Other increased 2004 G&A expenses, primarily related to the acquired SBC Directory

BUSINESS ..o e 4.0
Expenses related to Sarbanes-Oxley compliance in 2004 ............ ... . ... . ... 1.9
All other net changes to G&CA eXPenses ... ...ttt e 1.1
Decreased G&A expenses in 2004 for relocation, severance and integration expenses related

to the SPA and SBC acquisitions and the corporate headquarters relocation.............. (3.7)

Total 2004 increase in G&A, compared to 2003 ... ... ... . $6.5

40




The $6.5 million increase in G&A expenses was primary impacted by $7.2 million of incremental G& A
expense to support the acquired SBC Directory Business. This consisted of increased billing, credit and
collection expenses of $3.2 million and $4.0 million of other G&A expenses, including financial services,
human resources and administration services. G&A expenses were also impacted by $1.9 million of costs
related to compliance with Sarbanes-Oxley initiatives for which there were no comparable expenses in 2003.
These increases were offset by $3.7 million lower severance and relocation expenses associated with the SPA
and SBC Directory Acquisitions and expenses related to the relocation of the Company’s corporate
headquarters in 2004 compared to 2003. We recorded $7.0 million of expenses in 2004 related to the
relocation of our corporate offices to Cary, North Carolina, compared to $7.3 million in 2003. In 2004, G&A
expenses also included $2.5 million of acquisition and integration-related costs from the SBC transaction. More
than offsetting those increased costs, 2003 included a $7.0 million charge related to the shutdown of
duplicative facilities resulting from the SPA Acquisition, compared to similar charges of only $1.1 million in
2004 related to the relocation of Sprint sales offices.

We expect G&A expenses in 2005 to be significantly higher than 2004 due to a full year of results from
the acquired SBC Directory Business.

Depreciation and Amortization

Depreciation and amortization (“D&A”) in 2004 was $66.6 million compared to $65.8 million in 2003,
Amortization of intangible assets was $57.3 million in 2004 compared to $49.8 million in 2003. The increase
in amortization expense is due to the increase in intangible assets resulting from the SBC Directory Acquisition.
We expect amortization expense in 2005 to be significantly higher than 2004 due to a full year impact related
to the intangible assets acquired in connection with the SBC Directory Acquisition. Depreciation of fixed assets
and amortization of computer software was $9.3 million in 2004 compared to $16.0 million in 2003. This
decrease is primarily due to the acceleration of depreciation on certain fixed assets and computer software
acquired in connection with the SPA Acquisition in 2003,

Partnership Income

In 2004 and 2003, partnership income related to our 50% share of the net income of DonTech (accounted
for under the equity method) and revenue participation income from SBC. As a sales agent for SBC, DonTech
earned commission revenue based on the annual value of local sales contracts executed during the period
(““calendar sales”). We also earned revenue participation income from SBC based on the amount of DonTech
calendar sales during the period. As a result of the SBC Directory Acquisition, SBC ceased paying us revenue
participation income and we now consolidate all net profits in DonTech. Thus, the DonTech partnership
investment was eliminated. Accordingly, commencing on September 1, 2004, we no longer report partnership
income. Partnership income was $78.0 million in 2004, as compared to $114.1 million in 2003. The decrease
in partnership income in 2004 is primarily a result of no longer recognizing partnership income following the
SBC Directory Acquisition.

Operating Income

As a result of the SBC Directory Acquisition, the Company now has one operating segment. Management
views and evaluates this one segment as the sole source of EBITDA and operating income for the Company
and does not need to allocate resources among different segments.

Operating income for 2004 and 2003 was as follows:

For the Years Ended
December 31,

{amounts in millions) 2004 2003 $ Change

Total. oo $291.7 $92.5  $199.2

Operating income in 2004 of $291.7 million increased by $199.2 million from operating income of
$92.5 million in 2003. The increase was due primarily to the effects of the SPA Acquisition and related
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purchase accounting on our revenues and expenses, as described above. Net revenue in 2003 of $256.4
primarily resulting from the SPA Acquisition, was more than offset by the operating expenses in 2003 of
$278.0 million, also primarily as a result of the SPA Acquisition. The primary reason that our costs relating to
the acquired SPA Business increased more than our revenue in 2003 is because while all directory advertising
revenue is deferred under our deferral and amortization method, only a portion of total costs related to
publication of the directories are deferred under the deferral and amortization method. Therefore, under
purchase accounting, when the entire balance of deferred revenue and deferred directory costs were eliminated
at the time of the SPA Acquisition, it had a disproportionately higher impact on revenue than on expenses.
Accordingly, after the adjustments required by purchase accounting, operating expenses in 2003 were
disproportionately higher than the related revenue. If the effects of purchase accounting were eliminated,
adjusted operating income in 2003 would have been substantially higher and relatively proportional to

2003 net revenues. See “— Adjusted and Pro Forma Amounts and Other Non-GAAP Measures” below.
Additionally, for the reasons described above, partnership income decreased by $36.1 million in 2004.

While purchase accounting related to the SBC Directory Acquisition also negatively impacted 2004 results,
because that transaction closed on September 1, 2004, its impact was not as material to 2004 results as
purchase accounting related to the SPA Acquisition was to 2003 results. Purchase accounting from the SBC
Directory Acquisition will continue to adversely impact reported results through 2005, Additionally, we expect
operating income to be significantly higher in 2005 than in 2004 due to a full year of results from the acquired
SBC Directory Business.

Interest Expense, Net

Net interest expense in 2004 was $175.5 million compared to $180.0 million in 2003. The decrease in net
interest expense of $4.5 million is a result of lower outstanding debt balances in the first eight months of 2004
combined with lower interest rates in most of 2004 than in 2003. This was partially offset by the substantial
increase in debt incurred in connection with the SBC Directory Acquisition on September 1, 2004. The impact
of interest expense associated with the additional borrowings used to finance the SBC Directory Acquisition is
expected to be greater in 2005 due to the impact of such additional borrowings for the entire period. Interest
expense in 2004 also includes a $1.2 million charge resuiting from the redemption in 2004 of the remaining
9.125% Senior Subordinated Notes due 2008. See “— Liquidity and Capital Resources” for a further
description of our debt obligations and the provisions of the related debt instruments. Net interest expense for
2004 includes $13.6 million of non-cash amortization of deferred financing costs, compared to $15.0 million
of non-cash amortization of deferred financing costs in 2003.

Other Income (Expense), Net

In December 2002, a charge of $1.5 million was recorded to reclassify to earnings the cumulative change
in the fair value of a swap that was previously recognized in accumulated other comprehensive loss on the
balance sheet, due to the loss of hedge accounting treatment. In 2003, we recognized a corresponding gain of
$1.5 million as the swap matured in June 2003. See Item 7A, “Qualitative and Quantitative Disclosures About
Market Risk™ for additional information about our interest rate swap agreements.

Provision (Benefit) for Income Taxes

The 2004 provision for income taxes of $45.9 million was comprised of a current tax benefit of
$25.6 million and a deferred tax provision of $71.5 million. The 2004 current tax benefit was based on an
effective tax rate of 39.5% and net operating losses of approximately $72.4 million related to tax deductions
in connection with the SPA Acquisition and the SBC Directory Acquisition. The 2004 deferred tax provision of
$71.5 million was primarily related to the difference in amortization expense recorded for tax purposes
compared to book purposes with respect to the intangible assets acquired in connection with the SPA
Acquisition and the SBC Directory Acquisition. The remaining federal net operating loss carrvforward of
$73.4 million will begin to expire in 2023, and the remaining state net operating loss carryforwards of
$249.0 million will begin to expire in 2008.
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The 2003 tax benefit of $36.0 million was comprised of a current tax provision $4.2 million and a
deferred tax benefit of $40.2 million. The 2003 tax benefit of $36.0 million was based on an effective tax rate
of 41.8% and net operating losses of approximately $176.0 million related to tax deductions in connection
with the SPA Acquisition. The 2003 deferred tax benefit was primarily related to the tax benefit recognized
with respect to tax net operating loss generated in 2003 partially offset by a deferred tax provision related to
the difference in amortization recorded for tax purposes compared to book purposes with respect to intangible
assets acquired in connection with the SPA Acquisition.

Net Income (Loss), Income (Loss) Available to Common Shareholders and Earnings (Loss) Per
Share

Net income in 2004 was $70.3 million compared to net loss of $50.0 million in 2003. The results for
2003 were adversely affected by purchase accounting that precluded us from recognizing deferred revenue and
certain expenses associated with those directories published prior to the SPA Acquisition, including all January
2003 published directories. While purchase accounting related to the SBC Directory Acquisition also negatively
impacted 2004 results, because that transaction closed on September 1, 2004, its impact was not as material to
2004 results as purchase accounting related to the SPA Acquisition was to 2003 results. Purchase accounting
from the SBC Directory Acquisition will continue to adversely impact reported results through 2005.

The dividend on our 8% redeemable convertible cumulative preferred stock (“Preferred Stock™) reduces
net income or increases net loss, resulting in income (loss) available to common shareholders from which
earnings per share amounts are calculated. The amount of the Preferred Stock dividend includes the stated 8%
dividend, plus a deemed dividend for a beneficial conversion feature (“BCF”’). The BCF is a function of the
conversion price of the Preferred Stock, the fair value of the related warrants issued with the Preferred Stock
and the fair market value of the underlying common stock on the date of issuance of the Preferred Stock. In
connection with the issuance of our Preferred Stock and each subsequent quarterly accrued dividend, a BCF
has been recorded because the fair value of the underlying common stock at the time of issuance of the
Preferred Stock was greater than the conversion price of the Preferred Stock. The full amount of the BCF is
treated as a deemed dividend because the Preferred Stock was convertible into common stock immediately after
issuance in January 2003. The Preferred Stock dividend in 2004 and 2003 of $21.8 million and $58.4 million,
respectively, consisted of the stated 8% dividend of $17.9 million and $16.5 million, respectively, and a BCF
of $3.9 million and $41.9 million, respectively. The BCF recorded in 2003 was more significant than BCF
amounts recorded in subsequent periods, reflecting the issuance of the Preferred Stock and related warrants in
January 2003. The resulting income (loss) available to common shareholders was $48.5 million in 2004 as
compared to $(108.4) million in 2003.

In March 2004, the Emerging Issues Task Force (“EITF”) reached a final consensus on EITF Issue
No. 03-6, Participating Securities and the Two-Class Method under FASB Statement 128 (“EITF 03-6”"), which
established standards regarding the computation of earnings per share (“EPS”) by companies that have issued
securities other than common stock that contractually entitle the holder to participate in dividends and
earnings of the company. EITF 03-6 was effective for interim periods ending June 30, 2004 for calendar year
companies. We adopted the provisions of EITF 03-6 during the first quarter of 2004. EITF 03-6 requires
earnings available to common shareholders for the period, after deduction of preferred stock dividends, to be
allocated between the common and preferred shareholders based on their respective rights to receive dividends.
Basic EPS is then calculated by dividing income (loss) allocable to common shareholders by the weighted
average number of shares outstanding. EITF 03-6 does not require the presentation of basic and diluted EPS
for securities other than common stock; therefore, the following EPS amounts only pertain to our common
stock.

Under the guidance of EITF 03-6, diluted EPS are calculated by dividing income {loss} allocable to
common shareholders by the weighted average common shares outstanding plus dilutive potential common
stock. Potential common stock includes stock options and warrants, the dilutive effect of which is calculated
using the treasury stock method, and Preferred Stock, the dilutive effect of which is calculated using the if-
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converted method. The calculation of basic and diluted EPS for the years ended December 31, 2004 and 2003

are presented below.
For the Years Ended
December 31,

2004 2003

Basic EPS — Two-Class Method

Income {loss) available to common shareholders ........................ $48,521  $(108,350)

Amount allocable to common shareholders™ . ......... ... ... .. ... ... 77% 100%
Income (loss) allocable to common shareholders ........................ 37,361 (108,350)
31,268 30,683

Weighted average common shares outstanding ..........................

! $ 119 $§ (3.53)

Basic earnings (loss) per share — two-class method® ... ... .. ... ......

Diluted EPS

Income (loss) available to common shareholders ........................ $48,521  $(108,350)

Amount allocable to common shares™ ... ... .. ... ... 77% 100%
Income (loss) allocable to common shareholders ........................ 37,361 (108,350)
Weighted average common shares outstanding .......................... 31,268 30,683
Dilutive effect of stock options'™ . ... .. ... .. 1,348 —
Dilutive effect of Preferred Stock assuming conversion” ... ............... — —
32,616 30,683

Weighted average diluted shares outstanding............. ...,

Diluted earnings (loss) per share®® .. ... ... .. ... . . .. ... $ 115 §  (3.53)
P

(1) 31,268/(31,268 + 9,483) for the year ended December 31, 2004. In computing basic EPS using the two-
class method, we have not allocated the loss available to common shareholders in the year ended
December 31, 2003 between common and preferred shareholders since the preferred shareholders do not

have a contractual obligation to share in the net loss.

(2) 934 stock options in 2003 and the assumed conversion of the Preferred Stock into 9,767 and 9,023 shares
of our common stock in 2004 and 2003, respectively, were anti-dilutive and therefore are not included in

the calculation of diluted EPS.

(3) These EPS amounts differ from those reported in our Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the SEC on
February 25, 2005 resulting from an update to the two-class method used to compute earnings per share.

Adjusted and Pro Forma Amounts and Other Non-GAAP Measures

As a result of the SBC Directory Acquisition and the SPA Acquisition, the related financings and
associated purchase accounting, our 2004 reported GAAP results are not comparable to our 2003 reported
GAAP results. Additionally, these considerations with respect to the SBC Directory Acquisition will also affect
the comparability of our 2004 and 2005 reported GAAP results. Under the deferral and amortization method
of revenue recognition, the billable value of directories published is recognized as revenue in subsequent
reporting periods. However, purchase accounting precluded us from recognizing directory revenue and certain
expenses associated with directories that published prior to each acquisition, including all directories published
in the month each acquisition was completed. Thus, our reported 2004 and 2003 GAAP results are not
indicative of our underlying operating and financial performance. Accordingly, management is presenting
adjusted pro forma information that, among other things, eliminates the purchase accounting impact on
revenue and expenses for each acquisition and assumes the SBC Directory Acquisition and related financing
occurred at the beginning of 2003. Management believes that the presentation of this adjusted pro forma
information will help financial statement users better and more easily compare current period underlying
operating results against what the combined company performance would more likely have been in the
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comparable prior period. All of the adjusted pro forma amounts disclosed below or elsewhere are non-GAAP
measures, which are reconciled to the most comparable GAAP measures below. While we believe the adjusted
pro forma results reasonably represent results as if the businesses had been combined for the full years 2003
and 2004, because of differences in the application of accounting policies and practices between the Company
and the acquired entities, management does not believe these adjusted pro forma amounts are strictly
comparable, nor are they necessarily indicative of results for future periods.

Twelve Months Ended December 31, 2004

Adjustments

Reported ~ SBC Directory Adjusted
(amounts in millions) GAAP Acquisition SPA Acquisition Pro Forma
NEE TEVENUE « . . ettt e ettt e e $603.1 $429.71 $1.1% $1,033.9
Expenses, other than depreciation and amortization . . . ... 322.8 98.0'% (3.6)® 417.2
Depreciation and amortization. ...................o.... 66.6 18.8% — 85.4
Partnership income . ................ ... .. 78.0 (78.0)% — —
Operating iNCOME . . .. ..ottt $291.7 $234.9 $4.7 $ 531.3

Twelve Months Ended December 31, 2003

Adjustments

Reported  SBC Directory Adjusted
(amount in millions) GAAP Acquisition SPA Acquisition Pro Forma
NEE FEVENUE . ..ttt $256.4 $ 460.5" $315.9""  $1,032.8
Expenses, other than depreciation and amortization ... ... 212.2 157.1@ 63.3 432.6
Depreciation and amortization...............covennn... 65.8 29.6" — 954
Partnership income......... .. .. ... . it 114.1 (114.1)¥ — —
Operating iNCOME . .. ...ttt $ 92.5 $ 159.7 $252.6 $ 504.8

) Represents revenue for SBC-branded directories that published prior to the SBC Directory Acquisition, plus
all September 2004 published directories, which would have been recognized during the period had it not
been for purchase accounting required under GAAP.

Represents (a) expenses for SBC-branded directories that published prior to the SBC Directory Acquisition,
plus all September 2004 published directories, which would have been recognized during the period had it
not been for purchase accounting required under GAAP, (b) DonTech’s selling and operational expenses
prior to September 1, 2004, which were eliminated in consolidation upon the SBC Directory Acquisition,
and (c) certain differences in the application of accounting policies and practices between RHD and the
acquired entities. Additionally, as a result of purchase accounting, we recorded the deferred directory costs
related to directories that were scheduled to publish subsequent to the SBC Directory Acquisition at their
fair value. The impact of such costs has also been removed.

) Represents the additional depreciation and amortization expense related to the tangible and identifiable

intangible assets acquired in the SBC Directory Acquisition over their estimated useful lives.
4

Represents the elimination of equity accounting used to account for RHD’s 50% ownership in DonTech and
the revenue participation income from SBC recognized prior to the SBC Directory Acquisition.

Represents revenue for Sprint-branded directories that published prior to the SPA Acquisition, plus all
January 2003 published directories, which would have been recognized during the period had it not been
for purchase accounting required under GAAP.

6} Represents expenses for Sprint-branded directories that published prior to the SPA Acquisition, plus all

January 2003 published directories, which would have been recognized during the period had it not been
for purchase accounting required under GAAP. Also includes the effect of differences in the application of
accounting policies and practices between legacy SPA and the Company. Additionally, as a result of
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purchase accounting, we recorded the deferred directory costs related to directories that were scheduled to
publish subsequent to the SPA Acquisition at their fair value. The impact of such costs has also been
removed.

2004 Adjusted Pro Forma Revenue Compared to 2003 Adjusted Pro Forma Revenue

The components of 2004 adjusted pro forma revenue and 2003 adjusted pro forma revenue are as
follows:

2004
SBC
Reported Directory SPA Adjusted

GAAP Acquisition Acquisition Pro Forma
Gross directory advertising revenue . .............. .. ... $589.5 $437.6'" $1.1%  $1,028.2
Sales claims and allowances ................ ... ... ... (6.5) (1.1)M — (7.6)
Net directory advertising revenue .. ..........c..ovvireiia. .. 5$83.0 436.5 11 1,020.6
Pre-press publishing fees ....... ... ... ... ... oL 13.0 (13.0)% — —
Other reVenuUe ... ... .ot 7.1 6.219 13.3
Net TEVENUE . ..ottt $603.1 $429.7 $1.1 $1,033.9
2003

SBC
Reported Directory SPA Adjusted

GAAP Acquisition  Acquisition Pro Forma
Gross directory advertising revenue . ............ ... ... $233.9 $480.1"  $319.4  $1,033.4
Sales claims and allowances ...................ccooiiiiii... (2.3) (4.2)"" (3.5)% (10.0)
Net directory advertising revenue ... .............oviuiiooa... 231.6 475.9 315.9 1,023.4
Pre-press publishing fees ......... ... . ... 222 (22.2)® — —
Other TEVEIMUE .. ..o\ttt e e e e 2.6 6.8 — 9.4
NEt LEVEIMUE © .o e ettt ettt et e $256.4 $460.5 $315.9 $1,032.8

U Represents gross revenue and sales claims and allowances for directories that published prior to the SBC-
branded Directory Acquisition, plus all September 2004 published directories, which would have been
recognized during the period had it not been for purchase accounting required under GAAP.

@ Represents the elimination of pre-press publishing fees reported prior to the SBC Directory Acquisition,

which were eliminated in consolidation upon the SBC Directory Acquisition.

) Represents other revenue, primarily consisting of commissions earned on sales contracts published into other

publishers’ directories and other yellow pages Internet-based advertising and other product revenue
recognized as earned.

) Represents gross revenue and sales claims and allowances for Sprint-branded directories that published prior

to the SPA Acquisition, plus all January 2003 published directories, which would have been recognized
during the period had it not been for purchase accounting required under GAAP.

Total adjusted pro forma net revenue in 2004 was $1,033.9 million, an increase of $1.1 million or 0.1%
from adjusted pro forma net revenue of $1,032.8 million in 2003. Under the deferral and amortization method
of revenue recognition, revenue from directory advertising sales is initially deferred when a directory is
published and recognized ratably over the life of the directory, which is typically 12 months. The modest
decrease in adjusted gross directory advertising revenue is a result of higher revenue from Sprint directories,
particularly in Nevada and Florida, offset by a decline in revenue from the SBC directories due to the past
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declines in publication sales amortizing to revenue in current periods. Due to the deferral and amortization
method, the billable value of published directories are amortized to revenue over the life of the directory,
which delays recognition of publication sales as recorded revenue on a GAAP basis. The reduction in sales
claims and allowances is primarily the result of a $2.0 million favorable reduction of claims allowances
recognized by SBC prior to the SBC Directory Acquisition due to improved experience.

2004 Adjusted Pro Forma Expenses and Operating Income Compared to 2003 Adjusted Pro
Forma Expenses and Operating Income

For the year ended December 31, 2004, adjusted pro forma operating and G&A expenses decreased by
$15.4 million, or 3.6%, to $417.2 million from adjusted pro forma operating and G&A expenses of
$432.6 million in 2003. The primary components of the $15.4 million decrease in adjusted pro forma expenses
in 2004 compared to 2003 were as follows:

L Change
{amounts in millions)
Favorable adjustments of 2004 bad debt expense for SBC-branded directories compared to
2003 . o $(10.0)
Favorable adjustments of 2004 bad debt expense for Sprint-branded directories compared to
2003 . (2.1)
Decreased 2004 publishing and information technology costs due to SPA integration actions
taken in 2003 .. L (10.0)
Allocations of corporate expenses by SBC included in 2003 adjusted pro forma expenses,
but not included in 2004 adjusted pro forma expenses due to the SBC Directory
ACQUISIEION oottt e e (8.4)
Decreased G&A expenses in 2004 for relocation, severance and integration expenses related
to the SPA and SBC acquisitions and the corporate headquarters relocation ............. (3.7)
Decreased print and paper costs in 2004 for SBC-branded directories compared to 2003 .. .. (1.9
Net impact on 2003 adjusted pro forma expenses of the elimination of sales agency expense 13.4
Increased 2004 adjusted pro forma sales expenses due to improved SPA sales performance . . 54
Increased expenses related to Sarbanes-Oxley compliance in 2004........................ 1.9
Total 2004 decrease in adjusted pro forma expenses, compared to 2003, excluding
depreciation and amoOTrtiZation . .. .. ..ottt e e $(15.4)

Adjusted pro forma bad debt expense was $12.1 million lower than in 2003 due primarily to improved
collections experience relating to the SBC-branded directories of $10.0 million combined with $2.1 million of
additional favorable adjustments to Sprint-branded directories, when compared to 2003. Publishing and
information technology costs were $10.0 million lower in 2004 primarily due to the elimination of duplicate
facilities and associated operational costs in 2003 resulting from the integration of the SPA Acquisition.
Additionally, in 2003 the SBC Directory Business recorded $8.4 million of allocations for corporate-related
administration costs that are not included in 2004 expenses due to the SBC Directory Acquisition. Print and
paper costs for SBC-branded directories were $1.9 million lower in 2004, compared to 2003, due to lower
print volumes.

Adjusted pro forma expenses for relocation, severance and integration costs were $3.7 million lower in
2004 compared to 2003. Adjusted pro forma expenses in 2004 included $7.0 million related to the relocation
of our corporate offices to Cary, North Carolina, compared to $7.3 million in 2003. 2004 adjusted pro forma
expenses also included $2.5 million of acquisition and integration-related costs from the SBC transaction. More
than offsetting those increased costs, 2003 adjusted pro forma expenses included a $7.0 million charge related
to the shutdown of duplicative facilities that resulted from the SPA Acquisition, compared to similar charges of
only $1.1 million in 2004 related to the relocation of Sprint sales offices.

Offsetting these lower 2004 expenses is a $13.4 million adjustment resulting in lower operating expense in
2003, compared to 2004, due to the elimination in our consolidated adjusted pro forma results of sales agency
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expense paid by SBC that DonTech recorded as revenue. SBC deferred this expense and recognized it over the
life of the publications to which it related. DonTech recorded the revenue as period revenue. The resulting
timing difference is due to different accounting treatment between SBC and DonTech and resulted in a net
reduction of 2003 operating expense of $13.4 million to eliminate the sales agency expense from pro forma
adjusted expenses. Additionally, 2004 adjusted pro forma sales expenses were $5.4 million higher than 2003,
primarily due to better sales performance of the Sprint directories in certain larger markets. Sarbanes-Oxley
compliance during 2004 also resulted in approximately $1.9 million of expenses, with no corresponding
expense in 2003.

We expect adjusted operating and G&A expenses to be higher in 2005 than adjusted pro forma operating
and G&A expenses in 2004 due to increased investments in online directories and other digital initiatives,
increased advertising and promotional activities in lllinois, and the expected adoption of SFAS 123(R), which
will increase compensation expense in 2005.

Adjusted pro forma depreciation and amortization (“D&A”) in 2004 was $85.4 million compared to
$95.4 million in 2003. Depreciation of fixed assets and amortization of computer software was lower in 2004
by $6.6 million due to the acceleration of depreciation on certain fixed assets and computer software acquired
in connection with the SPA Acquisition in 2003.

Adjusted pro forma operating income in 2004 was $531.3 million, an increase of $26.5 million or 5.2%
from adjusted pro forma operating income in 2003 of $504.8 million, reflecting the above expense decreases.

Advertising Sales — Publication Sales

Management reviews and evaluates the value of advertising sales in directories that published during the
period (“publication sales™) as its primary sales performance measure. Management believes that a comparison
of publication sales for the same directories from one period to the next gives a better indication of underlying
sales trends, economic conditions and business confidence than a comparison of directory revenue recognized
using the deferral and amortization method. Because we recognize directory revenue ratably over the life of a
directory under the deferral and amortization, the amount of revenue recognized during a period is not directly
related to the sales trends, economic conditions and business confidence during that period. Publication sales
are similar to a “same-store” sales measure. If events occur during the current period that affect the
comparability of publication sales to the prior year period, such as changes in directory publication dates, then
prior year publication sales amounts are adjusted to conform to the current period presentation.

Publication sales from Sprint-branded directories in 2004 were $567.2 million, up $14.7 million or 2.7%
from publication sales of $552.5 million in 2003. Publication sales from SBC-branded directories in 2004 were
$463.2 million, down 2.1% from publication sales of $473.1 million in 2003. The increase in Sprint-branded
publication sales resulted from higher recurring advertising in our major Sprint markets for directories
published in 2004. These results were partially offset by weaker performance in certain smaller Sprint markets.
The decrease in SBC-branded publication sales resulted from continued softness in the Chicago area economy
and less-than-optimal execution and investment in the SBC Directory Business as a result of the DonTech
structure prior to the SBC Directory Acquisition. Due to the timing of the sales campaign cycles that determine
publication sales, substantially all 2004 SBC-branded publication sales, and a substantial portion of first
quarter 2005 SBC-branded publication sales, were completed prior to the SBC Directory Acquisition.




Publication sales are a non-GAAP measure for which the most comparable GAAP measure is net revenue. A
reconciliation of publication sales to net revenue reported in accordance with GAAP is presented below:

For the Years Ended
December 31,

(Amount in millions) 2004 2003
Publication sales — Sprint-branded directories . ........... .o §3567.2  $552.5
Publication sales — Sprint-branded directories — percentage change over prior

- 2.7%
Adjustments for changes in directory publication date(s)....................... (4.3)
Publication sales previously disclosed ........ . ... ... il 548.2
Publication sales — SBC-branded directories ........... . ... . ... ... 463.2 4731
Publication sales — SBC-branded directories — percentage change over prior year -2.1%
Less pre-acquisition publication sales for Sprint-branded directories not

recognized as revenue in the current period due to purchase accounting ....... (102.4)
Less pre-acquisition publication sales for SBC-branded directories not recognized

as revenue in current period due to purchase accounting. .................... (277.3) (473.1)
Less current period publication sales for Sprint-branded directories not recognized

as revenue in current period due to the deferral method of accounting ........ (221.0) (214.2)
Less current period publication sales for SBC-branded directories not recognized

as revenue in current period due to the deferral method of accounting ........ (158.4)
Plus net revenue reported in the period for publication sales from prior periods .. 209.3 —
Net directory advertising revenue on above publication sales ................... 583.0 231.6
Pre-press publishing revenue ....... ... ... . . 13.0 22.2
Oher FEVEIMUE . . .. oottt et e e ettt et e e e 7.1 2.6
Net revenue — GAAP . . ... ... $603.1 $256.4

Year Ended December 31, 2003 compared to the Year Ended December 31, 2002

Factors Affecting Comparability
SPA Acquisition

Because of the SPA Acquisition, the related financing and associated accounting, our 2003 results prepared
in accordance with GAAP are not comparable to our 2002 GAAP results previously reported. Also, because
purchase accounting rules precluded us from recognizing revenue and certain expenses for those directories that
published prior to the acquisition, including all January 2003 published directories, revenue and certain
expenses reported in 2003 are not representative of revenue and certain expenses that would have been
reported in 2003 absent these purchase accounting adjustments. Accordingly, in addition to a discussion of the
reported 2003 GAAP results compared to the reported 2002 GAAP results, we are also providing a
comparison of 2003 adjusted results, which, among other things, exclude the effect of purchase accounting on
deferred revenue and certain expenses, to 2002 adjusted pro forma results, which assumes the acquisition
occurred on January 1, 2002. For a detailed discussion of 2003 adjusted revenue and certain expenses versus
2002 adjusted pro forma revenue and certain expenses, which are more comparable to each other, as well as a
detailed discussion of advertising sales, which drive revenue, see “— Adjusted and Pro Forma Amounts and
Other Non-GAAP Measures™ below.

Relocation and Integration Charges

Our 2003 expenses included severance and move-related charges of $7.3 million relating to the relocation
of our corporate offices to Cary, North Carolina and $7.6 million for the consolidation of our post-acquisition
publishing and technology operations, sales offices and administrative staff.
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Restructuring and Special Charge

Results for 2002 included a net benefit of $6.7 million from the reversal of remaining restructuring
reserves recorded in 2001, as these restructuring actions were completed during 2002. Additionally, results for
2002 included a $2.0 million impairment charge for the write-off of our remaining investment in ChinaBig.com
Limited (“ChinaBig™).

Net Revenue

The components of our net revenue in 2003 and 2002 were as follows:

For the Years Ended
December 31,

{amounts in millions) ‘ 2003 2002 $ Change
Directory advertising revenue .. ..........courienrreeenniinneeenn. $233.9 —  $233.9
Advertising sales commission revenue ................ ..., —  $43.1 (43.1)
Sales allowances . ... ... i e (2.3) (0.4) (1.9)
Netrevenue..........oovieintnneinennn.. e 231.6 42.7 188.9
Pre-press publishing fees ... ... ... ool 22.2 31.1 (8.9)
Other revenue. ... ... . 2.6 1.6 1.0

Total . o $256.4 $75.4  $181.0

Revenue was derived entirely from our Donnelley segment since DonTech was accounted for under the
equity method. Subsequent to the SPA Acquisition, revenue from directory advertising sales is recognized under
the deferral and amortization method, whereby revenue from advertising sales is initially deferred when the
directory is published and recognized ratably over the directory’s life, which is typically 12 months. Pre-press
publishing fees and other revenue were recognized when earned. Total net revenue in 2003 was $256.4 million
compared to $75.4 million in 2002. The increase in total net revenue in 2003 was a result of the SPA
Acquisition. From the date of the acquisition on January 3, 2003, our revenue was earned primarily from the
sale of advertising in yellow pages directories we published in 2003, totaling $230.8 million, net of sales
allowances. As a result of the acquisition, we became the publisher of 260 Sprint-branded directories. As the
publisher, we earn the entire value of the sales contract with the advertiser, subject to an allowance for sales
claims. Prior to the acquisition, we were a sales agent and earned only a commission on the advertising sales
contract that was recognized when the advertiser signed the contract and we earned this revenue on
44 directories as opposed to the 260 directories we published in 2003. During 2002, our net revenue
represented only the commissions we earned as a sales agent on advertising sales made on behalf of SPA,
totaling $42.7 million, net of allowances for sales claims.

Revenue from pre-press publishing services was $22.2 million in 2003 compared to $31.1 million in 2002.
The decrease of $8.9 million is primarily due to the consolidation of SPA’s operating results with ours
beginning in 2003 and the expiration of a contract with a third party directory publisher that ceased
outsourcing its pre-press publishing services to us in the first quarter of 2003. During 2002, we earned
$7.0 million in fees for pre-press services provided to SPA and earned $7.3 million from that third party pre-
press publishing contract that expired. We continued to provide transition services to the third party publisher
through March 2003 and recognized $3.0 million of revenue in 2003. Other revenue in 2003 and 2002
included fees for sales-related computer application services rendered to DonTech on behalf of SBC. As a result
of the SPA Acquisition in 2003, we also began recording revenue for late fees paid on outstanding customer
balances, sales of directories and fees from telephone companies for publishing of information pages. These
activities accounted for the difference in other revenue between 2003 and 2002.
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Expenses

The components of our total expenses for 2003 and 2002 were as follows:

For the Years Ended
Decemnber 31,

(amounts in millions) 2003 2002 $ Change
OPEerating eXPENSES . . ...ttt tt ettt $159.2  $48.0 $111.2
G&IA BXPENSES . . 53.0 12.0 41.0
DA EXPeNSe . . oottt 65.8 6.3 59.5

Total .o $278.0 $66.3  $211.7

All reported expenses are derived entirely from our Donnelley segment since DonTech is accounted for
under the equity method. Certain costs directly related to the selling and production of directories are initially
deferred and recognized ratably over the life of the directory.

Operating Expenses

Total operating expenses in 2003 were $159.2 million compared to $48.0 million in 2002. The increase in
operating expenses was primarily a result of the operating expenses of the SPA business that we acquired. The
2003 operating expenses included our results as a publisher of 260 directories, whereas 2002 expenses
included those expenses incurred in our prior role as a sales agent for 44 directories. The expenses we incur as
a publisher of directories are significantly greater than the expenses that we incurred as a sales agent. However,
due to the elimination of SPA’s deferred revenue and deferred costs for 2002 and January 2003 directories as
required by purchase accounting, our reported expenses in 2003 do not include certain expenses associated
with those directories. Therefore, our operating expenses prospectively will be higher than they were in 2003.
In addition, our direct sales costs in 2003 were $45.9 million higher than in 2002 due to an increase in the
number of sales offices, size of our local sales force and our national sales operations. As a publisher, we also
now incur costs related to the printing and distribution of directories, purchasing of paper, and marketing,
advertising and customer service that we did not incur when we were a sales agent in 2002, Expenses in 2003
for these functions were $36.3 million higher than in 2002. Publishing and information technology expenses in
2003 were $22.4 million higher than in 2002 due to the production of the additional SPA directories related to
the acquisition and the larger workforce. Bad debt expense in 2003 was lower than in 2002 principally due to
better than expected collections as a result of significant process improvements in billings and collections,
partially offset by bad debt expense recognized as a publisher.

General and Administrative Expenses

General and administrative (“G&A”) expenses in 2003 were $53.0 million compared to $12.0 million in
2002. The increase in general and administrative expenses was primarily attributable to incremental costs
related to the former SPA business of $13.6 million, costs relating to the relocation of our corporate offices to
Cary, North Carolina of $7.3 million and the higher corporate costs for the larger organization of $8.5 million
due to higher insurance premiums, compensation and governance costs. In addition, 2003 expenses included
$5.1 million of costs related to the consolidation of our publishing and technology operations, sales offices and
administrative staff. General and administrative expenses in 2002 reflect a net benefit of $6.4 million from the
reversal of remaining restructuring reserves initially recorded in 2001.

Depreciation and Amortization

Depreciation and amortization (“D&A”) in 2003 was $65.8 million compared to $6.3 million in 2002.
The increase in 2003 is primarily a result of the amortization, totaling $50.0 million, of the intangible assets
acquired in the SPA Acquisition. In 2002, Donnelley did not have significant intangible assets and therefore did
not incur significant amortization expense. Depreciation of fixed assets and amortization of computer software
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was $16.0 million in 2003 and $6.2 million in 2002. This increase is primarily due to the acceleration of
depreciation on certain fixed assets acquired in the SPA Acquisition.

Partnership Income

Partnership income in 2003 included our 50% share of the net income of DonTech (accounted for under
the equity method) and revenue participation income from SBC. As a sales agent for SBC, DonTech earned
commission revenue based on the annual value of sales contracts executed during the period (‘““calendar sales™).
We also earn revenue participation income based on the amount of calendar sales during the period.
Partnership income in 2002 also included a priority distribution on our membership interest in CenDon, LLC
(“CenDon”). As a result of the SPA Acquisition, we acquired the remaining membership interests in CenDon
and accordingly, became the sole owner of CenDon. We no longer receive priority distribution: income; rather
results from CenDon have been included in our Consolidated Statements of Operations. Partnership income
was $114.1 million in 2003 as compared to $136.9 million in 2002, of which $117.1 million was from
DonTech and $19.8 million was priority distribution income from CenDon, which at the time was a part of
our DAS segment. The decrease in partnership income from DonTech was due to a slow economic recovery,
stagnant job growth and competitive local media environment in the Chicagoland markets.

Operating Income

Operating income by segment for the years ended December 31, 2003 and 2002 was as follows:

For the Years Ended
December 31,

(amounts in millions) 2003 2002

Donnelley ... $(21.6) $ 28.9

DonTech ... e 114.1 117.1
Total . . $92.5 $146.0

Reported operating income in 2003 of $92.5 million decreased $53.5 million from operating income of
$146.0 million in 2002. The decrease was due primarily to the effects of the SPA Acquisition and related
purchase accounting on our revenues and expenses, as described above. While net revenue increased in 2003
by $181.0 million over 2002 net revenue, primarily resulting from the SPA Acquisition, more than offsetting
that increase in net revenue was an increase in operating expenses in 2003 of $211.7 million, also primarily as
a result of the SPA Acquisition. The primary reason that our costs relating to the acquired business increased
more in 2003 than our revenues is because while all directory advertising revenue is deferred under our
deferral and amortization method, only a portion of total costs related to publication of the directories are
deferred under the deferral and amortization method. Therefore, under purchase accounting, when the entire
balance of deferred revenue and deferred directory costs were eliminated at the time of the SPA Acquisition, it
had a disproportionately higher impact on revenues than it did on expenses. Accordingly, after the adjustments
required by purchase accounting, operating expenses in 2003 were disproportionately higher than the related
revenue. If the effects of purchase accounting were eliminated, adjusted operating income in 2003 would have
been substantially higher (and relatively proportional to the increase in net revenues) compared to GAAP
operating income in 2002. See “Adjusted and Pro Forma Amounts and Other Non-GAAP Measures” below.

Additionally, the acquired SPA business also resulted in increased general and administrative costs of
$41.0 million and depreciation and amortization of $59.5 million in 2003 compared to 2002, including the
amortization of the acquired intangible assets. Also contributing to the lower operating income in 2003
compared to 2002 is the decrease in partnership income described above.

Interest Expense, Net

Net interest expense in 2003 was $180.0 million compared to $33.5 million in 2002. Interest expense in
2003 was significantly higher as a result of the substantial debt incurred in connection with the SPA
Acquisition. See “— Liquidity and Capital Resources” for a further description of our debt obligations and the
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provisions of the related debt instruments. Interest expense for 2003 includes $15.0 million of non-cash
amortization of deferred financing costs, consisting of $2.4 million in deferred costs that were expensed in
connection with pre-acquisition debt that was extinguished in 2003 and $12.6 million of amortized deferred
costs related to our current outstanding debt, of which $3.1 million related to accelerated principal payments

in 2003.

Net interest expense in 2002 of $33.5 million included $12.7 million of interest incurred on
$1,825 million in debt raised in contemplation of the SPA Acquisition. Excluding this amount, interest expense
was $20.8 million reflective of our outstanding pre-acquisition debt during 2002.

Other Income (Expense), Net

Other income in 2003 represents a $1.5 million gain on hedging activities. At December 31, 2002, our
$75 million notional value interest rate swap did not qualify for hedge accounting treatment due to the then-
pending repayment of existing variable rate debt in connection with the SPA Acquisition. In December 2002, a
charge of $1.5 million was recorded to reclassify to earnings the cumulative change in the fair value of the
swap that was previously recognized in accumulated other comprehensive loss on the balance sheet. Due to the
loss of hedge accounting treatment, a gain of $1.5 million was recognized in earnings in 2003 at the time the
swap matured. Other expense in 2002 consists of the $1.5 million charge related to the interest rate swap
agreement, net of a $1.0 million reversal of remaining reserves related to the disposition of businesses in 2000.
See Item 7A “Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk” for additional information about
our interest rate swap agreements.

(Benefit) Provision for Income Taxes

The 2003 tax benefit is based on an effective tax rate of 41.8% and results from the tax benefit generated
in 2003 attributable to a net operating loss of approximately $176 million related to tax deductions in
connection with the SPA Acquisition. The 2003 effective tax rate reflects an increase in the state and local tax
rate as a result of the SPA Acquisition, combined with the favorable settlement in 2003 of certain prior year
state and local tax audits.

The 2002 tax provision is based on an effective tax rate of 40.0%, which was adversely impacted by the
ChinaBig investment impairment charge that was not deductible for tax purposes. This charge represents a
capital loss, which can only be offset against capital gains. This charge also gave rise to a deferred tax asset
that can only be realized by offsetting future capital gains. Given our current business portfolio and projections
of future results, we believe that the probability of generating future capital gains to realize this asset is remote.
Accordingly, a valuation allowance for the deferred tax asset relating to the ChinaBig investment was
established.

Net (Loss) Income, (Loss) Income Available to Common Shareholders and (Loss) Earnings Per
Share

The net loss in 2003 was $50.0 million compared to net income of $67.2 million in 2002. Our operating
results for 2003 reflect lower operating income as described previously and higher interest expense and D&A
as a result of the SPA Acquisition.

The dividend on the Preferred Stock increases the net loss or reduces net income, resulting in {loss) income
available to common shareholders from which earnings per share amounts are calculated. The amount of the
Preferred Stock dividend includes the stated 8% dividend, plus a deemed dividend for a beneficial conversion
feature (“BCF”). The BCF is a function of the conversion price of the Preferred Stock ($24.05), the fair value
of the warrants issued with the Preferred Stock (weighted average of $11.08 per warrant based on the Black-
Scholes model and exercise prices of $26.28 for the warrants issued in November 2002 and $28.62 for the
warrants issued in January 2003), and the fair market value of the common stock on January 3, 2003, the
date the Preferred Stock was issued ($29.92). The full amount of the BCF is treated as a deemed dividend
because the Preferred Stock was convertible into common stock immediately after issuance in November 2002
and January 2003. The Preferred Stock dividend in 2003 and 2002 of $58.4 million and $24.7 million,
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respectively, consisted of the stated 8% dividend of $16.5 million and $0.5 million, respectively, and a BCF of
$41.9 million and $24.2 million, respectively. The resulting (loss) income available to common shareholders
was $(108.3) million and $42.5 million in 2003 and 2002, respectively.

Basic earnings per common share (EPS) are generally calculated by dividing income available to common
shareholders by the weighted average number of common shares outstanding. However, because our Preferred
Stock contains certain participation rights, EITF Topic D-95, “Effect of Participating Securities on the
Computation of Basic Earnings Per Share” (“Topic D-957), requires that the dilutive effect of those securities
be included in the weighted average number of shares outstanding. Furthermore, Topic D-95 requires that the
dilutive effect to be included in basic EPS may be calculated using either the if-converted method or the two-
class method. However, the dilutive effect of the Preferred Stock cannot be less than that which would result
from the application of the two-class method. We have elected to use the if-converted method in calculating
basic EPS. However, during 2003, we reported EPS calculated using the two-class method because it was less
than EPS calculated using the if-converted method. Diluted EPS equals income available to common
shareholders divided by the weighted average common shares outstanding plus common share equivalents.
Common share equivalents include stock options and warrants, the dilutive effect of which is calculated using
the treasury stock method, and Preferred Stock, the potential dilutive effect of which is calculated using the if-
converted method. The calculation of basic and diluted EPS for 2003 and 2002 is presented below:

For the Years Ended
December 31,

(In thousands, except per share data) 2003 2002
Basic EPS — If-Converted Method
(Loss) income available to common shareholders .. ........................ $(108,350) $42,475
Preferred Stock dividend . ...... ... . . ... 58,397 24,702
Net (108S) INCOME . ..ottt $ (49,953) $67,177
Weighted average common shares outstanding ............................ 30,683 29,643
Weighted average common shares assuming conversion of Preferred Stock . . .. 8,761 281"
Weighted average common equivalent shares assuming conversion of Preferred

StOCK . o e 39,444 29,924
Basic (loss) earnings per share — if-converted method ...................... $ (1.27) $§ 224
Basic EPS — Two-Class Method
(Loss) income available to common shareholders .......................... $(108,350) $42,475
Amount allocable to common shares™ .. ... ... ... . .. 100% 99%
Rights to undistributed (loss) income ......... ..o (108,350) 42,050
Weighted average common shares outstanding ............................ 30,683 29,643
Basic (loss) earnings per share — two-class method® ...................... $ (3.53) $§ 1.42
Diluted EPS
(Loss) income available to common shareholders .......................... $(108,350) $42,475
Weighted average common shares outstanding ................ ... ... ...... 30,683 29,643
Dilutive effect of stock options™ ... ... .. ... ... — 655
Dilutive effect of Preferred Stock assuming Conversion™® ............ ... ... — —
Weighted average diluted shares outstanding . ............................. 30,683 30,298
Diluted (loss) earnings per share ........... ... ..o i $ (3.53) § 1.40

" At December 31, 2002, the Preferred Stock was convertible into 2,933,888 shares of common stock.
However, since $70 million of the Preferred Stock was issued in November 2002, the number of common
share equivalents included in the EPS calculation has been weighted for the actual time the Preferred Stock
was outstanding during the year.
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@) 29,643/(29,643 + 281) for the year ended December 31, 2002.

) Basic EPS calculated under the two-class method was a loss of $2.75 for the year ended December 31,
2003. However, where there is a net loss in a period, the application of the two-class method is anti-
dilutive. Accordingly, reported basic EPS are calculated as loss available to common shareholders divided by
the weighted average basic shares outstanding.

“ 934 stock options in 2003 and the assumed conversion of the Preferred Stock in 2003 and 2002 into 9,023
and 2,939 shares of our common stock were anti-dilutive and therefore are not included in the calculation
of diluted EPS.

Adjusted and Pro Forma Amounts and Other Non-GAAP Measures

As a result of the SPA Acquisition, our 2003 results prepared in accordance with GAAP are not
comparable to our 2002 reported GAAP results. Under our deferral and amortization revenue recognition
method, certain directories published in 2002 would have been recognized as revenue in 2003. However,
purchase accounting considerations precluded us from recognizing directory revenue and certain expenses
associated with directories that published prior to the acquisition, including all January 2003 published
directories. Accordingly, our reported 2003 GAAP results are not indicative of our underlying operations and
financial performance. Accordingly, management is presenting adjusted results for 2003 that, among other
things, eliminate the purchase accounting impact on revenue and certain expenses and adjusted pro forma
information for 2002 that assumes the acquisition and related financing occurred on January 1, 2002.
Management believes that the presentation of this adjusted and adjusted pro forma information will help
readers better and more easily compare current period underlying operating results against what the combined
company performance would likely have been in the comparable prior period. All of the following adjusted
and pro forma amounts are non-GAAP measures, which are reconciled to the most comparable GAAP
measures below.

For the Year Ended
December 31, 2003

GAAP
(amounts in millions) Reported Adjustments Adjusted
NEE FEVENUE ...ttt et et $256.4  $315.9'" $572.3
Expenses, other than depreciation and amortization ............... 212.2 63.3% 2755
Depreciation and amortization ..ot 65.8 — 65.8
Partnership income ... ... ..o 114.1 — 114.1
OPperating iNCOME .. ..o\ttt t et it e et § 92.5 $252.6 $345.1

For the Year Ended
December 31, 2002

GAAP Adjusted
(amounts in millions) Reported  Adjustments  Pro Forma
NEE TEVEIUE .+ oo vttt e et e $ 754  $495.97%  $571.3
Expenses, other than depreciation and amortization .............. 60.0 221.3% 281.3
Depreciation and amortization. .............oouiiiineneaa.. 6.3 58.59 64.8
Partnership inCOME . . ... ..ot 136.9 (19.8) 1171
Operating iNCOME .« « .ot v ettt e et et $146.0 $196.3 $342.3

‘) Represents revenue for directories that published prior to the SPA Acquisition, including all January 2003
published directories, that would have been recognized during the period had it not been for purchase
accounting adjustments required under GAAP.

©2) Represents expenses for directories that published prior to the SPA Acquisition, including all January 2003
published directories, that would have been recognized during the period had it not been for purchase
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accounting adjustments required under GAAP, and the effect of differences in the application of accounting
policies between legacy SPA and Donnelley.

) Represents revenue recognized by SPA in 2002 ($545.7 million) less our commission revenue and pre-press
publishing revenue from SPA included in our reported GAAP amounts ($49.8 million), which would have
been eliminated as intercompany revenues had the SPA Acquisition occurred on January 1, 2002.

“) Represents expenses recognized by SPA in 2002 ($253.3 million) less commission and pre-press publishing
expenses for services provided by us ($44.7 million), which would have been eliminated as intercompany
expenses had the SPA Acquisition occurred on January 1, 2002, plus the additional expense ($8.3 million)
related to a required purchase accounting adjustment recorded to increase acquired deferred directory costs
to fair value. The adjusted pro forma amounts also exclude a $6.4 million restructuring reserve reversal and
an investment impairment charge of $2.0 million.

Represents depreciation and amortization expense recognized by SPA in 2002 ($8.5 million) plus
amortization expense for intangible assets acquired in the SPA Acquisition assuming it occurred on
January 1, 2002 ($50.0 million).

Represents income from CenDon recognized by Donnelley and included in reported GAAP amounts, which
would have been eliminated as intercompany income had the SPA Acquisition occurred on January 1, 2002.

(6)

2003 Adjusted Revenue and Expenses Compared to 2002 Adjusted Pro Forma Revenue and
Expenses

The components of 2003 adjusted revenue and 2002 adjusted pro forma revenue are as follows:
‘ For the Years Ended December 31,

(amounts in millions) 2003 2002 § Change % Change
Gross directory advertising revenue. . ..........ovveeeereninn.. $552.7 $547.6 $5.1 0.9%
Sales claims and allowances ..................... .. ... ......... (6.0) (6.9) 0.9 13.0
Net directory advertising revenue ..................coouveurnnn.n.. 546.7 540.7 6.0 11
Pre-press publishing fees .................. ... ... .. 20.6 241 {3.5) (14.5)
Other revemnue . ... . . i e 5.0 6.5 (1.3) (23.1)
INEE TEVETIUE & . vttt et e et ettt e e e et e e e $572.3 $571.3 $1.0 0.2%

Total adjusted net revenue in 2003 was $572.3 million, an increase of $1.0 million or 0.2% from adjusted
pro forma net revenue of $571.3 million in 2002. Under the deferral and amortization method of revenue
recognition, revenue from directory advertising sales is initially deferred when a directory is published and
recognized ratably over the life of the directory, which is typically 12 months. The increase in adjusted gross
directory advertising revenue is a result of higher advertiser renewal rates and solid performance in two of our
major markets, Nevada and southwest Florida, offset by weaker performance in military markets due to the
Iraqi conflict and generally weak regional economic conditions during much of the year. In addition, due to the
deferral and amortization method, sales growth in published directories are amortized to revenue over the life
of the directory, which delays recognition of publication sales as recorded revenue. The reduction in sales
claims and allowances is a result of improved processes between the sales organization and pre-press services.
The decrease in pre-press publishing fees of $3.5 million is a result of the expiration of a third party pre-press
publishing contract for whom we ceased providing services in the first quarter 2003.

Adjusted operating and G&A expenses in 2003 were $275.5 million, down $5.8 million or 2.1% from
pro forma operating and G&A expenses of $281.3 million in 2002. Similar to the deferral and amortization
method of revenue recognition, certain costs directly related to the selling and production of our directories are
initially deferred when incurred and recognized ratably over the life a directory. The decrease in adjusted
expenses in 2003 is primarily due to lower bad debt expense of $13.7 million resulting from better than
expected collections due to certain process improvements; synergy savings from the combination of the SPA
operations with Donnelley’s in 2003 of $10.2 million; and lower print, paper and distribution costs of
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$9.3 million due to lower paper prices, printing expenses and vendor costs. These decreases were offset by
$8.5 million in increased corporate costs, due to higher insurance premiums, compensation and governance
costs related to the larger organization; $7.6 million of costs to achieve synergies from the consolidation of our
publishing and technology operations, sales offices and administrative functions; $7.3 million related to the
headquarters relocation and $4.3 million due to increased advertising in order to bring advertising levels for
the Sprint-branded directories back to historical levels before 2002.

Adjusted partnership income in 2003 was $114.1 million, a decrease of $3.0 million or 2.6% from
adjusted pro forma partnership income in 2002 of $117.1 million. The decrease in partnership income reflects
the decrease in income from DonTech previously discussed.

Adjusted operating income in 2003 was $345.1 million, an increase of $2.8 million or 0.8% from
adjusted pro forma operating income in 2002 of $342.3 million.

Donnelley Advertising Sales — Publication Sales

Management reviews and evaluates the value of advertising sales in directories that published during the
period (“publication sales™) as its primary sales performance measure. Directory advertising revenue is driven
by publication sales. Management believes that a comparison of publication sales for the same directories from
one period to another gives a better indication of underlying sales trends, economic conditions and business
confidence than a comparison of directory revenue recognized using the deferral and amortization method.
Because we recognize directory revenue ratably over the life of a directory, the amount of revenue recognized
during a period is not directly related to the sales trends, economic conditions and business confidence during
that period. Publication sales are comparable to a “same-store” sales measure and are utilized and disclosed by
many directory publishers, thus facilitating comparison of sales performance among publishers.

Publication sales in 2003 for the Donnelley segment were $548.2 million, up $6.5 million or 1.2% from
pro forma publication sales for the Donnelley segment of $541.7 million in 2002. The increase in publication
sales resulted from higher advertiser renewal rates and solid performance in two of our major markets, Nevada
and southwest Florida. These results were partially offset by regional economic weakness, and weaker
performance in several military markets due to troop deployment in connection with the Iraqi conflict.
Publication sales are a non-GAAP measure for which the most comparable GAAP measure related to the
Donnelley segment is net revenue. A reconciliation of publication sales to net revenue reported in accordance
with GAAP is presented below:

For the Years Ended
December 31,

(amounts in millions) 2003 2002
Publication sales — Donnelley segment .......... ... ... ... i il $548.2 % 541.7
Less publication sales for January 2003 directories not recognized as revenue due

to purchase accounting . ... e (102.4)
Less current period publication sales deferred and not recognized as revenue in

current period ... .. .. (215.0)
Less publication sales for those SPA directories not sold by Donnelley .......... (357.0)
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For the Years Ended
December 31,

(amounts in millions) 2003 2002
Publication sales reported by Donnelley in 2002 ................ oo, 184.7
Less sales contracts executed in prior periods and reported as calendar sales in

PLIOL PETIOAS « . oottt st ’ (70.0)
Plus contracts executed during the period to be reported as publication sales in

future Periods . ..ot 72.1
Calendar sales in 2002 .. ... .. i $ 186.8
Net directory advertising revenue on above advertising sales................... 230.8
Plus net commission revenue on 2002 calendar sales ......................... 42.7
Plus pre-press publishing revenue ......... ... ... i 20.6 311
Plus other revenue . ... ... i 5.0 1.6

Net Revenue — GAAP . . ... .. $2564 § 754

DonTech Advertising Sales — Calendar and Publication Sales
Calendar Sales

As a sales agent for SBC, DonTech recognizes commission revenue based on the annual value of a sales
contract (calendar sales) in the period the contract is executed. Management reviews calendar sales for
DonTech because this is a primary driver of our income from DonTech. DonTech manages the sale of
advertising to customers on a directory-by-directory basis or project basis (a project consists of two or more
directories in a geographic area) and organizes the sales into directories as a sales campaign. Accordingly,
changes in the beginning and ending dates of a sales campaign and the actual sales recorded at any point
during the campaign can vary from one period to the next. These variations, or timing factors, can cause
calendar sales, and thus partnership income, to be materially different from the prior comparative period.

Income from DonTech consisted of the following:

For the Years Ended
December 31,

famounts in millions) 2003 2002

50% share of DonTech net profits. . .......c.vvureniiie i, $ 174 $ 185
Revenue partiCipation IMCOME . .. ... utut ettt ettt it ettt 96.7 98.6
Total DonTech INCOME . . ...\ ottt $114.1  $117.1

DonTech partnership income in 2003 of $114.1 million decreased $3.0 million or 2.6% from
$117.1 million in 2002, mainly due to lower calendar sales. DonTech calendar sales in 2003 were
$394.9 million, 2.0% lower than calendar sales in 2002 of $402.9 million, as a result of a continued weak
economy in the Midwest during 2003 and competition in the local media market. Our share of DonTech’s net
income decreased $1.1 million from $18.5 million to $17.4 million. In addition, revenue participation income
received from SBC decreased $1.9 million or 2.0% to $96.7 million in 2003 from $98.6 million in 2002. Each
of these decreases is a direct result of the reduction in DonTech’s calendar sales from which our share of
DonTech’s net income and revenue participation is derived.

Publication Sales

Management also utilizes publication sales to evaluate the sales performance of DonTech because
management believes that this measure provides a better indication of underlying sales trends, economic
conditions and business confidence in the DonTech markets than a comparison of partnership income from
DonTech. Publication sales at DonTech represent the annual billing value of the SBC directories published
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during the period for which DonTech sells advertising. Publication sales in 2003 were $402.4 million, down
$15.8 million or 3.8% from 2002 publication sales of $418.2 million. This decrease is a result of a continued
weak economy in the Midwest, stagnant job growth and competition in the local media market.

Calendar sales and publication sales are non-GAAP measures for which the most comparable GAAP
measures related to DonTech is partnership income. A reconciliation of publication sales and calendar sales to
partnership income is provided below.

For the Years Ended
December 31,

(amounts in millions) 2003 2002
DonTech publication sales ........ ... .. . i i $402.4 $418.2
Less the value of contracts executed and reported as calendar sales in prior

PETIOAS oottt (142.2)  (157.5)
Plus the value of contracts executed during the period to be reported as

publication sales in future periods. ...... ... .o 134.7 142.2
DonTech calendar sales........... ... i $394.9 §$402.9
Commission revenue from above calendarsales.............................. $ 99.7 $101.8
Partnership net eXpPenses .. ...ttt (65.0) (64.8)
Partnership profit ... ... i $ 347 $ 37.0
Donnelley’s 50% share of partnership profits..................... ... ... ... $ 174 § 1835
Revenue participation income on above calendarsales........................ 96.7 98.6
Total income from DonTech........ .. .. ... . . . 114.1 117.1
Priority distribution income from CenDon .............coiviiiiiiin. ... — 19.8
Partnership income — GAAP ... ... .. .. $1141 $136.9
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LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES

Our Senior Secured Credit Facility, as amended and restated on September 1, 2004 in connection with the
SBC Directory Acquisition, consisted of a $700 million Term Loan A-2, a $1,650 million Term Loan B-2 and a
$175 million Revolving Credit Facility (“Revolver”) for an aggregate facility of $2,525 million (collectively, the
“Credit Facility”’). The Credit Facility provides for a new Term Loan C for potential borrowings up to
$400 million, such proceeds, if borrowed, to be used to fund acquisitions, for retirement of Notes, and for
redemption of, and payment of dividends on, the Preferred Stock, subject to certain limitations. Substantially
all of our assets, including the capital stock of our subsidiaries, are pledged to collateralize our obligations
under the Credit Facility and the Senior Notes.

In connection with the SBC Directory Acquisition, we borrowed an additional $1,332 million by
increasing our existing Term Loan A-2 to $700 million from $100 million and increasing our existing Term
Loan B-2 to $1,650 million from $918 million. Our Revolver was increased to $175 million from
$125 million. Proceeds from the Credit Facility were used to acquire the SBC Directory Business and pay
related fees and expenses. No borrowing was made under the Revolver to fund the SBC Directory Acquisition.

The sources and uses of funds in connection with the SBC Directory Acquisition are summarized as follows:

(amounts in millions)

Sources:
Proceeds from the Credit Facility ........ ... $1,332.3
Available cash . . ... 94.7
TOtal SOUICES . . oot $1,427.0
Uses:
Purchase price. . ... $1,406.1
Net direct acqUISITION COSES . ..ttt t ittt ettt e 7.5
1,413.6
Financing costs ... ... . J 13.4
Total USES . o $1,427.0

On December 6, 2004, we amended our Credit Facility to accomplish the following objectives:

* obtain more favorable pricing on our variable rate debt;

« adjust non-financial covenants to make them less restrictive for corporate operating flexibility; and
* obtain consent to carve out designated additional debt from required mandatory prepayments.

This amendment to our Credit Facility created a new Term Loan A-3 and a new Term Loan D, both
replacing the Term Loan B-2. Term Loans A-2, A-3 and D require quarterly principal payments. As of
December 31, 2004, the outstanding balances of Term Loans A-2, A-3 and D were $526 million, $194 million
and $1,441 million, respectively, and $41 million was outstanding under the Revolver. The Revolver, Term
Loan A-2 and Term Loan A-3 mature in December 2009, and Term Loan D matures in June 2011. Both the
September 1, 2004 and December 6, 2004 amendments to the Credit Facility were accounted for as
modifications of the underlying debt instruments. The weighted average interest rate of outstanding debt under
the Credit Facility was 4.32% at December 31, 2004 and was 3.91% under the former term facilities at
December 31, 2003. The increase in the weighted average interest rate primarily reflects the increase in the
LIBOR rate during 2004, partially offset by lower pricing on our variable rate debr.

Our Credit Facility bears interest, at our option, at either:

* The higher of (i) a base rate as determined by the Administrative Agent, Deutsche Bank Trust Company
Americas, plus a 1.00% margin on the Revolver and Term Loan A-2 and a 0.75% margin on Term
Loan A-3 and Term Loan D; and (ii) the Federal Funds Effective Rate (as defined) plus 0.5%, plus a
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1.00% margin on the Revolver and Term Loan A-2 and a 0.75% margin on Term Loan A-3 and Term
Loan D; or

¢ LIBOR rate plus a 2.00% margin on the Revolver and Term Loan A-2 and a 1.75% margin on Term
Loan A-3 and Term Loan D. We may elect interest periods of 1, 2, 3, 6, 9 or 12 months for LIBOR
borrowings.

The effective interest rate on the Credit Facility, including the interest rate swaps, during the twelve
months ended December 31, 2004 was 4.48%.

We have also outstanding $325 million of Senior Notes and $600 million of Senior Subordinated Notes
issued in connection with the SPA Acquisition. Interest is paid on these notes semi-annually on June 15 and
December 15. The Senior Notes became secured in conjunction with the amendment and restatement of the
Credit Facility in connection with the SBC Directory Acquisition.

In connection with the SPA Acquisition, we also issued 200,604 shares of our Preferred Stock to the GS
Funds for gross proceeds of $200 million, which were used to finance the acquisition. These shares are
convertible at any time at a price of $24.05 and earn a cumulative dividend of 8% compounded quarterly.
Only with the consent of a majority of the holders of the Preferred Stock may we pay any dividends in cash
prior to October 1, 2005. Subsequent to October 1, 2005, dividends on the Preferred Stock may be paid in
cash, subject to any limitations under the Credit Facility, or allowed to accrete, at our option. The Credit
Facility may significantly limit our ability to pay the dividends on the Preferred Stock in cash. In connection
with the issuance of the Preferred Stock, we issued warrants to purchase 1.65 million shares of our common
stock with exercise prices of $26.82 and $28.62, which may be exercised at any time before they expire on
January 3, 2008. We intend to issue treasury stock to satisfy any conversion of the Preferred Sock and exercise
of warrants.

We may redeem the Preferred Stock in cash at any time on or after January 3, 2006 if the market price (as
defined) of our common stock exceeds 200% of the conversion price for 30 of 45 consecutive trading days.
The Preferred Stock is redeemable in cash by us at any time on or after January 3, 2013. The Preferred Stock
is redeemable in cash at the option of the GS Funds in the event of a Change in Control (as defined). At
December 31, 2004, the liquidation value of the Preferred Stock was approximately $235 million and such
Preferred Stock was convertible into approximately 9.8 million shares of our common stock. Except in the case
of a Change in Control (as defined), the redemption price of the Preferred Stock at any time is the greater of
the liquidation value of the Preferred Stock or the market value of the Preferred Stock on an as converted basis
at that time.

On January 14, 2005, we repurchased approximately 50% of our outstanding Preferred Stock from the
GS Funds for $277.2 million. In order to fund this repurchase, on January 14, 2005, we issued $300 million
of the Holdco Notes in a private transaction exempt from the registration requirements of the Securities Act of
1933. The Holdco Notes bear interest of 6.875% per annum and will be payable semi-annually in arrears on
January 15 and July 15 of each year, commencing July 15, 2005. The Holdco Notes are unsecured senior
obligations of the Company and mature on January 15, 2013. We entered into a registration rights agreement,
whereby we agreed, among other things to (1) file an exchange offer registration statement with the SEC with
respect to the Holdco Notes within 120 days after January 14, 2003, (ii) use reasonable efforts to have such
exchange offer registration statement declared effective by the SEC within 180 days after January 14, 2005 and
(iii) subject to certain limitations, consummate the exchange offer to which the exchange offer registration
statement relates within 210 days after January 14, 2005. The remaining Preferred Stock that was not
repurchased was convertible into approximately 5.0 million shares of our common stock as of March 4, 2005.

The Credit Facility and the indentures governing the Notes and the agreements relating to the Preferred
Stock contain usual and customary negative covenants that, among other things, place limitations on our
ability to (i) incur additional indebtedness, including capital leases and liens; (ii) pay dividends and repurchase
our capital stock; (iii) enter into mergers, consolidations, acquisitions, asset dispositions and sale-leaseback
transactions; (iv) make capital expenditures; (v) issue capital stock of our subsidiaries; and (vi) engage in
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transactions with our affiliates. The Credit Facility also contains financial covenants relating to maximum
consolidated leverage, minimum interest coverage and maximum senior secured leverage as defined therein.

As a result of the SBC Directory Acquisition, the SPA Acquisition and the repurchase of the Preferred
Stock, we have a significant amount of debt, requiring significant debt service. Aggregate outstanding debt as
of December 31, 2004 was $3,127.3 million and, following the issuance in January 2005 of $300 million of
the Holdco Notes in connection with the repurchase of the Preferred Stock, our aggregate outstanding debt as
of January 31, 2005 was $3,385.8 million. During the twelve months ended December 31, 2004, we made
scheduled principal payments of $67.1 million and prepaid an additional $250.0 million in principal under our
Credit Facility. These principal payments were offset by a $41.2 million increase in revolver borrowings under
our Credit Facility. During 2004, we also redeemed the remaining $21.2 million amount of pre-acquisition
9.125% subordinated notes. For the year ended December 31, 2004, we made aggregate cash interest
payments of $160.7 million.

At December 31, 2004, we had $10.8 million of cash and cash equivalents before checks not yet presented
for payment of $5.8 million, and available borrowings under the Revolver of $133.8 million. During 2004, we
periodically utilized the Revolver as a financing resource to balance the timing of our periodic and accelerated
payments made under the Credit Facility and interest payments on the Senior Notes and Senior Subordinated
Notes with the timing of cash receipts from operations. Our present intention is to repay borrowings on the
Revolver in a timely manner and keep any outstanding amounts to a minimum.

Our primary source of liquidity will continue to be cash flows from operations as well as available
borrowing capacity under the Revolver. We expect our primary liquidity requirement will be to fund
operations and for principal and interest payments on our debt. Our ability to meet our debt service
requirements will depend on our ability to generate cash flow in the future. Our primary sources of cash flow
will consist mainly of cash receipts from the sale of advertising in our yellow pages directories and can be
impacted by, among other factors, general economic conditions, competition from other yellow pages directory
publishers and other alternative products, consumer confidence and the level of demand for yellow pages
advertising. We believe that cash flows from operations, along with borrowing capacity under the Revolver,
will be adequate to fund our operations and capital expenditures and to meet our debt service requirements for
at least the next 12 to 24 months. However, we make no assurances that our business will generate sufficient
cash flow from operations or that sufficient borrowing will be available under the Revolver or Term Loan C to
enable us to fund our operations, capital expenditures and meet all debt service requirements, pursue all of our
strategic initiatives, or for other purposes.

Cash flow provided by operating activities was $406.3 million for the year ended December 31, 2004. Key
contributors to operating cash flow in 2004 include the following:

* $70.3 million in net income.

* $169.9 million of net non-cash charges primarily consisting of $66.6 million of depreciation and
amortization, $14.9 million in bad debt provision, $16.9 million in other non-cash charges and
$71.5 million in deferred taxes.

* $113.1 million net source of cash from a $164.9 million increase in deferred directory revenue offset by
an increase in accounts receivable of $51.8 million. We analyze the change in deferred revenue and
accounts receivable together because when a directory is published, the annual billing value of that
directory is initially deferred and unbilled accounts receivable are established. Each month thereafter,
typically one-twelfth of the billing value is recognized as revenue and billed to customers. In connection
with the SBC Directory Acquisition, while we did not record the unrecognized revenue for directories
published prior to the acquisition and during September 2004 due to purchase accounting, we did
acquire the associated unbilled receivables and the rights to bill and collect these receivables, which
totaled approximately $207.3 million.

* $49.9 million net use of cash from an increase in other assets reflecting an $83.4 million increase in
deferred directory costs, offset by a decrease of $33.5 million in other current and non-current assets.
Deferred directory costs represent cash payments for certain costs associated with the publication of
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directories. Since deferred directory costs are initially deferred when incurred, the cash payments are
made prior to the expense being recognized.

* $32.4 million net source of cash from an increase in accounts payable and accrued liabilities, reflecting a
$2.3 million increase in accrued interest payable on cutstanding debt and a decrease of $20.6 million
for federal income tax refunds received. Additionally, accounts payable and accrued liabilities includes a
$4.2 million advance from SBC under the transition services agreement relating to the accounts
receivable billing and collection services, offset by the timing of invoices received as compared to
invoices paid during the year ended December 31, 2004,

* $73.2 million net source of cash from an increase in other non-current liabilities reflecting a
$58.9 million tax refund that pertained to the Company’s election to carryback a federal net operating
loss in connection with the SPA Acquisition.

Cash flow from operations reflects the normal operations of the business and excludes the impact of the
incremental assets and liabilities acquired as a result of the SBC Directory Acquisition on September 1, 2004,
which impact is reflected in cash flow from investing activities.

Cash used in investing activities for the year ended December 31, 2004 was $1,431.6 million and includes
the following:

* $1,413.6 million in cash payments in connection with the SBC Directory Acquisition.

* $18.0 million used to purchase fixed assets, primarily computer equipment, software and leasehold
improvements.

Cash provided by financing activities for the year ended December 31, 2004 was $1,028.3 million and
includes the following:

* $1,318.9 million in net borrowings under the Credit Facility consisting of $600.5 million and
$731.8 million in borrowings under Terms Loans A-2 and B-2, respectively, net of transaction costs of
$13.4 million. The funds received under the Credit Facility were used to finance the SBC Directory
Acquisition.

* $421.4 million in principal payments on debt borrowed under the Credit Facility. Of this amount,
$67.1 million represents scheduled principal payments, $250.0 million represents principal payments
made on an accelerated basis, at our option, from excess cash flow generated from operations, and
$104.3 million represents principal payments on the Revolver.

* $21.2 million in principal payments to redeem the remaining 9.125% Senior Subordinated Notes due
2008.

* $145.5 million in borrowings under the Revolver.
* $0.9 million in the decreased value of checks not yet presented for payment.
* $7.4 million in proceeds from the exercise of employee stock options.

Cash provided by operating activities in 2003 was $248.6 million. Key contributors to cash flows from
operating activities in 2003 include the following:

* $293.9 million source of cash resulting from a decrease in accounts receivable and an increase in
deferred directory revenue. We analyze the change in deferred revenue and accounts receivable together
because when a directory is published, the annual billing value of that directory is initially deferred and
unbilled accounts receivable are established. Each month thereafter, one-twelfth of the billing value is
recognized as revenue and billed to customers. In connection with the SPA Acquisition, while we did not
record the unrecognized revenue for directories published prior to the acquisition and during January
2003 due to purchase accounting, we did acquire the associated unbilled receivables and the rights to
bill and collect these receivables, which totaled approximately $250 million. Other components adding
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to cash provided by operating activities include lower bad debts and sales claims, as well as
improvements in the collection of past due balances.

* $10.2 million source of cash due to cash received from partnerships in excess of recorded partnership
income. Partnership income and related cash received in 2003 consisted of our 50% interest in
DonTech’s net income and the revenue participation income from SBC. We received cash from DonTech
and SBC subsequent to the time we record the associated partnership income; therefore, in periods of
declining DonTech partnership income, cash received related to prior periods will exceed the income
recognized from the current period.

Partially offsetting these sources of cash was the following use of cash:

* $32.0 million increase in other assets, primarily comprised of deferred directory costs. Deferred
directory costs represent cash payments for certain costs associated with the publication of directories.
Since deferred directory costs are initially deferred when incurred, the cash payments are made prior to
the expense being recognized.

Cash used in investing activities in 2003 was $377.9 million and consists of the following:
* $2,259.6 million in cash payments to acquire SPA and pay transaction costs.

* $1,894.3 million decrease in restricted cash that was recorded at December 31, 2002. This amount is
comprised of funds that we received in the last quarter of 2002 that were placed in escrow pending the
SPA Acquisition. Of this amount, $900 million was raised from Term Loan B under the Credit Facility,
$925 million was raised from the Notes and $69.3 million in net proceeds was raised from the issuance
of our Preferred Stock to the GS Funds.

-+ $12.6 million was used to purchase fixed assets, primarily computer equipment and computer software.
Cash provided by financing activities in 2003 was $129.3 million and includes the following:

* $461.3 million in net borrowings under the $500 million Term Loan A under the Credit Facility on
January 3, 2003. The other funds raised under the Credit Facility to finance the SPA Acquisition and re-
finance existing debt were received in December 2002 and held in escrow until January 3, 2003.

* $125.7 million in net proceeds from the issuance of our Preferred Stock with a stated value of
$130 million and related warrants to the GS Funds on January 3, 2003. The GS Funds invested a total
stated amount of $200 million in connection with the SPA Acquisition. The initial investment of
$70 million was made in November 2002.

* $243.0 million in principal payments on pre-acquisition debt. Proceeds from our Credit Facility, Notes
and Preferred Stock were used in January 2003 to repay $114.2 million in variable rate bank debt and
redeem $128.8 of 9.125% Senior Subordinated Notes pursuant to a tender offer.

* $312.4 million in principal payments on debt borrowed under the Credit Facility. Of this amount,
$49.4 million represents scheduled principal payments and $193.5 million represents principal payments
made on an accelerated basis, at our option, from excess cash flow generated from operations.

* $69.6 million in borrowings under the Revolver.

$21.4 million in proceeds from the exercise of employee stock options.

The Contractual Obligations table presented below sets forth our annual commitments as of December 31,
2004 for principal payments on our debt, as well as other cash obligations for the next five years and
thereafter, plus the $300 million of Holdco Notes we issued in January 2005. The debt repayments as
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presented in this table include only the scheduled principal payments under our current debt agreements and
do not include any anticipated prepayments or interest charges.

(1)

(2)

)

(amounts in millions) Payment Due By Period

Less than 1-3 4-5 After 5
Contractual Obligations Total 1 Year Years Years Years
Long-Term Debe!™ ... ... ............... $3,427.3  $162.0 $272.0 $399.6 $2,593.7
Operating Leases” ......................... 49.6 7.0 14.8 13.1 14.7
Unconditional Purchase Obligations®® . ... ... 61.9 28.7 26.0 7.2 —
Other Long-Term Liabilities™ .. ............. 82.8 6.9 13.0 14.5 48.4
Transition Services™ ... ... ... ... .. .. ... ..., 4.1 4.1 — — —
Total Contractual Obligations ............... $3,625.7 $208.7 $325.8 $434.4 $2,656.8

Included in long-term debt are amounts owed under our Credit Facility and the Notes. The weighted
average interest rate under the Credit Facility was 4.32% at December 31, 2004. The Senior Notes and
Senior Subordinated Notes bear interest at 8.875% and 10.875%, respectively and the Holdco Notes bear
interest at 6.875%.

We enter into operating leases in the normal course of business. Substantially all lease agreements have fixed
payment terms based on the passage of time. Some lease agreements provide us with renewal or early
termination options. Our future operating lease obligations would change if we exercised these renewal or
early termination options and if we entered into additional operating lease agreements. The amounts in the
table assume we do not exercise any such renewal or early termination options.

We have unconditional purchase obligations with four vendors regarding the purchase of paper that expire
at various times from December 31, 2005 through December 31, 2006. Our purchase obligations are based
on annual minimum quantities at pre-established pricing. Amounts in the table above reflect such pricing
and minimum quantities under this contract. Should the market price of the paper drop below the pre-
established pricing, our vendor is obligated to negotiate with us a lower paper price. Any quantities used
above the contractual minimums would increase our payment obligations. We have no contractual
obligations beyond 2006. In connection with the SBC Directory Acquisition, we entered into a
SMARTpages reseller agreement whereby we are obligated to pay to SBC $15.4 million over the 5-year
term of the agreement.

We have a defined benefit plan covering substantially all employees. Our funding policy is to contribute an
amount at least equal to the minimum legal funding requirement. No contributions were required in the
three-year period ended December 31, 2004. Based on past performance and the uncertainty of the dollar
amounts to be paid, if any, we have excluded such amounts from the above table. We have an unfunded
postretirement plan that provides certain healthcare and life insurance benefits to those full-time employees
who reach retirement age while working for the Company. Those expected future benefit payments,
including administrative expenses, net of employee contributions, are included in the table above.
Additionally, we expect to make contributions of approximately $1.0 million to our retirement and post-
retirement benefit plans in 20035,

In connection with the SBC Directory Acquisition, we entered into a transition services agreement with SBC,
whereby SBC would provide certain ongoing operational services, such as billing and collection services, on
our behalf relating to the directory operations we acquired through the third quarter of 2005.

ITEM 7A. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURE ABOUT MARKET RISK
Interest Rate Risk and Risk Management

The Credit Facility bears interest at variable rates, and accordingly, our earnings and cash flow are

affected by changes in interest rates. The Credit Facility requires that we maintain hedge agreements to provide
either a fixed interest rate or interest rate protection on at least 50% of our total outstanding debt. The
Company has entered into the following interest rate swaps that effectively convert variable rate debt to fixed

65




rate debt as of December 31, 2004. Under the terms of the agreements, the Company receives variable interest
based on the three-month LIBOR and pays a fixed rate of interest.

Effective Dates Notional Amounts Pay Rates Maturity Dates

(amounts in millions)

April 1, 2003 $ 2550 2.850% March 31, 2007

October 9, 2003 $ 150 1.959% October 9, 2005

June 21, 2004 $ 50 3.230% June 21, 2006

June 23, 2004 $ 50 3.170% June 23, 2006

June 28, 2004 $ 50 3.110% June 28, 2006

July 2, 2004 $§ 50 3.200% July 3, 2006

September 7, 2004 $ 200% 3.490% - 3.750%  September 8, 2008-September 7, 2009

September 15, 2004 $ 250% 3.200% - 3.910%  September 15, 2007-September 15, 2009

September 17, 2004 $ 150 3.210% - 3.740%  September 17, 2007-September 17, 2009

September 23, 2004 $ 150" 3.160% - 3.438%  September 24, 2007-September 24, 2008
Total $1,355

T consists of three swaps

@) consists of two swaps

B consists of four swaps

Based on the initial terms of the swap agreements, the annual cost of these swap arrangements will be
approximately $21.0 million. The actual cost of the swaps will depend on the variable rate payments received.
Assuming a 0.125% increase in the interest rate associated with the borrowings under the Credit Facility (after
giving effect to the interest rate swaps), interest expense would increase $1.1 million on an annual basis. After
the effect of the interest rate swap agreements discussed above, total fixed rate debt comprised approximately
73% of our total debt portfolio as of December 31, 2004.

The outstanding interest rate swaps expose us to credit risk in the event that the counterparties to the
agreements do not or cannot meet their obligations. The notional amount is used to measure interest to be
paid or received and does not represent the amount of exposure to credit loss. The loss would be limited to the
amount that would have been received, if any, over the remaining life of the swap agreements. The
counterparties to the swaps are major financial institutions, and we expect the counterparties to be able to
perform their obligations under the swaps. We use derivative financial instruments for hedging purposes only
and not for trading or speculative purposes. A discussion of our accounting policies and further disclosure
relating to these financial instruments is included in Note 2 to our audited consolidated financial statements for
the year ended December 31, 2004, which are included in Item 8 in this annual report.

Market Risk Sensitive Instruments

The interest rate swap agreements have been designated as cash flow hedges. In accordance with the
provisions of SFAS 133, “Accounting for Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities,”’ as amended by
SFAS 137 and SFAS 138, the swaps are recorded at fair value. On a quarterly basis, the fair value of the swaps
will be determined based on quoted market prices and, assuming effectiveness, the difference between the fair
value and the book value of the swaps will be recognized in other comprehensive income, a component of
shareholders’ equity. Any ineffectiveness of the swaps is required to be recognized in earnings. The swaps and
the hedged item (three-month LIBOR-based interest payments on $1,355 million of bank debt) have been
designed so that the critical terms (interest reset dates, duration and index) coincide. Assuming the critical
terms continue to coincide, the cash flows from the swaps will exactly offset the cash flows of the hedged item
and no ineffectiveness will exist.
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Management’s Annual Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

The management of R.H. Donnelley is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal
control over the Company’s financial reporting within the meaning of Rule 13a-15(f) promulgated under the
Securities Exchange Act of 1934. Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting
may not prevent or detect misstatements in the financial statements. Also, projections of any evaluation of
effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that controls may become inadequate because of changes
in conditions or that the degree of compliance with policies and procedures may deteriorate.

Management has excluded from its assessment of the Company’s internal control over financial reporting
as of December 31, 2004 certain elements of the internal control over financial reporting of the directory
publishing business of SBC Communications, Inc. in Illinois and Northwest Indiana that the Company
acquired in September 2004 because this acquisition represented a material purchase business combination.
Subsequent to the acquisition, certain elements of the acquired businesses’ internal control over financial
reporting and related functions, processes and systems were integrated into the Company’s existing internal
control over financial reporting and related functions, processes and systems, Those elements of the acquired
businesses’ internal control over financial reporting that were not integrated into the Company’s existing
internal control over financial reporting have been excluded from management’s assessment of the effectiveness
of internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2004.

The excluded elements represent controls over accounts of approximately 6% of the consolidated assets,
4% of the consolidated liabilities, 5% of the consolidated revenues and 15% of the consolidated operating
expenses. See “Adjusted and Pro Forma Amounts and Other Non-GAAP Measures” in “Management’s
Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations” under Item 7 of this Annual
Report for disclosure of full year adjusted pro forma revenue of the acquired business and the Company on a
consolidated basis.

Management assessed the effectiveness of R.H. Donnelley’s internal controls over its financial reporting as
of December 31, 2004. In undertaking this assessment, management used the criteria established by the
Committee of the Sponsoring Organizations (COSO) of the Treadway Commission contained in the Internal
Control — Integrated Framework.

Based on its assessment, management has concluded that as of December 31, 2004, the Company’s
internal control over financial reporting is effective based on the COSO criteria. Management’s assessment of
the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2004 has been audited by
PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, an independent registered public accounting firm, as stated in their report that
appears on page F-3.
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

To the Board of Directors and Shareholders of
R.H. Donnelley Corporation:

We have completed an integrated audit of R.H. Donnelley Corporation’s 2004 consolidated financial
statements and of its internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2004 and audits of its 2003
and 2002 consolidated financial statements in accordance with the standards of the Public Company
Accounting Oversight Board (United States). Our opinions, based on our audits, are presented below.

Consolidated financial statements

In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated balance sheets and the related consolidated statements of
operations, shareholders’ equity (deficit) and cash flows present fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position of R.H. Donnelley Corporation and its subsidiaries at December 31, 2004 and 2003, and the results
of their operations and their cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2004 in
conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. These financial
statements are the responsibility of the Company’s management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on
these financial statements based on our audits. We conducted our audits of these statements in accordance with
the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board {United States). Those standards require that
we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free
of material misstatement. An audit of financial statements includes examining, on a test basis, evidence
supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements, assessing the accounting principles used and
significant estimates made by management, and evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We
believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

Internal control over financial reporting

Also, in our opinion, management’s assessment, included in the accompanying Management’s Report on
Internal Control Over Financial Reporting, that the Company maintained effective internal control over
financial reporting as of December 31, 2004 based on criteria established in Internal Control — Integrated
Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (COSO), is
fairly stated, in all material respects, based on those criteria. Furthermore, in our opinion, the Company
maintained, in all marerial respects, effective internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2004,
based on criteria established in Internal Control — Integrated Framework issued by the COSO. The
Company’s management is responsible for maintaining effective internal control over financial reporting and
for its assessment of the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting. Our responsibility is to
express opinions on management’s assessment and on the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control over
financial reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit of internal control over financial reporting in
accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States). Those
standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether effective
internal control over financial reporting was maintained in all material respects. An audit of internal control
over financial reporting includes obtaining an understanding of internal control over financial reporting,
evaluating management’s assessment, testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal
control, and performing such other procedures as we consider necessary in the circumstances. We believe that
our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinions.

A company’s internal control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable
assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external
purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company’s internal control over
financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (i) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in
reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company;
(ii) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial
statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of
the company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the
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company; and (iii) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized
acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s assets that could have a material effect on the financial
statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect
misstatements. Also, projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that
controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the
policies or procedures may deteriorate.

As described in Management’s Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting, management has
excluded certain elements of the internal control over financial reporting of the directory publishing business
that the Company acquired from SBC Communications, Inc. from its assessment of the Company’s internal
control over finarcial reporting as of December 31, 2004 because the directory publishing business was
acquired by the Company in a purchase business combination during 2004. Subsequent to the acquisition,
certain elements of the acquired directory publishing businesses’ internal control over financial reporting and
related processes were integrated into the Company’s existing systems and internal control over financial
reporting. Those controls that were not integrated have been excluded from management’s assessment of the
effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2004. We have also excluded these
elements of the internal control over financial reporting of the acquired directory publishing business from our
audit of the Company’s internal control over financial reporting. The excluded elements represent controls over
accounts of approximately 6% of consolidated assets, 4% of consolidated liabilities, 5% of the consolidated
revenues and 15% of the consolidated operating expenses.

/s/ PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP

Raleigh, North Carolina
March 16, 2005




R.H. DONNELLEY CORPORATION
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

December 31,

(in thousands, except share and per share data) 2004 2003
Assets
Current Assets
Cash and cash equivalents . ... ... $ 10,755 § 7,722
Accounts receivable

Billed o 112,107 49,203

Unbilled . ... 376,419 173,734

Allowance for doubtful accounts and sales claims . .......... ... . oo i (33,093) (11,956)

Net accounts receivable. .. .. ... . 455,433 210,981
Deferred difeCtOry COSIS ..\ v vttt ettt ettt et e e e e e e e 116,517 33,035
OthEr CUITEIE @SSEES . . . .\t e ettt et et e e e e e e e e 40,604 32,853

TOtal CUITENT @SSEIS .. vttt t et ettt et e e e e e e e e e e e e e 623,309 284,591
Fixed assets and computer software, net .............. ... ........ e 37,686 20,624
Partnership INVESTMENT ... ... ot ettt e e — 175,729
Other NOM-CUITENT @SSEES .« .\ttt t ittt ettt et et e et e e e e et e e e e e 102,628 95,583
Intangible asSers, MET .. ..o\ttt 2,905,330 1,865,167
GoodWill .. 309,969 97,040
Total ASSEtS . o o ottt $3,978,922 $2,538,734
Liabilities, Redeemable Convertible Preferred Stock and Shareholders’ Equity (Deficit)
Current Liabilities
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities . ...... ... .. . $ 80,362 $§ 33,502
Deferred dir€Ctory TEVEMUE . . ..o oottt e e e e 381,424 216,525
Current portion of long-term debt ... .. 162,011 49,586
Total current liabilities .. ... ... ... e 623,797 299,613
Long-term debt. ..o 2,965,331 2,042,547
Deferred IncoMme tAXES, MEL. . ...\t ittt et ettt e 118,820 33,629
Other non-current Habilitles . . . . o 36,878 20,967
Total liabilities . ... . 3,744,826 2,396,756
Commitments and contingencies
Redeemable convertible preferred stock (liquidation value of $234,886 for 2004 and $216,998 for
20008 L 216,111 198,223
Shareholders’ Equity (Deficit)
Common stock, par value $1 per share, authorized — 400,000,000 shares; issued —

51,621,894 Shares . ..ot e e 51,622 51,622
Additional paid-in capital ... . 107,238 92,610
Unamortized restricted StOCK ... ..o\ oo (135) (§31)
Warrants outstandifng ... . ...ttt 13,758 13,758
Retained earnings (accumulated deficit) ... ... .. 3,855 (49,954)
Treasury stock, at cost, 20,137,361 shares for 2004 and 20,589,520 shares for 2003 .............. (163,603) (163,741)
Accumulated other comprehensive income {loss) .. ........ . i 5,250 (9)

Total shareholders’ equity (deficit) ... ... .. i 17,985 (56,245)
Total Liabilities, Redeemable Convertible Preferred Stock and Shareholders’ Equity (Deficit) .. $3,978,922  $2,538,734

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements.
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R.H. DONNELLEY CORPORATION
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS

Years Ended December 31,

(in thousands, except per share data) 2004 2003 2002
GLOSS TEVETUE . .\ oo ettt ettt e e e e e e e $609,628 $258,790 $ 75,809
Sales allowances . ... ... ... .. . . . . (6,512) (2,345) (403)
Nt FEVEIMUE . . ottt it et e e e e e 603,116 256,445 75,406
Expenses
Operating eXpPenseS. . ... .vu ittt 263,150 159,244 48,021
General and administrative eXpenses. . .........vveiiiieeneneen .. 59,537 52,948 12,027
Depreciation and amortization . ..........in et 66,648 65,779 6,249
Total EXPeNSES . .ottt 389,335 277,971 66,297
Partnership income . ... 77,967 114,052 136,873
Operating IMCOME .« vttt ettt ettt et 291,748 92,526 145,982
Interest eXpense, Met ... ...o. it (175,530) (1806,020) (33,548)
Other income (exXpense), Met. . ....oo et — 1,523 (451)
Income (loss) before income taXes .. ..........oviveieeeiinn.... 116,218 (85,971) 111,983
Provision (benefit) for income taxes ...........c.. v 45,906 (36,018) 44,806
Net income {1oss) ... o i 70,312 {49,953) 67,177
Preferred dividend. . ... ... ... . . . . 21,791 58,397 24,702
Income (loss) available to common shareholders ................. $ 48,521 $(108,350) $ 42,475
Earnings (loss) per share
BasiC ot e $ 119 $§ (3.53) § 1.42
Diluted .. ... $ 115 § (3.53) § 1.40
Shares used in computing earnings (loss) per share
Basic .. 31,268 30,683 29,643
Diluted ... ... 32,616 30,683 30,298
Comprehensive Income (Loss)
Net income (l0SS) ..ot $ 70,312 $ (49,953) $ 67,177
Unrealized gain (loss) on interest rate swaps, net of tax ........... 5,774 (9) 2,330
Minimum pension liability adjustment ........................ .. (515) — —
Comprehensive income (loss) ......... ... i § 75,571 § (49,962) $ 69,507

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements.
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R.H. DONNELLEY CORPORATION
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

Years Ended December 31,
(in thousands) 2004 2003 . 2002

Cash Flows from Operating Activities

Net income {10S8) . ..ottt $ 70,312 $ (49,953) $§ 67,177
Reconciliation of net income (loss) to net cash provided by operating activities:

Depreciation and amortization . .............ouiiii it 66,648 65,779 6,249
Deferred Income tax ... ... i e 71,461 (40,230) 8,151
Loss on disposal Of assets. ... .o 85 — —
Provision for (benefit from)bad debts ...... ... .. ... 14,927 (1,517) 2,897
Other non-cash charges. ... ... . 16,833 6,408 1,746
Restructuring and special benefit, ......... ... — — (6,694)
Investment impairment charge . ... ... ... i — — 2,000
Gain on disposition of businesses, netof tax ......... ... ... — — (659)
(Gain) loss on hedging activities ........... i e — (1,523) 1,523
Changes in assets and liabilities, net of effects from acquisitions:
Cash in excess of partnership income. ... i 1,426 10,240 6,754
(Increase) decrease in accounts receivable ........ ... ... ....... ... .. ... (51,858) 77,381 (5,052)
(Increase) decrease in other assets .. .....o vt (49,897) (31,950) (13,855)
Increase (decrease) in accounts payable and accrued liabilities ................... 28,219 (11,868) (19,014)
Increase in deferred directory revenue ....... ... ... ... i 164,899 216,525 —
Increase (decrease) in other non-current liabilities . ........ ... .. .. ... ... ... 73,248 9,305 (1,268)
Net cash provided by operating activities ........... .. ...t 406,303 248,597 49,955
Cash Flows from Investing Activities
Additions to fixed assets and computer software . ......... oo (18,013) (12,581) (3,743)
Increase in restricted cash ... ... . i — — (1,928,700)
Decrease in restricted cash — release of funds from escrow, net of costs and other . .. — 1,894,300 —

Acquisitions, net of cash received ... L (1,413,620) (2,259,633)

Net cash used in investing activities ... ... ... ... . o (1,431,633) (377,914)  (1,932,443)
Cash Flows from Financing Activities
Proceeds from the issuance of debt, net of costs ........... ... ... ... oL 1,318,947 461,307 1,865,000
Proceeds from the issuance of Redeemable Convertible Preferred Stock and warrants,

NEt Of COSES .« .\ttt e — 125,683 69,300
Pre-acquisition debt refinanced with proceeds fromnew debt...................... (21,245) (243,0095) —
(Decrease) increase in checks not yet presented for payment....................... (917) 6,708 —
Additional borrowings under the Credit Facility .......... .. ... ... ... ... ... 145,500 69,569 —
Credit Facility debt repayments . ... (421,379) {312,436) (62,500)
Proceeds from employee stock Option exercises .............ooiiiiiii i 7,457 21,426 3,754

Net cash provided by financing activities. . ............. ... i, 1,028,363 129,252 1,875,554
Increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents ............. ... ... ... ........ 3,033 (65) (6,934)
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year......... ... ... .. ... 7,722 7,787 14,721
Cash and cash equivalents, end of year ..... . ... . . ... . $ 10,755 § 7,722 $ 7,787
Supplemental Information
Cash interest paid .. ... .ot e $ 160,730 3 167,718 § 27,627
Income tax refunds received, net of income tax payments ..................cco.... (71,066) — 38,940

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements.
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R.H. DONNELLEY CORPORATION
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY

(DEFICIT)

Common Stock {Accumulated Accumulated Total
an Unamortized Deficit) Other Shareholders®
Additional Warrants Restricted Retained Treasury Comprehensive {Deficir)

(In thousands) Paid-in Capital  Qutstanding Stock Earnings Stock (Loss) Income Equity
Balance, December 31, 2001 ........... $ 83,665 $(336) $(28,870) $(163,442) $(2,330) $(111,313)
Netincome .........c.ccvviiiiiiinnn... 67,177 67,177
Preferred dividend . .................... (24,702) (24,702)
Employee stock option exercises,

including tax benefit. ................ 4,925 260 5,185
Restricted stock issued . ......... ... ..., 216 (221) 5 —
Stock issued for employee bonus plans. .. 2,328 106 2,434
Compensatory stock options............ 243 243
Restricted stock amortization ........... 230 230
Stock acquired for treasury............. (1,672) (1,672)
Beneficial conversion feature from

issuance of Preferred Stock ........... 24,158 24,158
Issuance of warrants................... $ 5,330 5,330
Unrealized gain on interest rate swaps,

netoftax ........ ... 2,330 2,330
Balance, December 31, 2002 ........... 115,535 5,330 (327) 13,605 (164,743) — (30,600)
Netloss ..o, (49,953) (49,953)
Preferred dividend . .................... (44,791) (13,606) (58,397)
Employee stock option exercises,

including tax benefit................. 27,947 1,284 29,231
Restricted stock issued . ................ 528 (533) 5 —
Stock issued for employee bonus plans. . . 1,083 32 1,115
Compensatory stock options............ 1,987 1,987
Restricted stock amortization . .......... 329 329
Stock acquired for treasury............. (319) (319)
Beneficial conversion feature from

issuance of Preferred Stock ........... 41,943 41,943
Issuance of warrants. . ................. 8,428
Unrealized loss on interest rate swaps, net

Of TAX . ot (9)
Balance, December 31, 2003 . .......... 144232 13,758 (531) (49,954)  (163,741) (9)
Netincome ............oiiiiinan... 70,312
Preferred dividend..................... (5,288) (16,503)
Employee stock option exercises,

including tax bepefit............ .. ... 12,048 523
Restricted stock issued ................. (8) 8
Stock issued for employee bonus plans. .. 1,627 (393)
Compensatory stock awards............ 2,346
Restricted stock amortization ......... .. 396
Beneficial conversion feature from

issuance of Preferred Stock ........... 3,903
Unrealized gain on interest rate swaps,

netoftax ........ ... .. i 5,774
Minimum pension liability adjustment . .. (515)
Balance, December 31, 2004 ........... $158,860  $13,758 $(133) $ 3,855 $(163,603) § 5,250 $ 17,985

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements.
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R.H. DONNELLEY CORPORATION

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(tabular amounts in thousands, except per share data)

1. Business and Presentation

The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of R.H. Donnelley Corporation and its direct
and indirect wholly owned subsidiaries (the “Company”, “RHD”, “we” “us” and “our”). All intercompany
transactions and balances have been eliminated.

We are a leading yellow pages publisher and directional media company. Directional media is where
consumers search to find who sells the goods and services they are ready to purchase. We publish Sprint-
branded yellow pages directories in 18 states, with major markets including Las Vegas, Nevada and Orlando
and Lee County, Florida, with a total distribution of approximately 18 million serving approximately 160,000
local and national advertisers. We also publish SBC-branded yellow pages directories in Illinois and Northwest
Indiana, with a total distribution of approximately 10 million serving approximately 100,000 local and
national advertisers. We also offer online city guides and search web sites in our major Sprint markets under
the Best Red Yellow Pages brand at www.bestredyp.com and in the Chicagoland area at
www.chicagolandyp.com. We also sell local advertising in Illinois and Northwest Indiana onto
www.SMARTpages.com, SBC’s Internet yellow pages platform.

On September 1, 2004, we completed the acquisition of the directory publishing business (“SBC Directory
Business”) of SBC Communications, Inc. (“SBC”) in Illinois and Northwest Indiana, including SBC’s interests
in The DonTech II Partnership (“DonTech”), a 50/50 general partnership between us and SBC (collectively, the
“SBC Directory Acquisition”), for $1.41 billion in cash, after working capital adjustments and the settlement
of a $30 million liquidation preference owed to us related to DonTech. The acquisition was consummated
pursuant to, and in accordance with, the terms of the Purchase Agreement dated as of July 28, 2004 by and
among the Company, Ameritech Corporation (“Ameritech”), a direct wholly owned subsidiary of SBC, and
Ameritech Publishing, Inc. (““API”’), a direct wholly owned subsidiary of Ameritech. The acquisition was
accounted for as a purchase business combination and the purchase price was allocated to the tangible and
identifiable intangible assets acquired and liabilities assumed based on their respective fair values on the
acquisition date. The results of the SBC Directory Business are included in our consolidated results from and
after September 1, 2004, The acquired SBC Directory Business now operates as R.H. Donnelley Publishing &
Advertising of lllinois Partnership, an indirect wholly owned subsidiary of the Company. See Note 3,
“Acquisitions” for a further description of the acquisition.

On January 3, 2003, we completed the acquisition of the directory business (the “SPA Directory
Business™) of Sprint Corporation (“Sprint”) by acquiring all the outstanding capital stock of the various
entities comprising Sprint Publishing & Advertising (“SPA”) (collectively, the “SPA Acquisition”) for
$2.23 billion in cash. The acquisition was consummated pursuant to a Purchase Agreement dated as of
September 21, 2002 by and among the Company, Sprint and Centel Directories LLC. The acquisition was
accounted for as a purchase business combination and the purchase price was allocated to the tangible and
identifiable intangible assets acquired and liabilities assumed based on their respective fair values on the
acquisition date. The results of the SPA Directory Business are included in our consolidated results from and
after January 3, 2003. The acquired SPA Directory Business now operates as R.H. Donnelley Publishing &
Advertising, Inc., an indirect wholly owned subsidiary of the Company. See Note 3, “Acquisitions” for a
further description of the acquisition.

These acquisitions transformed Donnelley into a leading publisher of yellow pages directories. Prior to the
SPA Acquisition, we were one of the largest independent sales agents and pre-press vendors for yellow pages
advertising in the United States. At the time, our 2002 revenue reflected sales commissions and pre-press fees
from, or other transactions with, our business partners, including Sprint and SBC. Commencing in 2003
following the SPA Acquisition, our operating and financial results reflect our yellow pages publishing business,
rather than our former business as a sales agent and pre-press vendor for yellow pages advertising on behalf of
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other publishers. As a publisher, we report the full value of advertising sales and certain direct costs under the
deferral and amortization method. DonTech’s business remained unchanged following the SPA Acquisition, but
our investment in DonTech was eliminated in connection with the SBC Directory Acquisition. During 2003
and in 2004 until the SBC Directory Acquisition, we continued to earn revenue from pre-press publishing and
other ancillary services related to the SBC Directory Business and we continued to report partnership income

from our investment in DonTech.

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Principles of Consolidation. The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of R.H.
Donnelley Corporation and its direct and indirect wholly owned subsidiaries. All intercompany transactions

and balances have been eliminated.

Reclassifications.  For 2003, preferred stock dividends of $44.8 million have been reclassified from
accumnulated deficit to additional paid-in capital. Other prior year amounts have been reclassified to conform to
the current year’s presentation, which had no impact on previously reported results of operations or
shareholders’ equity (deficit). The Company’s presentation of comprehensive income (loss) for 2003 and 2002
has been revised to reflect net income (loss) rather than income (loss) available to common shareholders.

Revenue Recognition. We earn revenue principally from the sale of advertising into our yellow pages
directories. Revenue from the sale of such advertising is deferred when a directory is published and recognized
ratably over the life of a directory, which is typically 12 months (the “deferral and amortization method”).
Revenue from the sale of advertising is recorded net of an allowance for sales claims, estimated based on
historical experience on a directory-by-directory basis. We increase or decrease this estimate as information or
circumstances indicate that the estimate may no longer adequately represent the amount of claims we may
incur for a directory in the future. Before the SBC Directory Acquisition, we also earned revenue from
providing pre-press publishing services to SBC for those directories in the DonTech markets. Revenue from pre-

press publishing services was recognized as services were performed.

For the year ended December 31, 2002, we earned sales commission revenue from the sale of advertising
on behalf of SPA and fees for pre-press publishing services on behalf of both SPA and SBC as well as another
unaffiliated publisher. As a sales agent for SPA, we recognized sales commission revenue, net of an allowance
for sales claims, at the time an advertising contract was executed with a customer. Revenue from pre-press

publishing services was recognized as services were performed.

Deferred Directory Costs. Costs directly related to the selling and production of our directories are
initially deferred when incurred and recognized ratably over the life of a directory, which is typically
12 months. These costs include sales commissions and print, paper and initial distribution costs. Such costs
that are paid prior to directory publication are classified as other current assets.

Equity Method Accounting. Before the SBC Directory Acquisition, DonTech was a 50/50 partnership in
which we and a subsidiary of SBC were the partners. DonTech was a separate legal entity that provided its
services with its own employees and a stand-alone management team. Subject to the oversight of the board of
directors, the employees of DonTech had the right, authority and power to do any act to accomplish, and enter
into any contract incidental to attain, the purposes of the partnership. No employees of either RHD or SBC
were involved in the day-to-day operations of DonTech and, because the partners shared equally in the net
profits and each had one voting member on the DonTech board of directors, neither partner had the unilateral
“ability to control or influence the operations of DonTech. Accordingly, through September 1, 2004, we
accounted for DonTech under the equity method and did not consolidate the results of DonTech in our

financial statements.

Before the SBC Directory Acquisition, we reported our 50% share of DonTech net income as partnership
income in our consolidated statement of operations. DonTech reported commission revenue based on the
annual value of a sales contract in the period the contract was executed (calendar sales) and reported expenses
as incurred. Partnership income also included revenue participation income from SBC. Revenue participation
income was based on DonTech advertising sales and was reported when a sales contract was executed with a
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customer. Our investment in DonTech and the revenue participation receivable from SBC had been reported as
partnership investment on the consolidated balance sheet prior to the SBC Directory Acquisition. As a result of
the SBC Directory Acquisition, SBC ceased paying us revenue participation income, we consolidate all net
profits from DonTech and our DonTech partnership investment was eliminated. Consequently, partnership
income was no longer reported commencing on September 1, 2004. Rather, following the SBC Directory
Acquisition, the revenues, expenses and income of the acquired SBC Directory Business are directly recorded in
our statement of operations.

Cash and Cash Equivalents. Cash equivalents include liquid investments with a maturity of less than
three months at their time of purchase. The Company places its investments with high quality financial
institutions. At times, such investments may be in excess of federally insured limits.

Accounts Receivable. Accounts receivable consist of balances owed to us by our advertising customers.
Advertisers typically enter into a twelve-month contract for their advertising. Most local advertisers are billed a
pro rata amount of their contract value on a monthly basis. On behalf of national advertisers, Certified
Marketing Representatives (“CMRs”) pay to the Company the total contract value of their advertising, net of
their commission, within 60 days after the publication month. Billed receivables represent the amount that has
been billed to advertisers. Unbilled receivables represent contractually owed amounts for published directories
that have yet to be billed to advertisers. Billed receivables are recorded net of an allowance for doubtful
accounts and sales claims, estimated based on historical experience on a directory-by-directory basis. We
increase or decrease this estimate as information or circumstances indicate that the estimate may no longer
adequately represent the amount of bad debts and sales claims we may incur.

In connection with the SBC Directory Acquisition, we entered into a transition services agreement with
SBC whereby SBC billed and collected from our advertising customers in the Illinois and Northwest Indiana
directories and remitted collections {net of a specified holdback) to us through early 2005. On a monthly basis
commencing September 1, 2004, SBC provided an advance to us related to those billings, and as such, we
recorded an advance from SBC that was decreased as SBC collected from our advertisers, thus satisfying that
hability. Likewise, we included our portion of the billed and unbilled receivables and any related allowance for
doubtful accounts and sales claims on our consolidated balance sheet. In early 2005, we assumed all
responsibility for billing and collections and settled remaining amounts with SBC.

Fixed Assets and Computer Software. Fixed assets and computer software are recorded at cost.
Depreciation and amortization is provided over the estimated useful lives of the assets using the straight-line
method. Estimated useful lives are 30 years for buildings, five years for machinery and equipment, ten years for
furniture and fixtures, three to five years for computer equipment and five years for computer software.
Leasehold improvements are amortized on a straight-line basis over the shorter of the term of the lease or the
estimated useful life of the improvement. During 2004, we wrote-off fixed assets and computer software that
had been fully depreciated. Fixed assets and computer software at December 31, 2004 and 2003 consisted of
the following:

2004 2003

Computer SOftWATE .. ..ot $ 39,072 §$ 104,423
Computer eqUIPIMIENT . ..ottt et e et e e et 16,444 44286
Machinery and equipment . ......... . 5,513 8,398
Furniture and fIXEUTeS .. .. ot 12,819 9,560
Leasehold improvements ......... . ... i i 8,973 4,406
Bulldings . .o 1,333 1,333

Total COSE oot 84,154 172,406
Less accumulated depreciation and amortization.......................... (46,468) (151,782)

Net fixed assets and computer software ............................ ... $37,686 $ 20,624




Depreciation and amortization expense on fixed assets and computer software for the years ended
December 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002 was as follows:
2004 2003 2002
$4,608 $ 3,285 $2,823
4,703 12,661 3,426

Depreciation of fixed assets .......... ... i
Amortization of computer software ............ ... ...

Total depreciation and amortization on fixed assets and computer
SO EWaALE . oot

$9,311  $15,946  $6,249

Identifiable Intangible Assets and Goodwill. As a result of the SBC Directory Acquisition and the SPA
Acquisition, certain long-term intangible assets were identified and recorded at their estimated fair value.
Amortization expense for the years ended December 31, 2004 and 2003 was $57.3 million and $49.8 million,
respectively. Amortization expense for these intangible assets for the five succeeding years is estimated to be
approximately $72.2 million, $77.5 million, $79.6 million, $79.3 million and $78.7 million, respectively.
Annual amortization of goodwill for tax purposes is approximately $20.7 million. The acquired long-term
intangible assets and their respective book values at December 31, 2004 are shown in the table below.

National

Directory Services Local Customer CMR Trade
Agreements Relationships Relationships Names Total

Initial fair value:

SBC ................... $ 952,500 $ 90,000 $ 55,000 $ —  $1,097,500

Sprint .......... ... . ... 1,625,000 200,000 60,000 30,000 1,915,000
Total .................... 2,577,500 290,000 115,000 30,000 3,012,500
Accumulated amortization. . (71,500) {26,667) (5,003) (4,000) (107,170)
Net intangible assets....... $2,506,000 $263,333 $109,997  $26,000 $2,905,330

Directory services agreements between SBC and the Company include a directory services license
agreement, a non-competition agreement, a SMARTpages reseller agreement and a directory publishing listing
agreement (collectively, “SBC Directory Services Agreements”) with certain affiliates of SBC. The directory
services license agreement designates us as the official and exclusive provider of yellow pages directory services
for SBC (and its successors) in Illinois and Northwest Indiana (the “Territory”), grants us the exclusive license
(and obligation as specified in the agreement) to produce, publish and distribute white pages directories in the
Territory as SBC’s agent and grants us the exclusive license (and obligation as specified in the agreement) to
use the SBC brand and logo on print directories in the Territory. The non-competition agreement prohibits
SBC (and it affiliates and its successors), with certain limited exceptions, from (1) producing, publishing and
distributing yellow and white pages print directories in the Territory, (2) soliciting or selling local or national
vellow or white pages advertising for inclusion in such directories, and (3) soliciting or selling local Internet
vellow pages advertising for certain Internet yellow pages directories in the Territory or licensing SBC marks to
any third party for that purpose. The SMARTpages reseller agreement gives us the exclusive right to sell local
Internet yellow pages advertising and the non-exclusive right to sell Internet yellow pages advertising with
respect to geographies outside the Territory to any advertiser (excluding national advertisers) located inside the
Territory onto SBC’s SMARTpages.com platform (and any successor products as specified in the agreement).
The directory publishing listing license agreement gives us the right to purchase and use basic SBC subscriber
listing information and updates for the purpose of publishing directories. The SBC Directory Services
Agreements (other than the SMARTpages reseller agreement) have initial terms of 50 years, subject to
automatic renewal and early termination under specified circumstances. The SMARTpages reseller agreement
has a term of 5 years. The fair value assigned to the SBC Directory Services Agreements and the SMARTpages
reseller agreement of $950.0 million and $2.5 million, respectively, was based on the present value of
estimated future cash flows and is being amortized under the straight-line method over the indicated terms.

Directory services agreements between Sprint and the Company include a directory services license
agreement, a trademark license agreement and a non-competition agreement (collectively “SPA Directory
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Services Agreements™) with certain affiliates of Sprint. The directory services license agreement grants us the
exclusive license {and obligation as specified in the agreement) to produce, publish and distribute yellow and
white pages directories for Sprint (and its successors) in 18 states where Sprint provided local telephone service
at the time of the agreement. The trademark license agreement grants us the exclusive license (and obligation
as specified in the agreement) to use certain specified Sprint trademarks, including the Sprint diamond logo, in
those markets, and the non-competition agreement prohibits Sprint (and its affiliates and successors) in those
markets from selling local directory advertising, with certain limited exceptions, or producing, publishing and
distributing print directories. The SPA Directory Services Agreements have initial terms of 50 years, subject to
automatic renewal and early termination under specified circumstances. The fair value of these agreements was
determined based on the present value of estimated future cash flows and is being amortized under the
straight-line method over 50 years.

The fair values of local and national customer relationships were determined based on the present value of
estimated future cash flows and are being amortized under the income forecast method that assumes the value
derived from customer relationships is greater in the earlier years and steadily declines over time. The weighted
average useful life of these relationships is 20 years.

The fair value of acquired trade names was determined based on the “relief from royalty” method, which
values the trade names based on the estimated amount that a company would have to pay in an arms length
transaction to use these trade names. These assets are being amortized under the straight-line method over
15 vears. '

The excess purchase price for the SBC Directory Acquisition and the SPA Acquisition over the net tangible
and identifiable intangible assets acquired of $212.9 million and $97.0 million, respectively, was recorded as
goodwill. During the fourth quarter of 2004, we recorded an adjustment increasing goodwill from the SBC
Directory Acquisition by approximately $8.1 million primarily resulting from the completion of the fair value
measurement of the DonTech pension assets and liabilities as of the acquisition date. Qur intercompany net
receivables in connection with the SBC Directory Acquisition and the SPA Acquisition of $141.2 million and
$27.9 million, respectively, were eliminated and also included in goodwill.

While we do not anticipate significant changes to the fair value of net assets acquired, other than the
restructuring plan announced in the first quarter of 2005 (see Subsequent Events Note 17), additional
information could come to our attention that may require us to revise the purchase price allocation in
connection with the SBC Directory Acquisition. In accordance with SFAS 142, Goodwill and Other Intangible
Assets, goodwill is not amortized, but is subject to periodic impairment testing. No impairment losses were
recorded during 2004 or 2003.

Deferred Financing Costs. Certain costs associated with the issuance of debt instruments are capitalized
and included in other non-current assets on the consolidated balance sheet. These costs are amortized to
interest expense over the terms of the related debt agreements. The bond outstanding method is used to
amortize deferred financing costs relating to debt instruments with respect to which we make accelerated
principal payments. Other deferred financing costs are amortized using the straight-line method. Amortization
of deferred financing costs included in interest expense was $13.6 million, $15.0 million and $1.3 million in
2004, 2003 and 2002, respectively.

Advertising Expense. We recognize advertising expenses as incurred. These expenses include public
relations, media, on-line advertising and other promotional and sponsorship costs. Total advertising expense
was $11.1 million and $8.8 million in 2004 and 2003, respectively. Prior to the SPA Acquisition, advertising
costs were not significant. Advertising expense for 2004 includes $1.1 million of advertising costs that pertain
to 2003.

Concentration of Credit Risk. Approximately 85% of our directory advertising revenue is derived from
the sale of advertising to local small- and medium-sized businesses. These advertisers typically enter into
12-month advertising sales contracts and make monthly payments over the term of the contract. Some
advertisers prepay the full amount or a portion of the contract value. Most new advertisers and advertisers
desiring to expand their advertising programs are subject to a credit review. If the advertisers qualify, we may
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extend credit to them for their advertising purchase. Small-and medium-sized businesses tend to have fewer
financial resources and higher failure rates than large businesses. In addition, full collection of delinquent
accounts can take an extended period of time and involve significant costs. While we do not believe that
extending credit to our local advertisers will have a material adverse effect on our results of operations or
financial condition, no assurances can be given. We do not require collateral from our advertisers, although we

do charge interest to advertisers that do not pay by specified due dates.

The remaining approximately 15% of our directory advertising revenue is derived from the sale of
advertising to national or large regional chains, such as rental car companies, automobile repair shops and
pizza delivery businesses. Substantially all of the revenue derived through national accounts is serviced through
CMRs with which we contract. CMRs are independent third parties that act as agents for national advertisers.
The CMRs are responsible for billing the national customers for their advertising. We receive payment for the
value of advertising placed in our directory, net of the CMR’s commission, directly from the CMR. While we
are still exposed to credit risk, the amount of losses from these accounts has been historically less than the
local accounts as the advertisers, and in some cases the CMRs, tend to be larger companies with greater

financial resources than local advertisers.

Before the SBC Directory Acquisition, we maintained a significant receivable balance with SBC for revenue
participation and pre-press publishing services fees. This receivable was settled in connection with the SBC

Directory Acquisition.

At December 31, 2004, we had interest rate swap agreements with major financial institutions with a
notional value of $1,355 million. We are exposed to credit risk in the event that one or more of the
counterparties to the agreements does not, or cannot, meet their obligation. The notional amount is used to
measure interest to be paid or received and does not represent the amount of exposure to credit loss. The loss
would be limited to the amount that would have been received, if any, over the remaining life of the swap
agreement. The counterparties to the swap agreements are major financial institutions with credit ratings of A
or higher. We do not currently foresee a material credit risk associated with these swap agreements; however,

no assurances can be given.

Pension and Other Postretirement Benefits: Pension and other postretirement benefits represent estimated
amounts to be paid to employees in the future. The accounting for benefits reflects the recognition of these
benefit costs over the employee’s approximate service period based on the terms of the plan and the investment
and funding decisions made. The determination of the benefit obligation and the net periodic pension and
other postretirement benefit costs requires management to make assumptions regarding the discount rate,
return on retirement plan assets, increase in future compensation and healthcare cost trends. Changes in these
assumptions can have a significant impact on the projected benefit obligation, funding requirement and net
periodic benefit cost. The assumed discount rate is the rate at which the pension benefits could be settled. We
use the rates on Aa corporate bonds as a basis for determining our discount rate assumption. The expected
long-term rate of return on plan assets is based on the mix of assets held by the plan and the expected long-
term rates of return within each asset class. The anticipated trend of future healthcare costs is based on
historical experience and external factors. See Note 10 for further information regarding our benefit plans,
including those of DonTech that we acquired in connection with the SBC Directory Acquisition.

Effective January 1, 2003, we reduced our estimated rate of return on plan assets from 9.75% to 8.25%.
As a result of low investment returns over the few preceding years, as well as our outlook for the long term,
particularly for equity securities, we determined that the prior assumed rate of return of 9.75% no longer
reflected our best estimate of future long-term returns. Based on the then-current investment environment and
the pension plan’s asset allocation, we determined that a long-term rate of return of 8.25% better reflected our

expectations for future long-term returns.

Derivative Financial Instruments. We do not use derivative financial instruments for trading or
speculative purposes. Our derivative financial instruments are limited to interest rate swap agreements used to
manage exposure to fluctuations in interest rates on variable rate debt. These agreements effectively convert
$1,355 million of our variable rate debt to fixed rate debt, mitigating our exposure to increases in interest
rates. Under the terms of the swap agreements, we receive variable interest based on the three-month LIBOR
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and pay a weighted average fixed rate of 3.19%. The swaps mature at varying dates beginning October 2005
through September 2009. The weighted average rate received was 1.66% during the twelve months ended
December 31, 2004. These periodic payments and receipts are recorded as interest expense.

The interest rate swaps have been designated as cash flow hedges to hedge three-month LIBOR-based
interest payments on $1,355 million of bank debt. To the extent the swaps provide an effective hedge, changes
in the fair value of the swaps are recorded in other comprehensive income, a component of shareholders’
equity. Any ineffectiveness is recorded through earnings. As of December 31, 2004, our interest rate swaps
provided an effective hedge of the three-month LIBOR-based interest payments on $1,355 million of bank
debt, and no ineffectiveness was included in earnings.

At December 31, 2002, we had an interest rate swap agreement with a notional value of $75 million. We
made fixed-rate payments of 5.9% and received variable-rate payments based on three-month LIBOR rates.
The weighted average rate received was 1.1% in 2002. These periodic payments and receipts were recorded as
part of interest expense. As a result of the then-pending SPA Acquisition and contemplated repayment of
existing variable rate debt, the $75 million notional value interest rate swap did not qualify for hedge
accounting treatment at December 31, 2002, and thus, the unrecognized fair market value of the swap,
previously recognized in accumulated other comprehensive loss on the balance sheet, was charged to earnings.
Accordingly, a charge of $1.5 million was included in other income (expense), net for the year ended
December 31, 2002. Because the swap was held to maturity, a corresponding gain of $1.5 million was
recognized during 2003.

Income Taxes. We account for income taxes under the liability method in accordance with SFAS 109,
Accounting for Income Taxes. Deferred tax liabilities or assets reflect temporary differences between amounts
of assets and liabilities for financial and tax reporting. Such amounts are adjusted, as appropriate, to reflect
changes in tax rates expected to be in effect when the temporary differences reverse. A valuation allowance is
established to offset any deferred tax assets if, based upon the available evidence, it is more likely than not
that some or all of the deferred tax assets will not be realized. See Note 9 for more information regarding our
provision (benefit) for income taxes.

Earnings per Share. In March 2004, the Emerging Issues Task Force (“EITF”) reached a final consensus
on EITF Issue No. 03-6, Participating Securities and the Two — Class Method under FASB Statement 128
{(“EITF 03-6), which established standards regarding the computation of earnings per share (“EPS”) by
companies that have issued securities other than common stock that contractually entitle the holder to
participate in dividends and earnings of the company. EITF 03-6 was effective for interim periods ending
June 30, 2004 for calendar year companies. We adopted the provisions of EITF 03-6 during the first quarter of
2004. EITF 03-6 requires earnings available to common shareholders for the period, after deduction of
preferred stock dividends, to be allocated between the common and preferred shareholders based on their
respective rights to receive dividends. Basic EPS is then calculated by dividing income (loss) allocable to
common shareholders by the weighted average number of shares outstanding. EITF 03-6 does not require the
presentation of basic and diluted EPS for securities other than common stock; therefore, the following EPS
amounts only pertain to our common stock.




Under the guidance of EITF 03-6, diluted EPS are calculated by dividing income (loss) allocable to
common shareholders by the weighted average common shares outstanding plus dilutive potential common
stock. Potential common stock includes stock options and warrants, the dilutive effect of which is calculated
using the treasury stock method, and Preferred Stock, the dilutive effect of which is calculated using the if-
converted method. The calculation of basic and diluted EPS for the years ended December 31, 2004, 2003 and
2002 are presented below.

For the Years Ended December 31,

2004 2003 2002
Basic EPS — Two — Class Method :
Income (loss) available to common shareholders ................ $48,521  $(108,350) $42,475
Amount allocable to common shareholders' ... ........... ... 77 % 100% 99%
Income (loss) allocable to common shareholders ................ 37,361 (108,350) 42,050
Weighted average common shares outstanding . ................. 31,268 30,683 29,643
Basic earnings (loss) per share — two — class method ........... $ 119 § (3.53) § 1.42

For the Years Ended December 31,

2004 2003 2002

Diluted EPS

Income (loss) available to common shareholders ................ $48,521  $(108,350) $42,475
Amount allocable to common shares'™ . ... ... .. ... ... 77 % 100% 99%
Income (loss) allocable to common shareholders ................ 37,361 (108,350) 42,050
Weighted average common shares outstanding . .......... DU 31,268 30,683 29,643
Dilutive effect of stock options'® . ............................. 1,348 — 655
Dilutive effect of Preferred Stock assuming conversion® ......... — — —
Weighted average diluted shares outstanding ................... 32,616 30,683 30,298
Diluted earnings (loss) per share .......................... ... 8 115 $ (3.53) $ 1.40

W' 31,268/(31,268 + 9,483) for the year ended December 31, 2004 and 29,643/(29,643 + 281) for the year
ended December 31, 2002. In computing basic EPS using the two-class method, we have not allocated the
loss available to common shareholders in the year ended December 31, 2003 between common and
preferred shareholders since the preferred shareholders do not have a contractual obligation to share in the
net loss.

) 934 stock options in 2003 and the assumed conversion of the Preferred Stock into 9,767, 9,023, and 2,939
shares of common stock in 2004, 2003 and 2002, respectively, were anti-dilutive and therefore are not
included in the calculation of diluted EPS.

Employee Stock Awards. We follow Accounting Principles Board Opinion No. 25, Accounting for Stock
Issued to Employees (“APB 25”), and related interpretations in accounting for our stock option plan.
Compensation expense related to the issuance of stock options to employees or non-employee directors is only
. recognized if the exercise price of the stock option is less than the fair market value of the underlying stock at
the grant date. Compensation expense related stock appreciation rights (SARs”) is recognized at the end of
each period in the amount by which the quoted market value of the underlying shares covered by the grant
exceeds the grant price recognized over the vesting term.
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The following table reflects the pro forma net income {loss) and earnings (loss) per share assuming we
applied the fair value method of SFAS No. 123, Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation. The pro forma
disclosures shown are not necessarily representative of the effects on net income (loss) and earnings (loss) per
share in future years.

For the Years Ended December 31,

2004 2003 2002

Net income (loss), as reported‘. e $70,312 § (49,953) $67,177
Add: Stock based compensation expense included in reported net

income (loss), net of related tax effects ...................... 1,403 1,162 144
Less: Stock based compensation expense that would have been

included in the determination of net income (loss) if the fair

value method had been applied to all awards, net of related tax

effects ... {4,579) (4,828) (2,688)
Pro forma net income (loss) .. ......... . ... . 67,136 (53,619) 64,633
Preferred dividend .......... i 21,791 58,397 24,702
Pro forma income (loss) available to common shareholders. ... ... $45,345  $(112,016) $39,931
Basic earnings (loss) per share

Asreported ... .. $ 119 § (3.53) § 1.42

Pro forma. ... ... ... . . $ 112 § (3.65) $ 1.33
Diluted earnings (loss) per share

As reported ... $ 115 §  (3.53) $ 1.40

Pro forma. . ...t $ 107 $ (365 §$ 1.32

The weighted average fair value of stock awards ($13.64 in 2004, $9.21 in 2003 and $8.29 in 2002) was
estimated on the grant date using the Black-Scholes option-pricing model with the following assumptions:

For the Years Ended December 31,

2004 2003 2002
Dividend vield ......... . 0% 0% 0%
Expected volatility ... oo 30% 35% 35%
Risk-free interest rate .. ......c.viiuui it 3.5% 2.6% 3.1%
Expected holding period........ P 3 years 4 years 4 years

Estimates. The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting
principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets,
liabilities, revenue and certain expenses and the disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities. Actual results
could differ materially from those estimates and assumptions. Estimates and assumptions are used in the
determination of sales allowances, allowances for doubtful accounts, depreciation and amortization, employee
benefit plans and restructuring reserves, among others.

New Accounting Pronouncements. On December 16, 2004, the FASB issued FASB Statement No. 123
{revised 2004), “Share-Based Payment” (“FAS 123(R)”). FAS 123(R) requires companies to calculate the fair
value of stock options granted to employees, and amortize that amount over the vesting period as an expense
through the income statement. The accounting provisions of FAS 123(R) are effective for interim periods
beginning after June 15, 2003, but companies have a choice of transition methods: modified prospective,
modified retrospective, or early adoption. The Company is presently evaluating the transition method and
effective date for transition to FAS 123(R) during 2005 and what impact adoption of FAS 123(R) may have on
the Company.

In May 2004, the Financial Accounting Standards Board issued Financial Staff Position (“FSP”)
No. FAS 106-2, Accounting and Disclosure Requirements Related to the Medicare Prescription Drug,
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Improvement and Modernization Act of 2003, which provides guidance on accounting for the effects of the
Medicare Prescription Drug, Improvement and Modernization Act of 2003 for employers that sponsor
postretirement healthcare plans that provide drug benefits. The Act introduces prescription drug care benefits
under Medicare and also allows for certain sponsors of postretirement benefit plans with a drug benefit to
receive a non-taxable federal subsidy if certain criteria are met. The FSP requires interim and annual period
financial statements beginning after June 15, 2004 to include the effect of the subsidy on the measurement of
net periodic postretirement benefit costs. We adopted the provisions of the FSP in the fourth quarter of 2004,
which resulted in a decrease to our accumulated postretirement benefit obligation of approximately

$4.3 million.

3. Acquisitions

On September 1, 2004, we completed the SBC Directory Acquisition for $1.41 billion in cash, after
working capital adjustments and the settlement of a $30 million liquidation preference owed to us related to
DonTech. As a result of the acquisition, we became the publisher of SBC-branded yellow pages directories in
Illinois and Northwest Indiana. The results of the SBC Directory Business are included in our consolidated
results from and after September 1, 2004. The SBC Directory Business now operates as R.H. Donnelley
Publishing & Advertising of Illinois Partnership, one of our indirect wholly owned subsidiaries.

On January 3, 2003, we completed the SPA Acquisition for $2.23 billion in cash and became the publisher
of Sprint-branded yellow pages directories in 18 states. The results of the SPA Directory Business are included
in our consolidated results from and after January 3, 2003. The SPA Directory Business now operates as R.H.
Donnelley Publishing & Advertising, Inc., one of our indirect wholly owned subsidiaries.

The primary purpose of each acquisition was to facilitate the Company’s transformation from a sales
agent and pre-press vendor for yellow pages advertising to a leading publisher of yellow pages directories with
control over its business. The acquisitions were accounted for as purchase business combinations in accordance
with SFAS 141, Business Combinations. Each purchase price was allocated to the related tangible and
identifiable intangible assets acquired and liabilities assumed based on their respective estimated fair values on
the acquisition dates. Certain long-term intangible assets were identified and recorded at their estimated fair
value. Identifiable intangible assets acquired include directory services agreements between the Company and
Sprint and the Company and SBC, customer relationships and acquired trademarks and trade names. In
accordance with SFAS 142, Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets, the fair values of the identifiable intangible
assets are being amortized over their estimated useful lives in a manner that best reflects the economic benefits
derived from such assets. Goodwill is not amortized but is subject to impairment testing on an annual basis.
See Note 2, Summary of Significant Accounting Policies — Identifiable Intangible Assets and Goodwill, for a
further description of our intangible assets and goodwill.

Under purchase accounting rules, we did not assume or record the deferred revenue balance associated
with the SBC Directory Business of $204.1 million at September 1, 2004 or the deferred revenue balance of the
SPA Business of $315.9 million at January 3, 2003. These amounts represented revenue that would have been
recognized subsequent to each acquisition under the deferral and amortization method in the absence of
purchase accounting. Accordingly, we did not and will not record revenue associated with directories that were
published prior to each acquisition as well as directories that were published in the month each acquisition was
completed. Although the deferred revenue balances were eliminated, we retained all the rights associated with
the collection of amounts due under and contractual obligations under the advertising contracts executed prior
to the acquisitions. As a result, the billed and unbilled accounts receivable balances acquired in both
acquisitions became assets of the Company. Also under purchase accounting rules, we did not assume or
record the deferred directory costs related to those directories that were published prior to each acquisition as
well as directories that published in the month each acquisition was completed, totaling $175.8 million for
SBC-branded directories and $63.3 million for Sprint-branded directories, respectively. These costs represented
operating expenses that would have been recognized subsequent to the acquisitions under the deferral and
amortization method in the absence of purchase accounting.
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The following table summarizes the estimated fair values of the assets acquired and liabilities assumed in
the SBC Directory Acquisition on September 1, 2004:

LR 5 =) o = 111 £ P $ 258,595
N O CUIEEIIE ASSES . o o vt vt ettt et ettt et et e et e e e e 80,552
Intangible @ssets. ... ... . 1,097,500
Goodwill ..o 212,929
Total assets acquired . ... ... . 1,649,576
Current Habilities . . ... (200,006)
Non-current labilities . ... ... . {918)
Total liabilities assumed . ... ... o (200,924)
INEt aSSELS ACGUITEA .« . .« vttt it $1,448,652

The pro forma financial information presented below has been prepared in accordance with Article 11 of
Regulation $-X and includes the combined SBC Directory Business and Donnelley GAAP results for 2003 and
2004 and the combined SPA Business and Donnelley GAAP results for 2002. Summarized unaudited condensed
pro forma information for the years ended December 31, 2004 and 2003 assuming the SBC Directory
Acquisition and related financing had occurred on January 1, 2003 is presented below. The following
unaudited pro forma information does not purport to represent what the Company’s results of operations
would actually have been if the SBC Directory Acquisition had in fact occurred on January 1, 2003 and is not
necessarily representative of results of operations for any future period.

For the Years Ended
December 31,

2004 2003
Nt TEVENUE . . o\ttt e ettt e ettt e e et e e et $904,579 $716,979
Operating INCOME . . .. vttt e ettt 409,970 258,315
N ICOME « oottt ettt e e 119,919 32,089
Preferred dividend . ... ... ... . . 21,791 58,397
Income (loss) available to common shareholders . ......................... 98,128 (26,308)
Diluted earnings (loss) per share ........ ... ... ... ... .. L. $ 232 § (0.86)

The following table summarizes the estimated fair values of the assets acquired and liabilities assumed in
the SPA Acquisition on January 3, 2003:

CUTTENT ASSEES o o v ottt e ettt e e e e et e e e e e $ 263,007
N ONACUITENT ASSEES &+ ottt et ettt ettt e e e e e e e e e 8,300
Intangible assets .. ... 1,915,000
GoodWill ... e 97,040
Total assets acquired .. .. ... 2,283,347
Current liabilities . .. ... o (34,544)
Non-current habilities .. ... {19,040)
Total liabilities assumed . ... ... (53,584)
Net assets aCqUITEd . ..ottt t it i e e $2,229,763
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Summarized unaudited condensed pro forma information for the year ended December 31, 2002 assuming
the SPA Acquisition had occurred on January 1, 2002 is presented below. The following unaudited pro forma
information does not purport to represent what the Company’s results of operations would actually have been
if the SPA Acquisition had in fact occurred on January 1, 2002 and is not necessarily representative of results
of operations for any future period.

For the Year Ended
December 31, 2002

NEE FEVENUE . . oottt et et e e e e e e et e e e $571,282
Operating INCOME . ...\ttt ettt ittt et e 346,779
Nt INCOIMIE . . . ot ettt e e e e e e e e 99,283
Preferred dividend . .. ... ... 78,860
Income available to common shareholders ................ .. . ... ... . 20,423
Diluted earnings (loss) per share....... ... .. .. o i 0.53

4. Restructuring and Impairment Charges

Following the SPA Acquisition, we consolidated publishing and technology operations, sales offices and
administrative personnel and relocated the headquarters functions in Overland Park, Kansas and Purchase,
New York to Cary, North Carolina. Approximately 140 people were affected by the relocation of the
headquarters functions in Overland Park, Kansas and Purchase, New York, of which 75 have been included in
the restructuring reserve. The remaining 65 people have relocated with the Company.

The table below shows the activity in our restructuring reserves during 2002, 2003 and 2004.

2001 2003
Restructuring Restructuring

Actions Actions Total
Balance at December 31,2001 ........................... $ 21,291 — $21,291
Payments applied against reserve ......................... (13,211) — (13,211)
Payments charged to expense............. . .. 289 — 289
Reserve reversal ... ... ... . ... .. . . . ... (6,694) — (6,694)
Balance at December 31,2002 ......... ... ... ... .. ..., 1,675 — 1,675
Additions to reserve charged to goodwill .................. — $ 2,878 2,878
Additions to reserve charged to earnings................... — 9,531 9,531
Payments . ... (1,162) (3,910) (5,072)
Reserve reversal ... ... ... {513) — (513)
Balance at December 31, 2003 ....... ... ... .. ... .. ...... —_ 8,499 8,499
Additions to reserve charged to earnings................... — 2,657 2,657
Payments .......... e — (7,695) (7,695)
Balance at December 31,2004 ......... ... ... .. ... ..... $ —_ $ 3,461 § 3,461

In 2003, $2.9 million was charged to goodwill representing the closure of the pre-press publishing facility
operated by SPA in Tennessee and severance paid to certain SPA executives who were terminated immediately
upon the closing of the acquisition. The reserve for the pre-press publishing facility was $2.2 million and
represents the remaining lease payments, net of estimated sub-lease income. An additional reserve of
$0.3 million was recorded during 2004 for additional facility related costs as well as $1.3 million related to
severance and other related cost estimates. Payments of $0.5 million and $0.9 million were made with respect
to the former pre-press publishing facility during 2003 and 2004, respectively, and the remaining payments will
be made through 2012. The severance for SPA executives of $0.7 million was paid in full in 2003.
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Restructuring charges are included in general and administrative expenses in our consolidated statement of
operations.

In 2003, $9.5 million was charged to earnings primarily representing severance and related costs
associated with the consolidation of the publishing and technology operations, sales offices and administrative
personnel and the relocation of our headquarters. Payments of $3.2 million and $3.6 million were made during
2003 and 2004, respectively, and the remaining costs will be paid in 2005. During 2004, several employees
included in the initial reserve estimate were redirected within the Company resulting in a reduction to the
reserve of $1.2 million. An additional reserve of $2.3 million was recorded during 2004, representing the
estimated fair value of the remaining lease payments, net of estimated sub-lease income on the former
Purchase, NY headquarters office lease. Payments of $0.5 million were made with respect to the former
headquarters office lease during 2004 and the remaining payments will be made through 2006.

Prior to 2002, we recognized a restructuring and special charge of $18.6 million consisting of a special
charge of $9.9 million in connection with a transition in executive management and a restructuring charge of
$8.6 million in connection with the expiration of a pre-press publishing contract in December 2002. As a
result of the pending SPA Acquisition during late 2002, management determined that certain costs originally
anticipated in the restructuring charge would not be incurred. Specifically, the idle leased space in the
Morrisville publishing facility would be utilized, planned severance and other related costs would be
significantly less and we believed at that time, the corporate headquarters would not be relocated. Accordingly,
$6.7 million of the original charge was reversed during 2002. During 2003, these restructuring actions were
completed, resulting in payments of $1.2 million and the remaining balance of $.5 million was reversed and
included in income.

During 2002, an impairment charge of $2.0 million was recognized to write-off the remaining book value
of our interest in ChinaBig.com Limited (“ChinaBig”) based on management’s belief that sufficient doubt
existed as to ChinaBig’s ability to raise sufficient cash either through operations or additional investments and
that this investment would not provide any value in the foreseeable future.

During the first quarter of 2005, we announced a restructuring plan relating to the SBC Directory
Business. See Note 17, Subsequent Events.

5. Long-Term Debt, Credit Facilities and Notes
Long-term debt at December 31, 2004 and 2003, consisted of the following:

2004 2003
Credit Facility ... ... $2,202,342  $1,145,888
8.875% Senjor Notes due 2010 ... ... ... ... i i 325,000 325,000
10.875% Senior Subordinated Notes due 2012........................ 600,000 600,000
9.125% Senior Subordinated Notes due 2008 ......................... — 21,245
Total .. 3,127,342 2,092,133
Less current portion . ........... ittt 162,011 49,586
Long-term debt . ... i $2,965,331  $2,042,547

Total debt outstanding of $3,127.3 million as of December 31, 2004 consisted primarily of borrowings
related to the SPA Acquisition and the SBC Directory Acquisition.

In connection with the SPA Acquisition, in late 2002 we entered into a $1,525 million Credit Facility
(**Credit Facility”), consisting of a $500 million Term Loan A, a $200 million Term Loan B and a
$125 million Revolving Credit Facility (the “Revolver”), and issued $325 million 8.875% Senior Notes
(“Senior Notes”) and $600 million 10.878% Senior Subordinated Notes {“Subordinated Notes,” and
collectively with the Senior Notes, the “Notes™). We also issued $200 million of 8% redeemable convertible
cumulative preferred stock {*“Preferred Stock’) and warrants to purchase 1,650,000 shares of our Common
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Stock to investment partnerships affiliated with The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. (collectively, “the GS Funds™).
These funds were used to acquire SPA, pay transaction costs, repurchase a portion of the existing

9.125% Senior Subordinated Notes due 2008 (“Pre-acquisition Notes™) pursuant to a tender offer, and repay
the former term facilities, which consisted of $74.3 million outstanding balances under committed bank
facilities and $40 million outstanding under our then-existing $100 million revolving credit facility.

Credit Facility:
On December 8, 2003, we amended our Credit Facility, to accomplish the following objectives:

* obtain more favorable pricing on our variable rate debt;
* adjust non-financial covenants to make them less restrictive for corporate operating flexibility;
¢ obtain the cash resources and the consent for us to redeem the remaining outstanding Pre-acquisition

Notes; and

* obtain consent for a new Term Loan C for potential borrowings up to $400 million, such proceeds, if
borrowed, to be used to fund acquisitions and retirement of existing Notes and redemption of equity,

subject to certain limitations.

The amendment to our Credit Facility created a new Term Loan A-2, replacing the initial Term Loan A
and created a new Term Loan B-2 replacing the initial Term Loan B. In connection with the amendment, we
borrowed an additional $32 million under the Term Loan B-2. These proceeds were used to redeem the
balance of the Pre-acquisition Notes and pay transaction costs, including a prepayment premium of
$8.9 million representing 1% of the balance of Term Loan B outstanding on the date of the amendment. The
amendment to the Credit Facility was accounted for as a modification of the underlying debt instruments.

In connection with the SBC Directory Acquisition, on September 1, 2004, we amended and restated our
Credit Facility, which consisted of a $700 million Term Loan A-2, a $1,650 million Term Loan B-2 and a
$175 million Revolver for an aggregate facility of $2,525 million. The Credit Facility provides for a new Term
Loan C for potential borrowings up to $400 million, such proceeds, if borrowed, to be used to fund
acquisitions, for retirement of Notes, for redemption of, and payment of dividends on, the Preferred Stock,
subject to certain limitations. Substantially all of our assets, including the capital stock of our subsidiaries, are
pledged to collateralize our obligations under the Credit Facility and the Senior Notes. The amendment to the
Credit Facility was accounted for as a modification of the underlying debt instruments.

On December 6, 2004, we amended our restated Credit Facility to accomplish the following objectives:

* obtain more favorable pricing on our variable rate debt;

« adjust non-financial covenants to make them less restrictive for corporate operating flexibility; and
* obtain consent to carve out designated additional debt from required mandatory prepayments.

This amendment to our restated Credit Facility created a new Term Loan A-3 and a new Term Loan D,
both replacing the Term Loan B-2. Term Loans A-2, A-3 and D require quarterly principal payments. As of
December 31, 2004, the outstanding balances of Term Loans A-2, A-3 and D were $526 million, $194 million
and $1,441 million, respectively, and $41 million was outstanding under the Revolver. The Revolver, Term
Loan A-2 and Term Loan A-3 mature in December 2009, and Term Loan D matures in June 2011. The
amendment to the restated Credit Facility was accounted for as a modification of the underlying debt
instruments. The weighted average interest rate of outstanding debt under the Credit Facility was 4.32% and
3.91% at December 31, 2004 and 2003, respectively, and 6.7% under the former term facilities as of

December 31, 2002.
As amended, our restated Credit Facility bears interest, at our option, at either:

* The higher of (i) a base rate as determined by the Administrative Agent, Deutsche Bank Trust Company
Americas, plus a 1.00% margin on the Revolver and Term Loan A-2 and a 0.75% margin on Term
Loan A-3 and Term Loan D; and (ii) the Federal Funds Effective Rate (as defined) plus 0.50%, plus a
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1.00% margin on the Revolver and Term Loan A-2 and a 0.75% margin on Term Loan A-3 and Term
Loan Dj or

* LIBOR rate plus a 2.00% margin on the Revolver and Term Loan A-2 and a 1.75% margin on Term
Loan A-3 and Term Loan D. We may elect interest periods of 1, 2, 3, 6, 9 or 12 months for LIBOR
borrowings.

The Credit Facility and the indentures governing the Notes contain usual and customary negative
covenants that, among other things, place limitations on our ability to (i) incur additional indebtedness,
including capital leases and liens; (ii) pay dividends and repurchase our capital stock; (iii) enter into mergers,
consolidations, acquisitions, asset dispositions and sale-leaseback transactions; (iv) make capital expenditures;
(v) issue capital stock of our subsidiaries; and {vi) engage in transactions with our affiliates. The Credit Facility
also contains financial covenants relating to maximum consolidated leverage, minimum interest coverage and
maximum senior secured leverage as defined therein.

Notes:

On January 3, 2003, we repurchased through a tender offer and exit consent solicitation $128.8 million of
the Pre-acquisition Notes. We borrowed an initial $1,410 million under the original Credit Facility contingent
upon our repurchase of the entire $150 million aggregate principal amount of the Pre-acquisition Notes. Any
proceeds that were not used to repurchase the Pre-acquisition Notes were required to be repaid to the lenders
under the Credit Facility. Accordingly, $21.2 million, representing the amount of Pre-acquisition Notes that
remained outstanding following the tender offer and exit consent solicitation, was repaid to the lenders under
the Credit Facility shortly after the consummation of the SPA Acquisition. On February 6, 2004, utilizing the
proceeds from Term Loan B-2, we redeemed the remaining aggregate principal amount of the Pre-acquisition
Notes totaling $21.2 million at a redemption price of 104.563% of the principal amount thereof, plus accrued
and unpaid interest. During 2004, we recorded interest expense related to these notes of $1.2 million,
consisting of a premium over par value paid at redemption of $1.0 million, plus the write-off of $0.2 million
of unamortized deferred financing costs.

Interest is paid on the Notes semi-annually in arrears on June 15 and December 15. The Senior Notes had
a fair value of $365,625 at December 31, 2004, mature in 2010 and are redeemable at our option beginning
in 2006 at the following prices:

Redemption Year Price

2006 e e 104.438%
2007 L e 102.219%
2008 and thereafter ... ... . 100%

The Senior Subordinated Notes had a fair value of $712,500 at December 31, 2004, mature in 2012 and
are redeemable at our option beginning in 2007 at the following prices:

Redemption Year Price

2007 e 105.438%
2008 e e e 103.625%
20000 e 101.813%
2010 and thereafter . ... ... 100%

F-23




Aggregate maturities of long-term debt at December 31, 2004 were:

200 e $ 162,011
2006 e e 136,008
2007 e 136,008
2008 o 151,203
2000 . 248,374
Thereafter ... o 2,293,738

Total ... e e e e $3,127,342

On January 14, 2005, we issued $300 million aggregate principal amount of senior notes (“Holdco
Notes”). These Holdco Notes bear interest of 6.875% per annum and will be payable semi-annually in arrears
on January 15 and July 15 of each year, commencing July 15, 20035, The Holdco Notes are unsecured senior
obligations of the Company and mature on January 15, 2013. See Note 17, Subsequent Events.

6. Partnership Income and Investment

Before the SBC Directory Acquisition, partnership income included our 50% share of the net profits of
DonTech and revenue participation income received directly from SBC, which was based on the value of
advertising sales. As a result of the SBC Directory Acquisition, SBC ceased paying us revenue participation
income, we consolidate all net profits from DonTech and our DonTech partnership investment was eliminated.
Consequently, partnership income was no longer reported commencing September 1, 2004. Partnership income
from DonTech for the three years ended 2004, 2003 and 2002 consisted of the following:

Eight Months
Ended August 31, Years Ended December 31,

2004 2003 2002 -
50% share of DonTech net profits....................... $12,777 $ 17,347 % 18,480
Revenue participation iIncome. ... ... 65,190 96,705 98,666
Total DonTech income . ............. ... oo, $77,967 $114,052 $117,146

Summarized financial information of DonTech is shown in the table below. Prior to September 1, 2004,
these results were not consolidated in our financial statements.

Eight Months Years Ended
Ended August 31, December 31,
2004 2003 2002
NEt FEVENUES . .o\ttt e et et et $68,777 $99,711  $101,792
Operating INCOME . ..\ .\ ureee et e et ecinee e e $25,428 $33,526 § 35,230
Net INCOME . . .ottt i . $25,554 $34,694 $ 36,959

Our investment in DonTech, including the revenue participation receivable from SBC, was $175.7 million
and $186.0 million at December 31, 2003 and 2002, respectively. '

CenDon. Through 2002, we were the exclusive sales agent in certain markets in Nevada, Florida,
Virginia and North Carolina for CenDon, a joint venture with Centel Directory Company (“Centel”), a
subsidiary of Sprint. Income from CenDon consisted of a priority distribution based on a percentage of
CenDon advertising sales. Income from CenDon was $19.7 million in 2002. In connection with the SPA
Acquisition, we became the sole owner of CenDon. The operating results of CenDon subsequent to the SPA -
Acquisition and prior to its dissolution were included in our consolidated results of operations.




7. Redeemable Preferred Stock and Warrants

We have 10,000,000 shares of preferred stock authorized for issuance. At December 31, 2004 and 2003,
we had 200,604 shares of Preferred Stock outstanding.

On January 3, 2003, we issued through a private placement 130,000 shares of Preferred Stock and
warrants to purchase 1,072,500 shares of our common stock to the GS Funds for gross proceeds of
$130 million. In November 2002, we issued through a private placement 70,000 shares of Series B-1 Preferred
Stock and warrants to purchase 577,500 shares of our common stock to the GS Funds, for aggregate gross
consideration of $70 million. On January 3, 2003, the 70,000 shares of Series B-1 Preferred Stock
automatically converted into 70,604 shares of Preferred Stock. The Preferred Stock, and any accrued and
unpaid dividends, are convertible into common stock at any time after issuance at a price of $24.05 per share
and earns a cumulative dividend of 8% compounded quarterly. We cannot pay cash dividends on the Preferred
Stock through September 2005, during which time the dividend will accrete. After October 1, 2005, we may
pay the Preferred Stock dividend in cash, subject to any limitations under our Credit Facility, or allow it to
accrete, at our option.

We may redeem the Preferred Stock in cash at any time on or after January 3, 2006 if the market price (as
defined) of our common stock exceeds 200% of the conversion price for 30 of 45 consecutive trading days.
The Preferred Stock is redeemable in cash by us at any time on or after January 3, 2013. The Preferred Stock
is redeemable in cash at the option of the GS Funds in the event of a Change in Control (as defined). At
December 31, 2004, the liquidation value of the Preferred Stock was $234.9 million and such Preferred Stock
was convertible into 9,766,564 shares of our common stock. Except in the case of a Change in Control (as
defined) the redemption price of the Preferred Stock at any time is the greater of the liquidation value of the
Preferred Stock or the market value of the Preferred Stock on an as converted basis at that time.

The net proceeds received from the issuance of Preferred Stock in January 2003 and November 2002 were
allocated to the Preferred Stock, warrants and the beneficial conversion feature (“BCF”) of the Preferred Stock
based on their relative fair values. The fair value of the Preferred Stock was estimated using the Dividend
Discount Method, which determines the fair value based on the discounted cash flows of the security. The BCF
is a function of the conversion price of the Preferred Stock, the fair value of the warrants and the fair market
value of the underlying common stock on the date of issuance. The fair value of the warrants ($12.18 for
January 2003 warrants and $10.43 for November 2002 warrants) was determined based on the Black-Scholes
model, with the following assumptions:

Dividend vield . . .. ... 0%
Expected volatility . ... 35%
Risk-free interest rate . ... ... . 3.0%
Expected holding period ... ... i S years

In connection with each issuance of our Preferred Stock and each subsequent quarterly dividend date, a
BCF was recorded because the fair value of the underlying common stock at the time of issuance was greater
than the conversion price of the Preferred Stock. The BCF is treated as a deemed dividend because the
Preferred Stock was convertible into common stock immediately after issuance. The Preferred Stock dividend in
2004 and 2003 of $21.8 million and $58.4 million, respectively, consisted of the stated 8% dividend of
$17.9 million and $16.5 million, respectively, and a BCF of $3.9 million and $41.9 million, respectively.

On January 14, 2005, we repurchased approximately 50% of our outstanding Preferred Stock from the
GS Funds for $277.2 million. See Note 17, Subsequent Events.

8. Stock Iincentive Plans

We maintain a shareholder approved stock incentive plan whereby certain employees and non-employee
directors are eligible to receive stock options, stock appreciation rights, limited stock appreciation rights in
tandem with stock options and deferred shares. Awards are typically granted at the fair market value of our
common stock at the date of the grant. We follow APB No. 25, and related interpretations in accounting for
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our stock incentive plan. We typically do not recognize compensation expense related to the issuance of stock
options. Compensation expense related to SARs is recognized at the end of each period in the amount by
which the quoted market value of the underlying shares covered by the grant exceeds the grant price
recognized over the vesting term. The awards expire not more than ten years from the grant date and the
Board determines termination, vesting and other relevant provisions at the date of the grant.

Non-employee directors receive options to purchase 1,500 shares and an award of 1,500 deferred shares
upon election to the Board. Non-employee directors also receive, on an annual basis, options to
purchase 1,500 shares and an award of 1,500 deferred shares. Non-employee directors may also elect to
receive additional options in lieu of all or a portion of their annual cash retainer fee.

Changes in awards outstanding under all of our stock incentive plans for the last three years were as
follows:

Weighted
Average

Exercise/Grant

Shares Price Per Share
Awards outstanding, December 31,2001 ............................. 2,629,354 $16.70
Granted . . ... 1,925,995 26.01
EXercised. .. ..o (255,386) 14.70
Canceled or expired ... .. ... i i (17,342) 24.82
Awards outstanding, December 31,2002 .............. ... ........... 4,282,621 20.97
Granted . .. ...t 484,676 30.54
Exercised. ... .. (1,278,643) 16.76
Canceled orexpired .. ... .. (144,242) 25.28
Awards outstanding, December 31,2003 ............................. 3,344,412 23.78
Granted . . ... 1,279,357 41.55
Exercised. .. ..o (374,152) . 19.60
Canceled orexpired ... ... i (214,732) 28.54
Awards outstanding, December 31,2004 .......... ... .. ... . ....... 4,034,885 $29.57

Available for future grants at December 31,2004 .............. .. ..... 453,825

The following table summarizes information about stock awards outstanding and exercisable at

December 31, 2004:
Stock Awards Outstanding

Weighted Average

Stock Awards Exercisable

Remaining Weighted Average Weighted Average

Contractual Life Exercise/Grant Exercise/Grant

Range of Exercise/Grant Prices Shares (In Years) Price Per Share Shares Price Per Share
$11.10-%14.75........... 158,486 2.6 $13.58 158,486 $13.58
$15.22-%1941........... 452,724 4.1 15.73 452,724 15.73
$24.75-$29.59........... 1,852,315 4.3 25.96 1,036,893 25.93
$30.11-$39.21........... 315,553 5.1 30.70 59,690 30.79
$41.10-843.85........... 1,212,257 6.3 41.31 - —
$46.06 -$53.74........... 43,550 6.5 48.03 1,500 47.06
4,034,885 4.9 $29.55 1,709,293 $22.98

At December 31, 2003, there were 3,344,412 options outstanding at a weighted average exercise price per

share of $23.78 and 1,526,193 options exercisable at a weighted average exercise price of per share of $20.10.
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At December 31, 2002, there were 4,282,621 options outstanding at a weighted average exercise price per
share of $20.97 and 1,564,657 options exercisable at a weighted average exercise price per share of $15.18.

On July 28, 2004, the Company granted 0.9 million stock appreciation rights (“SARs”) to certain
employees, including senior management, in connection with the SBC Directory Acquisition. The SARs, which
are settled in our common stock, were granted with a grant price of $41.58 per share which was equal to the
fair market value of the Company’s common stock on the grant date. The maximum appreciation of each SAR
is 100% of the initial grant price. In accordance with APB 25 and FIN 28, Accounting for Stock Appreciation
Rights and Other Variable Stock Option or Award Plans, we recognize non-cash compensation at the end of
each period in the amount by which the quoted market value of the underlying shares covered by the grant
exceeds the grant price recognized over the vesting term. We recognized non-cash compensation related to
these SARs of $1.3 million during the year ended December 31, 2004.

The options granted in 2002 included a grant of 1,486,000 options (“Founders Grant”) to certain
employees, including senior management, in connection with the SPA Acquisition. These options were granted
in October 2002 with an exercise price equal to the fair market value of the Company’s common stock on the
date of grant. However, the award of these options was contingent upon the successful closing of the SPA
Acquisition. Therefore, these options were subject to forfeiture until January 3, 2003, by which time the fair
market value of the Company’s common stock exceeded the exercise price. Accordingly, these options are
accounted for as compensatory options and resulted in a charge of $1.0 million and $1.7 million in 2004 and
2003, respectively.

The sale of Preferred Stock in connection with the SPA Acquisition triggered a change in control under the
terms of the Company’s stock incentive plans. Accordingly, all awards granted through the end of 2002, with
the exception of the Founders Grant options and options held by senior management (who waived the change
in control provisions), became fully vested.

9. Income Taxes

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are determined based on the estimated future tax effects of temporary
differences between the financial statements and tax basis of assets and liabilities, as measured by the current
enacted tax rates. Deferred tax expense (benefit) is the result of changes in the deferred tax asset and liability.

Provision (benefit) for income taxes consisted of:

2004 2003 2002

Current provision (benefit)

US. Federal .................. ... ... e $(25,348) § 4,768 $31,545

Stateand local ......... ... . ... (207) (556) 5,110
Total current (benefit) provision ........................ ... ..., (25,555) 4,212 36,655
Deferred provision (benefit)

US. Federal ... . . 66,230 (31,722) 6,915

Stateand local ...... . ... ... 5,231 (8,508) 1,236
Total deferred provision (benefit) .............................. 71,461 (40,230) 8,151
Provision (benefit) for income taxes......... ..., $ 45,906 $(36,018) $44,806
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The following table summarizes the significant differences between the U.S. Federal statutory tax rate and

our effective tax rate.
2004 2003 2002

35.0% 35.0% 35.0%
45 68 3.6
— 14

39.5% 41.8% 40.0%

Statutory U.S. Federal tax rate ......... . i
State and local taxes, net of U.S. Federal tax benefit ........................

Non-deductible expense ........ ... i

Effective tax Tate . ..o vt e

Deferred tax assets and liabilities consisted of the following at December 31, 2004 and 2003:
2004 2003

Deferred tax assets

Reorganization and reStructuring COSES . ... ...uuuueniuannaeaaaaan, $ 616 $ 3,245

Bad debts. ... 1,313 3,869
Postretirement benefits . ..... ... ... .. 3,493 2,267
Capital loss carryforward . ....... ... 6,148 5,738
Deferred stock compensation.......... ... 2,366 2,208
Deferred directory cost uplift. ... o 4,812 —
Net operating loss carryforwards ...... ...t 71,630 71,101
Other 12,004 7,075

102,382 95,503
(6,148) {5,738)
96,234 89,765

Total deferred tax assets . .. .ottt
Valuation allowance .. ... .

Net deferred tax aSSELS . oot ottt et et e e e e

Deferred tax liabilities

EQUIty InVeStMEnt. . ...ttt e e 58,741 52,399

Pension . . ..o e 8,804 7,652
Depreciation and amortization ... ...........ueeeeniin e 138,559 48,712
Other .. — 1,555

206,104 110,318
$109,870  $ 20,553

Total deferred tax liabilities . ... i

Net deferred tax liability ........ . ..

The 2004 provision for income taxes of $45.9 million was comprised of a current tax benefit of
$25.6 million and a deferred tax provision of $71.5 million. The 2004 current tax benefit was based on an
effective tax rate of 39.5% and net operating losses of approximately $72.4 million related to tax deductions
in connection with the SPA Acquisition and the SBC Directory Acquisition. The 2004 deferred tax provision of
$71.5 million was primarily related to the difference in amortization expense recorded for tax purposes
compared to book purposes with respect to the intangible assets acquired in connection with the SPA
Acquisition and the SBC Directory Acquisition. The 2004 effective tax rate reflects a decrease in the state and
local tax rate due to integration of the SPA Acquisition and the SBC Directory Acquisition.

At December 31, 2004, the Company had $3.6 million of federal alternative minimum tax (AMT) credit
carryforward, which does not expire. The Company also had Federal and state net operating loss
carryforwards of approximately $73.4 million (net of carryback) and $249.0 million, respectively. The federal
net operating loss carryforward will begin to expire in 2023, and the state net operating loss carryforwards
will begin to expire in 2008. A portion of the benefits from the net operating loss carryforwards is reflected in
additional paid-in capital as a portion of these net operating loss carryforwards are generated by deductions

related to the exercise of stock options.

F-28




The 2003 tax benefit of $36.0 million was comprised of current tax provision $4.2 million and a deferred
tax benefit of $40.2 million. The 2003 tax benefit was based on an effective tax rate of 41.8% and net
operating losses of approximately $176.0 million related to tax deductions in connection with the SPA
Acquisition. The 2003 deferred tax benefit primarily related to the net operating loss generated in 2003 is
partially offset by a deferred tax provision principally relating to the difference in amortization recorded for
tax purposes compared to book purposes with respect to intangible assets acquired in connection with the SPA
Acquisition.

The 2002 effective tax rate was adversely impacted by the ChinaBig investment impairment charge of
$2 million. The write-down of this investment was treated as a capital loss for income tax purposes and can
only be utilized against capital gains. We did not believe it was more likely than not that the Company would
generate capital gains in order to realize the tax benefits of this capital loss. Accordingly, a valuation allowance
was established for the total amount of the deferred tax asset related to the capital loss on the ChinaBig
investment. However, with regard to other deferred tax assets, we believe that we will obtain the full benefit of
such assets based on an assessment of the Company’s anticipated profitability during the years the deferred tax
assets are expected to become tax deductions.

10. Benefit Plans

Retirement Plans. We have a defined benefit pension plan covering substantially all employees with at
least one year of service. The benefits to be paid to employees are based on years of service and a percentage
of total annual compensation. The percentage of compensation allocated to a retirement account ranges from
3.0% to 12.5% depending on age and years of service (“cash balance benefit”). Benefits for certain employees
who were participants in the predecessor The Dun & Bradstreet Corporation (“D&B”) Defined Benefit Pension
Plan are also determined based on the participant’s average compensation and years of service (“final average
pay benefit”) and benefits to be paid will equal the greater of the final average pay benefit or the cash balance
benefit. Pension costs are determined using the projected unit credit actuarial cost method. Our funding policy
is to contribute an amount at least equal to the minimum legal funding requirement. No contributions were
required to be made in 2004, 2003 or 2002. The underlying pension plan assets are invested in diversified
portfolios consisting primarily of equity and debt securities. We use a measurement date of December 31 for
the majority of our plan assets.

We also have an unfunded non-qualified defined benefit pension plan, the Pension Benefit Equalization
Plan (“PBEP”), which covers senior executives and certain key employees. Benefits are based on years of
service and compensation (including compensation not permitted to be taken into account under the previously
mentioned defined benefit pension plan).

We offer a defined contribution savings plan to substantially all employees and contribute $0.50 for each
dollar contributed by a participating employee, up to 2 maximum of 6% of each participating employee’s
salary (including bonus and commissions). Contributions under this plan were $1.7 million, $1.1 million and
$0.7 million for the years ended December 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002, respectively.

Other Postretiremnent Benefits. We have an unfunded postretirement benefit plan that provides certain

healthcare and life insurance benefits to those full-time employees who reach retirement age while working for
the Company.
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In connection with the SBC Directory Acquisition, we have assumed DonTech’s benefit plans. Information
presented below for 2004 includes amounts for the Company plans and the DonTech plans since September 1,
2004. Information below for 2003 excludes amounts relating to the DonTech benefit plans since they were not
our obligation at that time. The retirement and postretirement plans of the Company and DonTech are similar
in nature and both share in a master trust. A summary of the funded status of the benefit plans at
December 31, 2004 and 2003 was as follows:

Retirement Plans Postretirement Plan
2004 2003 2004 2003

Change in benefit obligation
Benefit obligation, beginning of period (RHD) ...... . $ 65718 $57,862 $11,290 $ 5,840
Benefit obligation, as of September 1, 2004 (DonTech) 38,521 —_— 6,492 —
SEIVICE COSE . vt e it e e e e 4,147 3,246 548 480
Interest CoSt . ..o vt e 4,661 3,671 870 490
Plan participant contributions ..................... — — 231 120
Amendments ........ . —_ (14) 2,786 2,830
Actuarial loss .. ... oo 3,861 4,161 2,406 2,220
Benefits paid ........ ... (3,519) (3,208) (886) {700)
Impact of Medicare D ............................ — — (4,303) —
Other ... — — — 10
Benefit obligation, end of period ................... $113,389 $65,718 §$ 19,434 $ 11,290
Change in plan assets
Fair value of plan assets, beginning of period (RHD) § 64,798 $56,108 § — S —
Fair value of plan assets, as of September 1, 2004

(DonTech) ........ ... . .. . .. . 31,317 — — —
Return on plan assets........... ... ..., .. 8,272 11,895 — —_—
Employer contributions ........................... 139 3 655 580
Plan participant contributions ..................... — — 231 120
Benefits paid ...........o {3,519) {3,208) {886) {700)
Fair value of plan assets, end of period ............. $101,007 $64,798 $ — —
Reconciliation of Funded Status
Funded status of plans............................ $(12,382) § (920) $(19,434) $(11,290)
Unrecognized net loss ......... ... ... ... .... 28,601 20,965 1,873 2,440
Unrecognized prior Service COosts ................... 1,227 1,069 4,588 2,600
Net amount recognized .. ............... ... $ 17,446 $21,114  $(12,973) §$ (6,250)

Net amounts recognized in the consolidated balance sheets at December 31, 2004 and 2003 were as
follows:

Retirement Plans Postretirement Plan

2004 2003 2004 2003
Prepaid benefitcosts . ........... ... ... ... $19,430 $21,704 $ - 5 —
Accrued liabilities ........ ... . ... ... (2,499) (590)  (12,973)  (6,250)
Accrued comprehensive income ........ .. . 515 — — —
Net amount recognized ..., $17,446  $21,114  $(12,973) $(6,250)

The accumulated benefit obligation for all defined benefit pension plans was $102.2 million and
$61.1 million at December 31, 2004 and 2003, respectively.
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The projected benefit obligation and accumulated benefit obligation for the unfunded PBEP at
December 31, 2004 and 2003 was as follows:

2004 2003
Projected benefit obligation ............ ... ... i $3,183 $678
Accumulated benefit obligation ............ ... .. .. $2,316  $529

The net periodic benefit expense (income) of the retirement plans for the years ended December 31, 2004,
2003 and 2002 was as follows:

2004 2003 2002

SEIVICE COSE .« ottt ittt ettt e e e e e $4,147 $3246 $1,414
Interest COSt . ..ot 4,661 3,671 3,726
Expected return on plan assets. ........... ittt (6,680) (5,910) (6,952)
Unrecognized prior SEIVICE COST ...t vn ettt iriiiaen e 116 108 145
Amortization of net loss from earlier periods ...................... 733 — —
Net periodic benefit expense (income) .................... ... ..., $2,977 §$ 1,115 $(1,667)
Additional Information

Retirement Plans Postretirement Plan

2004 2003 2004 2003
Increase in minimum pension liability included in other

comprehensive income ............ ... $515 $ — $ — $ —

The following assumptions were used in determining the benefit obligations for the retirement plans and
postretirement plan:

2004 2003 2002

Weighted average discount rate ........... oo i 5.75% 6.00% 6.50%
Rate of increase in future compensation ...t 3.66% 3.66% 3.66%

The following assumptions were used in determining the net periodic benefit expense (income) for the
retirement plans:

2004 2003 2002

Weighted average discount rate ........... .o 6.00% 6.50% 7.25%
Rate of increase in future cOmpensation ................c.oeeirreennen... 3.66% 3.66% 4.41%
Expected return on plan assets ......... . .. 8.25% 8.25% 9.75%

The weighted average discount rate used to determine the net periodic expense for the postretirement plan
was 6.00%, 6.50% and 7.25% for 2004, 2003 and 2002, respectively.

For 2004 we used, and for 2005 we will use, a rate of 8.25% as the expected long-term rate of return
assumption on plan assets for the retirement plan. This assumption is based on the plan’s present target asset
allocation of 65% equity securities and 35% debt securities. It reflects long-term capital market return
forecasts for the asset classes employed, assumed excess returns from active management within each asset
class, the portion of plan assets that are actively managed, and periodic rebalancing back to target allocations.
Current market factors such as inflation and interest rates are evaluated before the long-term capital market
assumptions are determined. Although we review our expected long-term rate of return assumption annually,
our plan performance in any one particular year does not, by itself, significantly influence our evaluation. Our
assumption is generally not revised unless there is a fundamental change in one of the factors upon which it is
based, such as the target asset allocation or long-term capital market return forecasts.
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The net periodic benefit expense of the postretirement plan for the years ended December 31, 2004, 2003
and 2002 was as follows:

2004 2003 2002
SEEVICE COSE « v v v vttt ettt e et ettt e e e $ 548 $§ 490 $140
IOEETESt COSt . . v\ttt et e e e e e 870 480 370
Amortization of unrecognized prior service credit .............. ... ..., 172 (70) {70)
Amortization of unrecognized net loss . ........... .o ..., 681 100 —
Other — 10 —
Net periodic benefit expense ......... ..o $2,271  $1,010 $440
The following table reflects assumed healthcare cost trend rates.
2004 2003
Healthcare cost trend rate assumed for next year
Under 65 .o 11.0% 9.5%
65 and older .. ... e 13.0% 9.5%
Rate to which the cost trend rate is assumed to decline ............................. 5.0% 5.0%
Number of years that it takes to reach the ultimate trend rate ....................... 9 10

Assumed healthcare cost trend rates have a significant effect on the amounts reported for healthcare plans.
A one-percentage-point change in assumed healthcare cost trend rates would have the following effects for
2004:

One Percentage- One Percentage-

Point Increase Point Decrease
Effect on total of service and interest costs ........................ $ 391 $ (314)
Effect on postretirement benefit obligation......................... 3,470 (2,817)

The pension plan weighted-average asset allocation at December 31, 2004 and 2003, by asset category,

are as follows:

Plan Assets at
December 31,

2004 2003

EqUIty SECUrTtIes. . ..ottt ettt 68% 67%
Dbt SECUTILIES . . ..ottt ettt e et e e e e e 32%  33%

Total o 100% 100%

A total return investment approach in which a mix of equity and debt investments are used to maximize
the long-term return on plan assets at a prudent level of risk. The plan’s target asset allocation is presently
65% equity securities and 35% debt securities. The target allocation is controlled by periodic rebalancing back
to target. Plan assets are invested using a combination of active and passive {indexed) investment strategies.

The plan’s equity securities are diversified across U.S. and non-U.S. stocks. The plan’s debt securities are
diversified principally among securities issued or guaranteed by the United States government or its agencies,
mortgage-backed securities, including collateralized mortgage obligations, investment-grade corporate debt
obligations and dollar-denominated obligations issued in the U.S. and by non-U.S. banks and corporations.

Investment risk is controlled through diversification among asset classes, managers and securities. Risk is
further controlled at the investment manager level by requiring active managers to follow formal written
investment guidelines. Investment results are measured and monitored on an ongoing basis, and quarterly
investment reviews are conducted. The plan’s active United States investment manager is prohibited from
investing plan assets in equity or debt securities issued or guaranteed by RHD. However, the plan may hold
Donnelley stock if it is part of a total United States equity market index fund in which the plan invests.
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Estimated Future Benefit Payments

The following benefit payments, which reflect expected future service net of Medicare subsidy, as
appropriate, are expected to be paid:

Pension Other

Benefits Benefits
20008 o $ 5,065 § 870
2006 .o e 5,338 900
2007 © e 5,714 970
2008 5,972 970
2000 L 6,399 1,020
Years 2010-2004 . . e 41,163 6,150

We expect to make contributions of approximately $0.9 million and $0.1 million to our defined benefit
and non-qualified defined benefit plans, respectively in 2005.

In May 2004, the Financial Accounting Standards Board issued Financial Staff Position (“FSP”)
No. FAS 106-2, Accounting and Disclosure Requirements Related to the Medicare Prescription Drug,
Improvement and Modernization Act of 2003, which provides guidance on accounting for the effects of the
Medicare Prescription Drug, Improvement and Modernization Act of 2003 for employers that sponsor
postretirement healthcare plans that provide drug benefits. The Act introduces prescription drug care benefits
under Medicare and also allows for certain sponsors of postretirement benefit plans with a drug benefit to
receive a non-taxable federal subsidy if certain criteria are met. The FSP requires interim and annual period
financial statements beginning after June 15, 2004 to include the effect of the subsidy on the measurement of
net periodic postretirement benefit costs. We adopted the provisions of the FSP in the fourth quarter of 2004,

which resulted in a decrease to our accumulated postretirement benefit obligation of approximately
$4.3 million.

11. Commitments

We lease office facilities and equipment under operating leases with non-cancelable lease terms expiring at
various dates through 2014. Rent and lease expense for 2004, 2003 and 2002 was $11.6 million,
$10.2 million and $3.1 million, respectively. The future non-cancelable minimum rental payments applicable to
operating leases at December 31, 2004 are:

200 e e $ 7,021.0
2006 . e e 7,362.4
2007 e 7,399.8
2008 . 7,181.3
2000 . e e 5,904.4
Thereafter .. .o 14,706.0

Total........ e $49,574.9

We have entered into long-term purchase agreements for paper used in the publishing of our directories.
The purchase commitments for the paper is with four suppliers and is estimated, based on minimum required
quantities, to aggregate approximately $44.5 million through 2006. Minimum purchases required under these
agreements are $26.4 million in 2005 and $18.1 million in 2006. In connection with the SBC Directory
Acquisition, we entered into a SMARTpages reseller agreement whereby we are obligated to pay SBC
$15.4 million over the 5-year term of the agreement.

12. Legal Proceedings

We are involved in various legal proceedings arising in the ordinary course of our business, as well as
certain litigation and tax matters described below. We periodically assess our liabilities and contingencies in
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connection with these matters based upon the latest information available to us. For those matters where it is
probable that we have incurred a loss and the loss or range of loss can be reasonably estimated, we record
reserves in our consolidated financial statements. In other instances, we are unable to make a reasonable
estimate of any liability because of the uncertainties related to both the probable outcome and amount or
range of loss. As additional information becomes available, we adjust our assessment and estimates of such
liabilities accordingly.

Based on our review of the latest information available, we believe our ultimate liability in connection
with pending legal proceedings, including the litigation and tax matters described below, will not have a
material adverse effect on our results of operations, cash flows or financial position, as described below. No
material amounts have been accrued in our financial statements with respect to any of these matters.

In order to understand our potential exposure under the litigation and tax matters described below under
the captions “Information Resources, Inc.” and “Tax Matters,” you need to understand the relationship
between us and D&B, and certain of our predecessors and affiliates that, through various corporate
reorganizations and contractual commitments, have assumed varying degrees of responsibility with respect to
such matters.

In November 1996, the company then known as The Dun & Bradstreet Corporation separated through a
spin-off (“1996 Distribution™) into three separate public companies: The Dun and Bradstreet Corporation,
ACNielsen Corporation (“ACNielsen”), and Cognizant Corporation (“Cognizant™). In June 1998, The Dun &
Bradstreet Corporation separated through a spin-off (1998 Distribution™) into two separate public companies:
R.H. Donnelley Corporation (formerly The Dun & Bradstreet Corporation) and a new company that changed
its name to The Dun & Bradstreet Corporation. Later in 1998, Cognizant separated through a spin-off
{“Cognizant Distribution”) into two separate public companies: IMS Health Incorporated (“IMS”), and
Nielsen Media Research, Inc. (“NMR™}. In September 2000, The Dun & Bradstreet Corporation separated
into two separate public companies: Moody’s Corporation, (“Moody’s”) (formerly The Dun & Bradstreet
Corporation), and a new company that changed its name to The Dun & Bradstreet Corporation. As a result of
the form of R.H. Donnelley Corporation’s separation from The Dun & Bradstreet Corporation in 1998, we
are the corporate successor of and technically the defendant and taxpayer referred to below as D&B with
respect to any matter accruing prior to June 30, 1998.

Information Resources, Inc.

The following is a description of an antitrust lawsuit filed in 1996 by Information Resources, Inc. (“IRT”).
VNU N.V,, a publicly traded Dutch company (“VNU”), and its U.S. subsidiaries VNU, Inc., AC Nielsen, AC
Nielsen (US), Inc. (“ACN (US)’), and NMR (collectively, the “VNU Parties™), have assumed exclusive joint
and several liability for any judgment or settlement of this antitrust lawsuit (collectively, the “IRI Liabilities™).
As a result of the indemnity obligation, we do not have any exposure to a judgment or settlement of this
lawsuit unless the VNU Parties default on their obligations. In the event of such default, we have contingent
liability for this matter as a result of our succeeding to D&B’s liabilities and obligations as part of the 1998
Distribution. In such event, however, under the contractual commitments described below, any such amounts
that we might need to pay would be shared equally (50% each) by D&B and Moody’s, on a joint and several
basis. Only if D&B and Moody’s were unable to bear all or a part of the IRI Liabilities, would we be liable,
and then only to the extent that either of them could not satisfy their joint and several indemnity obligations
o us.

On February 1, 20083, the U.S. District Court for the Southern District of New York entered a final
judgment against IRI dismissing IRI’s claims with prejudice and on the merits. IRI has filed a notice of appeal
to the Second Circuit Court of Appeals. Due to the dismissal of this matter and several layers of indemnity
described above, our disclosure regarding this matter will be relatively brief. For a more detailed discussion
regarding the background and past procedural history regarding this matter, please see our prior periodic
reports.

In July 1996, IRI filed a complaint, subsequently amended in 1997, in the United States District Court for
the Southern District of New York, naming as defendants D&B (now, the Company, as successor of D&B),
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A.C. Nielsen Company (a subsidiary of ACNielsen) and IMS (then known as Cognizant), at the time of the
filing, all wholly owned subsidiaries of D&B.

The amended complaint alleged, among other claims, various violations of U.S. antitrust laws under
Sections 1 and 2 of the Sherman Antitrust Act. IRT sought damages in excess of $650.0 million, which IRI
sought to treble under the antitrust laws. IRI also sought punitive damages of an unspecified amount, which
we believe are precluded as a result of the prior dismissal of one of IRI’s claims.

In December 2004, the Court entered an order that barred IRI from arguing that defendant’s pricing
practices or discounts were illegal or anti-competitive unless it could satisfy a specified burden of proof. In
response to this ruling, in a press release, IRI stated, in relevant part, “without this evidence, IRI believes that
little would be left of IRDs case to take to trial.” As a result, IRI asked the Court to enter a final judgment
against it so that it could take an immediate appeal to the Second Circuit. Defendants did not object to this
request. As noted above, the case was dismissed by the District Court and IRI has filed an appeal. The Court

of Appeals for the Second Circuit has ordered that the appeal be argued no earlier than the week of June 13,
2005.

In connection with the 1996 Distribution, Cognizant (now NMR), ACNielsen and D&B (now the
Company) entered into an Indemnity and Joint Defense Agreement. On July 30, 2004, the VNU Parties, the
Company, D&B, Moody’s and IMS entered into an Amended and Restated Indemnity and Joint Defense
Agreement (the “Amended JDA™).

Pursuant to the Amended JDA, any and all IRI Liabilities incurred by us, D&B, Moody’s or IMS relating
to a judgment (even if not final) or any settlement being entered into in the IRI action will be jointly and
severally assumed and fully discharged exclusively by the VNU Parties. Under the Amended JDA, the VNU
Parties have agreed to, jointly and severally, indemnify us, D&B, Moody’s and IMS from and against all IRI
Liabilities to which we become subject.

Under the agreements relating to the 1998 Distribution, D&B assumed the defense and agreed to
indemnify us against any payments that we may be required to make with respect to the IRI Liabilities and
related legal fees. As required by those agreements, Moody’s Corporation, which subsequently separated from
D&B in the 2000 Distribution, has agreed to be jointly and severally liable with D&B for the indemnity
obligation to us. We understand that D&B and Moody’s have agreed amongst themselves to share equally
(50% each) these indemnity obligations to us. Only if D&B and Moody’s were unable to bear all or a part of
their aggregate 50% share of the liability would we be liable, and then only to the extent that either of them
could not satisfy their joint and several indemnity obligations to us.

Because liability for violations of the antitrust laws is joint and several and because the rights and
obligations relating to the Amended JDA are based on contractual relationships, the failure of the VNU Parties
to fulfill their obligations under the Amended JDA could result in the other parties bearing all or a share of the
IRI Liabilities. Joint and several liability for the IRI Liabilities means that even where more than one defendant
is determined to have been responsible for an alleged wrongdoing, the plaintiff can collect all or part of the
judgment from just one of the defendants. This is true regardless of whatever contractual allocation of
responsibility the defendants and any other indemnifying parties may have made, including the allocations
described above between the VNU Parties, the Company, D&B, Moody’s and IMS.

Accordingly, and as a result of the allocations of liability described above, in the event the VNU Parties
default on their obligations under the Amended JDA, each of D&B and Moody’s will be jointly and severally
responsible for the payment of any portion of any judgment or settlement ultimately payable by the Company
(which is the defendant in the IRI action}, which could be as high as all of the IRI Liabilities.

While, as described above, the IRI lawsuit has been dismissed with prejudice on the merits, IRI has filed
an appeal. Accordingly, we are unable to predict the outcome of the IRI litigation or the financial condition of
any of the VNU Parties or the other defendants at the time of any such outcome (and hence we cannot
estimate their ability to pay the IRI Liabilities pursuant to the Amended JDA or the judgment or settlement in
the IRI action). Nonetheless, while we cannot assure you as to the outcome of this matter, management
presently believes that the VNU Parties have sufficient financial resources and borrowing capacity to satisfy
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their obligations under the Amended JDA and, if they default, D&B and Moody’s have sufficient financial
resources and borrowing capacity to reimburse us for any payments we may be required to make and related
costs we may incur in connection with this matter. Therefore, management presently believes that the ultimate
resolution of this matter would not have a material adverse effect on the Company’s results of operations, cash
flows or financial condition. Accordingly, no amount in respect of this matter has been accrued in our
consolidated financial statements.

Tax Matters

D&B entered into global tax-planning initiatives in the normal course of its business, primarily through
tax-free restructurings of both its foreign and domestic operations (collectively, “Legacy Tax Matters”). The
IRS is currently disputing certain tax positions taken with respect to the Legacy Tax Matters. The status of
these Legacy Tax Matters is summarized below, including the settlement of the matter below under
“Utilization of Capital Losses — 1989 — 1990 (“Capital Losses Matter”) during the fourth quarter of 2004.

Pursuant to a series of tax sharing and other agreements {collectively, “Tax Sharing Agreements”) relating
to the spin-offs and separations referred to above, IMS and NMR are jointly and severally liable for, and must
pay one-half of, and D&B and Moody’s are jointly and severally liable for, and must pay the other half of,
any payments over $137.0 million for taxes, accrued interest and other amounts resulting from the Legacy Tax
Matters summarized below (other than the matter summarized below under “— Amortization and Royalty
Expense Deductions/Royalty Income — 1997-2004,” for which D&B and Moody’s, jointly and severally, are
solely responsible). D&B, on our behalf, was contractually obligated to pay, and did pay, the first
$137.0 million of tax liability in connection with the Capital Loss Matter.

Under the terms of the 1998 Distribution, D&B agreed to assume the defense and to indemnify us against
any tax liability that may be assessed against us and any related costs and expenses that we may incur in
connection with any of these Legacy Tax Matters. Also, as required by those agreements, Moody’s has agreed
to be jointly and severally liable with D&B for the indemnity obligation to us. Under the terms of certain of
the other spin-offs and separations, D&B and Moody’s have, between each other, agreed to be financially
responsible for 50% of any potential liabilities that may arise to the extent such potential liabilities are not
directly attributable to each party’s respective business operations. Only if D&B and Moody’s were unable to
bear all or a part of these liabilities, would we be liable, and then only to the extent that both of them could
not satisfy their joint and several indemnity obligations to us.

While we cannot assure you as to the outcome of these Legacy Tax Matters (other than the settled Capital
Losses Matter), management presently believes that D&B and Moody’s have sufficient financial resources,
borrowing capacity and, where applicable, indemnity rights against IMS and NMR (who succeeded to
Cognizant’s indemnity obligations under the Cognizant Distribution) and IMS and NMR in turn have sufficient
financial resources and borrowing capacity to satisfy their respective indemnity obligations to D&B and
Moody’s, so as to reimburse us for any payments we may be required to make and related costs we may incur
in connection with these Legacy Tax Matters. Therefore, management presently believes that the ultimate
resolution of these Legacy Tax Matters would not have a material adverse effect on the Company’s results of
operations, cash flows or financial condition.

Utilization of Capital Losses — 1989 — 1990

In 2000, D&B filed an amended tax return with respect to the utilization of capital losses in 1989 and
1990 in response to a formal IRS notice of adjustment. The amended tax return reflected an additional
$561.6 million of tax and interest due. In 2000, D&B paid the IRS approximately $349.3 million and IMS (on
behalf of itself and NMR) paid the IRS approximately $212.3 million. We understand that these payments
were made under dispute in order to stop additional interest from accruing.

During the fourth quarter of 2004, we (as the taxpayer of record) entered into a settlement agreement
with the IRS resolving this Capital Losses Matter. As described above, we are fully indemnified against any
payments required to be made to the IRS resulting from this settlement. We expect that the aggregate tax
liability (including penalties) arising from this settlement will be approximately $48 million payable to the IRS
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following receipt of various bills from the IRS related to the settlement. In February 20035, the IRS issued the
first bill for tax year 1990 in the amount of $11.6 million, which was paid in full by our indemnitors on
February 24, 2005. In March 2005, we (as the taxpayer of record) received a second bill from the IRS in the
amount of $63.2 million. The IRS has indicated in writing that the amount of this bill was inaccurate and
should have been only $35.8 million. Based on that written confirmation, our indemnitors paid their respective
shares (including D&B and Moody’s paying any shortfall from IMS and NMR as described in the following
paragraph) of the $35.8 million liability by the March 14, 2005 deadline. We understand that D&B expects
the IRS to issue bills for the remaining balance of the settlement payment during the first half of 2005.

As noted above, the Tax Sharing Agreements provide that IMS and NMR are jointly and severally liable
for, and must pay one half of, the tax liabilities relating to the Capital Expense Matter. We understand that
IMS and NMR have advised D&B that they do not believe they are responsible for certain portions of the
remaining balance of the settlement payment. Nevertheless, under our indemnity arrangements with D&B and
Moody’s, they would be jointly and severally liable for any portion of the settlement not paid by IMS or
NMR, and each of them have acknowledged to us their responsibility for any shortfall from IMS or NMR. We
understand that based upon their discussions with IMS and NMR, D&B estimates that it and Moody’s will be
required to pay approximately $4.5 million (tax and interest, net of tax benefits) in excess of their allocable
share of the settlement under the terms of the Tax Sharing Agreements. We understand that D&B and
Moody’s believe that the position of IMS and NMR is contrary to the provisions of the Tax Sharing
Agreements and that they have commenced discussions with respect to this dispute under the negotiation
process contemplated by the Tax Sharing Agreements. We understand that if such negotiations are not
successful, D&B intends to commence arbitration proceedings against IMS and NMR to enforce the relevant
provisions of the Tax Sharing Agreements. As the taxpayer of record, we would likely need to commence such
an arbitration proceeding ourselves on behalf of D&B and Moody’s. While we understand that D&B believes
that it would prevail in any such arbitration, we cannot assure you with respect to the ultimate outcome of
such proceeding or the timing of its resolution.

Royalty Expense Deductions — 1993 — 1997

In the second quarter of 2003, D&B received (on our behalf) a proposed notice of deficiency from the IRS
with respect to a partnership transaction entered into in 1993, Specifically, the IRS proposed to disallow
certain royalty expense deductions claimed by D&B on its 1993 through 1996 tax returns. We understand that
D&B estimates that the disallowance of the 1993 and 1994 royalty expense deductions would result in a loss
to it of approximately $5.0 million in pending tax refunds and that the additional tax liability to it with
respect to the disallowance of the 1995 and 1996 royalty expense deductions could be up to approximately
$46.2 million (tax, interest and penalties, net of tax benefits).

In addition, and also in the second quarter of 2003, D&B received from the IRS on behalf of the
partnership associated with the above transaction a notice of proposed partnership adjustment challenging the
tax treatment of certain royalty payments received by the partnership in which D&B was a partner. In that
notice, the IRS is seeking to reallocate certain partnership income to D&B. In January and April 2004, D&B
received additional IRS notices (similar to those received in the second quarter of 2003) associated with D&B’s
remaining interest in the partnership transaction (as described above) for the three months in 1997 for which
the entities were partners. The additional tax liability with respect to D&B’s share of this income for the
notices received in the second quarter of 2003 and January and April 2004 could be up to $22.8 million (tax,
interest and penalties, net of tax benefits). We understand that D&B believes that these positions regarding the
partnership are inconsistent with the IRS’ position with respect to the same royalty expense deductions
described above. This $22.8 million additional liability would be in addition to the $46.2 million of additional
liability related to royalty expense deductions discussed in the previous paragraph. These matters are
collectively referred to herein as the Royalty Expense Matter.

We previously reported in our Form 10-Q for the quarters ended June 30, 2004 and September 30, 2004
that we understood that D&B had reached a tentative settlement (“Proposed Settlement’) with the IRS
regarding the disallowance of the 1995 and 1996 royalty expense deductions portion of the Royalty Expense
Matter. We also previously reported that we understood that during the third quarter of 2004, the IRS
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tendered to D&B (on our behalf) a final settlement agreement with respect to the Royalty Expense Matter for
tax years 1995 and 1996, reflecting the financial terms set forth in the related Proposed Settlement. According
to the terms of the Proposed Settlement, the taxpayer would retain approximately 15% of the tax benefit
assaciated with the Royalty Expense Matter for 1995 and 1996 and pay a penalty of approximately 7% with
respect to the Royalty Expense Matter for 1995 and 1996.

In accordance with the Tax Sharing Agreements, we and D&B sought consent to execute the final
settlement agreement for the Royalty Expense Matter for tax years 1995 and 1996 from the relevant parties
having financial responsibilities for that matter under the Tax Sharing Agreements (i.e., Moody’s, IMS, NMR
and D&B). All such parties consented to the final settlement agreement tendered by the IRS, with the
exception of NMR and IMS.

As a result of NMR’s and IMS’s decision not to consent to the Royalty Expense Matter final settlement
agreement, on November 1, 2004, D&B informed the IRS that we could not execute the final settlement
agreement. On November 3, 2004, the IRS informed D&B that it was withdrawing the final settlement
agreement with respect to the Royalty Expense Matter. As a result, we cannot predict at this time whether or
not, or when, the parties will be able to conclude negotiations with the IRS with respect to a final settlement
agreement regarding the Royalty Expense Matters for tax years 1995 and 1996 on the financial terms and/or
other terms set forth in the Proposed Settlement, if at all.

The Tax Sharing Agreements, which govern each.of the parties’ rights and obligations under these
circumstances, provide (the “Royalty Expense Indemnity & Defense Provisions™) that, a party withholding
consent to a proposed settlement shall “continue or initiate further proceedings” with the IRS “at its own
expense, and the liability of [the parties previously in control of such proceedings] shall be limited to the
liability that would have resulted from the proposed settlement agreement [that was not consented to]
(including interest, additions to tax and penalties which have accrued at that time.)” We believe, therefore, as a
result of the failure of NMR and IMS to provide their consent, our contingent (assuming each of D&B and
Moody’s fail to satisfy their indemnity obligations to us) liability for this Royalty Expense Matter with respect
to tax years 1995 and 1996 has been effectively capped at the amounts provided in the final settlement
agreement tendered by the IRS. We also believe that in accordance with the Royalty Expense Indemnity &
Defense Provisions, NMR and IMS would be jointly and severally liable for any excess amounts above those
reflected in the final settlement agreement tendered by the IRS that may ultimately be owing under this Royalty
Expense Matter with respect to tax years 1995 and 1996. We understand that D&B estimates that the ultimate
resolution of this portion of the Royalty Expense Matter would have a projected net impact to its cash flow of
$37.7 million (tax, interest and penalties, net of tax benefits) based upon the financial terms of the final
settlement agreement tendered by the IRS.

IMS has alleged various breaches of our and D&B’s obligations under the Tax Sharing Agreements related
to D&B’s management and attempted settlement of this matter with the IRS. In addition to “reserving its
rights” against us and D&B, IMS has urged NMR (which is in direct contractual privity with us) to:

e challenge our application of the Royalty Expense Indemnity & Defense Provisions of the Tax Sharing
Agreements — specifically that NMR should reject our position that NMR must now lead the defense
and that NMR and IMS jointly and severally indemnify us for any financial outcome that is less
advantageous to us than the final settlement agreement); and

* assert breaches of contract and to terminate the obligations of IMS and NMR under the Tax Sharing
Agreements generally.

We and our legal counsel, and we understand D&B and their legal counsel, believe that neither NMR nor
IMS have any right or the legal basis to terminate their indemnity obligations under the Tax Sharing
Agreements, and that any attempt by them to do so will be found to be without merit, although we cannot
assure you with respect to the ultimate outcome of that issue or with respect to the timing of its resolution.

We anticipate commencing arbitration proceedings along with D&B to enforce our respective rights under
the Royalty Expense Indemnity & Defense Provisions and other provisions of the Tax Sharing Agreements
should the negotiation process required by the Tax Sharing Agreements fail to resolve the parties’ dispute.
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While we believe that we should prevail in such arbitration, and thereby effectively cap our exposure with
respect to the Royalty Expense Matter for tax years 1995 and 1996 at the levels described above, we cannot
assure you as to the ultimate outcome of this matter or with respect to the timing of its resolution.

As noted above, the IRS has withdrawn the Proposed Settlement with respect to tax years 1995 and 1996
and accordingly may issue notices preliminary to making assessments at any time. If D&B were to challenge
any such assessment for tax years other than 1993 and 1994 in U.S. District Court or the U.S. Court of
Federal Claims, rather than in U.S. Tax Court, the disputed amounts for each applicable year would need to be
paid in advance for the Court to have jurisdiction over the case. It is possible that the IRS may seek to issue
notices with respect to each of the positions noted above that D&B believes are inconsistent.

The 1993, 1994, and 1997 royalty expense deduction portions of the Royalty Expense Matter remain
pending before the IRS.

Amortization and Royalty Expense Deductions/Royalty Income — 1997 — 2004

In the fourth quarter of 2003, D&B received (on our behalf) IRS notices of proposed adjustment with
respect to a partnership transaction entered into in 1997. In addition, D&B received, on behalf of the
partnership, various IRS materials further explaining the examining agent’s position with respect to the
activities of the partnership in 1997 and 1998.

In April 2004, D&B received {(on our behalf) proposed notices of deficiency from the IRS, proposing
adjustments with respect to the same partnership transaction entered into in 1997 described above. The
adjustments proposed in the April notices reflect the notices of proposed adjustment and other IRS materials
referred to above.

Specifically, the IRS asserted that certain amortization expense deductions claimed by D&B on its 1997
and 1998 tax returns should be disallowed. We understand that D&B estimates that the additional tax liability
to it as a result of the disallowance of the 1997 and 1998 amortization deductions and the disallowance of
such deductions claimed from 1999 to date could be up to $59.9 million (tax, interest and penalties, net of tax
benefits). This transaction is scheduled to expire in 2012 and, unless earlier terminated, based on current
interest rates and tax rates, additional tax exposure would increase at a rate of approximately $2.1 million per
quarter {including potential penalties) as future amortization expenses are deducted.

In addition, the IRS has asserted that royalty expense deductions, claimed by D&B on its tax returns for
1997 and 1998 for royalties paid to the partnership should be disallowed. The IRS also has asserted that the
receipt of these same royalties by the partnership should be reallocated to and reported as royalty income by
D&:B, including the portions of the royalties that were allocated to third party partners in the partnership, and,
thus, included in their taxable income. We understand that D&B believes that the IRS’ stated positions with
respect to the treatment of the royalty expense and royalty income are mutually inconsistent, making it
unlikely that the IRS will prevail on both of the positions. As a result, we understand that D&B estimates that
after taking into account certain other tax benefits resulting from the IRS’ position on the partnership it is
unlikely that there will be any additional cash tax payments due in addition to the amounts noted above
related to the amortization expense deduction. ‘

In the event the IRS were to prevail on both positions with respect to the royalty expense/income, which
D&B believes unlikely, D&B estimates that the additional tax liability to it as a result of the disallowance of
the 1997 and 1998 royalty expense deductions, the disallowance of such deductions claimed from 1999 to date
and the inclusion of the reallocated royalty income for all relevant years could be up to $140.7 million (tax,
interest and penalties, net of tax benefits), which would be in addition to the $59.9 million noted above related
to the amortization expense deduction.

We understand that D&B has filed protests relating to these matters with the IRS Office of Appeals. We
understand that during the third quarter of 2004, D&B was informed by the IRS Office of Appeals that this
matter was being returned to the Examination Division of the IRS for further development of the issues. We
understand that D&B is attempting to resolve these matters with the IRS before proceeding to litigation, if
necessary. If D&B were to challenge, at any time, any of these IRS positions for years 1997 and 1998 in
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U.S. District Court or the U.S. Court of Federal Claims, rather than in U.S. Tax Court, the disputed amounts
for each applicable year would need to be paid in advance for the Court to have jurisdiction over the case. It is
possible that the IRS may seek to issue notices with respect to each of the positions noted above that D&B
believes are inconsistent.

Conclusion

As a result of our assessment of our exposure in these matters relating to our prior relationship with D&B
and its former affiliates, especially in light of our indemnity arrangements with D&B and Moody’s (and the
VNU Parties with respect to the IRI matter), and their respective financial resources, borrowing capacity and,
in the case of certain Legacy Tax Marters, indemnity rights against IMS and NMR, and in turn IMS and
NMR’s respective financial resources and borrowing capacity to satisfy their respective indemnity obligations
to D&B and Moody’s, no material amounts have been accrued in our consolidated financial statements for any
of these D&B-related litigation and tax matters.

Other Matters

We are also involved in other legal proceedings, claims and litigation arising in the ordinary conduct of
our business. Although we cannot assure you of any outcome, management presently believes that the outcome
of such legal proceedings will not have a material adverse effect on our results of operations or financial
condition and no material amounts have been accrued in our consolidated financial statements with respect to
these matters.

13. Business Segments

We have revised our historical segment reporting to reflect the change in our business that resulted from
the SBC Directory Acquisition and to reflect how management now reviews and analyzes the business. Our
business of publishing yellow pages directories is now conducted in one reportable operating segment. All pre-
press publishing services and other ancillary services previously performed on behalf of others are now
performed entirely on behalf of the directories we publish. As a result of the SBC Directory Acquisition, SBC
ceased paying us revenue participation income, we consolidate all net profits from DonTech and our
partnership investment in DonTech was eliminated. Consequently, partnership income was no longer reported
commencing on September 1, 2004 and, accordingly, the previously reported DonTech operating segment is no
longer applicable.

14. Guarantees

R.H. Donnelley Inc. is a direct wholly owned subsidiary of the Company and the issuer of the Pre-
acquisition Notes, which were redeemed in full in February 6, 2004, and the Senior Notes and Subordinated
Notes. The Company and the direct and indirect 100% owned subsidiaries of R.H. Donnelley Inc. jointly and
severally, fully and unconditionally, guarantee these debt instruments. The Holdco Notes were not issued as of
December 31, 2004 and are not guaranteed by any of the Company’s subsidiaries. At December 31, 2004,
R.H. Donnelley Inc.’s direct wholly owned subsidiaries were R.H. Donnelley Publishing & Advertising, Inc.,
R.H. Donnelley APIL, Inc., DonTech Holdings, LLC, The DonTech II Partnership, R.H. Donnelley
Publishing & Advertising of Illinois Holdings, LLC, R.H. Donnelley Publishing & Advertising of Illinois
Partnership and Get Digital Smart.com Inc.

At December 31, 2002, R.H. Donnelley Inc.’s direct wholly owned subsidiaries were R.H. Donnelley
APIL, Inc., R.H. Donnelley CD, Inc., R.H. Donnelley Acquisitions II, Inc. and Get Digital Smart.com Inc.
R.H. Donnelley Acquisitions II, Inc. was a wholly owned subsidiary of R.H. Donnelley APIL, Inc.

R.H. Donnelley Finance Corporation I and II, subsidiary borrowers established in connection with the
financing for the SPA Acquisition, were non-guarantor subsidiaries at December 31, 2002. The following
consolidating condensed financial statements should be read in conjunction with the consolidated financial
statements of the Company.

As of December 31, 2004, R.H. Donnelley Corporation has issued 200,604 shares of its Preferred Stock.
See Note 7, Redeemable Preferred Stock and Warrants for a further description of the terms of the Preferred
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Stock and the related dividend requirements. See Note 12, Litigation for a description of various legal
proceedings in which the Company is involved and related contingencies.

R.H. Donnelley Corporation receives dividends from R.H. Donnelley Inc. for the payment of income
taxes. Dividends received for the payment of income taxes were $0, $389 million and $39.6 million for the
years 2004, 2003 and 2002, respectively. Dividends for other items in each of these years were not significant.

In general, substantially all of the net assets of the Company and its subsidiaries are restricted from being
paid as dividends to any third party, and our subsidiaries are restricted from paying dividends, loans or
advances to R.H. Donnelley Corporation with very limited exceptions, under the terms of our Credit Facility.
See Note 5, Long-Term Debt, Credit Facilities and Notes for a further description of our debt instruments.

R.H. Donnelley Corporation
Consolidating Condensed Balance Sheet
December 31, 2004

R.H. Donnelley  R.H. Donnelley Consolidated

Corp. Inc. Guarantor R.H. Donnelley
(Parent) (Issuer) Subsidiaries Eliminations Corporation

Assets
Cash and cash equivalents .. .... $ — $ 6,008 § 4,747 $ — § 10,755
Accounts receivable, net ... ... .. —_ —_ 455,433 — 455,433
Deferred directory costs ........ — — 155,959 {39,442) 116,517
Other current assets............ — 18,456 693,933 (671,785) 40,604

Total current assets .......... —_ 24,464 1,310,072 (711,227) 623,309
Investment in subsidiaries . ... ... 234,096 1,895,478 — (2,129,574) —
Fixed assets, net ............... — 31,125 6,562 (1) 37,686
Otherassets. .................. — 101,061 1,567 — 102,628
Notes receivable ............... — 2,124,745 — (2,124,745) —
Intangible assets, net ........... — —_ 2,905,026 304 2,905,330
Goodwill ..................... — — 309,969 — 309,969
Total assets ................... $234,096 $4,176,873  $4,533,196 § (4,965,243) $3,978,922
Liabilities, Preferred Stock and

Shareholders’ Equity (Deficit)
Accounts payable and accrued

liabilities ................... $ —_ $ 366,086 § 45,091 § (330,815) $ 80,362
Deferred directory revenue ... ... — — 381,424 — 381,424
Current portion LTD, .......... — 162,011 111,840 (111,840) 162,011

Total current liabilities ... .... — 528,097 538,355 {442,655) 623,797
Long-term debt................ — 3,314,522 2,012,905 (2,362,096) 2,965,331
Deferred income taxes, net...... — 70,612 53,366 (5,158) 118,820
Other long-term liabilities ...... — 29,546 33,092 (25,760) 36,878
Redeemable convertible preferred

stock. ... 216,111 — —_ — 216,111
Shareholders’ equity............ 17,985 234,096 1,895,478 (2,129,574) 17,985
Total liabilities, preferred stock

and shareholders’ equity ... ... $234,096 $4,176,873  $4,533,196 § (4,965,243) $3,978,922
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Assets

Cash and cash equivalents .......
Accounts receivable, net .........
Deferred directory costs .........
Other current assets. . ...........

Total current assets ...........
Investment in subsidiaries ........
Fixed assets, net ................
Other assets....................
Intangible assets, net ............
Goodwill ......................

Total assets ....................

Liabilities, Preferred Stock and
Shareholders’ Equity (Deficit)

Accounts payable and accrued
liabilities. ....................

Deferred directory revenue .. .. ...
Current portion LTD. ...........

Total current liabilities ........
Long-termdebt.................
Deferred income taxes, net.......
Other long-term liabilities. .. .....

Redeemable convertible preferred
stock ...

Shareholders’ (deficit) equity

Total liabilities, preferred stock
and shareholders’ equity (deficit)

R.H. Donnelley Corporation
Consolidating Condensed Balance Sheet

December 31, 2003

R.H. Donnelley ~ R.H. Donnelley Consolidated
Corp. Inc. Guarantor R.H. Donnelley

(Parent) (Issuer) Subsidiaries Eliminations Corporation
$ — $ 6,900 $ 822 § —  $ 7,722
— — 210,981 — 210,981

— — 33,035 — 33,035

— 12,696 20,157 — 32,853

— 19,596 264,995 — 284,591
141,978 2,362,171 2,125,356 (4,453,776) 175,729
— 17,201 3,424 (1) 20,624

— 95,583 — — 95,583

— — 1,865,167 — 1,865,167

— — 97,040 — 97,040
$141,978  $2,494.551  $4,355.982  §$ 4,453,777) $2,538,734
$  — 0§ 119,155 $ 19292 $ (104,945) $ 33,502
— — 216,525 — 216,525

— 49,586 — — 49.586

— 168,741 235,817 (104,945) 299,613

— 2,042,547 — — 2,042,547

— (22,739) 56,368 — 33,629

— 20,940 27 — 20,967
198,223 — — — 198,223
(56,245) 285,062 4,063,770 (4,348,832) (56,245)
$141,978 $2,494,551 $4,355,982  $(4,453,777) $2,538,734
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R.H. Donnelley Corporation

Consolidating Condensed Statement of Operations
For the Year Ended December 31, 2004

Net revenue ....................
Expenses ...,
Partnership and equity income .. ..

Operating (loss) income ..........
Interest (expense) income . ........
Otherincome ...................

Pre-tax (loss) income.............
Income tax (expense) benefit ... ...

Net (loss) income................
Dividend on Preferred Stock ......

{Loss) income available to common
shareholders ..................

R.H. Donnelley  R.H. Donnelley Consolidated
Corp. Inc. Guarantor R.H. Donnelley
(Parent) {Issuer) subsidiaries Eliminations Corporation
.. $ — $12,980 $ 638,361 § (48,225) § 603,116
.. — 44282 393,279 (48,226) 389,335
.. 70,312 76,189 65,190 (133,724) 77,967
.. 70,312 44,887 310,272 (133,723 291,748
.. — 17,841 {193,371) — (175,530)
y — 22 (22) — _
. 70,312 62,750 116,879  (133,723) 116,218
.. — 7,562 (53,468) — (45,906)
. 70,312 70,312 63,411 (133,723) 70,312
. 21,791 — — — 21,791
.. $48,521 $70,312 $ 63,411 $(133,723) $ 48,521

R.H. Donneliey Corporation
Consolidated Condensed Statement of Operations

For the Year Ended December 31, 2003

Net revenue ...............
Expenses ..................

Partnership and equity
INCOME . ..ot e venennn.

Operating (loss) income . . ...
Interest (expense) income . . ..
Other income ..............

Pre-tax (loss) income........
Income tax {expense) benefit

Net (loss) income...........
Dividend on Preferred Stock

(Loss) income available to
common shareholders . . . ..

R.H. Donnelley R.H. Donnelley Consolidated
Corp. Inc. Guarantor R.H. Donnelley

(Parent) (Issuer) subsidiaries Eliminations Corporation

$ — $ 22,198 $234247 § — $ 256,445

— 72,294 205,677 — 277,971

(49,953) 106,606 222,992 (165,593) 114,052

(49,953) 56,510 251,562 (165,593) 92,526
— (187,149) 7,129 —  (180,020)

— 1,523 — — 1,523
(49,953) {129,116) 258,691 (165,593) (85,971)

— 79,163 (43,145) — 36,018
(49,953) (49,953) 215,546 {165,593) (49,953)
58,397 — — — 58,397
$(108,350) $ (49,953) $215,546  $(165,593)  $(108,350)
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R.H. Donnelley Corporation
Consolidated Condensed Statement of Operations
For the Year Ended December 31, 2002

R.H. Donnelley R.H Consolidated

Corp. Donneile).' Inc. Guarantor ~ Non-guarantor R.H. Donnelley
(Parent) {Issuer) Subsidiaries Subsidiaries Eliminations Corporation
Net revenue ......oooveirieirieinennnnn. $ — $75,406 $ — $ — $ — $ 75,406
EXpenses . ...t — 65,990 307 — — 66,297
Partnership and equity income ............. 67,177 85,378 121,669 —_ (137,351) 136,873
Operating income . .........c.c.ouueeenne.. 67,177 94,794 121,362 — (137,351) 145,982
Interest (expense) income. ................. — (29,521) 7,129 (11,156) —_ (33,548)
Other expense ............cooiivii .. — (451) — — — (451)
Pre-tax income {loss) ..................... 67,177 64,822 128,491 (11,156) (137,351) 111,983
Income tax benefit (expense)............... — 2,355 (47,161) — — (44,8086)
Net income (loss) ............. ... .. ... .. 67,177 67,177 81,330 (11,156) (137,351) 67,177
Dividend on Preferred Stock ............... 24,702 — — — — 24,702
Income (loss) available to common
shareholders . .......................... $42,475 $67,177 $ 81,330 $(11,156) $(137,351) $ 42,475
R.H. Donnelley Corporation
Consolidating Condensed Statement of Cash Flows
For the Year Ended December 31, 2004
R.H. Donnelley  R.H. Donnelley Consolidated
Corp. Inc. Guarantor R.H. Donnelley
(Parent) (Issuer) Subsidiaries  Eliminations Corporation
Cash flow from Operations ......................cc....... $ - $ 302414  $237.916 $(134,027) $ 406,303
Cash flow from investing activities
Purchase of fixed assets ................. . ... ... ...... — (14,919) (3,094) — (18,013)
ACQUISILIONS .\ttt — (1,330,000) (83,620) — (1,413,620)
1o (22,929) 111,840 22,929 (111,840) —
Net cash flow from investing activities ................. ... (22,929) (1,233,079) (63,785) (111,840) (1,431,633)
Cash flow from financing activities
Proceeds from Debt. .. ...... ..o —_ 1,384,400 80,047 — 1,464,447
Debt repayments .. .........c. oot — (442,624) (111,840) 111,840 (442,624)
OUhEr oo 22,929 — (16,389) — 6,540
Net cash flow from financing activities .................... 22,929 941,776 (48,182) 111,840 1,028,363
Changeincash........ .. . ... i i — 11,111 125,949 (134,027) 3,033
Cash at beginning of year ............. ... .. ... .. ..., — 6,900 822 — 7,722
Cashatendof period...................... o i, $ — $ 18,011  $126,771  ${134,027) $ 10,755
R.H. Donnelley Corporation
Consolidated Condensed Statement of Cash Flows
For the Year Ended December 31, 2003
R.H. Donnelley  R.H. Donnelley Consolidated
Corp. Inc. Guarantor R.H. Donnelley
(Parent) {Issuer) subsidiaries Corporation
Cash flow from Operations .. .............o.iieririiie it $ — $(136,482)  $ 385,079 $ 248,597
Cash flow from investing activifies ... ........ouiuiiieiareriinennrens (125,683) (219,175) (33,056) (377,914)
Cash flow from financing activities .. ............iiiieiin i, 125,683 354,812 (351,243) 129,252
Change incash ... ... — (845) 780 (65)
Cash at beginning of period ............ .. ... — 7,745 42 7,787
Cashatendof period ... ... ... .. . o $ — $ 6,900 $ 822 $ 7,722
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R.H. Donnelley Corporation
Consolidated Condensed Statement of Cash Flows
For the Year Ended December 31, 2002

R.H. R.H.
Donnelley  Donnelley Non- Consolidated
Corp. Inc. Guarantor Guarantor R.H. Donnelley
(Parent) (Issuer) Subsidiaries  Subsidiaries  Eliminations Corporation
Cash flow from operations............... § 14,342 $40,554 § (4,941) — $ 49,955
Cash flow from investing activities . ....... $(69,300) (107,443) — (1,825,000) $ 69,300 (1,932,443)
Cash flow from financing activities .. ... ... 69,300 86,179  (40,566) 1,829,941 {69,300) 1,875,554
Changeincash......................... — (6,922) (12) — — (6,934)
Cash at beginning of period . ............. 14,667 54 14,721
Cash at end of period ................... $ — $ 7,745 § 42 % — —  $ 7,787
15. Valuation and Qualifying Accounts
Net Addition
to
Allowances
from SPA & Net Additions
Balance at SBC Charged to Write-offs Balance at
Beginnin Directory Revenue and and Other End of
of Perio Acquisitions Expense Deductions Period
Allowance for Doubtful Accounts and Sales
Claims
For the year ended December 31, 2004 ... ... $11,956 25,788 32,339 (36,990) $33,093
For the year ended December 31, 2003 .. .. .. $ 4,772 31,052 1,611 (25,479) $11,956
For the year ended December 31, 2002 ... ... $ 6,339 — 3,300 (4,867) § 4,772
Deferred Tax Asset Valuation Allowance
For the year ended December 31, 2004 .. .. .. $ 5,738 — 410 — $ 6,148
For the year ended December 31, 2003 ... ... $ 6,094 — (356) — $ 5,738
For the year ended December 31, 2002 ... ... $ 4,287 — 1,807 — $ 6,094
16. Quarterly Information (unaudited)
Three Months Ended
September December
March 31 June 30 0 31 Full Year
2004
Netrevenue!' ... ... . ... ... ... $143,807 $144,641  $144,405 $170,263  $603,116
Operating income” . .. ..................... 86,738 92,136 73,686 39,188 291,748
Netincome {loss). ......................... 28,095 33,057 18,474 (9,314) 70,312
Preferred dividend . ... ..................... 5,287 5,392 5,501 5,611 21,791
Income (loss) available to common
shareholders . ........................... 22,808 27,665 12,973 (14,925) 48,521
Basic earnings (loss) earnings per share. ... ... $ 057 $§ 0.68 $ 032 $ (047) § 119
Diluted earnings (loss) per share............. $ 054 § 0.65 $ 0.31 $ (047) §& 115
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Three Months Ended

September December
March 31 June 30 30 31 Full Year

2003
Net revenue!™ ... .. ... . ... $12,419 §$ 38,634 $89,309 $116,083 $ 256,445
Operating (loss) income™ . ................ .. (21,918) 10,464 50,840 53,140 92,526
Net (loss) income . ..., (41,187)  (18,911) 3,903 6,242 (49,953)
Preferred dividend ......................... 42,154 5,978 5,082 5,183 58,397
(Loss) income available to common

shareholders ...............oooi il (83,341)  (24,889) (1,179) 1,059 (108,350)
Basic {loss) earnings per share............... $ (2.76) § (0.81) $ (0.04) $ 0.03 $  (3.53)
Diluted (loss) earnings per share............. $ (2.76) §$ (0.81) $ (0.04) $ 0.03 $ (3.53)

The full year earnings (loss) per share amount may not equal the sum of the quarters due to weighting of
shares.

1 Revenue from the sale of advertising is recognized under the deferral and amortization method, whereby
revenue from advertising sales is initially deferred when a directory is published and recognized ratably over
the life of the directory. Due to purchase accounting rules, we were not able to recognize any revenue from
directories published by the SBC Directory Business or the SPA Directory Business prior to each acquisition
or for any directories published in the months the acquisitions were completed.

@ Similar to the deferral and amortization method of revenue recognition, certain costs directly related to the
selling and production of directories are initially deferred and recognized ratably over the life of the
directory. Due to purchase accounting rules, we were not able to recognize any expenses from directories
published by the SBC Directory Business or the SPA Directory Business prior to each acquisition or for any
directories published in the months the acquisitions were completed. Additionally, as a result of the SBC
Directory Acquisition, SBC ceased paying us revenue participation income and we consolidate all net profits
from DonTech.

®) The second, third and fourth quarters of 2003 include restructuring charges of $3.1 million, $4.3 million

and $2.1 million, respectively, for the closing of redundant facilities and the relocation of the Company’s
corporate offices to Cary, North Carolina.

17. Subsequent Events

On January 14, 2005, we repurchased approximately 50% of our outstanding Preferred Stock from the
GS Funds for $277.2 million. During the first quarter of 2005, we will record a reduction from earnings
available to common shareholders of approximately $134 million to reflect the loss on the repurchase of these
shares. In order to fund this repurchase, on January 14, 2005, we issued $300 million of the Holdco Notes in
a private transaction exempt from the registration requirements of the Securities Act of 1933. The Holdco
Notes bear interest of 6.875% per annum and will be payable semi-annually in arrears on January 15 and July
15 of each year, commencing July 15, 2005. The Holdco Notes are unsecured senior obligations of the
Company and mature on January 15, 2013. We entered into a registration rights agreement, whereby we
agreed, among other things to (1) file an exchange offer registration statement with the SEC with respect to the
Holdco Notes within 120 days after January 14, 20035, (ii) use reasonable efforts to have such exchange offer
registration statement declared effective by the SEC within 180 days after January 14, 2005 and (iii) subject to
certain limitations, consummate the exchange offer to which the exchange offer registration statement relates
within 210 days after January 14, 2005.
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During the first quarter of 2005, we announced a restructuring plan relating to the SBC Directory
Business. A number of our employees will be terminated and others will be relocated to our corporate
headquarters in Cary, North Carolina. Additionally, we will be vacating a portion of our leased facility in
Chicago, Illinois. During the first quarter of 2005, we will record the costs associated with this restructuring
effort, some of which will be expensed and some of which will be recorded as an adjustment to goodwill in
accordance with EITF 95-3 Recognition of Liabilities in Connection with a Purchase Business Combination.
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ITEM 9. CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTANTS ON ACCOUNTING AND
FINANCIAL DISCLOSURES

There have been no changes in, or disagreements with the Company’s principal independent registered
public accounting firm for the three-year period ended December 31, 2004.

ITEM S9A. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES

(a) Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures. Based on their evaluation, as of December 31,
2004, of the effectiveness of the Company’s disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in
Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e) under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended), the principal
executive officer and principal financial officer of the Company have each concluded that such
disclosure controls and procedures are effective and sufficient to ensure that information required to be
disclosed by the Company in reports that it files or submits under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934
is recorded, processed, summarized and reported within the time periods specified in the Securities and
Exchange Commission’s rules and forms.

Management’s Annual Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting and the independent
registered public accounting firm’s attestation of that report required under Item 308 of Regula-
tion S-K has been included in Item 8 immediately preceding the Company’s consolidated financial
statements.

Changes in Internal Controls. There have not been any changes in the Company’s internal control
over financial reporting that occurred during the Company’s most recent fiscal quarter that has
materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the Company’s internal control over
financial reporting.

Ea

ITEM 9B. OTHER INFORMATION

Information in response to this Item has been previously disclosed in the Company’s Current Reports on
Form 8-K filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission during the fourth quarter of 2004.

PART INI

»

ITEM 10. DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVE OFFICERS OF THE REGISTRANT

Information in response to this Item is incorporated herein by reference to the sections entitled “Board of
Directors” and “Other Information — Section 16(a) Beneficial Ownership Reporting Compliance” in the
Company’s Proxy Statement to be filed prior to March 31, 2005 with the Securities and Exchange
Commission, except that “Executive Officers of the Registrant” in Item 1 of this Annual Report responds to
Item 401(b), (d) and (e) of Regulation S-K with respect to executive officers.

ITEM 11. EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION

Information in response to this Item is incorporated herein by reference to the section entitled “Director
and Executive Compensation” in the Company’s Proxy Statement to be filed prior to March 31, 2005 with the
Securities and Exchange Commission.

ITEM 12. SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND MANAGEMENT
AND RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS

Information in response to this Item is incorporated herein by reference to the section entitled “Security
Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management™ in the Company’s Proxy Statement to be filed
prior to March 31, 2005 with the Securities and Exchange Commission, except that “Equity Compensation
Plan Information™ in Item 5 of this Report responds to Item 201(d) of Regulation S-K.
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ITEM 13. CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACTIONS

Information in response to this Item is incorporated herein by reference to the section entitled “Director
and Executive Compensation — Compensation Committee Interlocks and Insider Participation; Certain
Relationships and Related Party Transactions” in the Company’s Proxy Statement to be filed prior to
March 31, 2005 with the Securities and Exchange Commission.

ITEM 14. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTANT FEES AND SERVICES

Information in response to this Item is incorporated herein by reference to the sections entitled “Board of
Directors — Committees of the Board of Directors — Audit and Finance Committee” and “— Report of the
Audit and Finance Committee on Financial Reporting — Fees” in the Company’s Proxy Statement to be filed
prior to March 31, 2005 with the Securities and Exchange Commission.

PART IV

ITEM 15. EXHIBITS AND FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES

(A}{1) and (2) — List of financial statements and financial statement schedules
The following consolidated financial statements of the Company are included under Item 8:

Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

Consolidated Balance Sheets at December 31, 2004 and 2003

Consolidated Statements of Operations for the three years ended December 31, 2004

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the three years ended December 31, 2004

Consolidated Statements of Changes in Shareholders’ Equity (Deficit) for the three years ended
December 31, 2004

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

The audited financial statements of these subsidiaries have been included in our Annual Report on

Form 10-K as filed with the SEC pursuant to Rule 3-16 of Regulation S-X because our Senior Notes
became secured by the capital stock or equity interests of such subsidiaries in connection with the SBC
Directory Acquisition. Due to space limitations, such audited financial statements have been omitted from
this Annual Report, but may be obtained at no charge by contacting Investor Relations at (800) 497-6329
or by accessing the Company’s Form 10-K on the Company’s website at www.rhd.com under Investor
Relations/SEC Filings.

R.H. Donnelley Publishing & Advertising, Inc.

Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

Balance Sheets at December 31, 2004 and 2003

Statements of Operations for the two years ended December 31, 2004

Statements of Cash Flows for the two years ended December 31, 2004

Statements of Changes in Shareholders’ Equity for the two years ended December 31, 2004
Notes to Financial Statements

Report of Independent Auditors

Balance Sheet at December 31, 2002

Statement of Operations for the year ended December 31, 2002

Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended December 31, 2002

Statement of Changes in Shareholders” Equity for the year ended December 31, 2002
Notes to Combined Consolidated Financial Statements
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R.H. Donnelley APIL, Inc.

Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

Balance Sheets at December 31, 2004 and 2003

Statements of Operations for the three years ended December 31, 2004

Statements of Cash Flows for the three years ended December 31, 2004

Statements of Changes in Shareholders’ Equity for the three years ended December 31, 2004
Notes to Financial Statements

DonTech II Partnership

Reports of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

Balance Sheets at December 31, 2004 and 2003

Statements of Operations for the four months end December 31, 2004, eight months ended August 31,
2004 and the two years ended December 31, 2003

Statements of Cash Flows for the four months end December 31, 2004, eight months ended August 31,
2004 and the two years ended December 31, 2003

Statements of Changes in Partners’ Capital for the four months end December 31, 2004, eight months

ended August 31, 2004 and the two years ended December 31, 2003

Notes to Financial Statements

R.H. Donnelley Publishing & Advertising of Illinois Holdings, LLC

Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

Consolidated Balance Sheet at December 31, 2004

Consolidated Statement of Operations for the four months ended December 31, 2004

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows for the four months ended December 31, 2004

Consolidated Statement of Changes Partners’ Capital for the four months ended December 31, 2004
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

R.H. Donnelley Publishing & Advertising of Illinois Partnership

Report of Independent Auditors

Statements of Operations for the four months ended December 31, 2004

Balance Sheets at December 31, 2004

Statements of Cash Flows for the four months ended December 31, 2004

Statements of Changes in Partners’ Capital for the four months ended December 31, 2004
Notes to Financial Statements

Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

Balance Sheets at August 31, 2004 and December 31, 2003

Statements of Operations for the eight months ended August 31, 2004 and the two years ended
December 31, 2003

Statements of Cash Flows for the eight months ended August 31, 2004 and the two years ended

December 31, 2003
Statements of Changes in Partners’ Capital for the eight months ended August 31, 2004 and the two years

ended December 31, 2003
Notes to Combined Financial Statements

Financial statement schedules for the Company have not been prepared because the required information
has been inciuded in the Company’s consolidated financial statements included in Item 8 of this Annual
Report.
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{C) Exhibits:

Exhibit No.

2.1#

2.2

2.3#

2.44

2.5

3.1

3.2

3.3

3.4

3.5

3.6

4.1

4.2
4.3
4.4

Document

Stock Purchase Agreement, dated as of September 21, 2002, by and among the Company, Sprint
Corporation and Centel Directories LLC (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 2.1 to the Current
Report on Form 8-K, filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on October 1, 2002, Commis-
sion File No. 001-07155)

Supplemental Agreement to Stock Purchase Agreement, dated as of December 31, 2002, by and among
the Company, Sprint Corporation and Centel Directories LLC (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 2.2
to the Current Report on Form 8-K, filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on January 17,
2003, Commission File No. 001-07155). The Company agrees to furnish supplementally a copy of any
omitted schedules to the Commission upon request

Preferred Stock and Warrant Purchase Agreement, dated as of September 21, 2002, among R.H.
Donnelley Corporation and investment partnerships affiliated with The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc.
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 2.2 to the Current Report on Form 8-K, filed with the Securities
and Exchange Commission on October 1, 2002, Commission File No. 001-07155)

Purchase Agreement dated as of July 28, 2004 by and among R.H. Donnelley Corporation, Ameritech
Corporation and Ameritech Publishing, Inc. (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 2.1 to the Current
Report on Form 8-K filed with the SEC on August 2, 2004, Commission File No. 001-07155)

Amendment No. 1 to the Purchase Agreement, dated as of September 1, 2004, by and among R.H.
Donnelley Corporation, Ameritech Corporation and Ameritech Publishing, Inc. (incorporated by refer-
ence to Exhibit 2.2 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K, filed with the Securities and
Exchange Commission on September 3, 2004, Commission File No. 001-07155)

Certificate of Incorporation of the Company (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.1 to the Quarterly
Report on Form 10-Q for the three months ended March 31, 1999, filed with the Securities and
Exchange Commission on May 14, 1999 Commission File No. 001-07155)

By-laws of the Company (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.2 to the Quarterly Report on
Form 10-Q for the three months ended March 31, 1999, filed with the Securities and Exchange
Commission on May 14, 1999 Commission File No. 001-07155)

Certificate of Incorporation of R.H. Donnelley Inc. (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.3 to Amend-
ment No. 1 to the Registration Statement on Form S-4, filed with the Securities and Exchange Commis-
sion on August 7, 1998, Registration No. 333-59287)

By-laws of R.H. Donnelley Inc. {incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.4 to the Registration Statement
on Form S-4, filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on July 17, 1998, Registration
No. 333-59287)

Certificate of Designations of Convertible Cumulative Preferred Stock of R.H. Donnelley Corporation
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.2 to the Current Report on Form 8-K| filed with the Securities
and Exchange Commission on January 17, 2003, Commission File No. 001-07155)

Certificate of Designations of Series B-1 Convertible Cumulative Preferred Stock of R.H. Donnelley
Corporation (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.1 to the Current Report Form 8-K, filed with the
Securities and Exchange Commission on December 3, 2002, Commission File No. 001-07155)
Indenture, dated as of June 5, 1998, among R.H. Donnelley Inc., as Issuer, the Company, as Guarantor,
and the Bank of New York, as Trustee, with respect to the 9.125% Senior Subordinated Notes due 2008
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to the Registration Statement on Form $-4, filed with the
Securities and Exchange Commission on July 17, 1998, Registration No. 333-59287)

Form of the 9.125% Senior Subordinated Notes due 2008 (included in Exhibit 4.1)

Company Guarantee (included in Exhibit 4.1)

First Supplemental Indenture, dated as of November 25, 2002, among R.H. Donnelley Inc., as Issuer,
and the Company, R.H. Donnelley Acquisitions, Inc., R.H. Donnelley APIL, Inc., R.H. Donnelley CD,
Inc. and Get Digital Smart.com, Inc., as Guarantors, and The Bank of New York, as Trustee, with

respect to the 9.125% Senior Subordinated Notes due 2008 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to

the Current Report on Form 8-X, filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on November 25,
2002, Commission File No. 001-07155)
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Exhibit No.

4.5

4.6

4.7

4.8

4.9

4.10

4.11

4.12

4.13#

4.14

4.15
4.16

Document

Second Supplemental Indenture, dated as of December 20, 2002, among R.H. Donnelley Inc., as Issuer,
and the Company, R.H. Donnelley Acquisitions, Inc., R.H. Donnelley Acquisitions I, Inc., R.H.
Donnelley APIL, Inc., R.H. Donnelley CD, Inc. and Get Digital Smart.com, Inc., as Guarantors, and The
Bank of New York, as Trustee, with respect to the 9.125% Senior Subordinated Notes due 2008
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to the Current Report on Form 8-K, filed with the Securities
and Exchange Commission on December 20, 2002, Commission File No. 001-07155)

Third Supplemental Indenture, dated as of December 20, 2002 (operative as of January 3, 2003}, among
R.H. Donnelley Inc., as Issuer, and the Company, R.H. Donnelley Acquisitions, Inc., R.H. Donnelley
Acquisitions II, Inc., R.H. Donnelley APIL, Inc., R.H. Donnelley CD, Inc. and Get Digital Smart.com,
Inc., as Guarantors, and The Bank of New York, as Trustee, with respect to the 9.125% Senior
Subordinated Notes due 2008 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to the Current Report on
Form 8-K, filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on January 6, 2003, Commission File

No. 001-07155)

Rights Agreement, dated as of October 27, 1998, between R.H. Donnelley Corporation and First
Chicago Trust Company (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4 to the Registration Statement on
Form §-A, filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on November 5, 1998, Commission File
No. 001-07155)

Amendment No. 1 to Rights Agreement, dated as of February 26, 2001, by and among R.H. Donnelley
Corporation, First Chicago Trust Company of New York (as initial Rights Agent) and The Bank of New
York (as successor Rights Agent) (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.5 to the Annual Report on
Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2000, filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission
on March 28, 2001, Commission File No. 001-07155)

Amendment No. 2 to Rights Agreement, dated as of September 21, 2002, between the Company and
The Bank of New York, as successor Rights Agent (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to the
Current Report on Form 8-K, filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on October 1, 2002,
Commission File No. 001-07155)

Form of Warrant Agreement, dated as of November 25, 2002, between the Company and investment
partnerships affiliated with The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to
the Current Report on Form 8-K, filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on January 17,
2003, Commission File No. 001-07155)

Form of Warrant Agreement, dated January 3, 2003, between the Company and investment partner-
ships affiliated with The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.2 to the
Current Report on Form 8-K, filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on January 17, 2003,
Commission File No. 001-G67155)

Registration Rights Agreement, dated as of November 25, 2002, among the Company and investment
partnerships affiliated with The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2
to the Current Report on Form 8-K, filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on December 3,
2002, Commission File No. 001-07155)

Indenture dated as of December 3, 2002 between R.H. Donnelley Inc. (as successor to R.H. Donnelley
Finance Corporation ), as Issuer, and The Bank of New York, as Trustee, with respect to the
8.875% Senior Notes due 2010 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.13 to the Annual Report on
Form 10-K filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on March 20, 2003, Commission File
No. 001-07155)

Supplemental Indenture dated as of January 3, 2003 among R.H. Donnelley Inc., as Issuer, the Com-
pany and the other guarantors signatory thereto, as Guarantors, and The Bank of New York, as Trustee,
with respect to the 8.875% Senior Notes due 2010 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4,14 to the
Annual Report on Form 10-K filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on March 20, 2003,
Commission File No. 001-07155)

Form of 8.875% Senior Notes due 2010 {included in Exhibit 4.13)

Guarantees relating to the 8.875% Senior Notes due 2010 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.16 to
the Annual Report on Form 10-K filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on March 20,
2003, Commission File No. 001-07155)
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Exhibit No.

4.17#

4.18

4.19
4.20

4.21

4.22

4.23

4.24

4.25

4.26#

4.27
10.1#

10.24

Document

Indenture dated as of December 3, 2002 between R.H. Donnelley Inc. (as successor to R.H. Donnelley
Finance Corporation I), as Issuer, and The Bank of New York, as Trustee, with respect to the
10.875% Senior Subordinated Notes due 2012 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.17 to the Annual
Report on Form 10-K filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on March 20, 2003, Commis-
sion File No. 001-07155)

Supplemental Indenture dated as of January 3, 2003 among R.H. Donnelley Inc., as Issuer, the Com-
pany and the other guarantors signatory thereto, as Guarantors, and The Bank of New York, as Trustee,
with respect to the 10.875% Senior Subordinated Notes due 2012 (incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 4.18 to the Annual Report on Form 10-K filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on
March 20, 2003, Commission File No. 001-07155)

Form of 10.875% Senior Subordinated Notes due 2012 (included in Exhibit 4.17)

Guarantees relating to the 10.875% Senior Subordinated Notes due 2012 (incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 4.20 to the Annual Report on Form 10-K filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on
March 20, 2003, Commission File No. 001-07155)

Second Supplemental Indenture dated as of January 9, 2004 among R.H. Donnelley Inc., as Issuer, the
Company and other guarantors signatory thereto, as Guarantors, and The Bank of New York, as
Trustee, with respect to the 10.875% Senior Subordinated Notes due 2012 (incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 4.21 to the Annual Report on Form 10-K filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on
March 12, 2004, Commission File No. 001-07155)

Second Supplemental Indenture, dated as of September 1, 2004, by and among R.H. Donnelley Inc., the
guarantors party thereto and The Bank of New York, as Trustee, with respect to the 8.875% Senior
Notes due 2010 of R.H. Donnelley Inc. (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to the Company’s
Current Report on Form 8-K, filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on September 3, 2004,
Commission File No. 001-07155)

Third Supplemental Indenture, dated as of September 1, 2004, by and among R.H. Donnelley Inc., the
guarantors party thereto and The Bank of New York, as Trustee, with respect to the 10.875% Senior
Subordinated Notes due 2012 of R.H. Donnelley Inc. (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.2 to the
Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K, filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on
September 3, 2004, Commission File No. 001-07155)

Senior Guarantees relating to Second Supplemental Indenture to the Indenture governing the
8.875% Senior Notes due 2010 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.3 to the Company’s Current
Report on Form 8-K, filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on September 3, 2004,
Commission File No. 001-07155)

Senior Subordinated Guarantees relating to the Third Supplemental Indenture to the Indenture gov-
erning the 10.875% Notes due 2012 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.4 to the Company’s
Current Report on Form 8-K, filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on September 3, 2004,
Commission File No. 001-07155)

Indenture, dated as of January 14, 2005, among R.H. Donnelly Corporation and The Bank of New
York, as trustee (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to the Company’s Current Report on
Form 8-K, filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on January 19, 2005, Commission File
No. 001-07155)

Form of 67s% Senior Notes due 2013 (included in Exhibit 4.26)

Form of Distribution Agreement between the Company (f/k/a The Dun & Bradstreet Corporation) and
The New Dun & Bradstreet Corporation (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 99.2 to the Current
Report on Form 8-K of the Company (f/k/a The Dun & Bradstreet Corporation), filed with the
Securities and Exchange Commission on September 30, 1998, Commission File No. 001-07155)

Form of Tax Allocation Agreement between the Company (f/k/a The Dun & Bradstreet Corporation)
and The New Dun & Bradstreet Corporation (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 99.3 to the Current
Report on Form 8-K of the Company (f/k/a The Dun & Bradstreet Corporation), filed with the
Securities and Exchange Commission on September 30, 1998, Commission File No. 001-07155)
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Exhibit No.

10.3#

10.4#

10.5

10.6#

10.7#

10.8#

10.9

10.10"

10.11°

10.12°

10.13"

10.14"

10.15°

Document

Amended and Restated Indemnity and Joint Defense Agreement dated as of July 30, 2004, by and
among VNU, N.V., VNU, Inc., ACNielson Corporation, AC Nielson (US), Inc., Nielson Media Re-
search, Inc., R.H. Donnelley Corporation, the Dun & Bradstreet Corporation, Moody’s Corporation,
and IMS Health Incorporated (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.3 to the Quarterly Report on
Form 10-Q filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on August 9, 2004, Commission File
No. 001-07155)

DonTech II Partnership Agreement, effective August 19, 1997, by and between R.H. Donnelley Inc.
(f/k/a The Reuben H. Donnelley Corporation) and Ameritech Publishing of Illinois, Inc. (incorporated
by reference to Exhibit 10.10 to Amendment No. 1 to the Registration Statement on Form S-4, filed
with the Securities and Exchange Commission on August 7, 1998, Registration No. 333-59287)

Amendment No. 1 to DonTech II Partnership Agreement dated as of January 28, 2000 between R.H.
Donnelley Inc. and Ameritech Publishing of Illinois, Inc. (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.4 to
the Annual Report on Form 10-K filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on March 12,
2004, Commission File No. 001-07155)

Revenue Participation Agreement, dated as of August 19, 1997, by and between APIL Partners Partner-
ship and R.H. Donnelley Inc. (f/k/a The Reuben H. Donnelley Corporation) (incorporated by reference
to Exhibit 10.11 to Amendment No. 1 to the Registration Statement on Form S-4, filed with the
Securities and Exchange Commission on August 7, 1998, Registration No. 333-59287)

Master Agreement, executed August 19, 1997, by and among R.H. Donnelley Inc. (f/k/a The Reuben H.
Donnelley Corporation), the Company (f/k/a The Dun & Bradstreet Corporation), The Am-Don Part-
nership a/k/a DonTech, DonTech II, Ameritech Publishing, Inc., Ameritech Publishing of Illinois, Inc.,
Ameritech Corporation, DonTech I Publishing Company LLC and the APIL Partners Partnership (incor-
porated by reference to Exhibit 10.12 to Amendment No. 1 to the Registration Statement on Form S-4,
filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on August 7, 1998, Registration No. 333-59287)

Exclusive Sales Agency Agreement, effective August 19, 1997, between APIL Partners Partnership and
DonTech 1I (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.13 to Amendment No. 1 to the Registration
Statement on Form S-4, filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on August 7, 1998,
Registration No. 333-59287)

Agreement for Publishing Services, dated as of January 1, 2002 between Ameritech Publishing Inc. and
R.H. Donnelley Inc. {certain portions of this exhibit have been omitted and filed separately with the
Securities and Exchange Commission pursuant to an Application for an Order Granting Confidential
Treatment) (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.13 to the Company’s Quarterly Report on
Form 10-Q for the three months ended March 31, 2002, filed with the Securities and Exchange
Commission on May 10, 2002, Commission File No. 001-07155)

Key Employees’ Performance Unit Plan, as amended and restated (incorporated by reference to Ex-
hibit 10.15 to Amendment No. 3 to the Registration Statement on Form S-4, filed with the Securities
and Exchange Commission on September 28, 1998, Registration No. 333-59287)

1991 Key Employees” Stock Option Plan, as amended and restated through April 25, 2000 {incorpo-
rated by reference to Exhibit 10.17 to the Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the three
months ended September 30, 2000, filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on Novem-
ber 13, 2000, Commission File No. 001-07155)

Amended and Restated 1998 Directors’ Stock Plan (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.18 to the
Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 1999, filed with the
Securities and Exchange Commission on March 27, 2000, Commission File No. 001-07155)

Pension Benefit Equalization Plan (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.16 to the Company’s Annual
Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2001, filed with the Securities and Exchange
Commission on March 27, 2002, Commission File No. 001-07155)

2001 Stock Award and Incentive Plan (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.17 to the Company’s
Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2001, filed with the Securities and
Exchange Commission on March 27, 2002, Commission File No. 001-07155)

Form of Non-Qualified Stock Option Agreement (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 99.02 to Regis-
tration Statement on Form S-8, filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on July 25, 2001,
Registration No. 333-65822)
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Exhibit No.

10.16"

10.17°

10.18"

10.19°

10.20°

10.21"

10.22°

10.23"

10.24"

10.25

10.26

10.27

10.28#

Document

Form of Annual Incentive Program Award (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 99.03 to the Registra-
tion Statement on Form S-8, filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on July 25, 2001,
Registration No. 333-65822)

Form of Performance Unit Program Award (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 99.04 to the Registra-
tion Statement on Form S-8, filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on July 25, 2001,
Registration No. 333-65822)

Form of Stock Appreciation Rights Agreement (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.21 to the
Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the three month period ended September 30, 2004, filed
with the Securities and Exchange Commission on November 9, 2004, Commission File No. 001-07155)

Deferred Compensation Plan (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.01 to the Company’s Registration
Statement on Form S-8, filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on November 24, 1999,
Registration No. 333-91613)

Employment Agreement effective as of May 1, 2002 between the Company and David C. Swanson
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.29 to the Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the
three months ended September 30, 2002, filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on
August 14, 2002, Commission File No. 001-07155)

Employment Agreement effective September 21, 2002 between the Company and Peter J. McDonald
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.30 to the Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the nine months
ended September 30, 2002, filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on November 12, 2002,
Commission File No. 001-07155)

Employment Agreement effective March 1, 2002 between the Company and Steven M. Blondy (incorpo-
rated by reference to Exhibit 10.30 to the Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the three
months ended June 30, 2002, filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on August 14, 2002,
Commission File No. 001-07155)

Employment Agreement dated as of January 1, 2001 between the Company and Robert J. Bush
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.37 to the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year
ended December 31, 2000, filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on March 28, 2001,
Commission File No. 001-07155)

Amendment No. 1 to Employment Agreement dated as of February 27, 2001 between the Company and
Robert J. Bush (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.38 to the Company’s Annual Report on
Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2000, filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission
on March 28, 2001, Commission File No. 001-07155)

Letter Agreement, dated as of November 25, 2002, among the Company, R.H. Donnelley Inc. and
investment partnerships affiliated with The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc (incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.1 to the Current Report on Form 8-K, filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on
December 3, 2002, Commission File No, 001-07155)

Letter Agreement dated as of January 3, 2003 among the Company, R.H. Donnelley Inc. and investment
partnerships affiliated with The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.8
to the Current Report on Form 8-K, filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on January 17,
2003, Commission File No. 001-07155)

Letter Agreement, dated as of July 22, 2003 among the Company and investment partnerships affiliated
with The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.45 to the Company’s
Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the three months ended September 30, 2003, filed with the
Securities and Exchange Commission on August 13, 2003, Commission File No. 001-07155)

Directory Services License Agreement, dated as of January 3, 2003, by and among R.H. Donnelley
Publishing & Advertising, Inc. (f/k/a Sprint Publishing & Advertising, Inc.), CenDon L.L.C., R.H.
Donnelley Directory Company (f/k/a Centel Directory Company), Sprint Corporation, Sprint Directory
Trademark Company, LLC and the Sprint Local Telecommunications Division (incorporated by refer-
ence to Exhibit 10.1 to the Current Report on Form 8-K, filed with the Securities and Exchange
Commission on January 17, 2003, Commission File No. 001-07155)
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10.33#

10.34

10.35

10.36
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Document

Trademark License Agreement, dated as of January 3, 2003, by and among Sprint Directory Trademark
Company, LLC, R.H. Donnelley Publishing & Advertising, Inc. (f/k/a Sprint Publishing & Advertising,
Inc.), CenDon L.L.C. and R.H, Donnelley Directory Company (f/k/a Centel Directory Company)
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to the Current Report on Form 8-K, filed with the Securities
and Exchange Commission on January 17, 2003, Commission File No. 001-07155)

Publisher Trademark License Agreement, dated as of January 3, 2003, by and among R.H. Donnelley
Publishing & Advertising, Inc. {f/k/a Sprint Publishing & Advertising, Inc.), R.H. Donnelley Directory
Company (f/k/a Centel Directory Company) and Sprint Corporation (incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.3 to the Current Report on Form 8-K, filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on
January 17, 2003, Commission File No. 001-07155)

Non-Competition Agreement, dated as of January 3, 2003, by and among the Company, R.H. Donnel-
ley Publishing & Advertising, Inc. (f/k/a Sprint Publishing & Advertising, Inc.), CenDon L.L.C., R.H.
Donnelley Directory Company (f/k/a Centel Directory Company), Sprint Corporation and the Sprint
Local Telecommunications Division (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.4 to the Current Report on
Form 8-K, filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on January 17, 2003, Commission File
No. 001-07155)

Subscriber Listings Agreement, dated as of January 3, 2003, by and among R.H. Donnelley Publish-
ing & Advertising, Inc. (f/k/a Sprint Publishing & Advertising, Inc.), CenDon L.L.C., R.H. Donnelley
Directory Company (f/k/a Centel Directory Company), Sprint Corporation and the Sprint Local Tele-
communications Division (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.5 to the Current Report on
Form 8-K, filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on January 17, 2003, Commission File
No. 001-07153)

Directory Services License Agreement, dated as of September 1, 2004, among R.H. Donnelley Corpora-
tion, R.H. Donnelley Publishing & Advertising of Illinois Partnership (formerly known as The APIL
Partners Partnership), DonTech II Partnership, Ameritech Corporation, SBC Directory Operations, Inc.
and SBC Knowledge Ventures, L.P. (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Company’s
Current Report on Form 8-K, filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on September 3, 2004,
Commission File No. 001-07155)

Non-Competition Agreement, dated as of September 1, 2004, between R.H. Donnelley Corporation and
SBC Communications, Inc. {incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to the Company’s Current Report
on Form 8-K, filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on September 3, 2004, Commission
File No. 001-07155)

SMARTDpages Reseller Agreement, dated as of September 1, 2004, among SBC Communications, Inc.,
Southwestern Bell Yellow Pages, Inc., SBC Knowledge Ventures, L.P., R.H. Donnelley Corporation,
R.H. Donnelley Publishing & Advertising of Illinois Partnership (formerly known as The APIL Partners
Partnership) and DonTech II Partnership (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.3 to the Company’s
Current Report on Form 8-K, filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on September 3, 2004,
Commission File No. 001-07155)

Ameritech Directory Publishing Listing License Agreement, dated as of September 1, 2004, among R.H.
Donnelley Publishing & Advertising of Illinois Partnership (formerly known as The APIL Partners
Partnership), DonTech II Partnership and Ameritech Services Inc. (incorporated by reference to Ex-
hibit 10.4 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K, filed with the Securities and Exchange
Commission on September 3, 2004, Commission File No. 001-07155)

Credit Agreement, dated as of December 6, 2002, among the Company, R.H. Donnelley Inc., R.H.
Donnelley Finance Corporation II (subsequently merged with and into R.H. Donnelley Inc.}, the several
lenders from time to time party thereto, Bear Stearns Corporate Lending Inc. and Citicorp North
America, Inc., as joint syndication agents, BNP Paribas and Fleet National Bank, as joint documentation
agents, Deutsche Bank Trust Company Americas, as administrative agent, and Deutsche Bank Securities
Inc., Salomon Smith Barney Inc. and Bear, Stearns & Co. Inc., as joint lead arrangers and joint book
runners (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.10 to the Current Report on Form 8-K, filed with the
Securities and Exchange Commission on January 17, 2003, Commission File No. 001-07155)
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10.44#
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Document

First Amendment, dated as of December 5, 2003, among the Company, R.H. Donnelley Inc., the
financial institutions parties thereto, Deutsche Bank Securities Inc., CitiGroup Global Markets Inc. and
Bear, Stearns & Co. Inc., as joint lead arrangers and joint book runners, Bear Stearns Corporate
Lending Inc. and Citicorp North America, Inc., as joint syndication agents, BNP Paribas and Fleet
National Bank, as documentation agents, and Deutsche Bank Trust Company Americas, as administra-
tive agent, to the Credit Agreement, dated as of December 6, 2002 (incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 99.1 to the Current Report on Form 8-K, filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on
February 26, 2004, Commission File No. 001-07155)

Amended and Restated Credit Agreement, dated as of September 1, 2004, by and among, R.H.
Donnelley Inc., as borrower, R.H. Donnelley Corporation, the lenders from time to time parties thereto,
J.P. Morgan Securities Inc. and Bear, Stearns & Co. Inc., as joint lead arrangers and joint bookrunners,
JPMorgan Chase Bank and Bear Stearns Corporate Lending Inc., as co-syndication agents, Citicorp
North America, Inc. and Goldman Sachs Credit Partners L.P., as co-documentation agents, and
Deutsche Bank Trust Company Americas, as administrative agent (incorporated by reference to Ex-
hibit 10.5 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K, filed with the Securities and Exchange
Commission on September 3, 2004, Commission File No. 001-07155)

First Amendment, dated as of December 6, 2004, to the Amended and Restated Credit Agreement, dated
as of September 1, 2004, by and among R.H. Donnelley Corporation, R.H. Donnelley Inc., the lenders
from time to time parties thereto, Deutsche Bank Trust Company Americas, as administrative agent and
J.P. Morgan Securities Inc. as sole bookrunner and sole lead arranger and the other agents party thereto
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K, filed with the
Securities and Exchange Commission on December 8, 2004, Commission File No. 001-07155)

Second Amendment, dated as of January 7, 2005, to the Amended and Restated Credit Agreement,
dated as of September 1, 2004, by and among R.H. Donnelley Corporation, R.H. Donnelley Inc., the
lenders from time to time parties thereto, Deutsche Bank Trust Company Americas, as administrative
agent and the other agents party thereto (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Company’s
Current Report on Form 8-K, filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on January 11, 2005,
Commission File No. 001-07155)

Amended and Restated Guaranty and Collateral Agreement, dated as of September 1, 2004, by and
among R.H. Donnelley Corporation, R.H. Donnelley Inc., R.H. Donnelley APIL, Inc., R.H. Donnelley
Publishing & Advertising, Inc., Get Digital Smart.com Inc., R.H. Donnelley Publishing & Advertising of
Illinois Partnership, DonTech II Partnership, DonTech Holdings, I.LC, and R.H. Donnelley Publish-
ing & Advertising of Illinois Holdings, LLC (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.6 to the Com-
pany’s Current Report on Form 8-K, filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on
September 3, 2004, Commission File No. 001-07155)

Reaffirmation, dated as of December 6, 2004, by R.H. Donnelley Corporation, R.H. Donnelley Inc. and
its subsidiaries in favor of Deutsche Bank Trust Company Americas, as administrative agent (incorpo-
rated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K, filed with the
Securities and Exchange Commission on December 8, 2004, Commission File No. 001-071355)

Closing Agreement dated as of December 13, 2004 by and between the Company and the Commissioner
of the Internal Revenue Service (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 99.1 to the Company’s Current
Report on Form 8-K, filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on December 16, 2004,
Commission File No. 001-071535)

Stock Purchase Agreement dated as of January 10, 2005, by and among R.H. Donnelley Corporation
and certain investment partnerships affiliated with The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.2 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K, filed with the Securities and
Exchange Commission on January 11, 2005, Commission File No. 001-07155)

Registration Rights Agreement, dated as of January 14, 2005, among R.H. Donnelley Corporation and
the initial purchasers that are party thereto (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to the Company’s
Current Report on Form 8-K, filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on January 19, 20085,
Commission File No. 001-07155)

Subsidiaries of the Company (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 21 to the Company’s Quarterly
Report on Form 10-Q for the three month period ended September 30, 2004, filed with the Securities
and Exchange Commission on November 9, 2004, Commission File No. 001-07155)
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31.1%

31.2%

31.3*

31.4%

32.1%

32.2%

Document

Consent of Pricewaterhouse Coopers LLP, Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

Consent of Ernst & Young LLP, Independent Auditors

Consent of Ernst & Young LLP, Independent Auditors

Certification of Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2004 by David C.
Swanson, Chief Executive Officer of R.H. Donnelley Corporation under Section 302 of the Sarbanes-
Oxley Act

Certification of Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2004 by Steven M.
Blondy, Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer of R.H. Donnelley Corporation under Sec-
tion 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act

Certification of Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2004 by David C.
Swanson, Chief Executive Officer for R.H. Donnelley Inc. under Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act
Certification of Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2004 by Steven M.
Blondy, Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer for R.H. Donnelley Inc. under Section 302 of
the Sarbanes-Oxley Act

Certification of Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2004 under Section 906
of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act by David C. Swanson, Chief Executive Officer, and Steven M. Blondy, Senior
Vice President and Chief Financial Officer, for R.H. Donnelley Corporation

Certification of Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2004 under Section 906
of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act by David C. Swanson, Chief Executive Officer, and Steven M. Blondy, Senior
Vice President and Chief Financial Officer, for R.H. Donnelley Inc.

* Filed herewith
* Management contract or compensatory plan

# The Company agrees to furnish supplementally a copy of any omitted exhibits or schedules to the Securities
and Exchange Commission upon request.




SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant
has duly caused this Annual Report on Form 10-K to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto
duly authorized, on the 16th day of March 200S5.

R.H. Donnelley Corporation

By: /s/ David C. Swanson

David C. Swanson,
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, this report has been
duly signed by the following persons in the capacities and on the date indicated.

/s/ David C. Swanson Chairman and Chief Executive Officer and March 16, 2005
(David C. Swanson) Director (Principal Executive Officer)
/s/ Steven M. Blondy Senior Vice President and Chief Financial March 16, 20035
(Steven M. Blondy) Officer (Principal Financial Officer)
/s/ Robert A. Gross Vice President and Controller (Principal March 16, 2005
(Robert A. Gross) Accounting Officer)
/s/  Kenneth G. Campbell Director March 16, 2005

(Kenneth G. Campbell)

/s/ Nancy E. Cooper Director March 16, 2005
{Nancy E. Cooper)

/s/ Robert R. Gheewalla Director March 16, 2005
(Robert R, Gheewalla)

/s! Robert Kamerschen Director March 16, 2005
(Robert Kamerschen)

/s/ Terence M. O’Toole Director March 16, 2005
(Terence M. O’Toole)

{s{ David M. Veit Director March 16, 2005
{David M. Veit)

/s/ Barry Lawson Williams Director March 16, 2005
{(Barry Lawson Williams)

/s/ Edwina Woodbury Director March 16, 2005
(Edwina Woodbury)
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant
has duly caused this Annual Report on Form 10-K to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto
duly authorized, on the 16th day of March, 2005.

R.H. Donnelley Inc.

By: fs/ David C. Swanson

Dawid C. Swanson,
Chief Executive Officer

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, this report has been
duly signed by the following persons in the capacities and on the date indicated.

/s{ David C. Swanson Director and Chief Executive Officer March 16, 2005
(David C. Swanson) (Principal Executive Officer)

/s/ Steven M. Blondy Director, Senior Vice President March 16, 2005
(Steven M. Blondy) and Chief Financial Officer
{Principal Financial Officer)

/s/ Raobert A. Gross Vice President and Controller March 16, 2005

(Robert A. Gross) (Principal Accounting Officer)
/s/ Robert ]. Bush Director March 16, 2005

(Robert J. Bush)




Reconciliation of Non-GAAP Measures (unaudited)

Reconciliation of publication sales for Sprint-branded directories to net revenue — GAAP

(Amounts in millions) 20021
Publication sales — Sprint-branded directories . ...... ... ... . $ 541.7
Less publication sales for Sprint-branded directories not sold by RHD . ........................... (357.0)
Publication sales previously disclosed in RHD 2002 Form 10-K ........ ... ... ... .. ... ... 184.7
Publication sales — Sprint-branded directories — percentage change over prior year ................ -3.0%
Less sales contracts executed in prior periods and reported as calendar sales in prior

PETIOUS « o ottt e e (70.0)
Plus sales contracts sold during the period to be reported as publication sales in future periods .. .. .. 72.1
Calendar sales reported in 2002 . ... oo e $ 186.8
Net commission revenue on 2002 calendarsales....... ... ... ... . 42.7
Pre-press publishing revenue ......... . . 311
Other FEVEIUE . . .o oo 1.6
Net revenue — GAAP ... ... § 754
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Reconciliations, continued

Reconciliation of publication sales for Sprint-branded and SBC-branded directories to net revenue and adjusted
pro forma net revenue

(Amounts in millions) 200412 20031
Publication sales — Sprint-branded directories .......... ... ... ..o $ 5672 $ 5525
Publication sales — Sprint-branded directories — percentage change over prior year . ... 2.7%
Adjustments for changes in directory publication date(s) ............................ (4.3)
Publication sales previously disclosed ......... ... ... 548.2
Publication sales — SBC-branded directories........... ... ... i i 463.2 473.1
Publication sales — SBC-branded directories — percentage change over prior year ... ... 2.1%
Adjustments for changes in directory publication date(s) ............. ... .. ... ..., 4.3
Total publication sales. ... ... .. . 1,030.4 1,025.6
Total publication sales — percentage change over prior year .......... ... .. 0.5%
Adjustments for changes in directory publication date(s) ............................ {4.3)
Less pre-acquisition publication sales for Sprint-branded directories not recognized as

revenue in current period due to purchase accounting .......... ... . ... .. (102.4)
Less pre-acquisition publication sales for SBC-branded directories not recognized as

revenue in current period due to purchase accounting ............. ... ... ... ... (277.3) (473.1)
Less current period publication sales for Sprint-branded directories not recognized as

revenue in current period due to the deferral method of accounting ................ (221.0) (214.2)
Less current period publication sales for SBC-branded directories not recognized as

revenue in current period due to the deferral method of accounting . ............ ... (158.4)
Plus net revenue reported in the period for publication sales from prior periods........ 209.3 —
Net directory advertising revenue on above publication sales ........................ 583.0 231.6
Pre-press publishing revenue .. ... ... .. ... 13.0 222
Other TevenUe . .. ..o 7.1 2.6
Net revenue — GAAP . ... 603.1 256.4

Plus net revenue from Sprint-branded directories that published prior to the SPA
Acquisition, plus all January 2003 published directories, which would have been
recognized during the period absent purchase accounting required under GAAP .. ... 1.1 315.9

Net revenue — Adjusted ... ... $ 5723

Plus net revenue from SBC-branded directories that published prior to the SBC

Directory Acquisition, plus all September 2004 published directories, which would

have been recognized during the period absent purchase accounting required under

G A AP L 436.5 475.9
Less pre-press publishing revenue that would not have been recorded had the SBC

Directory Acquisition occurred on January 1, 2003 ........... .. ... ... ... ... (13.0) (22.2)
Plus commissions earned on sales contracts published into other publishers’ directories

and other yellow pages Internet-based advertising and other product revenue

recognized as earned ... ... 6.2 6.8

Net revenue — Adjusted pro forma ... ... e $1,033.9 $1,032.8
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Reconciliations, continued

Reconciliation of 2003 net (loss) income — GAAP to 2003 adjusted EBITDA and 2004 net income — GAAP

to 2004 adjusted pro forma EBITDA and 2004 normalized adjusted pro forma EBITDA®!

(Amounts in millions) 2004 2003
Net (loss) income — GAAP . . ... .. $ 70.3  $(49.9)
Plus tax (benefit) provision .......... . . . 45.9 (36.1)
Plus INterest €XPEMSE, MEL. ...\ttt t ittt ettt e et ettt e e et e 175.5 180.0
Plus depreciation and amortization . ..........uu ettt 66.6 65.8
BBl D A e $358.3  $159.8
Less other InCOmE . ... o 0.1 (1.5)
Plus net revenue from Sprint-branded directories that published prior to the SPA

acquisition, plus all January 2003 published directories, which would have been

recognized during the period absent purchase accounting required under GAAP? ... .. .. 1.1 315.9
Plus amortized deferred cost uplift on Sprint sales contracts as of the date of the SPA

acquisition, net of expenses on Sprint-branded directories that published prior to the

acquisition, including all January 2003 published directories, which would not have been

recognized during the period absent purchasing accounting required under GAAP® .. ... 3.6 (63.3)
Adjusted EBIT DA . $410.9

Less pre-press publishing revenue that would not have been recorded had the SBC
Directory Acquisition occurred on January 1, 2003 ... ... ... o {13.0)

Plus net revenue from SBC-branded directories that published prior to the SBC Directory
Acquisition, plus all September 2004 published directories, which would have been
recognized during the period absent purchase accounting required under GAAP® ... .. .. 436.5
Plus commissions earned on sales contracts published into other publishers’ directories and

other vellow pages Internet-based advertising and other product revenue recognized as
- 112 S 6.2

Less expenses, including amortized deferred cost uplift, from SBC-branded directories that
published prior to the SBC Directory Acquisition that would have been recognized during

the period absent purchase accounting required under GAAP ......... ... ...... ... ... {98.0)
Less partnership income that would not have been recognized during the period assuming

the SBC Directory Acquisition occurred on January 1,2003 ....... .. ... ... ... ...... (78.0)
Adjusted pro forma EBITDA .. ... . 616.8
Plus headquarters relocation EXPensSes. . .. .. v vttt it 7.3
Less favorable adjustments to bad debt and claims expense on SBC-branded directories

recorded prior to the SBC Directory ACQUISILION . ......\oieereneee i (12.0)

Less incremental compensation expense that would have been realized assuming the
company had adopted SFAS 123 on January 1,2004 .. ... . ... i (5.1)

Less other adjustments, including additional operating expenses management believes would
have been incurred if RHD had operated the acquired SBC Directory business for the full

421 S (7.0)
Normalized adjusted pro forma EBITDA . ... ... $600.0
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Reconciliations, continued

Reconciliation of cash flow from operations — GAAP to free cash flow

(Amounts in millions) 2004 2003 2002
Cash flow from operations — GAAP. ... ... ... ... . i $406.3  $248.6  $49.9
Less additions to fixed assets and computer software .......................... (18.0) (12.6) (3.7)
Freecash flow .. ... .. 388.3 236.0 46.2
Less 2004 income tax refunds . ...... ... .. .. . (71.3)

Free cash flow, excluding income tax refunds . ................................ $317.0  $236.0 $46.2

Reconciliation of weighted average diluted shares outstanding — GAAP to weighted average diluted shares
outstanding — adjusted

2004 2003

Weighted average diluted shares outstanding — GAAP. ... ... ... ... .. L. 32.6 30.7
Additional diluted shares outstanding assuming the preferred stock is converted to common

stock at the beginning of the period. ... ... ... . ... 9.5 88

Additional shares from common stock equivalents'¥ ... ... .. ... ... 0.9

Weighted average diluted shares outstanding — adjusted . ....... ... ... ... ... .. L 42.1 404




7

Notes to Reconciliation of Non-GAAP Measures

(1

Revenue from the sale of advertising in published directories is recognized using the deferral and
amortization method of accounting. Under this method, when a directory is published, the publication sales
value is deferred and amortized into the income statement ratably over the life of the directory, which is
typically 12 months. Publication sales represent the billable value of advertising sales in directories that
published during the period. If events occur during the current period that affect comparability of sales to
the prior year period, such as changes in directory publication dates, then prior year sales are adjusted to
conform to the current period presentation to maintain comparability.

As a result of the SPA Acquisition and SBC Directory Acquisition and the related financings and associated
purchase accounting, 2004 and 2003 results reported in accordance with GAAP are not comparable, nor
do they reflect the Company’s underlying operational or financial performance. Additionally, these
considerations with respect to the SBC Directory Acquisition will also affect the comparability of our 2004
and 2005 reported GAAP results. Accordingly, management is presenting adjusted pro forma information
that, among other things, eliminates the purchase accounting effects of each acquisition and assumes the
SBC Directory Acquisition and related financing occurred on January 1, 2003. Management believes that
the presentation of this adjusted pro forma information will help financial statement users better and more
easily compare current period underlying operating results against what the combined company
performance would more likely have been in the comparable prior period. While management believes the
adjusted pro forma results reasonably represent results as if the businesses had been combined for the full
years 2003 and 2004, because of differences in the application of accounting policies and practices between
the Company and the acquired entities, management does not believe these adjusted pro forma amounts
are strictly comparable, nor are they necessarily indicative of results for future periods. The pro forma
results assume that the appropriate pro rata portion of the revenues and direct costs of directories acquired
in connection with the SPA Acquisition and SBC Directory Acquisition that published prior to the
respective acquisition, plus directories that published during the month of each acquisition, were recognized
during the period pursuant to the deferral and amortization method. As a result of purchase accounting,
these pre-acquisition revenues and expenses are not included in reported GAAP results. For the periods
prior to the SBC Directory Acquisition, pro forma interest expense assumes that transaction occurred at the
beginning of the periods presented and is based on the incremental debt actually incurred at the time of the
acquisition and the interest rate in effect at the time of the acquisition with no assumption for additional
debt repayments. As a result of purchase accounting required by GAAP, we recorded the deferred directory
costs related to directories that were scheduled to publish subsequent to each of the SPA Acquisition and
SBC Direcrory Acquisition, at their fair value, determined as (a) the estimated billable value of the
published directory less {b) the expected costs to complete the directories, plus {c) a normal profit margin.
We refer to this purchase accounting entry as “cost uplift.” This “cost uplift” with respect to each
transaction has also been removed in the adjusted pro forma results.

EBITDA represents earnings before interest, taxes, depreciation and amortization. Adjusted pro forma
EBITDA represents adjusted pro forma earnings before interest, taxes, depreciation and amortization.
EBITDA and Adjusted pro forma EBITDA are not measurements of operating performance computed in
accordance with GAAP and should not be considered as a substitute for operating income or net income
prepared in conformity with GAAP. In addition, EBITDA may not be comparable to similarly titled
measures of other companies.

The effect of certain stock options in 2003 was anti-dilutive and therefore is not included in the calculation
of diluted shares outstanding — GAAP.
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